
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES
Members of the public who are disabled and require special accommodations or assistance at the
meeting are requested to notify the City ofElko Planning Department, 1751 College Avenue, Elko,
Nevada, 89801 or by calling (775) 777-7160.

Dated this 31st day of January, 2018.

The public may contact Shelby Archuleta by phone at (775) 777-7160 or by email at
sarchuleta@elkocitynv.gov to request supporting material for the meeting described herein. The
agenda and supporting material is also available at Elko City Hall, 1751 College Avenue, Elko,
NV.

Postedby:=S=he~l~b~~==~~====~T~e~c~hn==ic~i=an~__ ~~~~ __ ~~~~~~ __
Name Title

ELKO CITY HALL - 1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801
Date/Time Posted: January 31, 2018 2:00 p.m.

ELKO POLICE DEPARTMENT - 1448 Silver Street, Elko NV 89801
Date/Time Posted: January 31, 2018 2: 15 p.m.

ELKO COUNTY LIBRARY - 720 Court Street, Elko, NV 89801
Date/Time Posted: January 31, 2018 2:05 p.m.

ELKO COUNTY COURTHOUSE - 571 Idaho Street, Street, Elko, NV 89801
Date/Time Posted: January 31, 2018 2:10 p.m.

Attached with this notice is the agenda for said meeting of the Commission. In accordance with
NRS 241.020, the public notice and agenda were posted on the City of Elko Website at
http://www.elkocitynv.gov/, the State of Nevada's Public Notice Website at https://notice.nv.gov,
and in the following locations:

The City of Elko Planning Commission will meet in a regular session on Tuesday, February 6,
2018 in the Council Chambers at Elko City Hall, 1751 College Avenue, Elko, Nevada, and
beginning at 5:30 P.M., P.S.T.

PUBLIC MEETING NOTICE

1751 College Avenue· Elko, Nevada 89801 . (775) 777-7160 . Fax (775) 777-7219

Website: www.elkocitynv.gov
Email: planning@elkocitynv.gov

CITY OF ELKO
Planning Department



The subject property is located generally on the north side of Silver Street, between
River Street and l " Street (350 W. Silver Street, APN 001-691-007).

2. Review, consideration, and possible recommendation to City Council for Rezone
No. 11-17, filed by MRP, LLC, for a change in zoning from LI (Light Industrial) to
IC (Industrial Commercial), approximately 1.5 acres of property, to allow for
commercial uses, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

1. Review, consideration, and possible recommendation to City Council for Rezone
No. 10-17, filed by Surebrec Holdings, LLC, for a change in zoning from AG
(General Agricultural) to IC (Industrial Commercial), approximately 62.03 acres of
property, to allow for future development, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

A. PUBLIC HEARING

I. NEW BUSINESS

January 4, 2018 - Special Meeting FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Pursuant to N .R.S. 241, this time is devoted to comments by the public, if any, and discussion
of those comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this item on the agenda
until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive agenda and identified as
an item for possible action. ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

The subject property is located generally northeast of the intersection of Statice
Street and Delaware Avenue. (APN 006-1 OC-006)

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

ROLLCALL

The Agenda for this meeting of the Elko City Planning Commission has been properly posted
for this date and time in accordance with NRS requirements.

CALL TO ORDER

CITYOFELKO
PLANNING COMMISSION

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
5:30 P.M., P.S.T., TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 6, 2018
ELKO CITY HALL, COUNCIL CHAMBERS,
1751 COLLEGE AVENUE, ELKO, NEVADA



The subject property is located generally on the south side of Court Street,
approximately 50 feet east of 9th Street (910 Court Street, APN 001-281-002).

7. Review, consideration, and possible action on Variance No. 1-18, filed by Jason B.
Land, on behalf of Blaine Branscomb for a reduction of the required lot area from
6,000 sq. ft. to 3,750 sq. ft., front lot width from 60 feet to 37.50 feet, and the
required interior side yard setback from 5 112 feet to 0 feet, in conjunction with a
zone change from R (Single-Family and Multi-Family Residential) to RO
(Residential Office), and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The subject property is located generally on the south side of Court Street,
approximately 50 feet east of 9th Street (910 Court Street, APN 001-281-002).

6. Review, consideration, and possible recommendation to City Council for Rezone
No. 2-18, filed by Jason B. Land, on behalf of Blaine Branscomb, for a change in
zoning from R (Single-Family and Multi-Family Residential) to RO (Residential
Office), approximately 0.086 acres of property, to allow for a professional office,
and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The subject property is located generally on the northwest comer of the intersection
of College Avenue and Golf Course Road (1401 College Ave, APN 001-200-002).

5. Review, consideration, and possible recommendation to City Council for Rezone
No. 1-18, filed by The City of Elko, for a change in zoning from R (Single-Family
and Multiple-Family Residential) to PQP (Public, Quasi-Public), approximately
1.314 acres of property, to allow for incorporation into the Elko City Parks, and
matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The subject property is located generally on the northeast comer of the intersection
of Cattle Drive and Mountain City Highway. (APN 001-0IF-316)

4. Review, consideration, and possible action of Conditional Use Permit No. 1-18, filed
by Autumn Colors, LLC, which would allow for the development of duplex
townhomes within a CT (Commercial Transitional) Zoning District, and matters
related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The subject property is located generally on the north side of West Idaho Street,
approximately 2,500 feet east of 1-80Exit 298.

3. Review, consideration, and possible recommendation to City Council for Rezone
No. 12-17, filed by Swire Coca-Cola, USA, for a change in zoning from AG
(General Agricultural) to LI (Light Industrial), approximately 3.00 acres of property,
to allow for the continued use of a beverage distribution center, and matters related
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION



G. Staff.

F. Planning Commission evaluation. General discussion pertaining to motions, findings, and
other items related to meeting procedures.

E. Elko County Agendas and Minutes.

D. Preliminary agendas for Planning Commission meetings.

C. Professional articles, publications, etc.

B. Summary of Redevelopment Agency Actions.

A. Summary of City Council Actions.

II. REPORTS

1. Zoning Bulletin

5. Review, consideration, and possible action to initiate an amendment to the City of
Elko Master Plan, specifically The Proposed Future Land Use Atlas Map 8, and
matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The subject property is located generally on the northeast comer of the intersection
of Cattle Drive and Mountain City Highway (001-01F-316).

4. Review, consideration, and possible action and possible approval of Final Plat No. 2-
18, filed by Autumn Colors, LLC, for the development of a subdivision entitled
Autumn Colors Estates, Phase 5 involving the proposed division of approximately
5.85 acres divided into 41 lots for residential development within the R (Single
Family and Multiple Family Residential) and CT (Commercial Transitional) Zoning
Districts, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

3. Review and consideration of Annexation No. 3-17 filed by Swire Coca-Cola, USA,
consisting of approximately 3.00 acres of property located on the north side of West
Idaho Street, approximately 2,500 feet east from 1-80 Exit 298, and matters related
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

2. Review and consideration of Annexation No. 2-17 filed by Surebrec Holdings, LLC,
consisting of approximately 62.03 acres of property located northeast of the
intersection of Statice Street and Delaware Avenue, and matters related thereto.
FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

1. Review, consideration, and possible action on the 2017 Annual Report of Planning
Commission activities. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

B. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS, PETITIONS, AND COMMUNICATIONS



~-~~~~~t:~r
Respectfull y submitted,

ADJOURNMENT

NOTE: The Chairman or Vice Chairman reserves the right to change the order of the agenda
and if the agenda is not completed, to recess the meeting and continue on another
specified date and time. Additionally, the Planning Commission reserves the right to
combine two or more agenda items, and/or remove an item from the agenda, or delay
discussion relating to an item on the agenda at any time.

Pursuant to N.R.S. 241, this time is devoted to comments by the public, if any, and discussion
of those comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this item on the agenda
until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive agenda and identified as
an item for possible action. ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC



A. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS, PETITIONS, AND COMMUNICATIONS

I. NEW BUSINESS

*Motion passed unanimously. (6-0)

Moved by Jeff Dalling, Seconded by Kevin Hodur.

***Motion: Approve the meeting minutes from December 5, 2017.

December 5,

CO

City Staff: Scott Wilkinson, Assistant
Jeremy D
Cathy
John
Sh

Excused: John Anderson

Aaron Martinez
David Freistroffer
Jeff Dalling
Kevin Hodur
Stefan Beck
Tera Hooiman

Present:

Page 1 of5Planning Commission Meeting MinutesJanuary 4, 2018

ROLLCALL

the meeting to orderAaron Martinez, Chairman of the City of Elko Planning Commission
at 5:30 p.m.

CALL TO ORDER

CITY OF ELKO
PLANNING COMMISSION

SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES
5:30 P.M., P.S.T., THURSDAY, JANUARY 4, 2018
ELKO CITY HALL, COUNCIL CHAMBERS,
1751 COLLEGE AVENUE, ELKO, NEVADA



2.

***Motion: Initiate an amendment to the City of
bring it back as a public hearing as presented.

ork Program. It consisted of the
was completed. It also had revising the
Zoning Ordinance Amendment 1-16,

~"'U,U,".1 parking in the Corridor, which was not
Program. Moving Forward the Planning

even though those items were on the work program
lete of them, there were other projects started in 2017 that
. One of those was Ordinance 825, which was adding Section

shments, Ordinance 818, which was the Home Occupation
Zoning Plan Amendment 1-17,which took a great amount of time and
we expanded that Land Use and Transportation Components; we added in the maps
and other pages. We did revisions to the Planning Department Applications and fee
schedules. Those are ings that we completed that were not part of the 2017 Work Program.
Even the Residential Business District took a little longer. What Ms. Laughlin is proposing is at
the pleasure of Planning Commission, because it is their work program and it is for them to
direct staff and give input on what they would like to see worked on in 2018. The proposal is to
continue to revise the Sign Ordinance, it has been started, Ms. Laughlin has a thick file on it, and
it has been requested to have a committee started for that. She was just trying to get everything
organized before the committee is started. Staff is also in the process of reviewing the Zoning for
the RMH Districts, which is the Manufactured Home Districts. Staff would like to revise the
map. That is a huge undertaking that has been started. In the revision of the map each

Cathy Laughlin, City Planner, explained that this is part of the process of trying to clean up
several of the areas within the City that are inappropriately zoned. Staff feels that this parcel,
owned by the City of Elko, is inappropriately zoned as Residential; it d be PQP. The Master
Plan calls the entire area Public. This initiation would allow the Cit EI as the applicant to
apply for a rezone for the parcel that the City of Elko owns, whi e old Police Department
parcel. Staff proposes it be PQP, which would allow for the . to forward with that
parcel in the future.

1. Review, consideration, and possible action to initiate an amendment to the City of
Elko district boundary, specifically APN 001-200-002, removing the R (Single
Family Multi-Family Residential) Zoning District and replacing it with the PQP
(Public, Quasi-Public) Zoning District, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

Page 2 of5Planning Commission Meeting MinutesJanuary 4,2018



Chairman Martinez said with it being on the Planning Commission's Work Program; a special
committee will be dictating a lot of decisions that will be presented to the Planning Commission.

Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager suggested checking the NRS, as it pertains to Planning
Commissions, to determine how, or if, a committee can be created to do work and bring it back
to the Planning Commission. We will have to comply with the NRS however we approach it.

Ms. Laughlin sai t much thought into it. She had been vetting different
communities and Ordinances to try to see what direction to go. Reece Keener
approachedMs. .L...I1,4.... F,..,.,.. .... about having a committee. She wanted to go through her file first and
get a draft started first fore starting the committee. Itwill be a complete re-write of the entire
section of the Code.

.L...I1,4.... ,.,.OJu. ...... was looking for someone from the Planning
gn Ordinance Committee.

be accepted and the Resolution adopted in

Page 3 of5Planning Commission Meeting MinutesJanuary 4,2018

Chairman Aaron Martinez asked if the Planning
modification that they had already went through, and i

last City Council meeting in
that will be a public

Statement has been done
Commission has not seen

and they are now with Legal

Commissioner Dalling thought it would be nice for thermlRQl£
knowledgeable about what they are doing.

Ms. Laughlin said she continues to watch the Nevada Chapter of P
magazines for somewhere close to have some type of training.
Orleans.

Ms. Laughlin said it was, and it was in
December they directed Staff to go into
hearing on January 9th. Once the public ....o.-:_1""n
then it will go back to City Council one n'\r"I.~~t-1_'O

the application revisions. gone thro
Counsel. The appli .

Commissioner Jeff Dalling thought it looked great. He wanted the Planning Commission to get
some planning training, not so much ethics, conduct, or open meeting law.

subdivision is looked at, how it was created, what type of park it is, looking back at the mapping
and CCNR's, and everything. The way the Zoning Map currently reads is it just shows RMH.
Staff would like to get the RMH Districts cleared up and the map revised. Staff would also like
to review and revise 3-3 the Subdivision section of the Code, which Mr. Wilkinson had already
started on. Staff would like to complete the Planning and Zoning Applications and Fee schedule
as well. Those are the four items that are proposed for the 2018 Work Program.



Page 4 of5Planning Commission Meeting MinutesJanuary 4,2018

Ms. Laughlin reported at the December 12th City Council meeting they talked about
the Business Impact Statement. For the upcoming meeting on January 9th there will
be a Public Hearing on the Master Plan Amendment, they have to have a majority
vote for approval. If they request any amendments, it will come back to the Planning
Commission. If they approve it by majority, it will be final at that time. The City

A. Summary of City Council Actions

II. REPORTS

*Motion passed unanimously. (6-0)

avid Freistroffer.

ission 2018 Work Program as provided by

Mi2Ppn~"r that she would have to read into NRS
this would go to the City Council for

Ms. Laughlin said
and see if they co
their review as well.

Mr. Wilkinson said if a committee was created the Planning C
committee. If the Planning Commission is unable to delegate
it as staff administratively. Then the Planning Commission
for the Commission to work day to day with staff. The Pl ....~~.l.l.lJ'1i. '-'·V.l.l.lJl.l.l

advisory board, which is governed under the NRS. He \\I11fP~l11r
community committee that gets involved. They may
and the Planning Commission Meetings.

to get community

Mr. Wilkinson said they will figure it
the decisions along the way.

Chairman Martinez stated that the Planning Commission wanted to be involved based on it being
on their work program.

Mr. Wilkinson wasn't sure that they could create committees.

Ms. Laughlin thought it would be similar to when they did the Residential Business District.

He thought it would be like taking the Commission out of the process; to only come from a
review standpoint versus a conception standpoint.



Jeff Dalling, SecretaryAaron Martinez, Chairman

the meeting was adjourned.There being no

c
G.

tsssoners that they had received an email from
ial statements.

F.

E. Elko County Agendas and Minu

1. Zoning Bulletin

C. Professional articles, publications, etc.

Ms. Laughlin reported that there will be an RDA meetin
item on the agenda is a change order funding conside
will be a RAC meeting and there is currently no
Storefront Grant Program is underway and applicso:

B. Summary of Redevelopment Agency Actions

Council will also consider the recommendationfrom the Planning Commission on the
Marijuana Establishment Ordinance, which will also be a public hearing. The City
Council will also have a Public Hearing on an Appeal that was filed by Lyfe
Recovery on the Planning Commission's denial of the halfway house. They will also
conduct the Public Hearing of the Business Impact Statement for the Planning and
Zoningfees. If they approve that, then it will go to one morefinal meeting.

Page 5 of5Planning Commission Meeting MinutesJanuary 4,2018



Created on 1/22/2018 Planning Commission Action Sheet

• The proposed rezone is consistent with City Code 3..2-J7

• The property is large enougb,to meet :thedevelopmentstandards specified in Section
3..2...11 of City Code.

1

• The proposed Z-<!l1e distnict is consistent with City ofElko Weltltead ProtectiYD Plan,

• The P.roposed rezone is bonsistent with City Code 3~2"4 (B), (C), & (D)I -
• The proposed rezone is in conformance with Sectiqll:'i3~2~11 Industrial-Commerclal

District.

4t The proposed' zone district -is compatible with the Master Plan Transportation
, Component and is eonsistent'with-the existing transportation infrastructure.

5. Background Information: The applicant has applied f~:rannexation into the City of
Elko and with-that annexation, the-property is automatically zoned AG, General
Agriculture District. I

,6; Business Impact Statement: Not Required
, 1 "

7. Supplemental Agenda Information; Application" Memo from Development Director,
Memo from City Planner

I
. -2. Recommended Motion: Forward a recommendation to' City Council to-adopt a

resolution.which approves Rezone No. 10-17

9: Findings: ," I ' ,
.,. The proposed zone district is in conformance with, the Master Plan Laud Use

Component ..

3. Agenda Category: PUBLIC HEARINGS, NEW BUSINESS- 1 '
4. Time Required: 15Min tes '

2. Meeting Date: February 6, 201~

Agenda Item # LA.l.

Elko 'CitY',[plnnning Comnii,s'~ionl Agenda Action Sheet .

1. Review, consideration and possible recommendation to City Council'for Rezone No.
10-17, filed by Surebrec Holdings, LLC., for atchange in zoning from AG (General
Agriculture District) to IC (Industrial Commercial), approximately ()1~93acres of
property Iocated generally,noirth~fI~t,t)fthJeintersectton of Stat ice Stre-et'and
Delaware Ave., FOR POSSIBLE' ACTION



Initial

City Manager: Date: 2/t 118"
Initial

**If additional space is needed please provide a separate memorandum**

Title: '']1-) CZcn(. IcY ,"1
A.pplicant(s): ~IY(!I)aC ~"\ldlt':p"U,( , ..
SIte Location: CCL; - ICC - ( CCI' ... A..i £ (Un!'; (~ cl SialiC's"' t))i \[(lA~\L1r~...
Current Zoning:Cf\a~\t>c.qA~ltwDateReceived: \ \ }(;2/1}- Date Public Notice: ) r27->j I F
COMMENT: ]I) I S I~) ·+t (t7L,ne..'--{lu rt?ch'Cel ftDrn fj~J ~to it.
\}pc,n ~\'Jn Px=o:t1 ['1J

STAFF COMMENT FLOW SHEET
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA DATE: 21u

**Do not use pencil or red pen, they do not reproduce**



Page 1 of5

RECOMMEND APPROVAL, subject to facts, findings and conditions.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

A zone designation upon annexation of property to Industrial Commercial (IC).

January 26, 2018
February 6, 2018
I-A-l
REZONE 10-17
Surebrec Holdings, LLC
Zone Designation for Proposed Annexation
Annexation Application 2-17

DATE:
PLANNINGCOMMISSION DATE:
AGENDAITEM NUMBER:
APPLICATION NUMBER:
APPLICANT:
PROJECT DESCRIPTION:
ADDITIONALAPPLICATION:

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

City of Elko
1751 College Avenue
Elko, NV 89801
(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7119



1. The application has been filed by Surebrec Holdings, LLC.
2. The proposed zone district includes all of APN 006-10C-006 which is the area identified

in annexation application 2-17.

BACKGROUND:

• City of Elko Master Plan - Land Use Component
• City of Elko Master Plan - Transportation Component
• City of Elko - Redevelopment Plan
• City of Elko Wellhead Protection Program
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-11 Industrial Commercial Districts
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-21 Amendments
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-8 Flood Plain Management

Applicable Master Plan Sections, NRS Sections and City Code Sections and other coordinating
plans are:

MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODE SECTIONS:

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:
• The property is currently undeveloped.
• The property will be accessed from Ruby Vista Drive and Statice Street

Page 2 of5

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:
• The property is surrounded by:

o North: Elko County Property 1Undeveloped
o West: Elko County Property 1 Partially developed Residential
o South: Industrial Business Park (lBP) 1Developed
o East: 1-80corridor

Undeveloped landEXISTING LAND USE:

(IND-BS PARK) Industrial Business ParkMASTER PLAN DESIGNATION:

General Agriculture (Elko County); Petition of the
annexation was accepted by City Council on
1/23/2018

EXISTING ZONING:

62.03 acresPARCEL SIZE:

006-10C-006; will be issued a new APN upon
finalization of the annexation.

PARCEL NUMBER:

PROJECT INFORMATION

REZONE 10-17
Surebrec Holdings, LLC
APN: 006-IOC-006



1. The area will be accessed from Statice Street or Ruby Vista Drive. The area could
also be accessed from Delaware Avenue, which would be considered a secondary
access.

Transportation:

The proposed zone district is in conformance with the Master Plan Land Use Component.

1. The Master Plan Land Use Atlas shows the area as Industrial Business Park.
2. Supporting zone districts for Industrial Business Park are Industrial Business

Park, Light Industrial and Industrial Commercial.
3. Objective 5: Encourage development that strengthens the core of the City, and

ensure all new annexations are logical and orderly and do not promote sprawl.
4. Objective 7: Promote high quality and visually appealing industrial uses, where

appropriate, to ensure economic sustainability as well as strengthen the
community's image.

5. Objective 8: Ensure that new development does not negatively impact countywide
natural systems, or public/federallands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages,
floodplains etc., or pose a danger to human health and safety.

6. Corresponding zone districts for Industrial Business Park are Industrial Business
Park, Light Industrial and Industrial Commercial.

Land use:

MASTER PLAN:

3. The proposed zone district is located northwesterly of the 1-80 interstate right-of-way.
The area was a portion of a larger property controlled by the State of Nevada. The City
Council took action May 23, 2017 committing two-acre feet of water to Surebrec
Holdings LLC in order to facilitate County approval of the parcel map to facilitate
transfer of ownership.

4. The applicant owns the property.
5. The proposed zone district is consistent with the Master Plan Landuse Component and

Transportation Component of the plan.
6. The area fronts the 1-80corridor and Statice Street.
7. The surrounding area is partially developed with light industrial land uses, vacant land

owned by the state located within the City'S incorporated boundary and outside the
incorporated boundary, and low density residential development located outside the
City'S incorporated boundary and separated by a roadway.

8. City water mains are located adjacent to the 1-80frontage and the Statice Street frontage
9. Sanitary sewer exists in Ruby Vista Drive but is too shallow to be utilized as a point of

connection for gravity service. A lift station and forced main could be considered for this
point of connection. A more practical point of connection would require a bore under 1-
80 to a point of connection near Union Pacific Way.

10. Other non-city utilities are located in the immediate vicinity.
11. This application is being processed concurrent with annexation application 2-17.
12. The City Council accepted the petition for the subject annexation on January 23, 2018,

and directed Staff to continue with the annexation process by referring the matter to the
Planning Commission.

REZONE 10-17
Surebrec Holdings, LLC
APN: 006-1 OC-006

Page 3 of5



1. The proposed zone district is in conformance with the Master Plan Land Use Component.

FINDINGS

1. This parcel is not designated in a Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA).

SECTION 3-8

1. The applicant has conformed to this section of code with the filing of the application.

SECTION 3-2-21:

1. Conformity with the section is required has the property develops. The property is
undeveloped and the provisions of code can be met as the property is developed.

SECTION 3-2-17

2. Conformance with this section will be required as the property develops.

1. The size of the property meets the area requirements required under this section code.

SECTION 3-2-11

Page 4 of5

The proposed zone change is in conformance with Elko City Code Section 3-2-4.

2. The property meets the area requirements for the proposed zone district.

1. The Planning Commission can recommend to the City Council a zone classification for
annexed territory other the default Agriculture District. The applicant has filed this
application in conformance with the code requesting the Industrial/Commercial District.
The proposed district is in conformance with the Master Plan.

SECTION 3-2-4

The proposed zone district is consistent with City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan.

1. The property is located inside the 2-5 year capture zone for a City well located adjacent
to the property.

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN:

1. The property is not located within the redevelopment area.

ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN:

The proposed zone district is compatible with the Master Plan Transportation Component and is
consistent with the existing transportation infrastructure.

2. Statice Street is classified as an Industrial Collector.
3. Ruby Vista Drive is classified as a Minor Arterial.
4. Delaware Avenue is classified as a local roadway.

REZONE 10-17
Surebrec Holdings, LLC
APN: 006-IOC-006



1. The department recommends approval.

Development Department:

2. The applicant enters into an agreement with the City relinquishing or identifying any
residual rights that may exist under the agreement between the State of Nevada and the
City.

1. Council approval of Annexation 3-17 is required prior to action taken on this application.

Planning Department:

1. The parcel described by metes and bounds does not match the parcel of record. Please
revise the legal description to reference the map instead of the metes and bounds
description. The revision is required prior to Council consideration of the application.

Engineering Department:

Staff recommends this item be conditionally approved with the following conditions:

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Page 5 of5

10.Development under the proposed zone district will not adversely impact natural systems,
or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages, floodplains etc., or pose a
danger to human health and safety.

9. The topography of the area is well suited for the proposed commercial and light industrial
land uses.

8. The proposed zone district is consistent with surrounding land uses.

7. The proposed zone district is in conformance with City Code 3-2-17.

6. The property is large enough to meet the development standards specified in Section 3-2-
11 of Elko City Code.

5. The proposed zone district is in conformance with Section 3-2-11, IC-Industrial
Commercial Districts.

4. The proposed zone district rezone is in conformance with City Code 3-2-4(B)(C) and (D).

3. The proposed zone district is consistent with City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan.

2. The proposed zone district is compatible with the Master Plan Transportation Component
and is consistent with the existing transportation infrastructure.

REZONE 10-17
Surebrec Holdings, LLC
APN: 006-1OC-006



• The along Statice Street between Delaware Street and Ruby Vista Drive.
• The property is being considered for annexation as annexation 2-17.
• The property is identified as APN 006-10C-006.
• The parcel is currently undeveloped.
• The parcel will be zoned AG-Agricultural upon annexation.
• The proposed zone is IC-Industrial Commercial.
• The proposed rezone would result in a rezone of proposed parcel 1 being 62.03

acres of IC.
• The property is bound by Industrial Business Park to the south, and Industrial

Commercial to the east with county property to the north and west.
C:\Users\sknopp\Downloads\Rez 10-17 Surebrec Statice St (3).docx
Created by Jeremy Draper

Project Information

The City of Elko Development Department is providing this correspondence to aid the
Planning Commission's review of Rezone Application 10-17.

To: Elko City Planning Commission
From: Jeremy Draper, Development Manager
RE: Rezone 10-17, Surebrec Holdings, LLC, Annex 2-17
Date: January 19, 2018

CITY OF ELKO
DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

1755 COLLEGE AVENUE
ELKO, NEVADA 89801

(775)777-7210
(775)777-7219 FAX



1. The proposed rezone does not appear to frustrate the goals and policies of the
Land Use Component of the Master Plan.

Findings

• Conformance with this section is required

Section 3-2-21-Amendments

• Conformance with this section is required

Section 3-2-17-Traffic. Access. Parking and Loading Regulations

• Conformance with this section is required

Section 3-2-11-(Bl-(lCl Industrial Commercial District

• Conformance with this section is required

Section 3-2-4-Establishment of Zoning Districts

• The property is located within the 5-year capture zone.
• Conformance with the Wellhead Protection Plan is required.

Elko Wellhead Protection Plan

Land Use:
• The Land Use component of the Master Plan identifies this area as Industrial

Business Park.
• Objective 6-Encourage multiple scales of commercial development to serve the

needs of the region, the community, and individual neighborhoods.
• Objective 7-Promote high quality and visually appealing industrial uses, where

appropriate, to ensure economic sustainability as well as strengthen the
community's image.

• Objective 8-Ensuer that new development does not negatively impact County
wide natural systems, or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands,
drainages, floodplains etc., or pose a danger to human health and safety.

• Corresponding zoning districts are IBC-Industrial Business Park, LI-Light
Industrial, and IC-Industrial Commercial.

Master Plan

• The property is not located within a FEMA Floodzone.

Page 2 of 3



The City of Elko Development Department recommends that the proposed zone
changes be approved.

Recommendation

Page 3 of 3

2. Industrial Commercial is a corresponding district of Industrial Business Park Land
Use designation

3. The proposed rezone is in conformance with City Code 3-2-4-B and C
4. The proposed rezone is in conformance with City Code 3-2-11-B.
5. The proposed rezone is in conformance with City Code 3-2-17
6. The proposed rezone is in conformance with City Code 3-2--8
7. The proposed rezone is in conformance with the City of Elko Wellhead Protection

Plan.
8. Development under the proposed rezone will not adversely impact natural

systems, or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages,
floodplains etc. or pose a danger to human health and safety.



.:
~, ;- .-~-~._.., :.~,-.-", - ~: : 11- -",~- -'i ~..", ~.,' I

~. " :;1".

~
0
0

N~ DELAWARE AVE Noo12'36"E
- ~ rv-- -------

-1063.45' -~~
--.. -- I- -- -

C)
;0 I

0 »
~lJ I

>:r: ~ !
IDe,..,
00f;i- o •

-0 ~
="",

Z to>
~(/) o~

.?>3::~ "'0 ",

0 -4» -uZ
>--i0 r ~p:-rn (/)
00:::0-4 -....,J-» • G')

::::t ::I:
o 0-4
", . I

?Co
CO (/) "T'I;a m II z0 !"-u ~ ce0 ", 0> N co", » m ~--i 1'.):::0 -< CJ'Io CJ'I _.

»", ~ c:5
()r _. ~

/'f ~() ~
o (/)

~
010

_.
Z o"T'l q

N co ~", -uco ~rN ~ C_. to="~ c:5
tOo

fTlN

"''''~ ~ hJ~ x>
o(/)
",
3::

-u ", ",
:::0 X Z
0 (i) -4
"'U ::::t iY0 Z(/) G')",
0 N r-4 :--J0 r-<
N Z zO U!.0z Z 9"T'1 :uz G')

rr1 CG') II e,..,r frlOlA
II 0

~

0 -c &.)

tSO.OO'36"E

o "'U ~o

0 rn 0,9,
3:: Z -to /77 <.)'Zr3:: (/) '- o ~Q0l'", "'U J.... '<<;1'
:::0 > Z ,,~~ -, ~
() o t!j "·~Q<90'.

"V.),9os ", ~ ~r <9. 0,9,
<, '-" 509.48'~ ~P:- I...." ~ <;1,9,9<.)~

Z ~ ~ '6'0"-0 tf~ HC
(/)
-4 U~»r

(/l SUREBREC HOLDINGS LLC AMJ:m
DATE: JANUARY 2018~ m ANNEXATION of PARCEL "c"-I

DRAWN BY: RSR A PORTION OF~
0 CHECKED BY: BEJ SECTION 36, TOWNSHIP 35 NORTH ENGINEERING"T1

445 5TH STREET. SUITE 201 CIVIL ENGINEERING

JOB NO.: 193.000 RANGE 55 EAST, M.D.M. ELKO NEVADA 89801 CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT~ TEL (775) 738·3113 QUALITY ASSURANCE
FAX i7751 738·6199 TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEYINGELKO COUNTY NEVADA WW'N A~'ENGINEERING ORG



ALL THAT REAL PROPERTY SITUATED IN THE COUNTY OF ELKO, STATE OF NEVADA, BOUNDED AND
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: PARCEL C, AS SHOWN ON A PARCEL MAP, FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE
COUNTY RECORDER OF ELKO COUNTY, STATE OF NEVADA, ON JANUARY 5, 2018 AS FILE NO. 735391

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

RECEIVED

J~N DO ZOlR



cc:

Enclosures

Sincerely.

Sl~~t~~
Planning Technician

If you have any questions regarding this meeting. the information you received. or if you will not
he able to attend this meeting. please call me at your earliest convenience at (775) 777-71 6D.

The Planning Commission requests that Y'l)LI. or a duly appointed representative, be in attendance
at this meeting to address the Planning Commission. If you will not be able to attend the meeting
but wish to have a representative present. please submit a letter to the Planning Commission
authorizing this person to represent you at the meeting.

Enclosed is a copy of the agenda for an upcoming Planning Commission meeting. Highlighted
on the agenda is an item or items that you have requested to be acted on at the meeting. Also
enclosed is pertinent information pertaining to your request. Please rev iew this information
before the meeting.

Dear Applicant/Agent:

Re: Rezone :\0. 10-17 & Annexation No. 2- 17

Surcbrec Holdings, LLC
.207 Brookwood Drive
Elko. NV 89801

January 3O. 2018

1751 Collegc Avenue > Elko- Ncvada Svxfl l . (775)777-7160 . Fax (775)777-7119

Wcbsit«: \\ \\ \\ clkocity .com
Email: rLII)l1ing (I ci clko.nv .u-,

CITY OF ELKO
Planning Department



oo-....Jooooooooooooooooooooooooool.DooooooooooooooooNoooooooooooooooooooooot->"'0

~~e~~~~~~~~~~8~~~~~~~~~~~8e~~~~~~~e~8~
o .t:> t-> 0 0 .t:> 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 t-> 0 W WOO 0 0 0 0 I.D 0 N t-> 0 0 0 t-> 0 t-> t-> 0 0 N
t-> c;:> If -....J t-> en t-> t-> t-> t-> t-> t-> t-> 7" t-> 0 t-> t-> 7" t-> t-> W N N 00 0 -....J t-> t-> t-> 0 t-> t-> 7" .t:> t-> N
~t->t->oo~w ~~~~~~U1~mlnlnt->~~N~~NW~~ ~~~NN~ ~
enWNOenO enenenenenenOenO\J1NenenenOt->I.DNooWen enOenNNN .t:>
1.DU1t->-....Jenen WWWWW.f;::.t->.t:>t->\J1.f;::.N.f;::.l.Doot->-....JNW-....JW 001.D W 0000 en 0
NU1I.DO.t:>O enenenenenNt->NO-....JenenNU1-....JI.Dt->WN.f;::.en t->-....J-....Jt->t->oo U1

:::r:mmm:;om:;O:;O\J1mz"'O
o'-'-'-m'-mm»'-m~
~bbb6b66~b~~
OZZZZZZZ:;Zd~»«««<A<:;O
-< m A
C n
--i =i Z-< -<

C
--i

Z c::
m ~~ ,
"'0 m

~ d
--i Z
Z n
m 0
~
\J1

<»

:;~~~~~~~
\J1AAAAAAA
<0000000
~ZZZZZZZ
;t:,:«««<
\J1
Z
<

\J1 \J1
--i --im m
t-> t->o 0o 0

U1 U1 U1 U1 U1

n<

no

Z
G)

rn
Z

~ ~ --i
--i --i
G) G)

'--
:;0
m
Z
--im
:;0
"'0
:;0
Vim
\J1

n
...........o
om
"'0»
:;0
--i
~
m
Z
--i
o
"T1

n
...........o

n
...........o
Z
m
~
~o
Z
--i
~
Z

o
OJ»
Z
<
m
Z
m
:;0
G)
-<

','_.'
j

n n
........... ...........
00
OJ "T1,- Vi
~ n
~ :::r:
c ~
:g ROo n
:;0 0
--i
\J1 G)
rn »
:;0 ,-
< !n Z
rn --i
\J1 <
W t-> N
I.D W t->o -....J No N U1
rn -....J n

Z 0o 0 Z
l> rn \J1
I r= --io :;0 =i
\J1 0 C
--i \J1 :::!

--i 0
~ Z
o OJ
o <
o

--i \J1
:;0 C
rn :;0» rno OJ
~ :;0

» ~
-< :::r:

z ~ ~n rrt g
\J1 Z
--i G)

~ \J1
Z ,-
--i h
no
,,-n

o 0 0 0o 0 0 0
t-> t-> t-> t->
U1 00 00 00
en en en en
N 0 0 0o 0 t-> t->
O»t->N
N ZOO

;..f..'
C c:
\J1 \J1
:P :;0

rn
Z

~,-
\J1



" ~....

(

\

--- f
; 00

\.D
-, 00

0~

~
.~...., .J:,.

:
m

~
~ W

-.....J

- ..... "Go.

V!

'-o
I'T1r-
I'T1
--l
l>r-



Additional information concerning this item may be obtained by contacting the Elko City
Planning Department at (775) 777-7160.

The intent of the zone change is to allow for future development.

ELKO CITY PLANNING COMMISSION

• Rezone No.1 0-17. filed by Surebrec Holdings, LLC for a change in zoning from AG
(Agricultural) to Ie (Industrial Commercial), approximately 62.03 acres of property,
specifically a portion of APN 006-106-006, located generally on the northeast corner of
the intersection of Statice Street and Delaware Avenue, more particularly described as:
All that real property situated in the County of Elko, State of Nevada, filed in the office
of the County Recorder of Elko County, State of Nevada, on January 5, 2018 as File No.
735391.

The specific items to be considered under public hearing format are:

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Elko City Planning Commission will conduct a public
hearing on Tuesday, February 6,2017 beginning at 5:30 P.M. P.S.T. at Elko City Hall, 1751
College Avenue, Elko, Nevada, and that the public is invited to provide input and testimony on
this matter under consideration in person, by writing, or by representative.

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING



Page 1Revised 12/04/15

Plot Plan: A plot plan provided by a properly licensed surveyor depicting the existing condition
drawn to scale showing property lines, existing and proposed buildings, building setbacks,
distances between buildings, parking and loading areas, driveways and other pertinent
information must be provided.

Legal Description: A complete legal description of the boundary of the proposed zone change
must be provided as well as a map depicting the area to be changed stating the wording: area
to be changed from "x" to "x": (LI to R, for example).

Note: One .pdf of the entire application must be submitted as well as one set of legible,
reproducible plans 8 ~" x 11" in size. If the applicant feels the Commission needs to see 24" x
36" plans, 10 sets of pre-folded plans must be submitted.

Other Information: The applicant is encouraged to submit other information and
documentation to support this Rezone Application.

Area Map: A map of the area proposed for this zone change must be provided.

Fee: A $300.00 non-refundable filing fee.

Complete Application Form: In order to begin processing the application, an application form
must be complete and signed. Complete applications are due at least 21 days prior to the next
scheduled meeting of the Elko City Planning Commission (meetings are the 1st Tuesday of
every month).

FILING REQUIREMENTS:

APPLICANT{s):SurebrecHoldings,LLC
MAILING ADDRESS:207 BrookwoodDrive,Elko,Nevada89801
PHONE NO (Home)775-219-8199 (Business) _
NAME OF PROPERTY OWNER (If different): .. _

(Property owner's consent in writing must be provided.)
MAILING ADDRESS:::.::sa::_:m..:_=.e ----:---
LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND LOCATION OF PROPERTY INVOLVED (Attach if necessary):
ASSESSOR'S PARCEL NO.:, mh- a;-CX)fl Address 0S'[6-1:.c e st
Lot(s), Block(s), ~Subdivision~~~~~~~~~~~~·~~~)~€~~~~~---- ~
Or Parcel(s) ~ File No. __ ·7~3u...OL..:!O~'A?0~----------------

APPLICATION FOR ZONE CHANGE

1751 College Avenue * Elko * Nevada * 89801
(775) 777-7160 phone * (775) 777-7119 fax

CITY OF ELKO PLANNING DEPARTMENT



Page 2Revised 12/04/15

(Use additional pages if necessary to address questions 3 through 5)

5. Identify any unique physical features or characteristics associated with the property:
Flat

The proposed zone is complimentary to other zoning in the area.

4. Explain how the proposed zoning classification relates with other zoning classifications in the
area:

3. Explain in detail the type and nature of the use anticipated on the property:
~ mixture of commercial and small scale industrial uses which may include retail and service
activities, office buildings, public and quasi-public land uses, building and material sales, lumber
[yards,automotive dealerships, and/or conditional uses permitted to include gas station, RVparks,
~esidential uses.

Using light industrial and/or commercial development standards where appropriate.

2. Identify the zoning Classification being proposed/requested: _
ICIndustrial Commercial

1. Identify the existing zoning classification of the property: _
OSOpen Space



FOR OFFICE USE ONLY

File No.: iD- I=l Date Filed: )\) ':21 \] Fee Paid: 13Jb C't:-.tt I()Lf~

Email address:rob.fitz@earthlink.net

Phone Number: 775-219-8199--~~~--~~--~~~--~~--

City, State, Zip Code
EIko,Nevada89801

Mailing Address 207 BrookwoodDrive~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
Street Address or P.O. Box

~pplicant/~gent~~~~~~~~R_O_be_r_tF_it_zg~e_ra_ld~~~~~~~~
(Please print or type)

Page 3Revised 12/04/15

101 I acknowledge that submission of this application does not imply approval of this request by
the City Planning Department, the City Planning Commission and the City Council, nor does it in
and of itself guarantee issuance of any other required permits and/or licenses.

101 I acknowledge that this application may be tabled until a later meeting if either I or my
designated representative or agent is not present at the meeting for which this application is
scheduled.

101 I have carefully read and completed all questions contained within this application to the
best of my ability.

By My Signature below:

101 I consent to having the City of Elko Staff enter on my property for the sole purpose of
inspection of said property as part of this application process.

101 I object to having the City of Elko Staff enter onto my property as a part of their review of
this application. (Your objection will not affect the recommendation made by the staff or the final determination
made by the City Planning Commission or the City Council.)



• The proposed zone district is in conformance with City Code 3-2-17

• The proposed zone district is in conformance with Section 3-2-11 IC- Industrial
Commercial Districts.

• The proposed zone district is in conformance with City Code 3-2-4(B) & (C)

• The proposed zone district is consistent with the City of Elko Redevelopment Plan.

• The proposed zone district is consistent with City of Elko Wellhead Protection
Plan.

• The proposed rezone is compatible with the Master Plan Transportation
Component and is consistent with the existing transportation infrastructure.

9. Findings:
• The proposed rezone is in conformance with the Master Plan Land Use

Component.

8. Recommended Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to adopt a
resolution which conditionally approves Rezone No. 11-17 subject to the following
conditions: (stated in City Planner memo)

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, Memo from Development Director,
Memo from City Planner

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required

5. Background Information: The applicant is requesting a rezone of the property to
allow for commercial uses in addition to the light industrial uses

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes

3. Agenda Category: PUBLIC HEARINGS, NEW BUSINESS

2. Meeting Date: February 6, 2018

1. Review, consideration and possible recommendation to City Council for Rezone No.
11-17, filed by MRP, LLC, for a change in zoning from (LI) Light Industrial to (IC)
Industrial Commercial, approximately 1.5 acres of property located generally north
side of Silver Street between River Street and 1st Street, APN 001-691-007, FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

Elko City Planning Commission
Agenda Action Sheet

Agenda Item # I.A.2

Planning Commission Action SheetCreated on 111112018



Initial

City Manager: Date: ~/t 11<;

r I 7

Initial

**If additional space is needed please provide a separate memorandum**

l jZ3jlt!
L) ':fj\

Title: 'J\ f' :l.C:n~ \ \ - 'J
Applicant(s): nlt\y, LLC_

3 0', ,3f.Site Location:,c;t' L0 )j \,N \[ ~

Current Zoning: L\ Date Received: \ \ }2f111 Date Public Notice:
--rr '. .. I' i\

COMMENT: I n, '\ I;:' -:c ~e-ir;ne '--ti.U '=jX~pe?j TL(H} 1

\L ::h> Q\\OlLJ l rQf:e_.~:te. (riod @Ne» .

STAFF COMMENT FLOW SHEET
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA DATE: 2ite

**00 not use pencil or red pen, they do not reproduce**



Page 10f5

RECOMMEND APPROVAL, subject to findings of facts, and conditions.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

A rezone from Light Industrial (LI) to Industrial Commercial (IC) providing for
commercial uses in addition to the light industrial uses

January 30,2018
February 6, 2018
I.A.2
REZONE 11-17
MRPLLC
North side of Silver St between River St and }St

Street

MEMO DATE:
PLANNINGCOMMISSION DATE:
AGENDAITEM NUMBER:
APPLICATION NUMBER:
APPLICANT:
PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

City ofElko
1751 College Avenue
Elko, NV 89801
(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7219



1. The application has been filed by MRP, LLC, owner of the property.
2. The proposed zone district includes all of APN 001-691-007.
3. The parcel is identified as Lot C Block 10of the Elko Industrial Subdivision
4. The parcel is partially developed with commercial and light industrial land uses.
5. The parcel is located on the north side of Silver Street approximately 225' west of 2nd

Street.

BACKGROUND:

Applicable Master Plans and City Code Sections are:

• City of Elko Master Plan - Land Use Component
• City of Elko Master Plan - Transportation Component
• City of Wellhead Protection Plan
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-11(B) Industrial Commercial District (IC)
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-21 Amendments
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-8 Flood Plain Management

MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODE SECTIONS:

• The property is partially developed. One half of the lot is currently vacant
• The property is generally flat.
• The property will be accessed from Silver Street with rear access from Main Street

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:
• The property is surrounded by:

o North: Light Industrial (LI) / Developed
o West: Light Industrial (LI) / Developed
o South: Industrial Commercial (lC) / Partially Developed
o East: Light Industrial (LI) / Developed

Page 2 ofS

One lot partially developed and leased with
Commercial and Industrial uses. Area available for
expansion.

EXISTING LAND USE:

(COMM-GEN) Commercial GeneralMASTER PLAN DESIGNATION:

(LI) Light IndustrialEXISTING ZONING:

1.5 acresPARCEL SIZE:

001-691-007PARCEL NUMBER:

PROJECT INFORMATION

REZONE 11-17
MRP, LLC
APN: 001-691-007



1. The property is located within the redevelopment area.

ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN:

The proposed zone district is compatible with the Master Plan Transportation Component and is
consistent with the existing transportation infrastructure.

1. The area will be accessed from Silver Street with a secondary rear access from Main
Street.

2. Silver Street is classified as a Principal Arterial.

Transportation:

The proposed zone district is in conformance with the Master Plan Land Use Component.

1. The Master Plan Land Use Atlas shows the area as Commercial Highway.
2. Industrial Commercial is listed as a corresponding zoning district for Highway

Commercial in the Master Plan.
3. The listed Goal of the Land Use component states "Promote orderly, sustainable growth

and efficient land use to improve quality of life and ensure new development meets the
needs of all residents and visitors".

4. Objective 4: Consider a mixed-use pattern of development for the downtown area, and
for major centers and corridors, to ensure the area's adaptability, longevity and overall
sustainability.

5. Objective 6: Encourage multiple scales of commercial development to serve the needs of
the region, the community, and individual neighborhoods.

6. Objective 7: Promote high quality and visually appealing industrial uses, where
~ppropriate, to ensure economic sustainability as well as strengthen the community's
Image.

7. Objective 8: Encourage new development that does not negatively impact County-wide
natural systems, or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages,
floodplains etc., or pose a danger to human health and safety.

Land use:

MASTER PLAN:

6. The proposed zone district is compatible with the Land Use Component and
Transportation Component of the City's Master Plan.

7. The area proposed for rezone fronts Silver Street and the rear of the property fronts Main
Street.

8. The surrounding area is developed or partially developed with light industrial and/or
commercial uses.

9. City staff has reviewed a business license request for a retail establishment within the
developed property. Retail establishments are not part of the permitted uses in Light
Industrial (LJ). The fact should not be considered a basis for a zone amendment.

10. The property owner has plans for two buildings equal in size and appearance for the
property. It is currently only developed with one building which was built in 1998. This
fact should not be considered a basis for a zone amendment.

REZONE 11-17
MRP. LLC
APN: 001-691-007

Page 3 of5



SECTION 3-8:

1. The applicant has conformed to this section of code with the filing of the application.

SECTION 3-2-21:

The proposed zone change is in conformance with Elko City Code Section 3-2-17.

1. The existing development meets the requirements under 3-2-17.
2. If the developer expands upon the property, conformity with the section 3-2-17 IS

required.

SECTION 3-2-17:

The proposed zone change is in conformance with Elko City Code Section 3-2-11.

1. The IC- Industrial Commercial zoning district allows for light industrial and commercial
uses. Development standards are based on the use of the property. Due to the location and
current tenants of the existing development, the property would be considered
commercial use and be required to develop to the standards set forth in section 3-2-10 of
the Elko City Code.

2. The existing development meets the requirements under 3-2-11 for minimum area,
minimum lot width, front and rear yard setbacks, side yard setback and maximum
building height for commercial development.

3. The site plan indicates the rear setback at 9.25 feet which does not meet the required
setback for Light Industrial development a stipulated in Section 3-2-11 of city code. The
current uses of the existing building are commercial.

4. The existing development is consistent with the listed commercial principal uses.
5. The existing development is not adjacent to a residential zoning district therefore a

conditional use permit is not required.
6. The existing development meets the requirements for the provisions of landscaping.

SECTION 3-2-11(B):

Page 4 of5

The proposed zone change is in conformance with Elko City Code Section 3-2-4.

1. The property meets the area requirements for the proposed zone district.
2. The existing development does not exceed the maximum height in the City Airport

Master Plan.

SECTION 3-2-4:

1. The property is not located within any identified capture zones for City wells.

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN:

The proposed zone district is in conformance with the Elko Redevelopment Plan.

2. The proposed zone district is compatible with the goals and objectives of the
Redevelopment Plan providing for additional commercial uses and economic growth to
the downtown.

REZONE 11-17
MRP, LLC
APN: 001-691-007



Page 5 of5

1. Revise the legal description to match the most recently recorded survey prior to Council
consideration of the application.

Engineering Department:

1. Compliance with all staff conditions.

Planning Department:

CONDITIONS:

Staff recommends this item be approved subject to the following conditions:

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

1. The proposed rezone is in conformance with the Master Plan Land Use Component.
2. The proposed rezone is compatible with the Master Plan Transportation Component and

is consistent with the existing transportation infrastructure.
3. The proposed zone district is consistent with City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan.
4. The proposed zone district is consistent with the City of Elko Redevelopment Plan.
5. The proposed zone district is in conformance with City Code 3-2-4(B) & (C)
6. The proposed zone district is in conformance with Section 3-2-11 IC- Industrial

Commercial Districts.
7. The proposed zone district is in conformance with City Code 3-2-17
8. The proposed zone district is consistent with surrounding land uses.
9. The topography of the area is well suited for the proposed light industrial and commercial

land uses
10.Development under the proposed zone district will not adversely impact natural systems,

or public/federallands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages, floodplains etc., or pose a
danger to human health and safety.

FINDINGS

1. This parcel is located outside a Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA).

REZONE 11-17
MRP, LLC
APN: 001-691-007



C:\Users\sknopp\Downloads\Rez 11-17MRP LLC 3500 W Silver St (2).docx
Created by Jeremy Draper

Project Information

The City of Elko Development Department is providing this correspondence to aid the
Planning Commission's review of Rezone Application 11-17.

• The property is located generally 700 ft west of the intersection of 2nd Street and
Silver Street.

• The property is identified as APN 001-691-007
• The parcel is partially developed.
• The parcel is currently zoned LI-Light Industrial District.
• The proposed rezone would result in a rezone of proposed parcel 1 being 1.50

acres of IC-Industrial Commercial.

To: Elko City Planning Commission
From: Jeremy Draper, Development Manager
RE: Rezone 11-17, MRP, LLC, 3500 W Silver St
Date: January 12, 2018

CITY OF ELKO
DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

1755 COLLEGE AVENUE
ELKO, NEVADA 89801

(775)777-7210
(775)777-7219 FAX



1. The proposed rezone does not appear to frustrate the goals and policies of the
Land Use Component of the Master Plan.

2. The proposed rezone is in conformance with City Code 3-2-4-8 and C
3. The proposed rezone is in conformance with City Code 3-2-11-8.

Findings

• Conformance with this section is required

Section 3-2-21-Amendments

• Conformance with this section is required

Section 3-2-17-Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations

• It would appear from the current and proposed uses within the building that the
development standards of the Commercial zone should be followed.

• Conformance with this section is required

Section 3-2-11-(8)-ClC) Industrial Commercial District

• Conformance with this section is required

Section 3-2-4-Establishment of Zoning Districts

• The property is located outside the 30-year capture zone.
• Conformance with the Wellhead Protection Plan is required.

Elko Wellhead Protection Plan

Land Use:
• The Land Use component of the Master Plan identifies this area as General

Commercial.
• Objective 6-Encourage multiple scales of commercial development to serve the

needs of the region, the community, and individual neighborhoods.
• Corresponding zoning districts for General Commercial are C-General

Commercial, CC-Convenience Commercial, CT-Commercial Transitional, PC
Planned Commercial, IC-Industrial Commercial.

Master Plan

Page 2 of 3

• The property is bound by Light Industrial to the north, east, and west and
Industrial Commercial to the south.

• The property is not located within a FEMA Floodzone.



The City of Elko Development Department recommends that the proposed zone
changes be approved.

Recommendation

4. The proposed rezone is in conformance with City Code 3-2-17
5. The proposed rezone is in conformance with City Code 3-2--8
6. The proposed rezone is in conformance with the City of ElkoWellhead Protection

Plan.
7. Development under the proposed rezone will not adversely impact natural

systems, or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages,
floodplains etc. or pose a danger to human health and safety.

Page 3 of 3



END OF DESCRIPTION
1/9/2DIB

Christopher S. Konakis, PLS
Konakis Engineering, LLC
225 Silver Street, Suite 106
Elko, Nevada 89801

Description Prepared By:

Block 10 Lot "C" as shown on "Record of Survey of Block 10, Lot BElko Industrial Park"
located in Section 15, Township 34 North, Range 55 East, M.D.B.&M., Elko County, Nevada filed in the
office of the County Recorder of Elko County, Nevada, on October 30, 1996, as File No. 396517.

APN 001-691-007
The land referred to herein is situated in the State of Nevada, City of Elko and more particularly

described as follows:

LEGAL DESCRIPTION
PS

R.F',CGIVED



CC:

Enclosures

S~AcAW~
Shelby Archuleta
Planning Technician

Sincerely.

If you 11(I\'cany questions regarding this meeting. the information you received. or if you will nut
he able to attend this meeting. please call me at your earliest convenience at (775) 777-7160.

The Planning Commission requests that you. or a duly appointed representative. be in attendance
at this meeting to address the Planning Commission. If you will not he able to attend the meeting
hut wish to have a representative present, please submit a letter to the Planning Commission
authorizing this person to represent you at the meeting.

Enclosed is a copy of the agenda for an upcoming Planning Commission meeting. H ighl ightecl
on the agenda is an item or items that you have requested to be acted on at the meeting. Also
enclosed is pertinent information pertaining to your request. Please review this information
before the meeti ug.

Dear ApplicantiAgent:

Re: Rezone :\0. 1 1-17

MRP. LLC
PO BOX 2730
Elko. NV 89803

January' 30. 2018

1751 College Avenue . Elko, Nevada 89801 . (775) 777-7160 . Fax (775) 777-71 19

JI'ehsitl': \\\\\\ clkocitycom
Entail: rlanning a ci.elko Tl\ u-,

CITY OF ELKO
Planning Department



00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 co 00 00 00 00 ~ 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 iJ
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~8~~~~~~~~~~e~~
o a 0 a 0 0 0 0 a a 0 0 "j:::."j:::.0 a 0 0 0 0 0 N a 0 0 a 00 0 a a 0 a 0 a,_. ,_. ,_. ,_. ,_. If-' W ,_. ,_. ,_. ,_. ,_. U1 U1 ,_. ,_. W ,_. ,_. ,_. ,_. -.....JIf-' ,_. ,_. If-' 0 ,_. ,_. ~ ,_. ~ ~ ,_.wwwww,_,~wwwdo~.!.J.!.Jww6NNNWl:.,_.W a wwwww,_.w
0"1 O"IO"IO"IO"I-.....J-.....J0"1 O"IO"I-.....J"j:::.N N 0"10"1 00U1 V'1Vl-.....J-.....JO"j:::. "j:::. O"IO"IO"IO"IO"INN
'_''_''_''_'"j:::.-.....J-.....J"j:::.-.....J-.....J"j:::."j:::."j:::."j:::."j:::.Vl-.....JNNNW'_'WO U1 ~~~~~"j:::.N
-.....J-.....J-.....J-.....J"j:::.NN"j:::.WWoo"j:::.U1U1"j:::.O,_.-.....J-.....J-.....J~Noo,_. U1 0000000000000

rmmmm-immmmml/')miJ
Orrrrcrrrrr»r'7l/')AAAAl/')AAAAArA:::::'

~~~~~~~~~~~~~9G)««n««<~<-i
m » m
~ n
~ ~» c

-i

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
AAAAAAAAAAAAZZAAAAAAA
OOOOOOOOOOOOZzOOOOOOO
ZZZZZZZZZZZZmmZZZZZZZ««««««$:$:«««<

c c
n nn n» »
Z Z
< <

l/')
c
~
m
U1ao

,_.,_.
a

:::0
m
G)

o
Z»r
r»
Zo
o
m
iJ-i

iJ
$:
»o
o,_.

»
::::t
Z

.. -?-'

o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -<
o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 iJ,_. ,_. ,_. ,_. ,_. ,_. ,_. ,_. ,_. ,_. ,_. ,_. ,_. ,_. ,_. ,_. ,_. ,_. ,_. ,_. ,_. ,_. ,_. ,_. ,_. ,_. ,_. ,_. ,_. ,_. ,_. ,_. ,_. ,_.Z

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ON N N N U1 N ,_. U1 N N U1 U1 N N U1 N W ,_. ,_. ,_. ,_. ,_. "j:::.,_. ,_. U1 "j:::.,_. ,_. N N N ,_. ,_.
0000000000000000000000000000000000o 0 0 0 0 a 0 0 0 0 0 a 0 0 0 a a 0 0 0 0 a a ,_.0 0 0 0 a 0 0 0 0 a
W "j:::.,_. U1 00 0"1 ,_. U1 ,_. N "j:::.-.....JW "j:::.0"1 U1 N co W 00 W 0"1 ,_. 0 co co N 00 ,_. W ,_. N N U1

-i:r:o
:::0
Zc:c
C
:::0
G)

G)

» » »
r r r-n -n -n
:::0 :::0 :::0
m m m
000
,000



00
+:0o
I.D
N
I
+:0
+:0
J->
U"I

U1»zo
-<
c~

~
m
U1~
m
:::0
Z
~
oc
z~»
z
:::0oo
"Tl

Z
Gl

Zn

o
o
J->
W
00
J->oo
N



ELKO CITY PLANNING COMMISSION

Additional information concerning this item may be obtained by contacting the Elko City
Planning Department at (775) 777-7160.

Rezone No. 11-17, filed by MRP, LLC for a change in zoning from LI (Light Industrial)
to IC (Industrial Commercial), approximately 1.5 acres of property, specifically APN
001-691-007, located generally on the north side ofW. Silver Street, approximately 427
feet west of 2nd Street, more particularly described as: APN 001-691-007 The land
referred to herein is situated in the State of Nevada, City of Elko and more particularly
described as follows:
Block 10 Lot "C" as shown on "Record of Survey of Block 10, Lot BElko Industrial
Park" located in Section 15, Township 34 North, Range 55 East, M.D.B.&M., Elko
County, Nevada filed in the office of the County Recorder ofElko County, Nevada, on
October 30, 1996, as File No. 396517.
The intent of the zone change is to allow for commercial uses.

The specific items to be considered under public hearing format are:

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Elko City Planning Commission will conduct a public
hearing on Tuesday, February 6, 2018 beginning at 5:30 P.M. P.S.T. at Elko City Hall, 1751
College Avenue, Elko, Nevada, and that the public is invited to provide input and testimony on
this matter under consideration in person, by writing, or by representative.

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING



Page 1Revised 12/04/15

Plot Plan: A plot plan provided by a properly licensed surveyor depicting the existing condition
drawn to scale showing property lines, existing and proposed buildings, building setbacks,
distances between buildings, parking and loading areas, driveways and other pertinent
information must be provided.

Legal Description: A complete legal description of the boundary of the proposed zone change
must be provided as well as a map depicting the area to be changed stating the wording: area
to be changed from "x" to "x": (LI to R, for example).

Note: One .pdf of the entire application must be submitted as well as one set of legible,
reproducible plans 8 ~" x 11" in size. If the applicant feels the Commission needs to see 24" x
36" plans, 10 sets of pre-folded plans must be submitted.

Other Information: The applicant is encouraged to submit other information and
documentation to support this Rezone Application.

Area Map: A map of the area proposed for this zone change must be provided.

Fee: A $300.00 non-refundable filing fee.

Complete Application Form: In order to begin processing the application, an application form
must be complete and signed. Complete applications are due at least 21 days prior to the next
scheduled meeting of the Elko City Planning Commission (meetings are the 1st Tuesday of
every month).

FILING REQUIREMENTS:

APPLICANT(s):-,--M~K~P~, ~/.._j_,=--C ~~.,..-- _
MAILING ADDRESS:Ec Bt I ,~1)L' E\\;-t f /V ,,' ~/!;w;
PHONE NO (Home) 145-}'!J-g1~}' (Business)_-=2",-··(i...;..:.\{..:....'(l(_,~ _

NAME OF PROPERTY OWNER (If different):_-~,.__·'\'t.A...._.' _
(Property owner's consent in writing must be provided.)

MAILING ADDRESS: <~(\ wu_,~~~--------------------------------------------LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND LOCATION OF PROPERTY INVOLVED (Attach if necessary):
ASSESSOR'S PARCEL NO.: Cffi?Jl \ - O~'] Address ~CjC VJ S,lVe r 5t
Lot(s), Block(s), ~Subdivision _~~~~t~(C~~,~~~d~ ~
Or Parcel(s) ~ File No. _

APPLICATION FORZONE CHANGE

1751 College Avenue * Elko * Nevada * 89801
(775) 777-7160 phone * (775) 777-7119 fax

CITY OF ELKO PLANNING DEPARTMENT



Page 2Revised 12/04/15

(Use additional pages if necessary to address questions 3 through 5)

5.

4.

3.

1. Identify the existing zon ing classification of the property: G',]l'H .I;'ld0ib:::; 'II (7LT)

2. ldentify the zo_ningClassification being proposed/requested: IeJInd V"rtn<, \
u \'Y\ rv1ey L\ t{ \



FOR OFFICE USE ONLY

File No.: 11·11 Date Filed: HI2S/li FeePaid: ~() C,\(lt l592

, City, State, Zip Code

Phone Number: 'lIS 3(11- ~13'{
Email address: ("\~1)'d:~)c' f C:J'(l:i I I;C(,(Y]

SIGNATURE: /rrnCk'- tuG? , 11'IAlo!jU

d- ltd 11_____ ;' !l,ttb~~

Applicant I Agent NI ~ P (\.L ~i cH ~ J f J ~. Sc."tt 16..t,,/v.)
(Please pr~ t or typ

Mailing Address p_ 0.60 '" 2130
Street Address or P.O. Box

/

~ I have carefully read and completed all questions contained within this application to the
best of my ability.

Page 3Revised 12/04/15

By My Signature below:

'¢ I consent to having the City of Elko Staff enter on my property for the sole purpose of
inspection of said property as part of this application process.

D I object to having the City of Elko Staff enter onto my property as a part of their review of
this application. (Your objection will not affect the recommendation made by the staff or the final determination
made by the City Planning Commission or the City Council.)

f

~ Iacknowledge that submission of this application does not imply approval of this request by
the City Planning Department, the City Planning Commission and the City Council, nor does it in
and of itself guarantee issuance of any other required permits and/or licenses.

)ll I acknowledge that this application may be tabled until a later meeting if either I or my
designated representative or agent is not present at the meeting for which this application is
scheduled.



'"aa

'"aa

moo
"oo~

I "tI ' I r
~ l i CIl

(Q
'" en ~__J

CIlC)

? ?
U) g ~ ::::IC) c

Q.

~ nen
N ~ ra

r ..~ a.

.,., ~;.........-- Z~CJJ 0
?;~ ::a

HH~"'''' l>

~i (/'I

!t (/'I : i~.6 g
~~~

m nunc (/'I

~ (/'I m;~~~~ "~~~ 3: C1I" o ~ !/l m C1I0 ~~g- z

UHf,~ ~~~ -4
c:

en - ~ ~ (/'I

::0'" m
'" 0 0* ~ ;;:z ~§.tD !(

3"0 of d~~ g'" ~ c
Q) Cl) CJ) i
::J '" ma.'"
v> Q) -I

l " \,
c a.
"OQ. ::I:

" \1~ <:::. C;; ~mg
~ ~ ~>§I ~





Created on 1/1112018' Planning Commission Action Sheet

- .,;".r;:J_J......... '" -i"t,;Loo;i:;iiii;.,' ...,l_ _'

• The proposed zone district is consistent with surrounding land uses.

• The proposed zone .istrict is in conformance with City Code 3-2-17

• The proposed zone district is in conformance, with, Section 3~2'...12:(A)LI, GI
Industrial Districts.

• The proposed zone district is in conformance with City Code 3-t2-4(B)(C) & (D).

9. Findings:
• The proposed rezone is in conformance with the Master Plan Land Use

Component. I
• The proposed rezone is compatible with the .Master Plan Transportation

Component and is crSistent with,the existing transportation infrastructure.

• Tile 'proposed zone district is consistent with City of Elko Wellbead Protection
Plan. '

, ,

3. Agenda Category: EUBLIC HEARINGS, NEW BUSINESS

4. Time Requir~d: 1SMinures

5. Background Information: The, applicant is requesting a rezone of the property in
conjunction with an annexation into the City of Elko, The default zone with
annexation is AG - General Agriculture.

6. Business Impact statem+t: Not Required

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, Memo-from Development Director,
Memo from City Planner

I

8. RecommendedMotion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to adopt a
resolution whicp~canditionally approves Rezone NO'.,12..17 subject to the following
cenditionss (st~fed in Cinr Planner memo)' . "

EI 0 City Planning Commission
I Agenda Action Sheet

1, Review, consideration and possible recommendation to City 'Council for Rezone No.
12-17, filed by Swire Coca-Cola; USA, for a change in zoning from (AG) General
Agriculture to €LI) Light Industrial, approximately 3 acres of property located
generally on'thernorth side of West It;laho Street, a-pproximately 2,5:00f;eet east of 1-
80 Exit 29,8,F6tlPOSSIBLE ACTION ~

I .'
2. Meeting Date: February 6, 2018

Agenda Item # LA. 3 '



Initial

City Manager: Date: .;2 /1/1 ~
Initial

~ /

**If additional space is needed please provide ~

Title<1J f:ttj')E. \-2 - [}
Applicant(s): SlL' t{' t Ceca _'Cc,Io . L~>\A

I

Site Location: 3YCC kl 'I. I cl(1he, fii.
Current Zoning: ,M~;FnAm}pate Received: 12J ILl) I_, Date Public Notice: )12.-z, II E
COMMENT: ~~~~~~~~~~--~~44~~~-4~~~~~~----

STAFF COMMENT FLOW SHEET
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA DATE: 2/((

**00 not use pencil or red pen, they do not reproduce**



Page 1 of5

RECOMMEND APPROVAL, subject to findings of fact, and conditions.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

A zone designation upon annexation of property to Light Industrial (LI).

January 11,2018
February 6, 2018
I-A-3
REZONE 12-17
Swire Coca-Cola, USA
Zone Designation for Proposed Annexation
Annexation Application 3-17

DATE:
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE:
AGENDAITEM NUMBER:
APPLICATION NUMBER:
APPLICANT:
PROJECT DESCRIPTION:
ADDITIONAL APPLICATION:

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

City ofElko
1751 College Avenue
Elko, NV 89801
(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7119



1. Swire Coca-Cola, USA, owner of the property, has filed the application.
2. The applicant has applied for annexation into the City of Elko. The City Council accepted

the petition for the subject annexation on January 9, 2018, and directed Staff to continue

BACKGROUND:

Page 2 of5

MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODE SECTIONS:
Applicable Master Plans and City Code Sections are:

• City of Elko Master Plan - Land Use Component
• City of Elko Master Plan - Transportation Component
• City of Wellhead Protection Plan
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-12 LI, GI Industrial Districts
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-21 Amendments
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-8 Flood Plain Management

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:
• The property is developed.
• The property is generally flat.
• The property will be accessed fromWest Idaho Street

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:
• The property is surrounded by:

o North: Elko County Property / Developed as Barrick parking lot
o West: General Agriculture (AG) / Undeveloped
o South: General Agriculture (AG) / Undeveloped
o East: Elko County Property / Developed as trailer court

Developed land consistent with Light Industrial
Principal Permitted Use

EXISTING LAND USE:

(IND-GEN) Industrial GeneralMASTER PLAN DESIGNATION:

Currently in Elko County; (AG) General
Agriculture zoning with final approval of the
annexation application. Petition of the annexation
was accepted by City Council on 1-9-2018.

EXISTING ZONING:

3 acresPARCEL SIZE:

006-09G-039; will be issued a new APN upon
finalization of the annexation.

PARCEL NUMBER:

PROJECT INFORMATION

REZONE 12-17
Swire Coca-Cola, USA
APN: 006-09G-039



1. The property is located outside the 30-year capture zone for several City wells.

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN:

1. The property is not located within the redevelopment area.

ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN:

The proposed zone district is compatible with the Master Plan Transportation Component and is
consistent with the existing transportation infrastructure.

1. The area will be accessed fromWest Idaho Street.
2. West Idaho Street is classified as a Minor Collector.
3. The proposed zone change is commensurate with the surrounding transportation

infrastructure.

Transportation:

Page 3 of5

1. The Master Plan Land Use Atlas shows the area as General Industrial.
2. Supporting zone districts for General Industrial are General Industrial, Light Industrial

and Industrial Commercial.
3. Objective 5: Encourage development that strengthens the core of the City, and new

annexations that are logical and orderly and do not promote sprawl.
4. Objective 7: Promote high quality and visually appealing industrial uses, where

~ppropriate, to promote economic sustainability and strengthen the community's
Image.

5. Objective 8: Encourage new development that does not negatively impact Countywide
natural systems, or public/federallands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages,
floodplains etc., or pose a danger to human health and safety.

The proposed zone district is in conformance with the Master Plan Land Use Component.

MASTER PLAN:
Land use:

with the annexation process by referring the matter to the Planning Commission.
3. The application is being processed concurrent with annexation application 3-17.
4. The proposed zone district includes all of APN 006-09G-039 which is the area identified

in annexation application 3-17.
5. The property is located approximately 2,500 feet east of 1-80Exist 298. The City of Elko

has recently received applications for new development and expansion of existing
development in the immediate vicinity. This is partially due to the water line extension to
exit 298 in 2016.

6. The surrounding area is partially developed with light industrial land uses.
7. The area proposed for rezone fronts West Idaho Street.
8. City utilities have not been extended to the edge of the property. The property owner has

entered into an agreement with Golden Gate Petroleum and the City of Elko for a water
line extension along Sheep Creek Trail. Construction is expected to begin spring 2018.
Sewer is not available in close vicinity to the property. The property owner would be
required to install dry sewer along the frontage of the property and connect when it is
available.

9. Other non-city utilities are located in the immediate vicinity.
10. The requested zoning district is in conformance with the City of Elko Master Plan.

REZONE 12-17
Swire Coca-Cola, USA
APN: 006-09G-039



3. The proposed zone district is consistent with City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan.

2. The proposed rezone is compatible with the Master Plan Transportation Component and
is consistent with the existing transportation infrastructure.

1. The proposed rezone is in conformance with the Master Plan Land Use Component.

FINDINGS

Page 4 of5

1. This parcel is not designated in a Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA).

SECTION 3-8

1. The applicant has conformed to this section of code with the filing of the application.

SECTION 3-2-21:

The proposed zone change is in conformance with Elko City Code Section 3-2-17.

1. Existing development meets the requirements under 3-2-17.
2. Conformity with the section is required if the existing facilities are expanded or the use

changes.

SECTION 3-2-17:

The proposed zone change is in conformance with Elko City Code Section 3-2-12.

1. The existing development meets the requirements under 3-2-12 for rmmmum area,
minimum lot width, front and rear yard setbacks, side yard setback and maximum
building height.

2. The existing development is consistent with the listed principal uses permitted.
3. The existing development does not abut a residential zoning district therefore; a

conditional use permit is not required.
4. The existing development meets the requirements for the provisions of landscaping.

SECTION 3-2-1UAl - Light Industrial District -LI

The proposed zone change is in conformance with Elko City Code Section 3-2-4.

2. The property meets the area requirements for the proposed zone district.

1. The Planning Commission can recommend to the City Council a zone classification for
annexed territory other the default Agriculture District. The applicant has filed this
application in conformance with the code requesting the Light Industrial Zoning District.
The proposed district is in conformance with the Master Plan.

SECTION 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts

REZONE 12-17
Swire Coca-Cola, USA
APN: 006-09G-039



1. The rezone not be finalized until the conditions for annexation 3-17 are met and the
annexation is of record

Development Department:

Page 5 of5

1. Council approval of Annexation 3-17 is required prior to action taken on this application.

Planning Department:

Staff recommends this item be conditionally approved with the following conditions:

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

9. Development under the proposed zone district will not adversely impact natural systems,
or public/federallands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages, floodplains etc., or pose a
danger to human health and safety.

8. The topography of the area is well suited for the proposed light industrial land uses

7. The proposed zone district is consistent with surrounding land uses.

6. The proposed zone district is in conformance with City Code 3-2-17

5. The proposed zone district is in conformance with Section 3-2-12(A) LI, GI Industrial
Districts.

4. The proposed zone district is in conformance with City Code 3-2-4(B)(C) & (D).

REZONE 12-17
Swire Coca-Cola, USA
APN: 006-09G-039



C:\Users\sknopp\Downloads\Rez 12-17 Swire Coca Cola W Idaho St (2).docx
Created by Jeremy Draper

• The property is located generally 3,100 ft east of the intersection of 1-80and W.
Idaho St.

• The property is identified as a portion of APN 006-09G-036.
• The parcel is currently developed as Swire Coca-Cola.

Project Information

The City of Elko Development Department is providing this correspondence to aid the
Planning Commission's review of Rezone Application 12-17.

To: Elko City Planning Commission
From: Jeremy Draper, Development Manager
RE: Rezone 12-17, Swire Coca-Cola, W. Idaho Street
Date: January 12, 2018

CITY OF ELKO
DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

1755 COLLEGE AVENUE
ELKO, NEVADA 89801

(775)777-7210
(775)777-7219 FAX



• Conformance with this section is required

Section 3-2-21-Amendments

• Conformance with this section is required

Section 3-2-17-Traffic. Access. Parking and loading Regulations

• Conformance with this section is required

Section 3-2-12-eAl-ell) Light Industrial District

• Conformance with this section is required

Section 3-2-4-Establishment of Zoning Districts

• The property is not located within the current wellhead capture zone, however it
should be noted that the City of Elko has long range plans for a new well within
4,500 ft of this property.

Elko Wellhead Protection Plan

land Use:
• The Land Use component of the Master Plan identifies this area as General

Industrial per amendment 1-17.
• Objective 6: Encourage multiple scales of commercial development to serve the

needs of the community, and that of individual neighborhoods
• Objective 7: Promote high quality and visually appealing industrial uses, where

appropriate, to ensure economic sustainability as well as strengthen the
community's image.

• Corresponding zoning districts for the General Industrial Land Use are LI-Light
Industrial, IC-Industrial Commercial, and GI-General Industrial.

Master Plan

Page 2 of 3

• Annexation Application 3-17 is currently being considered for approval for this
property.

• The parcel will be zoned AG-General Agricultural District upon annexation.
• The proposed rezone would result in a rezone of proposed parcel 1 being 3.00

acres of LI-Light Industrial District.
• The property is bound by AG, to the south and west, county property to the east

and north.
• The property is not located within a FEMA Floodzone.



1. The rezone not be recorded until the conditions for from annexation 3-17 are met
and the annexation is of record.

The City of Elko Development Department recommends that the proposed zone
changes be approved with the following conditions:

Recommendation

1. The proposed rezone appears to be compatible with, and not frustrate the City of
Elko Master Plan goals and policies found in the Land Use Component.

2. The proposed rezone is in conformance with City Code 3-2-4-8 and C
3. The proposed rezone is in conformance with City Code 3-2-17
4. The proposed rezone is in conformance with City Code 3-2-12-(A)
5. The proposed rezone is in conformance with the City of ElkoWellhead Protection

Plan.
6. Development under the proposed rezone will not adversely impact natural

systems, or public/federallands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages,
floodplains etc. or pose a danger to human health and safety.

Findings

Page 3 of 3



C

"'C
Q)
+-'co
~
+-'
"iii
(J)

c"w
"-Q)
s:
o
+-'

en
~o
J2
en
CO
"'C
Q)..c

"~

oen
Q)
"'C

o~
w
~o
>.
+-'c
~oo
CO
"'C
CO>Q)
z
's
Q)
+-'
CO
+-'en
Q)
s:
+-'

zo
~
0..
~
U
U)
W
C
...J«
C)
w
...J



CC:

Enclosures

Sincerely.

Sh~~~chW~
Planning Technician

If you have any questions regarding this meeting. the information y'OU received. or if you will not
be able to attend this meeting. please call me at your earl icst convenience at (77 5) 777-7160.

The Planning Comm ission requests that you, or a dul y appointed represcntati H~. be in attendance
at this meeting to address the Planning Commission. Ifyou will not be able to attend the meeting
but wish to have a representative present. please submit a letter to the Planning Commission
authorizing this person to represent you at the meeting.

Enclosed is a copy of the agenda fur an upcoming Planning Commission meeting. Highlighted
on the agenda is an item or items that you have requested to be acted on at the meeting. Also
enclosed is pertinent information pertaining to your request. Please review this information
before the meeting.

Dear Applicant Agent:

Re: Rezone 1\:0, 12-17 and Annexation No. 3-17

Swire Coca-Cola. USA
Attn: Mr. Dan Reid
12634 South 265 W est
Draper. UT 84020

January 30, 2018

1751 College A venue . Elko. Nevada 89801 . (775) 777-7160 . Fax (775) 777-71 19

Heh.\ife: \\\\\\ clkocity.com
Email: pLlnnin~ (/ ci clko n\ us

CITY OF ELKO
Planning Department



00000000000000000000000000""0~~~~~~~~e~~~~~
0000000000000
............................................ If~1f1f1f1f

........................................
-......JN~~~~
W ~ -.....I -.....I -......J -......J
......000000000

00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 VI VI 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00
~ ~ I.D I.D I.D I.D I.D I.D I.D I.D I.D I.D ~ ~ ~ I.D I.D I.D
...... ...... 00 00 00 00 -......J -......J I.D I.D 00 00 ~ ~ ~ 00 00 00ooo ......................oowwoooooooo
.............. IfVlVlVl ................ VlVlww .......................... w ......
WW ...... u,u,u,I.bI.bu,u,~~WWW~NW
OO-......J-.....I-......J-......JWWo,\o,\~~NNNI.DW~
............ WOOO~~I.DI.D-......J-.....IVlVlVlO~O
OOOO ........ OOOOOOO~~OOOOVlVlVlI.D-.....I ......

il il P:! P:! 0 0
000"''''0G)0G)
-< -< m ~
~~ZZZZ
-1-1«CC

-1 -1

VlVlmVlVlVlnn
:t> :t> r ""0 ""0 ""0 :t> :t>
r r '" :::0 :::0 :::0 :::0 :::0
-1-10ZZZVlVl
rrZG)G)G)OO
~~<nnnZZ
m m :::0:::0:::0 n n
nn mmm~~
~~ ~~~ZZ
CC ZZZ«
-1-1 «<

- .

r r
Z Z

""0 _ ,
~.
:t>o
o
N -

w W ""0 ""0 ......................W ""0
~~OO~~~~O
nnOJOJ~~~OOJ
:t>:t>OO«<VlO
~~XX«<CX
""0 ""O .............. NNNZN
nn~~I.DI.DI.DOW
:::o:::o-.....l-.....l000:t>~
mmOOOOOOOZ-.....I
mm VlVlVln

'" '" m:::0 :::0 0o 0 :::0

\_

""0
~
:t>oo
........

n :t>

~ =1
Vl Z
C :::0
-1 m
~ G)
:::0 0
r Z
:t> :t>
Z r
,0 r
'- :t>
:t> Z
~ 0
m 0
Vl m
m ""0
-1 -1
:t>r

n n
......................
00
Z Z
o 0
:::0 :::0
~ ~
:t> :t>



ELKO CITY PLANNING COMMISSION

Additional information concerning this item may be obtained by contacting the Elko City
Planning Department at (775) 777-7160.

The intent of the zone change is to allow for the continued use of a
beverage distribution center.

Rezone No. 12-17, filed by Swire Coca-Cola, USA for a change in zoning
from AG (Agricultural) to LI (Light Industrial), approximately 3.00 acres
of property, specifically APN 006-06G-036, located generally on the north
side of West Idaho Street, approximately 2,500 feet east of 1-80 Exit 298,
more particularly described as:
The land described herein is situated in the State of Nevada, County of
Elko, described as follows:
Parcel 1 as shown on that certain Parcel Map for Frances Adeline
Warmbrodt filed in the office of the County Recorder of Elko County,
State of Nevada, on October 12, 1988, as File No. 263740, as amended by
Certificate recorded January 23, 1989, being a portion of Sections 19 and
20, Township 34 North, Range 55 East, M.D.B.&M.

The specific items to be considered under public hearing format are:

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Elko City Planning Commission will conduct a public
hearing on Tuesday, February 6, 2018 beginning at 5:30 P.M. P.S.T. at Elko City Hall, 1751
College Avenue, Elko. Nevada, and that the public is invited to provide input and testimony on
this matter under consideration in person, by writing, or by representative.

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING



Page 1Revised 12/04/15
,\ .

Plot Plan: A plot plan provided by a properly licensed surveyor depicting the existing condition
drawn to scale showing property lines, existing and proposed buildings, building setbacks,
distances between buildings, parking and loading areas, driveways and other pertinent
information must be provided.

Legal Description: A complete legal description of the boundary of the proposed zone change
must be provided as well as a map depicting the area to be changed stating the wording: area
to be changed from "x" to "x": (LI to R, for example).

Note: One .pdf of the entire application must be submitted as well as one set of legible,
reproducible plans 8 Yi" x 11" in size. If the applicant feels the Commission needs to see 24" x
36" plans, 10 sets of pre-folded plans must be submitted.

Other Information: The applicant is encouraged to submit other information and
documentation to support this Rezone Application.

Area Map: A map of the area proposed for this zone change must be provided.

Complete Application Form: In order to begin processing the application, an application form
must be complete and signed. Complete applications are due at least 21 days prior to the next
scheduled meeting of the Elko City Planning Commission (meetings are the 1st Tuesday of
every month).

Fee: A $300.00 non-refundable filing fee.

FILING REQUIREMENTS:

APPLICANT(s): SwireCoca-Cola,USA
MAILING ADDRESS: 12634South265West,Draper,UT84020
PHONE NO (Home) (Business)_80_1_.8_16_.5_6_70 _
NAME OF PROPERTY OWNER (If different): _

(Property owner's consent in writing must be provided.)
MAILING ADDRESS: _
LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND LOCATION OF PROPERTY INVOLVED (Attach if necessary):
ASSESSOR'S PARCEL NO.: 006-09G-036 Address 3400WestIdahoStreet
Lot(s), ~Iock(s), ~Subdivision ~ ~
Or Parcel(s) ~ File No. _P_ar_ce_1...;.1,_M_:ap_#_2_63_74_0 _

APPLICATION FOR ZONE CHANGE

1751 College Avenue * Elko * Nevada * 89801
(775) 777·7160 phone * (775) 777·7119 fax

CITY OF ELKO PLANNING DEPARTMENT



(Use additional pages if necessary to address questions 3 through 5)

5. Identify any unique physical features or characteristics associated with the property: __
None known

Page 2Revised 12/04/15

4. Explain how the proposed zoning classification relates with other zoning classifications in the
area: We understand that the City is in the process of a master plan review and that the requested zoning change to
Light Industrial will be consistant with the new City master plan, as well as with the use.

3. Explain in detail the type and nature of the use anticipated on the property: _
Beverage distribution center

2. Identify the zoning Classification being proposed/requested: _L..::;_igh_t_ln_d_urt_r_ia_' _

1. Identify the existing zoning classification of the property: _H_;:;ig_hw_a_.:,.y_C_o_m_m_e_rc_ia_1 _



Page 3Revised 12/04/15

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY

File No.: \2-I] Date Filed: \ i.)it'dl1 Fee Paid: m~D(C.::tl: kttrJ

(~ ')

SIGNATURE:~~~~_~~~~_~_~_-_J~~~~~~~~~

City, State, Zip Code

Phone Number: 801.816.5670
Email address:dreid@swirecc.cOm

A I· t I A t Dan Reid, Swire Sr. Manager For Constructionpplcan gen _
(Please print or type)

Mailing Address 12634 South 265 West
Street Address or P.O. Box

Draper, UT 84020

By My Signature below:

IV'I I consent to having the City of Elko Staff enter on my property for the sole purpose of
inspection of said property as part of this application process.

D I object to having the City of Elko Staff enter onto my property as a part of their review of
this application. (Your objection will not affect the recommendation made by the staff or the final determination
made by the City Planning Commission or the City Council.)

IV'I I acknowledge that submission of this application does not imply approval of this request by
the City Planning Department, the City Planning Commission and the City Council, nor does it in
and of itself guarantee issuance of any other required permits and/or licenses.

IV'I I acknowledge that this application may be tabled until a later meeting if either I or my
designated representative or agent is not present at the meeting for which this application is
scheduled.

IV'I I have carefully read and completed all questions contained within this application to the
best of my ability.



Existing Zoning: Highway Commercial
Requested Zoning Change: Light Industrial



10.Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner

9. Findings:
• The proposed development is in conformance with the Land Use component of

the Master Plan
• The proposed development is in conformance with the existing transportation

infrastructure and the Transportation component of the Master Plan
• The site is suitable for the proposed use.
• The proposed development is in conformance with the City Wellhead Protection

Program.
• The proposed use is consistent with surrounding land uses.
• The proposed use is in conformance with City Code 3-2-9 (B) Commercial

Transitional with the approval of the Condition Use Permit
• The proposed development is in conformance with 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-17, 3-8 and 3-

2-18 of the Elko City Code.
• The proposed development conforms to the stipulations contained the

Development Agreement; File 666547

8. Recommended Motion: Move to conditionally approve Conditional Use Permit 1-18
with the following conditions: (listed in City Planner Memo)

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, Memo from Development Director,
Memo from City Planner

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required

5. Background Information: Bailey & Associates was issued a CUP June 5, 2012 for a
development of a multiple family residential complex consisting of 96 units. CUP 8-
12was approved based on the site plan exhibit showing 6-plexes. The developer has
revised the site plan and is reducing the number of units per building from 6 to 2,
therefore requiring a new Conditional Use Permit.

4. Time Required: 15Minutes

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS, PUBLIC HEARINGS

2. Meeting Date: February 6, 2018

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible action on Conditional Use Permit No. 1-
18, filed by Autumn Colors LLC., which would allow for the development of duplex
townhomes within a CT (Commercial Transitional) Zoning District, and matters
related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Elko City Planning Commission
Agenda Action Sheet

Agenda Item # LA.4.

Planning Commission Action SheetCreated on 11/15/2016



Initial

/
City Manager: Date: ..:2/1/10

Initial
~ 7

**If additional space is needed please provide a separate memorandum**

S· I . (~{'1 \ C' C /] 'l ' .,tte ...ocauon: V - ~ \ r - :--> I Q f Nt"" ()(

C) '-t 1/ ") J I f\. 'I ICurrent Zoning: _ Date Received: L __~ Date Public Notice: ( 2-':.
. ' , ~ 1 A If',"""COMMENT: Th 1,2> " c~):tD 0 lto,\) <tr)y ':D (Q U_Q..,0eAq:rY1~.fl10\ . vup,ex

:1('j~~I\'y] ()yY'~) \A )'r±1n ~\'1 CY t) \t iStt IQ.i: /

Title: () oDd\'{Wal L U:~e1\1\OJ i t I ~I 6-
Applicant(s): l\Lil 'fYI)'") G~\lcy.,.~) , I { C,

STAFF COMMENT FLOW SHEET
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA DATE: 2) lv

**00 not use pencil or red pen, they do not reproduce**



Page 1 of9

RECOMMEND APPROVAL, subject to findings of fact and conditions.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

A Conditional Use Permit for the development of townhomes within a CT -Commercial
Transitional zoning district. The CUP would allow for 12 buildings consisting of six
townhomes in each building and 10buildings consisting of two townhomes in each building.

February 1, 2018
February 6, 2018
I.A.4
Conditional Use Permit 1-18
Autumn Colors, LLC
Development of Multi-Family Townhomes
Final Plat 2-18

DATE:
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE:
AGENDAITEM NUMBER:
APPLICATION NUMBER:
APPLICANT:
PROJECT DESCRIPTION:
RELATED APPLICATIONS:

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

City of Elko
1751 College Avenue
Elko, NV 89801
(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7119



• The applicant has filed Final Plat application 2-28. The application is for the final phase of
the Autumn Colors subdivision.

• The application for the Conditional Use Permit was filed as required under City Code 3-2-
9 (B)(3). The proposed conditional use would supersede CUP 8-12 which was approved
for a site planning showing a total of 96 units of six-plexes. Seventy-two of the ninety-six

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

• City of Elko Master Plan-Land Use Component
• City of Elko Master Plan-Transportation Component
• City of Elko Redevelopment Plan
• City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan
• City of Elko Code 3-2-3 General Provisions
• City of Elko Code 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts
• City of Elko Code 3-2-9 Commercial Transitional District (CT)
• City of Elko Code 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations
• City of Elko Code 3-2-18 Conditional Use Permits
• City of Elko Code 3-8 Flood Plain Management

APPLICABLE MASTER PLANS AND CITY CODE SECTIONS:

• The property is currently undeveloped.
• The property is generally flat.
• The property is accessed from Autumn Colors Dr. with a future connection to Cattle Drive
• The property is not in the flood zone.

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:

• The property is surrounded by undeveloped land to the north, south, and west. Properties
to the east are developed with six-plex townhomes and single family residences.

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:

UndevelopedEXISTING LAND USE:

(COMM-GEN) Commercial GeneralMASTER PLAN DESIGNATION:

CT -Commercial TransitionalEXISTING ZONING:

Page 2 of9

8.71 acres as shown on Rezone application 7-12PROPERTY SIZE:

A portion of001-01F-3l6PARCEL NUMBER:

PROJECT INFORMATION

CUP 1-18
Autumn Colors LLC
APN: OOI-OIF-316



Page 3 of9

1. The Master Plan identifies State Route 225 as Principal Arterial.
2. The Master Plan identifies Cattle Drive as a Residential Collector. The recommended

right-of-way width for a residential collector is 60 feet. The right-of-way for Cattle Drive
is of record.

3. Sage Crest Drive north of the State Route 225 is not classified in the Master Plan. A 60
foot right-of-way is of record.

4. The site has pedestrian access along Mountain City Highway to the end of the completed

Transportation

The conditional use permit is in conformance with the Master Plan Land Use Component

l. The Master Plan Land Use Atlas shows the area as Commercial General.
2. The listed Goal of the Land Use component states "Promote orderly, sustainable growth

and efficient land use to improve quality of life and ensure new development meets the
needs of all residents and visitors".

3. Objective 4: Consider a mixed-use pattern of development for the downtown area, and for
major centers and corridors, to ensure the area's adaptability, longevity, and overall
sustainability.

4. Objective 6: Encourage multiple scales of commercial development to serve the needs of
the region, the community, and that of individual neighborhoods.

5. Objective 8: Ensure that new development does not negatively impact County-wide
natural systems, or public/federallands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages,
floodplains etc., or pose a danger to human health and safety.

Land Use

MASTERPLAN

units have been constructed and the proposed change change to duplex townhomes for the
final 20 units will result in a reduction of four units.

• The area identified in the application is located within the area approved under
Preliminary Plat 5-12. The Preliminary Plat includes the area proposed for multi-family
development in the proposed CT district. The proposed application is in conformance with
the approved preliminary plat.

• The area of the CUP development oftownhomes is approximately 8.71 acres as shown on
Rezone 7-12.

• The area is located on the north side of Mountain City Highway between Cattle Drive and
Sage Crest Drive.

• The area consists of townhomes developed under Phase 1 and Phase 2 of the Autumn
Colors subdivision and the area proposed for development as duplex townhomes identified
as APN 001-0IF-316.

• The property is not located in the Redevelopment Area.
• The proposed development is not only governed under city code but must conform with

the stipulations of a Development Agreement identified as File 666547 on record with the
Elko County Recorder's Office. The development agreement allows for reduction in lot
size, reduction in setbacks for principal buildings, maximum building size, minimum
useable floor area, fencing and exterior requirements, and parking requirements.

CUP 1-18
Autumn Colors LLC
APN: 00I-0IF-316



SECTION 3-2-4 ESTABLISHMENT OF ZONING DISTRICTS

The proposed development is required to have an approval as a conditional use to be in
conformance with this section of code.

2. Section 3-2-3(D) states that "No land may be used or structure erected where the land
is held by the planning commission to be unsuitable for such use or structure by reason
of flooding, concentrated runoff, inadequate drainage, adverse soil or rock formation,
extreme topography, low bearing strength, erosion susceptibility, or any other features
likely to be harmful to the health, safety and general welfare of the community. The
planning commission, in applying the provisions of this section, shall state in writing
the particular facts upon which its conclusions are based. The applicant shall have the
right to present evidence contesting such determination to the city council if he or she
so desires, whereupon the city council may affirm, modify or withdraw the
determination of unsuitability."

1. Section 3-2-3(C) states that certain specified uses designated as "conditional uses
permitted" may be permitted as principal uses subject to special conditions of location,
design, construction, operation and maintenance specified in Chapter 3 or imposed by
the Planning Commission or City Council.

Other uses may apply under certain conditions with application to the City.

• Section 3-2-3 (C) 1 of City code specifies use restrictions. The following use restrictions
shall apply.

1. Principal Uses: Only those uses and groups of uses specifically designated as
"principal uses permitted' in zoning district regulations shall be permitted as
principal uses; all other uses shall be prohibited as principal uses

2. Conditional Uses: Certain specified uses designated as "conditional uses
permitted" may be permitted as principal uses subject to special conditions of
location, design, construction, operation and maintenance hereinafter specified in
this chapter or imposed by the planning commission or city council.

3. Accessory Uses: Uses normally accessory and incidental to permitted principal or
conditional uses may be permitted as hereinafter specified.

SECTION 3-2-3 GENERAL PROVISIONS

• The property is located outside the 30-year capture zone for several City wells.

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN

Page 4 of9

The conditional use permit is in conformance with the Master Plan Transportation Component
and existing transportation infrastructure

townhomes.

CUP 1-18
Autumn Colors LLC
APN: OOI-OIF-316



Page 5 of9

The proposed development conforms to the code with the stipulations of the Development
Agreement considered in the evaluation. In making this determination, the entire area of the
existing developed area was considered.

4. Development of the property is required to be in conformance with City code,
requirements stipulated in the Development Agreement and conditions for the CUP. It
appears the property can be developed in conformance with the requirements stipulated in
City code.

3. Section 3-2-9(3) The minimum lot area shall be fifteen thousand (15,000) square feet.
The minimum lot width shall be one hundred feet (100'). The maximum lot coverage shall
be fifty percent (50%). A minimum front yard setback of thirty feet (30') shall be required.
A minimum rear yard setback of ten feet (10') shall be required. A minimum side yard
setback of zero feet (0') to five and one-half feet (5 1/2') shall be required. Interior side
yards which abut any residential district shall observe the five and one-half foot (51/2')
setback required as part of the R zoning district. A minimum exterior side setback of thirty
feet (30') shall be required. Building height shall not exceed thirty five feet (35'), or
requirements contained within the city airport master plan, whichever is the most
restrictive. The gross area proposed for the townhouse development is 8.71 acres. It
appears the proposed setbacks are meeting the code requirements.

2. Section 3-2-9(3)(d) Multiple-family residential developments which contain five (5) or
more units located on a single lot or parcel; townhouse, condominium or attached housing
developments.

1. Section 3-2-9(B) The purpose of the CT zoning district is to establish a transitional zone
between more intense commercial districts and residential districts, particularly along
higher volume traffic corridors, and to promote a pattern of land use suitable for the
development of professional and business offices and limited service, retail and
commercial activities. The CT district is intended to protect established residential
neighborhoods from the type of land use associated with high levels of noise, illumination
and traffic that could be detrimental to the characteristics of the residential neighborhood.

SECTION 3-2-9 COMMERCIAL TRANSITIONAL DISTRICT

The proposed development conforms to the code with the stipulations of the Development
Agreement considered in the evaluation.

1. Section 3-2-4(B) Required Conformity To District Regulations: The regulations set forth
in this chapter for each zoning district shall be minimum regulations and shall apply
uniformly to each class or kind of structure or land, except as provided in this subsection.

2. Section 3-2-4(B)(4) stipulates that no yard or lot existing on the effective date hereof shall
be reduced in dimension or area below the minimum requirements set forth in this title.

CUP 1-18
Autumn Colors LLC
APN: OOI-OIF-316



• The proposed development is in conformance with the Land Use component of the Master
Plan

• The proposed development is in conformance with the existing transportation
infrastructure and the Transportation component of the Master Plan

• The site is suitable for the proposed use.
• The proposed development is in conformance with the City Wellhead Protection Program.
• The proposed use is consistent with surrounding land uses.

FINDINGS

1. The parcel is not located within a designated flood plain.

3-8 FLOOD PLAIN MANAGEMENT

Page 6 of9

General Regulations:
1. Certain uses of land within designated zoning districts shall be permitted as principal uses

only upon issuance of a conditional use permit. Subject to the requirements of this chapter,
other applicable chapters, and where applicable to additional standards established by the
Planning Commission, or the City Council, a conditional use permit for such uses may be
issued.

2. Every conditional use permit issued, including a permit for a mobile home park, shall
automatically lapse and be of no effect one (1) year from the date of its issue unless the
permit holder is actively engaged in developing the specific property to the use for which
the permit was issued.

3. Every conditional use permit issued shall be personal to the permittee and applicable only
to the specific use and to the specific property for which it is issued. However, the
Planning Commission may approve the transfer of the conditional use permit to another
owner. Upon issuance of an occupancy permit for the conditional use, signifying that all
zoning and site development requirements imposed in connection with the permit have
been satisfied, the conditional use permit shall thereafter be transferable and shall run with
the land, whereupon the maintenance or special conditions imposed by the permit, as well
as compliance with other provisions of the zoning district, shall be the responsibility of the
property owner.

4. Conditional use permits shall be reviewed from time to time by City personnel.
Conditional use permits may be formally reviewed by the Planning Commission. In the
event that any or all of the conditions of the permit or this chapter are not adhered to, the
conditional use permit will be subject to revocation.

SECTION 3-2-18 CONDITIONAL USE PERMITS

• Conformance with this section is required

SECTION 3-2-17 TRAFFIC, ACCESS, PARKING AND LOADING REGULATIONS

CUP 1-18
Autumn Colors LLC
APN: OOI-OIF-316

----------------------------1
!



3. The applicant applies for and receives Final Plat approval and is consistent with
preliminary plat 5-12.

2. The permit shall be personal to the permittee and applicable only to the specific use and to
the specific property for which it is issued. However, the Planning Commission may
approve the transfer of the conditional use permit to another owner. Upon issuance of an
occupancy permit for the conditional use, signifying that all zoning and site development
requirements imposed in connection with the permit have been satisfied, the conditional
use permit shall thereafter be transferable and shall run with the land, whereupon the
maintenance or special conditions imposed by the permit, as well as compliance with
other provisions of the zoning district, shall be the responsibility of the property owner.

1. The permit is granted to the applicant, Autumn Colors, LLC.

Included in Memorandum dated January 8, 2018 from Community Development Manager

Development Department:

5. Connectivity from Sagecrest Drive to Cattle Drive pedestrian access shall be provided for.

4. CUP 1-18 to be recorded with the Elko County Recorder within 90 days of approval.

3. Owner or developer is to provide such maintenance and care as is required to obtain the
effect intended by the original landscape plan for the development.

Page 7 of9

2. All landscaping shall include a combination of trees and shrubs. Landscaping shall be
installed and not obstruct the view of oncoming traffic at the intersections.

1. The CUP 1-18be approved for the building layout as shown in the provided site plan
Exhibit A.

Planning Department Conditions:

Staff recommends APPROVAL of CUP 1-18with the following conditions:

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

• The proposed use is in conformance with City Code 3-2-9 (B) Commercial Transitional
with the approval ofthe Condition Use Permit

• The proposed development is in conformance with 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-17, 3-2-18, and 3-8 of
the Elko City Code.

• The proposed development conforms to the stipulations contained the Development
Agreement; File 666547.

CUP 1-18
Autumn Colors LLC
APN: 001-01F-316



6. Fire department access roads shall comply with the 2012 International Fire Code sections
503.2.1 and Appendix D section DI05.I through DI05.3 for buildings in excess ofthirty
feet in height.

Page 8 of9

5. Fire apparatus access roads shall meet the requirements of the 2012 International Fire Code
chapter 5, and City of Elko Fire Department requirements for turning radius, approach and
departure angles, and grade.

4. Dead end access roads shall have an approved method for turning around a fire apparatus in
compliance with the 2012 International Fire Code chapter 5, section 503.2.4, 503.2.5 and
appendix D.

3. Fire Department access shall meet the minimum dimensions as listed in the 2012 IFC
section 503.2.1

2. Additional access might be required to meet the requirements of the 2012 IFC Chapter 5
Section 503.2.1 for this complex.

1. All buildings shall comply with the 2012 International Fire Code chapter 5 section
503.1.1and shall extend to within 150 ft. of all portions of the building(s).

Fire Department Conditions:

11.The conditions from CUP 8-12 be included and adhered to as part of this CUP.

10. Setback from State Route 225 is to be 30 feet.

9. The common areas are to be maintained in an acceptable manner at all times.

8. The proposed park is to be fenced preventing access directly to State Route 225. The park
is to include community amenities such as a tot lot.

7. The exterior of the building shall be compatible with surrounding areas. Stucco and rock
are to be incorporated into the exterior of the structures.

6. The sidewalk adjacent to State Route 225 shall be offset and approved by NDOT.

5. The NDOT right-of-way is to be landscaped. A landscape plan will be required for
submittal and approval. NDOT approval will be required. The landscape plan is to include
features which create a "front" for the development adjacent to the State Route 225.

4. Development of the property is to conform to the Commercial Transitional District or
requirements stipulated in the Development Agreement.

CUP 1-18
Autumn Colors LLC
APN: OOI-OIF-316



Page 9 of9

11. Fire Department access, method of turn around, and required fire flow shall be met and
maintained as required by the 2012 IFC, for phased projects. A phased development plan
shall be provided and approved by the fire department.

10. Fire flow shall be determined by the City of Elko Fire Department and listed on submitted
plans.

9. One- or two family residential developments shall comply with the 2012 IFC appendix D
107.

8. Projects that exceed 100 or 200 dwelling units shall comply with a the appropriate section
of the 2012 International Fire Code Appendix D sections D106.1 and D106.2

7. Signage shall be provided in compliance with the 2012 IFC appendix D 103.6Building
signage shall be provided and meet the requirements of the City of Elko Fire Department
and the 2012 IFC.

CUP 1-18
Autumn Colors LLC
APN: OOI-OIF-316



Page I of8
C:\Users\sknopp\Downloads\CUP 1-18Autumn Colors Townhomes (2).docx

• City of Elko Master Plan - Land Use Component
• City of Elko Master Plan - Transportation Component
• City of Elko Redevelopment Plan
• City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-3 General Provisions
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-4 Zoning Districts
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-8 Flood Plain Management
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-9 (B) Commercial Transitional District
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-18 Conditional Use Permits

The City ofElko Development Department has provided this correspondence to aid in the Planning
Commission's review of Conditional Use Permit No. 1-18, which modifies CUP 8-12. Applicable
Master Plan Sections, Coordinating Plans, and City Code Sections are:

To: Elko Planning Department
From: Jeremy Draper, PE - Development Manager
RE: Conditional Use Permit No. 1-18, Autumn Colors Townhomes
Date: January 8, 2018

Memorandum

City of Elko Development Department
1755 College Avenue

Elko, NV 89801
(775) 777-7210

FAX (775) 777-7219



7. Public improvements are required on the Mountain City Highway (SR 225) frontage and
require NDOT approval, a modification of standards through the subdivision process may
be required.

Page 2 of8

6. The property is a partially developed parcel.

5. The property is located between Sage Crest Drive and Cattle Drive on the northeast side
of State Route 225.

4. The application is within the area approved in Preliminary Plat 5-12. The preliminary Plat
includes the area proposed for multi-family development in the proposed CT district. A
review of the preliminary plat has found that the proposed change is still in conformance
with the approved preliminary plat in that the total number of lots is being reduced and no
significant changes to the size of the remaining lots result from this reduction.

3. The property is currently zoned Commercial Transitional (CT) for the area identified in
item 1.

2. The area is approximately 8.71 acres in size and is a portion of the property is identified
as APN OOI-OIA-OI8.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

1. The area of townhomes was developed under CUP 8-12, allowing for a total of 96
townhomes from 16-sixplex townhome buildings. The applicant has constructed 72
townhomes in 12-sixplex townhome building and is requesting the remaining townhomes
be 20-duplex townhome units for a total of 92 townhomes.



Page 3 of8

3. The zoning is consistent with the zone classifications identified in the Master Plan to
support General Commercial land use. It should be noted that the CT zone provides for
multi-family development under the Conditional Use Permit process and does not provide
for a lower density single-family residential use. There are few remaining developable
parcels within the community that are suitably located that could accommodate multi
family development. Townhomes fall under the multiple-family dwelling definition in
ECC 3-2. As stated in ECC 3-2-9-B under CUP for properties zoned CT included
multifamily housing residential developments which contain five (5) or more units located
on a single lot or parcel; townhouse, condominium or attached housing developments.

2. The parcel is located on the periphery of the community.

1. Land Use is shown as General Commercial. High Density residential development would
be appropriate at this location.

Land use:

MASTER PLAN:

14. The CUP is for 72-sixplex townhomes and 20 duplex townhomes for a total of92
townhomes within a CT-Commercial Transitional Zoning district. This is a total of four
less townhomes than planned for in CUP 8-12 and Preliminary Plat 5-12.

13. The development is subject to a Development Agreement shown as File 666547 on
record with the Elko County Recorder's Office.

12. Phases 1-4 of the Autumn Colors subdivision have been constructed to date, phase 5 of
the subdivision with the proposed townhomes in this application, and remaining single
family residential lots on Autumn Colors and Snowy River shall make up the final phase.

11. The Preliminary Plat 5-12 shows a total of 230 lots. Lots 1 - 134 are intended for single
family detached housing, lots 135 - 230 are shown as townhomes. The area
encompassing the Adobe Creek drainage is offered for dedication in addition to several
residential streets offered for dedication.

9. The parcel is bifurcated by the Adobe Creek Drainage.

10. Multi-family development exists to the southeast of the property.

8. No public improvements exist on the Cattle Drive frontages. Public improvements will be
required with development.



Page 4 of8

4. Objective 1 under the Transportation component of the Master Plan states "Provide a
balanced transportation system that accommodates vehicles, bicycles, and pedestrians,
while being sensitive to, and supporting the adjacent land uses.

3. Sage Crest Drive north of the State Route 225 is not classified in the Master Plan. A 60
foot right-of-way is of record.

2. TheMaster Plan identifies Cattle Drive as a Residential Collector. The recommended right
of-way width for a residential collector is 60 feet. The right-of-way for Cattle Drive is of
record.

1. The Master Plan identifies State Route 225 as Principal Arterial.

Transportation:

a. Best Practice 1.1 - Incorporate "Complete Streets" principals into existing and
future roadways. The right-of-way width at 60 feet is adequate to accommodate the

6. Objective 8 under the Land use component of the Master Plan states "Ensure that new
development does not negatively impact County-wide natural systems, or public/federal
lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages, floodplains etc. or pose a danger to human
health and safety." Staff believes there will be no negative impacts to natural systems and
no issue with regard to human health and safety.

a. Best Practice 1.1 - Single Family - The proposed subdivision meets several of the
methods described to achieve a diverse mix of single family homes in the
community.

b. Best Practice 1.2 - Design requirements may be incorporated into the Development
Agreement.

c. Best Practice 1.3 - The location of the proposed subdivision appears to support the
City striving for a blended community by providing a mix of housing types in the
neighborhood and is supported by existing infrastructure. This CUP is a
requirement for the multiple-family housing component of the Autumn Colors
Subdivision.

d. Best Practice 1.4 - The proposed subdivision appears to support the practice.

5. Objective 1 under the Land Use component of the Master Plan states "Promote a diverse
mix of housing options to meet the needs of a variety of lifestyles, incomes, and age
groups."

4. The listed Goal of the Land Use component states "Promote orderly, sustainable growth
and efficient land use to improve quality of life and ensure new development meets the
needs of all residents and visitors".



3. Section 3-2-3(D) states that "No land may be used or structure erected where the land is
held by the planning commission to be unsuitable for such use or structure by reason of
flooding, concentrated runoff, inadequate drainage, adverse soil or rock formation,
extreme topography, low bearing strength, erosion susceptibility, or any other features
likely to be harmful to the health, safety and general welfare of the community. The
planning commission, in applying the provisions of this section, shall state in writing the
particular facts upon which its conclusions are based. The applicant shall have the right to

Page 5 of8

2. Section 3-2-3(C) states that certain specified uses designated as "conditional uses
permitted" may be permitted as principal uses subject to special conditions of location,
design, construction, operation and maintenance specified in Chapter 3 or imposed by the
Planning Commission or City Council.

Other uses may apply under certain conditions with application to the City.

c. Accessory Uses: Uses normally accessory and incidental to permitted principal or
conditional uses may be permitted as hereinafter specified.

a. Principal Uses: Only those uses and groups of uses specifically designated as
"principal uses permitted" in zoning district regulations shall be permitted as
principal uses; all other uses shall be prohibited as principal uses.

1. Section 3-2-3(C)(1) of City code specifies use restrictions. The following use restrictions
shall apply:

SECTION 3-2-3 GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. The property does not lie within capture zones for the City wells.

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN:

1. The property is not located within the Redevelopment Area.

ELKO REDVELOPMENT PLAN:

5. At full build out, the proposed subdivision is expected to generate approximately 1,840
Average Daily Trips based on 9.57 trips/single family unit and 5.81 trips/townhome
(Source ITE trip Generation, 8th Edition). A traffic study is warranted for the proposed
project. In addition, the Nevada Department of Transportation will require a traffic study.
A traffic study was provided with the subdivision process.

proposed Class II pathway into the final full width construction of the road as
adjacent property is developed.



1. Section 3-2-9(B) The purpose of the CT zoning district is to establish a transitional zone
between more intense commercial districts and residential districts, particularly along

Page 6 of8

SECTION 3-2-9-B-CT Commercial Transitional District

1. The property is not located within a designated flood plain.

SECTION 3-8-Floodplain Management

4. No yard or lot existing on the effective date hereof shall be reduced in
dimension or area below the minimum requirements set forth in this title.

3. No part of a required yard, or other open space, or off street parking or loading
space, provided in connection with any building or use, shall be included as
part of a yard, open space, or off street parking or loading space similarly
required for any other building.

d. To have narrower or smaller rear yards, front yards, side yards or other
open spaces, than required in this title; or in any other manner contrary to
the provisions of this chapter.

c. To occupy a greater percentage of lot area; or

b. To accommodate or house a greater number of families than as
permitted in this chapter;

a. To exceed the heights required by the current City Airport Master Plan;

2. No building or other structure shall hereafter be erected or altered:

1.No building, structure or land shall hereafter be used or occupied and no
building or structure or part thereof shall hereafter be erected, constructed,
moved, or structurally altered, unless in conformity with all regulations
specified in this subsection for the district in which it is located.

1. Section 3-2-4(B) Required Conformity To District Regulations: The regulations set forth
in this chapter for each zoning district shall be minimum regulations and shall apply
uniformly to each class or kind of structure or land, except as provided in this subsection:

SECTION 3-2-4 ESTABLISHEMENT OF ZONING DISTRICTS

present evidence contesting such determination to the city council ifhe or she so desires,
whereupon the city council may affirm, modify or withdraw the determination of
unsuitability. "



2. The permit shall be personal to the permittee and applicable only to the specific use and to
the specific property for which it is issued. However, the Planning Commission may
approve the transfer of the conditional use permit to another owner. Upon issuance of an
occupancy permit for the conditional use, signifying that all zoning and site development

Page 7 of8

1. The permit is granted to the applicant, Autumn Colors, LLC.

The City of Elko, Development Department recommends conditional approval of the Conditional
Use Permit 1-18based on the following:

RECOMMENDATION

1. It appears the proposed development will meet the requirements. Civil improvement
plans will be required to conform to the code.

SECTION 3-2-17-Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations

4. Development ofthe property is required to be in conformance with City code, requirements
stipulated in the Development Agreement and conditions for the CUP. It appears the
property can be developed in conformance with the requirements stipulated in City code.

3. Section 3-2-9(4) The minimum lot area shall be fifteen thousand (15,000) square feet. The
minimum lot width shall be one hundred feet (100'). The maximum lot coverage shall be
fifty percent (50%). A minimum front yard setback of thirty feet (30') shall be required. A
minimum rear yard setback of ten feet (10') shall be required. A minimum side yard setback
of zero feet (0') to five and one-half feet (51/2') shall be required. Interior side yards which
abut any residential district shall observe the five and one-half foot (51/2') setback required
as part of the R zoning district. A minimum exterior side setback of thirty feet (30') shall
be required. Building height shall not exceed thirty five feet (35'), or requirements
contained within the city airport master plan, whichever is the most restrictive. The gross
area proposed for the townhouse development is 8.71 acres. It appears the proposed
setbacks are meeting the code requirements and the Development Agreement as recorded
with the Elko County Recorder's Office as File 666547.

2. Section 3-2-9(3)(d) Multiple-family residential developments which contain five (5) or
more units located on a single lot or parcel; townhouse, condominium or attached housing
developments.

higher volume traffic corridors, and to promote a pattern of land use suitable for the
development of professional and business offices and limited service, retail and
commercial activities. The CT district is intended to protect established residential
neighborhoods from the type of land use associated with high levels of noise, illumination
and traffic that could be detrimental to the characteristics of the residential neighborhood.



Page 8 of8

11. The conditions from CUP 8-12 be included and adhered to as part of this CUP.

10. Setback from State Route 225 is to be 30 feet.

9. The common areas are to be maintained in an acceptable manner at all times.

8. The exterior of the building shall be compatible with surrounding areas. Stucco and rock
are to be incorporated into the exterior of the structures.

6. The sidewalk adjacent to State Route 225 shall be offset and approved by NDOT.

5. The NDOT right-of-way is to be landscaped. A landscape plan will be required for
submittal and approval. NDOT approval will be required. The landscape plan is to include
features which create a "front" for the development adjacent to the State Route 225.

4. Development of the property is to conform to the Commercial Transitional District and/or
requirements stipulated in the Development Agreement.

3. The applicant applies for and receives approval for Final Plat 2-18.

requirements imposed in connection with the permit have been satisfied, the conditional
use permit shall thereafter be transferable and shall run with the land, whereupon the
maintenance or special conditions imposed by the permit, as well as compliance with other
provisions of the zoning district, shall be the responsibility of the property owner.



CC:

Enclosures

S\i\~ ~cJvvj~
S heI~y-~ I~;Jeta
Planning Technician

Sincerely.

If you have any questions regarding this meeting. the information you received. or if you will not
be able to attend this meeting. please call me at your earliest convenience at (775) 777-7160.

The Planning Commission requests that you. or a duly appointed representative. he in attendance
at this meeting to address the Planning Commission, If you will not he able to attend the meeting
hut wish to have a representative present. please submit a letter to the Planning Commission
authorizing this person to represent you at the meeting.

Enclosed is a copy of the agenda for an upcoming Planning Commission meeting. Highlighted
on the agenda is an item or items that you have requested to be acted on at the meeting. Also
enclosed is pertinent information pertaining to your request. Please review this information
before the meeting,

Dear Applicant-Agent:

Re: Conditional Use Permit No. 1-18 and Final Plat No, 2-18

Autumn Colors. LLC
780 W. Silver Street
Elko. NV 8980 I

January 3O. 2018

Fax (775) 777-71191751 College Avenue . Elko, Nevada 89801 . (775) 777-7160

ttebsite: \\\\\\ .cikocity.com
EIII a if.' rlunn in g ti C i elk () n \ ,u-,

CITY OF ELKO
Planning Department



00 00
\.0 \.0
00 00o 0
f-> f->

00 00 00
\.0 \.0 \.0
00 00 00o 0 N
f-> f-> N
W ~
00 W
N 00o -.....J

00 00 00 00 00
\.0 \.0 \.0 \.0 \.0
00 00 00 00 00o 0 000
f-> f-> f-> f-> f->
~ ~ ~
00 00 00
000
VI -.....J~

00 00 00
\.0 \.0 \.0
00 00 00
000
f-> f-> f->

00 00 00 00 00 "'0
\.0 \.0 \.0 \.0 \.0 N
gg s gg s gg "'0
f-> f-> f-> f-> f->
W W W W W
00 00 00 00 00
N N N N No 0 000

00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00
\.0 \.0 \.0 \.0 \.0 \.0 \.0 \.0 \.0 \.0 \.0
00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00
00000000000
f-> f-> f-> f-> f-> f-> f-> f-> f-> f-> f->
~ ~~W~W~ ~~
00 OOOOOOOO~OO 0000o OONOOO 00
VI VlVlOVlf->-.....J U"IU"I

00 00 00 00
\.0 \.0 \.0 \.0
00 00 00 00
000 0
f-> f-> f-> f->

~
00o~

m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m n m m m m m m m "'0
r r r r r r r- r r r r r r r r r r r r r r r r r r » r r r r r r- r 7
A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A AA A A A A A A A:::o A A A A A A A ~
OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOCOOOOOOOQ
Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Vl
< < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < Z < < < < < < < -f

<

""0»
Z

, ,
i

n»
=i
r--<
Z

:r: :r:
m m
:::0 Z
Z 0» :::0
Z no A
m ,Vl
!'I
'- G)o :::0
:::0 »
G) m
m ~
QO m
n

Z -I
~ :::0» m
r- -f
m »

r

o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -<o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 "'0
f-> f-> f-> f-> f-> I-.lo f-> f-> I-.lo f-> f-> f-> I-.lo I-.lo f-> f-> I-.lo I-.lo I-.lo f-> f-> f-> f-> f-> f-> f-> f-> I-.lo f-> f-> f-> f-> I-.lo Z
8888888888888888888888888888888880
" " " " " " " " " " " " " " " " " " " " " " " " " " " " " " " " "W N N N N N N N NNW W W NNW N NNW N W N N N N N N N N N N No W W W ~ U"I f-> ~ U"I 0 ~ 0 f-> U"I ~ 0 f-> WOO W f-> 0 f-> f-> ~ f-> 0 ~ ~ W en W
-.....JU"I \.0 -.....JU"I ~ N en 0 -.....JVI ~ ~ N \.0 00 0 ~ 00 f-> I-.lo N \.0 -.....J~ ~ en en -.....Jf-> 00 f-> N



mmmmmmmmmmnmmmmmmmm<
r- r- r- r- r- r- r- r- r- r- 0 r- r- r- r- r- r- r- r- <
A A A A A A A A A A --;A A A A A A A A Z
OOOOOOOOOO»OOOOOOOOZ
ZZZZZZZZZZ:::!ZZZZZZZZm
< < < < < < < < < < n < < < < < < < < ~

» C
nn»
Z<

00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 1..0 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00
1..0 1..0 1..0 1..0 1..0 1..0 1..0 1..0 1..0 1..0 1..0 1..0 +::> 1..0 1..0 1..0 1..0 1..0 1..0 1..0 1..0 1..0 1..0 1..0 1..0 1..0 1..0 1..0 1..0 1..0 1..0
00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 1..0 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 +::> 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00
WWOOOOOOOOOOWOOOOOOOO+::>OOOOOOO~O
+::> +::> ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ W ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ In ~ W ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ In ~
u,u,~ .i::..i::..i::. ~ .i::. 6~ N .i::.~U,WOO~6 ~~W u,u,
""-J""-Joo O"I~~ 00 ""-J 0"100 -.....J ""-Jooln""-JNoo+::> 000000 Wln
000 1..00000 0 W lnO +::> WOOlnNON OON N~
NW+::> N+::>+::> ""-J ""-J ~""-J In ""-J""-J000"l+::>0"I0"I lnlnO O""-J

mmmmmmmVlm
r- r- r- r- r- r- r- -0 r
A A A A A A A :::0 A
OOOOOOOZO
Z Z Z Z Z Z Z ~ Z
< < < < < < < n <

:::0m
m
A
Z
<

Is
-<

:::0 :::0o 0
C C
Z Z
~ ~
+::> +::>

W W W
""-J 00 ""-J
1..0 0 1..0
In N ~
» OJ »
C 0 C
--; C --;
C r- C
~ 0 ~
Z ~ Z
n n no :::0 0
r- A r-o 0
:::0 :::0
VI VI
o 0
:::0 :::0

W W
""-J ""-J
W W
""-J W
» »
C C--; --;
C C
~ ~
Z Z

-0 W
o j
OJ 1..0o OJ
X 0
;e ~
0'1 0

m
:::0
n
:::0
Ar-o

:::0
VI
o
:::0

W W
""-J ""-J
W ""-J
W 00
OJ »o cc --;
r- C
~ ~
:::0 Z
n n
:::0 0
A r-o

:::0
VI
o
:::0

--; --;
:::0 :::0

--; --;
C C
VI VIn n» »
:::0 :::0o 0
:::0 :::0» »
Z Z< <

I In n
W W
N N
OJ OJo 0x x
~ N
00 +::>o 0



ELKO CITY PLANNING COMMISSION

Additional information concerning this item may be
obtained by contacting the Elko City Planning
Department at (775) 777-7160.

Conditional Use Permit No. 1-18,filed by
Autumn Colors, LLC which would allow for
the development of duplex townhomes within
a CT (Commercial Transitional) Zoning
District, and matters related thereto. The
subject property is located generally on the
northeast corner of the intersection of Cattle
Drive and Mountain City Highway. (APN
001-01F-316)

The specific item to be considered under public hearing
format is:

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Elko City
Planning Commission will conduct a series of public
hearings on Tuesday, February 6, 2018 beginning at
5:30 P.M. P.S,T. at Elko City Hall, 17~1 College
Avenue, Elko, Nevada, and that the public is invited to
provide input and testimony on thesematters under
consideration' in person, by writing: or by:
representati ve.

'iOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARINGS



Page 1JAN \)2 2018Revised 12/04/15

~Y7"C'i :·y-.r:TEDL'.J~.: " ,;,~_'..I.t:._, _J

Other Information: The applicant is encouraged to submit other information and
documentation to support this conditional use permit application.

Note: One .pdf of the entire application must be submitted as well as one set of legible,
reproducible plans 8 %" x 11" in size. If the applicant feels the Commission needs to see 24" x
36" plans, 10 sets of pre-folded plans must be submitted.

Elevation Plan: Elevation profiles including architectural finishes of all proposed structures or
alterations in sufficient detail to explain the nature of the request.

Plot Plan: A plot plan provided by a properly licensed surveyor depicting the proposed
conditional use permit site drawn to scale showing property lines, existing and proposed
buildings, building setbacks, distances between buildings, parking and loading areas, driveways
and other pertinent information that shows the use will be compliant with Elko City Code.

Fee: A $750.00 non-refundable fee.

Complete Application Form: In order to begin processing the application, an application form
must be complete and signed. Complete applications are due at least 21 days prior to the next
scheduled meeting of the Elko City Planning Commission (meetings are the 1st Tuesday of
every month).

FILING REQUIREMENTS

APPLICANT(s):AUTUMN COLORSLLC
(Applicant must be the owner or lessee of the proposed structure or use.)

MAILING ADDRESS:_78_0_W_S_I_LV_E_R_S_T _
PHONE NO. (Home)7753853659 (Business)_77_5_-7_77_-7_7_73 _
NAME OF PROPERTY OWNER (If different): _

(Property owner's consent in writing must be provided.)
MAILING ADDRESS: _
LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND LOCATION OF PROPERTY INVOLVED (Attach if necessary):
ASSESSOR'S PARCEL NO.:00101F316 Address 3800MOUNTAINCITYHWY
Lot(s), Block(s), ~Subdivision _S_EC_7_~_P_3_4_N_R_G_E_55_E_M_D_B_&M ~
Or Parcel(s) ~ File No. _00_1_01_F_31_6 _

APPLICATION FOR CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPROVAL

1751 College Avenue * Elko * Nevada * 89801
(775) 777-7160 phone * (775) 777-7119 fax

CITY OF ELKO PLANNING DEPARTMENT



Page 2Revised 12/04/15

6. Describe the general suitability and adequacy of the property to accommodate the
proposed use: PREVIOUSLYAPPROVEDANDCONSISTENTWITH SAMEUSEANDMAINTAINSSAME
FINDINGSOF PREVIOUSAPPROVAL

5. Describe any unique features or characteristics, e.g. lot configuration, storm drainage, soil
conditions, erosion susceptibility, or general topography, which may affect the use of the
property:_N_O_N_E~~~~ __ ~ ~~ __ ~ ~ ~~~ ___

4. Explain how the use relates with other properties and uses in the immediate area: __
EXACTFLOORPLANAND EXTERIORUSESANDTEXTURESORIENTEDIN SAMEMANNERJUST4 FEWER
UNITS

3. Explain in detail the type and nature of the use proposed on the property: _
PREVIOUSLYAPPROVEDTMWAS FORTOWNHOMESANDTHISAPPLICATIONMAINTAINSTHE SAMEUSE
JUST FOURFEWERUNITSAND CONFIGUREDWITHA SPACEBETWEENTHE TOWNHOMESNOOTHER
CHANGESARE PROPOSED

INQUESTIONIS CT REQUIRINGCUP FORDEVELOPMENTOFMF

2. Cite the provision of the Zoning Ordinance for which the Conditional Use Permit is required:
PREVIOUS TM APPROVED AND SLIGHTLY MODIFIED WITH THIS APPLICATION PREVIOUS ZONING FOR THE AREA

.,»:
1. Current zoning of the property:~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~



(Use additional pages if necessary to address questions 3 through 12)

12. Identify any accessory buildings or structures associated with the proposed use on the
property: NONE AS REGULATED BY THE CCRS OF THE HOA

11. Identify any outside storage of goods, materials or equipment on the property: NONE AS
REGULATED BY THE CCRS OF THE HOA

Page 3Revised 12/04/15

10. Describe the type, dimensions and characteristics of any sign(s) being proposed: NONE

9. Describe the means and adequacy of off-street parking, loading and unloading provided on
the property: TWO OFF STREET PARKING STALLS WILL BE PROVIDED WITHIN THE GARAGES OF EACH
OF THE TOWNHOUSES IN ADDITION TO A 20' CONCRETE DRIVEWAY AND A PRIVATE 24' ACCESS DRIVEWAY

8. Describe the amounts and type of traffic likely to be generated by the proposed use: _
LESS TRAFFIC AS THERE WILL BE FEWER UNITS

7. Describe in detail the proposed development in terms of grading, excavation, terracing,
drainage, etc.: NO MODIFICATIONS TO GRADING, EXCAVATION OR DRAINAGE ARE PROPOSED WITH
THESE CHANGES



FOR OFFICE USE ONLY

File No.: ), IS Date Filed: \ 121,y} Fee Paid:\~ 3;); CV~ 21oJ1 b

- -'\

City, State, Zip Code

Phone Number: 775-385-3659
E ·1 dd JBAILEYPE@GMAIL.COMmal a ress: __

ELKO, NV, 89801

Applicant! Agent JON 0 BAILEY
(Please print or type)

MailingAddress 780 W SILVER ST
Street Address or P.O. Box

Page 4Revised 12/04/15

By My Signature below:

I.; I I consent to having the City of Elko Staff enter on my property for the sole purpose of
inspection of said property as part of this application process.

D I object to having the City of Elko Staff enter onto my property as a part of their review of
this application. (Your objection will not affect the recommendation made by the staff or the final determination
made by the City Planning Commission or the City Council.)

D I acknowledge that submission of this application does not imply approval of this request by
the City Planning Department, the City Planning Commission and the City Council, nor does it in
and of itself guarantee issuance of any other required permits and/or licenses.

D I acknowledge that this application may be tabled until a later meeting if either I or my
designated representative or agent is not present at the meeting for which this application is
scheduled.

D I have carefully read and completed all questions contained within this application to the
best of my ability.



2) The permit shall be personal to the pennittee and applicable only to the specific
use and to the specific property for which it is issued. However, the Planning

1) The permit is granted to the applicant, Bailey and Associates.

2. The 21 conditions in the Development Department's memo dated May 29, 2012, with a
change to condition number 7, listed as follows:

3) The applicants shall file a parcel map application and record such map, to separate
the property from the adjoining portion of the development within 12months of
the approval.

2) The Conditional Use Permit will expire ifnot activated within one (1) year of the
date of approval.

1. Conditions 1-3 in the Planning Department's memo dated May 26, 2012, listed as
follows:

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission, upon review and consideration of the application,
supporting data, public input and testimony, Conditionally approve Conditional Use Permit No.
8-12 subject to the following conditions:

The subject property is located generally on the northwest comer of Mountain City Highway
and Sagecrest Drive (APN OOI-01A-018).

Conditional Use Permit No. 8-12, filed by Bailey & Associates with authorization from
Willow Glen Investment Group, LLC, for the development of a multiple family residential
complex consisting of 96 units on approximately 8.71 acres of property within a CT
(Commercial Transitional) Zoning District, and matters related thereto.

WHEREAS, the following item was reviewed and considered by the Elko City Planning
Commission on June 5, 2012, under Public Hearing format, in accordance with notification
requirements contained in Section 3-2-18(F) of the City Code:

1) That Conditional Use Permit No. 8-12 is approved for the development of a multi
family housing complex in accordance with the submitted site plan labeled
Exhibit "A".

1751 College Avenue· Elko, Nevada 89801 · (775) 777-7160 . Fax (775) 777-7119

CITY OF ELKO
PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION REPORT

Regular Meeting of June 5, 2012

Website: www.elkocity.corn
Email: planning~ci.elko.nv.u~

CITY OF ELKO
Planning Department

/~ ~ ,r \!
( )/\J L f'
!,.--",' (r·-·.-./~'~.I

. \ Y"'-.,
, / 1 'I '\."./.. ,



15)The proposed park is to be fenced preventing access directly to State Route 225.
The park is to include community amenities such as a tot lot.

14)The exterior of the building shall be compatible with surrounding areas. Stucco
and rock are to be incorporated into the exterior of the structures.

13)Hydrology study and approval from NDOT.

12)Traffic study and approval from NDOT.

11)A Development Agreement is required prior to or in conjunction with Final Plat
submittal.

9) The sidewalk adjacent to State Route 225 shall be offset and approved by NDOT.

10)The Master Plan is amended. The Development Department supports the
proposed land use in this area. Commercial Transitional or High Density land use
adjacent to the State Route 225 is appropriate. Transitioning from more intense
land use to a lesser intense land use appears appropriate at this location.

8) The NDOT right-of-way is to be landscaped. A landscape plan will be required
for submittal and approval. NDOT approval will be required. The landscape plan
is to include features which created a "front" for the development adjacent to the
State Route 225.

7) Development of the property is to conform to the Commercial Transitional
District and/or requirements stipulated in the Development Agreement.

6) The applicant applies for and receives Final Plat approval.

5) Preliminary Plat 5-12 is approved.

4) Rezone application 7-12 is approved.

3) The conditional use permit shall automatically lapse and be of no effect one year
from the date of its issue unless the permit holder is actively engaged in
developing the specific property to the use for which the permit was issued.

Commission may approve the transfer of the conditional use permit to another
owner. Upon issuance of an occupancy permit for the conditional use, signifying
that all zoning and site development requirements imposed in connection with the
permit have been satisfied, the conditional use permit shall thereafter be
transferable and shall run with the land, whereupon the maintenance or special
conditions imposed by the permit, as well as compliance with other provisions of
the zoning district, shall be the responsibility of the property owner.



5) Fire apparatus access roads shall meet the requirements of the 2009 International
Fire Code chapter 5, and Elko Fire Department requirements for turning radius,
approach and departure angles, and grade.

4) Dead end access roads shall have an approved method for turning around a fire
apparatus in compliance with the 2009 International Fire Code chapter 5, section
503.2.4, 503.2.5 and appendix D.

3) Fire Department access shall meet the minimum dimensions as listed in the 2009
IFC section 503.2.1

2) Additional access is required to meet the requirements of the 2009 IFC Chapter 5
for this complex.

1) All buildings shall comply with the 2009 International Fire Code chapter 5 section
503.1.1and shall extend to within 150 ft. of all portions of the building(s).

4) A traffic study will need to be completed for the proposed subdivision as stated in
the application.

4. The conditions in the Fire Department's memo dated May 30, 2012, listed as follows:

3) A soils report will be required to be submitted with the civil improvement plans.

2) A hydrology report will be required to be submitted with the civil improvements
plans.

1) The common area is to be landscaped with a combination of trees and shrubs and
shall be maintained by the property owner, landscaping shall be installed so as to
not obstruct the view of oncoming traffic at the intersections.

3. The conditions in the Engineering Department's memo dated May 29, 2012, listed as
follows:

21) Address the Engineering Department's memo dated May 29, 2012.

20) The CC&R's are to require the same type of fencing for all the townhome units.

19) If applicable, the CC&R's are to reference the development agreement.

18) Setback from State Route 225 is to be 30 feet.

17)The common areas are to be maintained in an acceptable manner at all times.

16)The park is to be developed with the Phase I development.



CC: Applicant
Scott Wilkinson, Development Manager
Ted Schnoor, Building Official
Josh Carson, Fire Marshal
Jeremy Draper, Civil Engineer
Shanell Owen, City Clerk
Delmo Andreozzi, Assistant City Manager

~~
Rebecca Hansen, Planning Clerk

Attest:

b'teg Evangelatos, City Planner

11) Fire Department access, method of turn around, and required fire flow shall be
met and maintained as required by the 2009 IFC, for phased projects. A phased
development plan shall be provided and approved by the fire department.

10)Fire flow shall be determined by the Elko Fire Department and listed on
submitted plans.

The applicant is advised of the right to appeal this decision to the City Council within 10
days of the date of approval.

9) One- or two family residential developments shall comply with the 2009 IFC
appendix 0 107.

8) Projects that exceed 100 or 200 dwelling units shall comply with a the appropriate
section of the 2009 International Fire Code Appendix D sections D106.1 and
DI06.2

7) Signage shall be provided in compliance with the 2009 IFC appendix D 103.6
Building signage shall be provided and meet the requirements of the Elko Fire
Department and the 2009 IFC.

6) Fire department access roads shall comply with the 2009 International Fire Code
sections 503.2.1 and Appendix D section DI0S.1 through 0105.3 for buildings in
excess of thirty feet in height.



A

U

T

U

M

N

 

C

O

L

O

R

S

 

D

R

I

V

E

B

O

U

L

D

E

R

 

C

R

E

E

K

C
A

T
T

L
E

 
D

R
I
V

E

S
A

G
E

C
R

E
S

T
 
D

R
I
V

E

B

O

U

L

D

E

R

 

C

R

E

E

K

S

N

O

W

Y

 

R

I

V

E

R

A

U

T

U

M

N

 
C

O

L

O

R

S

B
O

U
L
D

E
R

 C
R

E
E

K

AUTUMN HILLS

A

U

T

U

M

N

 

C

O

L

O

R

S

A

U

T

U

M

N

 

C

O

L

O

R

S

D
E

S
I
G

N
 
B

Y
:

SHEET

1
OF

SHEET TITLE

D
R

A
W

N
 
B

Y
:

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 
B

Y
:

D
A

T
E

:

J
O

B
 
N

O
:

S
C

A
L

E
:

J
P

R
S

? ? ?

A
S

 
N

O
T

E
D

R
e

v
i
s
i
o

n
s

N
u

m
b

e
r

D
a

t
e

 
&

 
D

e
s
c
r
i
p

t
i
o

n

-

PLLC

P.E. NV# 17979

780 W. Silver #104 Elko, NV

(775)385-3659

JON D. BAILEY

registration

- - -

1

DETAILS

A
U

T
U

M
N

 
C

O
L

O
R

S
 
P

H
A

S
E

 
5

3
8

0
0

 
M

O
U

N
T

A
I
N

 
C

I
T

Y
 
H

I
G

H
W

A
Y

E
L

K
O

,
 
N

V
 
8

9
8

0
1

PHASE ONE

PHASE TWO

PHASE FIVE

PARK

REVISED CUP AUTUMN COLORS



N8RD
CORPORATION

issue date

these plans, drawings and specifications are and
shall remain the sole property of the registered

design professional, and shall be validated only by
the registrants wet seal only for the intended use

of filing with the public authority having
jurisdiction.  use and reproduction of these plans,

drawings and specifications shall only be
authorized by the design professional. copies of
the drawings and specifications retained by the
client may be utilized only for their use and for

occupying the project for which they were
prepared, and not for the construction of any

other project as per nac 623.780 and only with
written authorization from the design professional.
plans are not valid without wet seal.  these plans

shall not be reproduced in any way without the
consent of the design professional.

576 Spring Valley Court
Unit 8443

Spring Creek Nevada 89815

DUPLEX MODEL
STOCK PLAN
CITY OF ELKO

NEVADA

TITLE SHEET

A0
12/29/17

Duplex Model

DESIGN  PROFESSIONAL  NOTES
1.  these drawings have been prepared to indicate the location,
nature and extent of a proposed work of improvement, and to show
that the work of improvement will conform to the provisions of the
adopted codes, ordinances and regulations of the authority having
jurisdiction within which the proposed work shall be performed.
2.  references shall be from the adopted international residential
code or as noted by specificity within drawings.
3.  drawings represent a proposed work of improvement.  the as−built
work of improvement might vary from drawings.  design professional
not responsible for the construction of the work of improvement.
drawings are not indicating methods of construction. the builder
shall provide all measure necessary to protect the work during
construction; such measures shall include, but not be limited to:
bracing, shoring for loads due to construction equipment, etc.
construction materials shall be spread out if placed on floor or
roof.  loads shall not exceed the design live load per square foot.
provide adequate shoring and/or bracing where structure has not
attained final prescriptive design strength.
4.  all work shall conform to the minimum standards of the adopted
codes.  r105.8  responsibility.  it shall be the duty of every person
who performs work for the installation or repair of building,
structure, electrical, gas, mechanical or plumbing systems for which
the adopted codes are applicable, to comply with the adopted codes.
5.  square footages as shown on drawings are calculated using
international residential code and ansi z765 standards and are
based on plan dimensions only and may vary from the actual square
footages of the work as built.
6.  these drawings shall be final, for ahj approval, when stamped,
signed and dated; all other versions shall be considered preliminary
and/or not for construction.
7.  drawings represent interior finishes for reference only.  verify
all interior finishes with others, including, but not limited to:
flooring, cabinetry, shelving, etc.
8.  all specified hardware shall be simpson strong−tie or equivalent
or better.
9.  all structural composite lumber shall be trusjoist by
weyerhauser or equivalent or better.
10.  builder shall verify all dimensions prior to starting
construction.  design professional shall be notified of any
discrepancies or inconsistencies.
11.  dimensions shall take precendence over scale shown on drawings.
12.  notes and details on drawings shall take precedence over
general notes and typical details.
13.  all installed manufactured products shall be installed per
manufacturer’s instructions and specifications.  any such
documentation shall be provided by the installer.  r106.1.2
manufacturer’s installation instructions, as required by code, shall
be available on the job site at the time of inspection.
14.  design professional not responsible for site conditions, and
shall make no determinations for any such provisions that regulate
the strength of soils, water table and/or flood hazards, etc. and
shall provide only for such design as required and determined by the
authority having jurisdiction, as can be provided for and performed
prescriptively.
15.  builder to field verify site conditions and utilities.  all utility
connections shall be designed and/or provided by others and shall be
in accordance with all jurisdiction requirements.  r111.1 connection of
service utilities.  no person shall make connections from a utility,
source of energy, fuel or power to building or system that is
regulated by this code for which a permit is required, until approved
by the building oficial.
16.  the main force resisting construction system used shall be
platform light frame construction r301.1.2, the structural elements
of which where exceeding the limits of r301, or otherwise not
conforming to the code, shall be designed in accordance with
accepted engineering practice.
17.  all appliance and fixture locations for reference only, field
verify locations.

BUILDING DESIGN  CRITERIA
authority having jurisdiction (ahj):
occupancy group:
type of construction:
allowable height:
number of stories:
elevation:
frost depth:
seismic design category:
ground snow load Pg:
roof dl:
floor ll:
floor dl:
basic wind speed:
adopted codes:

city of elko
r−3 (duplex dwelling)/ u−1 (attached garage)

v−b
35’

1 story
<6000’

30" below finish grade
d1

32 psf
15 psf
40 psf
22 psf

risk category ii, 90 mph (3−sec gust), exposure c
2009 international building code with appendices c, e, f, g,

h, i and j and necessary administrative provisions
2009 international residential code with the exception of
chapters 11−42 but with  appendices h, and k and necessary

administrative provisions
2009 uniform mechanical code with appendices a, b, c, and d

and necessary administrative provisions
2009 uniform plumbing code with appendices a, b, d, e, i, l

and necessary administrative provisions
2009 international fire code and necessary administrative

provisions
2008 national electrical code and necessary administrative

provisions
2009 international energy conservation code and necessary

administrative provisions
city of elko amendments

A0
A1

A1.1
A2
A3
S1
S2
S3
D1
D2
D3
E1
M1
P1

TITLE SHEET
1st FLOOR PLAN
2nd FLOOR PLAN
EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
BUILDING SECTIONS
FOUNDATION PLAN
SECOND FLOOR FRAMING
ROOF FRAMING PLAN
DETAILS
DETAILS
DETAILS
ELECTRICAL PLAN
MECHANICAL PLAN
PLUMBING PLAN

SHEET  INDEX

BUILDING AREAS
unit 2 garage 475 SF

unit 2 2nd floor 838 SF

unit 2 1st floor 564 SF

unit 1 garage 475 SF

unit 1 2nd floor 838 SF

unit 1 1st floor 564 SF

covered porch 116 SF

rendering shown does not represent
actual permitted building

revision schedule

no. date description



WH WH

D
W

REF.

D
W

REF.

UP UP

1
A3

2
A3

provide 5/8" type ’x’
gypsum board at garage

ceiling and walls

20−min.
fire−rated

door

c/space
access

16070
os

16070
os

3068 3068

3068 30684068 4068

2668 2668
2068 2068

2668 2668

3050
sh

3050
sh

3050
sh

3050
sh

3050
sh

3050
sh

3050
sh

3050
sh

3050
sh

3050
sh

51’−9"

4
4
’−
0
"

51’−9"

4
4
’−
0
"

4
’−
0
"

2
0
’−
0
"

2
0
’−
0
"

4
’−
0
"

2
0
’−
0
"

2
0
’−
0
"

3’−0" 45’−9" 3’−0"

3’−6" 16’−0" 3’−4 1/2" 3’−4 1/2" 16’−0" 3’−6"

10’−0" 31’−9" 10’−0"

2050
sh

2050
sh

2
’−
6
"

3
’−
6
"

3
’−
6
"

2
’−
4
 1
/2

"
8
’−
1 
1/
2
"

2’−6" 3’−6" 4’−0" 2’−10" 2’−0" 3’−0" 7’−11 1/2" 2" 7’−11 1/2" 3’−0" 2’−0" 2’−10" 4’−0" 3’−6" 2’−6"

2’−1" 2’−1"

2
’−
6
"

3
’−
6
"

3
’−
6
"

2
’−
4
 1
/2

"
8
’−
1 
1/
2
"

10’−1 1/2" 3’−9" 4’−1" 4’−10" 2" 4’−10" 4’−1" 3’−9" 10’−1 1/2"

3
’−
9
 1
/2

"

3
’−
9
 1
/2

"

3
’−
10

"
4
’−
3
 1
/2

"

3
’−
10

"
4
’−
3
 1
/2

"

provide 5/8" type ’x’
gypsum board at garage

ceiling and walls

20−min.
fire−rated

door

c/space
access

427 SF

2-Car Garage
427 SF

2-Car Garage

161 SF

Living
161 SF

Living

204 SF

Kitchen
204 SF

Kitchen

121 SF

Dining
122 SF

Dining

N8RD
CORPORATION

issue date

these plans, drawings and specifications are and
shall remain the sole property of the registered

design professional, and shall be validated only by
the registrants wet seal only for the intended use

of filing with the public authority having
jurisdiction.  use and reproduction of these plans,

drawings and specifications shall only be
authorized by the design professional. copies of
the drawings and specifications retained by the
client may be utilized only for their use and for

occupying the project for which they were
prepared, and not for the construction of any

other project as per nac 623.780 and only with
written authorization from the design professional.
plans are not valid without wet seal.  these plans

shall not be reproduced in any way without the
consent of the design professional.

576 Spring Valley Court
Unit 8443

Spring Creek Nevada 89815

DUPLEX MODEL
STOCK PLAN
CITY OF ELKO

NEVADA

1st FLOOR PLAN

A1
12/29/17

 1/4" = 1'-0"

1st Floor Plan
1

revision schedule

no. date description



DN DN

D
W

D
W

1
A3

2
A3

2668

2668 2668

26682668

2668 2668

2668

26682668

24682468

2468 2468 24682468

4068
dbl

4068
dbl

5068
sl cl

5068
sl cl

5068
sl cl

5068
sl cl

201 SF

Bedroom 1

86 SF

Hall

96 SF

Bedroom 2

111 SF

Bedroom 3

39 SF

Bath 2

25 SF

Closet

58 SF

Bath 1

201 SF

Bedroom 1

86 SF

Hall

96 SF

Bedroom 2

111 SF

Bedroom 3

39 SF

Bath 2

25 SF

Closet

58 SF

Bath 1

3040
fx

3040
fx

3040
fx

3040
fx

4040
fx

3040
fx

3040
fx

3040
fx

3040
fx

4040
fx

6040
sl

6040
sl

5040
sl

5040
sl

5040
sl

5040
sl

5040
sl

5040
sl

attic
access

32x60
tub/

shower

li
ne

n

attic
access

32x60
tub/

shower

li
ne

n

li
ne

n

li
ne

n
32x60
tub/

shower

32x60
tub/

shower

51’−9"

51’−9"

4
4
’−
0
"

4
4
’−
0
"

10’−0" 31’−9" 10’−0"

8
’−
0
"

12
’−
0
"

2
0
’−
0
"

4
’−
0
"

8
’−
0
"

12
’−
0
"

2
0
’−
0
"

4
’−
0
"

3’−0" 10’−0" 25’−9" 10’−0" 3’−0"

5
’−
1 
1/
2
"

4
’−
8
"

2
’−
2
 1
/2

"
4
’−
3
"

13
’−
3
"

2
’−
6
"

1’
−1
0
"

2
’−
2
"

3
’−
10

"
7
’−
0
"

1’
−1
1 
1/
2
"

3
’−
0
 1
/2

"
5
’−
9
 1
/2

"
3
’−
7
"

3
’−
11
 1
/2

"
1’
−4

"
13

’−
6
"

3
’−
10

"
7
’−
0
"

1’
−1
1 
1/
2
"

3
’−
0
 1
/2

"
5
’−
9
 1
/2

"
3
’−
7
"

3
’−
11
 1
/2

"
1’
−4

"
13

’−
6
"

5’−2 1/2" 4’−9 1/2" 6’−5 1/2" 6’−4" 2" 6’−4" 6’−5 1/2" 4’−9 1/2" 5’−2 1/2"

5
’−
1 
1/
2
"

4
’−
8
"

2
’−
2
 1
/2

"
4
’−
3
"

13
’−
3
"

2
’−
6
"

1’
−9

 1
/2

"
2
’−
2
 1
/2

"

2’−10" 5’−9 1/2" 5’−9 1/2" 2’−10"

5
’−
0
"

5
’−
0
"

5
’−
0
"

5
’−
0
"

2’−8" 2’−8"

8’−7 1/2" 8’−7 1/2"

2’−6" 3’−6" 4’−0" 4’−5 1/2" 23’−0 1/4" 4’−3 1/2" 4’−0" 3’−6" 2’−6"

open to
below

open to
below

N8RD
CORPORATION

issue date

these plans, drawings and specifications are and
shall remain the sole property of the registered

design professional, and shall be validated only by
the registrants wet seal only for the intended use

of filing with the public authority having
jurisdiction.  use and reproduction of these plans,

drawings and specifications shall only be
authorized by the design professional. copies of
the drawings and specifications retained by the
client may be utilized only for their use and for

occupying the project for which they were
prepared, and not for the construction of any

other project as per nac 623.780 and only with
written authorization from the design professional.
plans are not valid without wet seal.  these plans

shall not be reproduced in any way without the
consent of the design professional.

576 Spring Valley Court
Unit 8443

Spring Creek Nevada 89815

DUPLEX MODEL
STOCK PLAN
CITY OF ELKO

NEVADA

2nd FLOOR PLAN

A1.1
12/29/17

revision schedule

no. date description

 1/4" = 1'-0"

2nd Floor Plan
1



1st floor
0"

2nd floor top plate
19’ − 0"

ridge height
27’ − 0"

1st floor top plate
9’ − 0"

2nd floor
10’ − 0"

N8RD
CORPORATION

issue date

these plans, drawings and specifications are and
shall remain the sole property of the registered

design professional, and shall be validated only by
the registrants wet seal only for the intended use

of filing with the public authority having
jurisdiction.  use and reproduction of these plans,

drawings and specifications shall only be
authorized by the design professional. copies of
the drawings and specifications retained by the
client may be utilized only for their use and for

occupying the project for which they were
prepared, and not for the construction of any

other project as per nac 623.780 and only with
written authorization from the design professional.
plans are not valid without wet seal.  these plans

shall not be reproduced in any way without the
consent of the design professional.

576 Spring Valley Court
Unit 8443

Spring Creek Nevada 89815

DUPLEX MODEL
STOCK PLAN
CITY OF ELKO

NEVADA

ELEVATIONS

A2
12/29/17

 1/4" = 1'-0"

Right Elevation
3

 1/4" = 1'-0"

Rear Elevation
4

 1/4" = 1'-0"

Front Elevation
1

 1/4" = 1'-0"

Left Elevation
2

stucco finish

composition asphalt shingles

revision schedule

no. date description

roof pitch 6:12 typ.



,
Planning Commission Actioij' SheetCreated on 115/2018

11. Agenda Distribution:

9. Findings:

~ ~~-------~~~------------------------~~----------------------~

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner

7. ; Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, M~>pib from Development Manager,
Memo from.:City P1aJUlr '. .: ...., . . ·

8. Recommended Motion: Take no action on this agenda lterh, until-after initiation to
amend the Master Plan.

4. Time Required: 15Minutes

5. Background II\flimilillod This amendment, was ilritiated.by the Planning',,', r
'Commission January 4, 2018., I

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required

3. Agenda Category: PUBLIC HEARiNG~

Elko City Planning CommissionI Agendll Aetion Sheet

1. Review, consideration and possible recommendation to City Council for Rezone No.
1-18, filed by.The City of Elko, for a change in zoning-from R (Single Family and
Multiple Family.Residential) to ~QP (Public,.Qua~i Public), approximately 1.314
, acres of property, ,speCifiCallYAPN 001-200-002, .E'QRPOSSIBLE ACTION

2. Meeting Date:, F-ebruary 6, 2018

Agenda Item # I.A.5



Description prepared by:

The basisof bearings for this description is the map of the Smith's Addition to the City of Elko, recorded
in the office of the ElkoCounty Recorder as file no. 43255, on November 5, 1927.

This parcel contains a total of ±1.314 acres.

Thence, North 41°49'00" Eastalong said northwesterly right-of-way of CollegeAvenue, a distance of
202.00 feet more or less,to the point of beginning.

Thence, along a tangent circular curve to the left, with a radius of 14.70 feet, a central angle of
90°00'00", and an arc length of 23.09 feet, to a point along the northwesterly right-of-way of College
Avenue;

Thence, South 48°11'00" Eastalong said northeasterly right-of-way of VFWDrive, a distance of 235.30
feet;

Robert Thibault, PE,PLS
City of Elko
Civil Engineer

Thence along a tangent circular curve to the left, with a radius of 14.70 feet, a central angle of
90°00'00", and an arc length of 23.09 feet, to a point along the northeasterly right-of-way of VFWDrive;

Thence, South 14°49'00" West, a distance of 202.00 feet;

Thence, North 48°11'00" West, along the right-of-way of Golf CourseRoada distance of 264.70 feet;

Beginning at a point at the intersection of the northwesterly right-of-way of CollegeAvenue and the
southwesterly right-of-way of Golf CourseRoad,that bears North 1°18'56" East,a distance of 804.85
feet from the centerline monument at the intersection of Court Street and 13th Street as shown on the
map of the Smith's Addition to the City of Elko, recorded in the office of the ElkoCounty Recorder as file
no. 43255, on November 5, 1927;

A parcel within the southeast quarter of Section 10, and the southwest quarter of Section11, Township
34 North, Range55 East,M.D.B.&M., which is further described asfollows:

LEGAL DESCRIPTION TO ACCOMPANY A ZONE CHANGE



12/6/201
DATE

CHECKED BY
BT

DRAWN BY
BT

~Iln
~l{) I CX?co "<t
..- 0

~ICO
I
I
I
I
I
I

lENTERLINE
INTERSECTION OF
COURT STREET
AND 13TH STREET

A
I
N

T

120'60'

DISPLAY MAP FOR
ZONE CHANGE

APN : 00 1- 200 - 002

-ic SCALE* CIlY OF ELKO
1751 COLLEGEAVE "_

.oJ ELKO.NEVADA89801 HORZ~
~. 775-777-7210

VERT .N.ill:iE.

-23.09', R=14.70'
6=90'00'00"

AREA TO BE CHANGED
~ . FROM R TO PQP. ~
, "-----" 1.3 14 ACRES "-----" '

APN: 001-200-002

L=23.09', R=14.70'
6=90'00'00"

/
/
/
/
/
/
/
/

/
/

o



DATE
12/12/17

VERT OON£.. CHECKED BY
BT

DRAWN BY
BT

CITY OF ELKO
1751 COLLEGEAVE
EU<O. NEVADA89801
n5-7n-7210~.

SCALE
HORZ.L=..fiO

SITE PLAN FOR
ZONE CHANGE

APN: 001-200-002

I

o 80'40'
I

I

COLLEGE AVENUE

Ii • : .. .....; .....-, r...; ,',...-.:'.,,.'~ :': "..,-. """'"'

;0o»o

~-"''''''kll.lLlr.klc.lLklLlL'klLlL-'' ILtlLltlLkll.kkkt.1r.1L1l - .... -;-

: : : . : : : : : : : : . . . . . . . : : : : : : : : : : : : . . . . . : : : : : .~
• • • • •••••••• : : APN:·0'01"-200"00h ••••••• : : • • • • • • • • •

II. II. .. II. k It. k It k II. II. kCrT'r "F k ElK() k II. k k II. IL k ok k II. It It .. .. k

• • • • • • • • • • ~O~~~ F'OLI~E'OE~ARnA&N1 • • • • • • • • • • • • • • "Y
1t1L1l1L1I.tltt. ItlLlLtlLtlr.ktlLttkltkt tlLkll.ltklLlLlI.lI.kltlr.tlLlL

ilk-tILt .. IltlL ILkkll.lr.tltltlLtlLlL IttlLlLltlLkll.kll.tltktlLlLli....... ::: ::: .
. ~ • • • • • • " ..................:..............:: or.:. . . . . . . . : : . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . .. .. . . . .

k It. II. II. II. It t II. II. It II. III .. it II. II. IL It. k IlL II. IL II. II. It It .. II. II. II. t II. II. It II.

~ : : : : : : ~
•••••••• : : : : : : : : : '1-. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . .. . . . . . . .. . . . . .
• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • .. • • • • • • • • • : : : ...... • • • • .V'
tltttt .... IL .. "1L1L1r. ktt.t.lLlLkkttlttllkkll.k IlttlLkt.k............. ::::: :::: .
It It Ie. II. k t. It It II. II. It IL .. II. It It Ir. .. IL t .. It. IL t II. II. It t

~ •••••••••• ::::: ::: ••••••• v-

II.tltklLlr."tlLklL ttlLlLkt.lI.tlLlLttc.1L1L "kkk"lLk........... ::::::: ::::: .. . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . .. . . . . .. . . . : . . . . .
II.ktttttklLtkt.t tltktkkkll.lI.tkltlr. 1L1L1I.1I.1r.~~.. . . . . . . . . . . . : : : : : · · . . . . . . ... . . . : : : : : : ... . '..·.......--n

~ ... II. It II. II. II. It It It It It II. It. lit II. It Ie. k t k Ie. It. k IL II It III IlL 11. .. It. k It It II .. II.

' .. , . :.'. IlL It k k II. t k kit" II. .. II: II. It .. t t. .. II. II. k II. II. Ie. I&. II. II.
. ILklLlLlLlLkltt.kt II.ttlLlLt.tlLlr.lL

o
:;0

<
fT1

PROPERTYLlNE_/
18
c
.o
(J)
fT1

C)
o
I...,

u
.~ . r

16.5 FT TAlL
ACCESSORY BUILDING

976 SF

I- 24.9'-+---------.

APN: 001-200-004

rr===.=,~====M=E=D=IC=A_L~C=L~IN=I~C~~~~.

-- ---rI



,_.- .

(')
):>

mmm-o
~ ~ ~ ~
o 0 0 Q
Z Z Z tn
«<--f

.... -').._ ..- -

00000000 0000 U) 00 00 0000000000000000000000 000000U)U)U)U)U)U)OOU)U)U)U)U)U)U)U)U)U)U)~U)U)U)U)
00 00 00 00 00 00 0 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 V'1 U'1 00 00

'''":..OOOOOOJNOOOOOOOOOOO OOOO
t-> t-> t-> 'f t-> ~ 0'1 t-> t-> t-> ...... t-> t-> ...... ...... t-> t-> t-> OJ W t-> t->
WWWt->W6WWWWNWWWWWWWW~~W~
~~~N~0~~~~U)~~~~0~~ ...... OJWU'10
NNNmWO ...... t->ONO ...... t->OJOJOJt->OONN ...... N
........................ 0'1 WOO........ 0 ........00 U'1 0 00 ~ ~ 0 ~ ........~ 00 00 U'1 ......

\.

mmmmmmmmmmmVl:::o:::ommmmmmmm'-
~~~~~~~~~~~~ZZ~~~~~~~~~
OOOOOOOOOOO--fOOOOOOOOOO~
ZZZZZZZZZZZS;ZZZZZZZZZZO«««««<A«««««Z

m
n
=i
-<
C
--f

--f m
C 0
tn ~
~ 0
:::0 Zo 0
:::0 tn
):> ~
Z ):><

m m m m m
;- ;- ;- r+ ;--AAAAA"·00000
Z Z Z Z Z~.~< < < < <

t-> t-> t-> ......
........-.....J........-.....J
LI1 U'1 U'1 U'1
U'1 U'1 U'1 U'1
n n (')(')000 0
;- ;- ;- ;
;- ;- ;- ;
m m m m
G) G) G) G)
m m m m
):> ):> ):> ):>
< < < <m m m m

-0
~
l>o
o
t->

~ ):;nz zs
Z m
):> ;
"Tl m

m

CO CO
-< mm ):>
:::0 n
..tn I

):> -0
Z ):>
o Z
:::0 ):>
m ~o m
N
t:::!
:::0o
COm

!20~
;- ):>

~*':::0
~
Z
m
A

n
<,
o
~
~
z
n
~
-0):>
:::0
A

V'1 t->
~ U'1o t->
n U'1
o 0
C ):>
:::0 I
--f 0
tntn
--f --f

t - _~'-

t-> ...... t->
W OJ OJ
00U'1-.....J
........t-> LI1
n n n000
;- ;- ;
;- ;- ;
m m m
G) G) G)
m m m
l> ):> l>
< < <m m m

, f~..

n.......o
m):>
tn
;
m
<
~
nn
):>
;
m
OJ

!20
»
VI
VI

z
n

I Io (')
Z -0
m"::::::'
]>C--f
:::0 ):>
-< I
l> ;
Z ;-
n (')
!20

o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -<o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -0
t-> t-> t-> t-> t-> t-> t-> t-> t-> t-> t-> t-> t-> t-> t-> t-> t-> t-> t-> t-> t-> ...... t-> t-> t-> ...... ...... t-> ...... t-> ...... t-> ......z
~~~~~~tJ::tJ::tJ::tJ::~tJ::~~~~~tJ::~tJ::tJ::~~~~~~tJ::~~~tJ::~0
WWWONWNNNNWNNWWNNNOOOOOOOOOONWNNN
000000000000000000000000000000000
t-> t-> t-> 0 t-> 0 0 0 0 0 0 t-> 0 0 0 ......0 0 0 0 0 0 0 t-> ...... 0 t-> 0 0 0 0 ......0
LI1 0 ~ t-> t-> U) OJ ~ U) N 0'1 t-> en ~ ........0 .............. U'1 N W ~ t-> ........00 N ~ t-> U) LI1 00 0 U'1

~;-A~):;):;I
(,)OZZ(')nO
,...., -0,.... ..,... C
VJ ):> U I Z " Am I tntn(')
--f~,--f800I..I G) _-< Z Z Z

C CO -~:_;z~
-<m):;):>
); ~ ~ ~
-0 tn Z .~
m !20 *' ~~--f 0
~ m

Z



ELKO CITY PLANNING COMMISSION

Additional information concerning this item may be obtained by contacting the Elko City
Planning Department at (775) 777-7160.

The intent of the zone change is to allow for incorporation into the Elko City Parks.

Rezone No. 1-18~filed by The City of Elko for a change in zoning from R (Single Family
and Multiple Family Residential) to PQP (Public, Quasi Public), approximately 1.314
acres of property, specifically APN 001-200-002, located generally on the northwest
corner of the intersection of College Avenue and Golf Course Road, more particularly
described as: A parcel within the southeast quarter of Section 10, and southwest quarter
of Section 11, Township 34 North, Range 55 East, M.D.B.&M., which is further
described as follows:
Beginning at a point at the intersection of the northwesterly right-of-way of College
Avenue and the Southwesterly right-of-way of Gol f Course Road, that bears North
1018' 56" East, a distance of 804.85 feet from the centerline monument at the intersection
of Court Street and 13th Street as shown on the map of Smith's Addition to the City of
Elko, recorded in the office of the Elko County Recorder as file no. 43255, on November
5, 1927;
Thence, North 48°11 '00" West, along the right-of-way of Golf Course Road a distance of
264.70 feet;
Thence, South 14°49'00" West, a distance of202.00 feet;
Thence along a tangent circular curve to the left, with a radius of 14.70 feet, a central
angle of 90°00'00'" and an arc length of 23 .09 feet, to point along the northeasterly right
of-way of VFW Drive;
Thence, South 48° 11~'OO"East along said northeasterly right-of-way of VFW Drive, a
distance of235.30 feet;
Thence, along a tangent circular curve to the left, with a radius of 14.70 feet, a central
angle of 90°00'00", and an arc length of23.09 feet, to a point along the northwesterly
right-of-way of College Avenue;
Thence, North 41°49'00" East along said northwesterly right-of-way of College Avenue,
a distance of 202.00 feet more or less, to the point of beginning.
This parcel contains a total of ± 1.314 acres.
The basis of bearings for this description is the map of Smith's Addition to the city of
Elko, recorded in the office of the Elko County Recorder as file no. 43255, on November
5,1927.

The specific items to be considered under public hearing format are:

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Elko City Planning Commission will conduct a public
hearing on Tuesday, February 6, 2018 beginning at 5:30 P.M. P.S.T. at Elko City Hall, 1751
College Avenue, Elko, Nevada, and that the public is invited to provide input and testimony on
this matter under consideration in person, by writing, or by representative.

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING



Page 1Revised 12/04/15

Area Map: A map of the area proposed for this zone change must be provided.

Fee: A $300.00 non-refundable filing fee.

Complete Application Form: In order to begin processing the application, an application form
must be complete and signed. Complete applications are due at least 21 days prior to the next
scheduled meeting of the Elko City Planning Commission (meetings are the 1st Tuesday of
every month).

FILING REQUIREMENTS:

Plot Plan: A plot plan provided by a properly licensed surveyor depicting the existing condition
drawn to scale showing property lines, existing and proposed buildings, building setbacks,
distances between buildings, parking and loading areas, driveways and other pertinent
information must be provided.

Legal Description: A complete legal description of the boundary of the proposed zone change
must be provided as well as a map depicting the area to be changed stating the wording: area
to be changed from "x" to "x": (U to R, for example).

Note: One .pdf of the entire application must be submitted as well as one set of legible,
reproducible plans 8 ~" x 11" in size. If the applicant feels the Commission needs to see 24" x
36" plans, 10 sets of pre-folded plans must be submitted.

Other Information: The applicant is encouraged to submit other information and
documentation to support this Rezone Application.

APPLICANT(s): c,~~ (Ie f~0
MAILING ADDRESS:) n~)I Ccl \ f'b\ e A\)e
PHONE NO (Home) J (Busi ness )----&. ...........:.-"--___.,,_;...,;;;;;_.; _
NAME OF PROPERTY OWNER (If different):_~~~~,i.....;...._-=-~ _

(Property owner's consent in writing must be pro ided.)
MAILING ADDRESS: _
LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND LOCATION OF PROPERTY INVOLVED (Attach if necessary):
ASSESSOR'S PARCEL NO.: CCl, lQO - CCL Address :Y(J\ Cr,l\<?l\f A,)e.
Lot(s), Block(s), &Subdivision )
Or Parcel(s) & File No. _

APPLICATION FOR ZONE CHANGE

1751 College Avenue * Elko * Nevada * 89801
(775) 777-7160 phone * (775) 777-7119 fax

CITY OF ELKO PLANNING DEPARTMENT



Page 2Revised 12/04/15

(Use additional pages if necessary to address questions 3 through 5)

5. Identify any unique physical features or characteristics associated with the property: ~

4. Explain how the proposed zoning classification relates with other zoning classifications in the
ct 1 . (y

3. ::xp~ain in detail the tYP,eand nature of the us~ anticipate~ on the ~rop,~tly:_'-_·...Io..:n...l.).:....,,1 ~"..._) _yll 'ptYhj ,e l·-ir, tx IkYoYfX' ,-,,:\<,(\ 1vJ]r. '-H,II Cd) d ~~. 1111 1(';,

2. Jdentify the zoning Classification being proposed/requested: -PO\! 12\:i A IC I OVr,! .
~ 1,-· .

1. Identify th~ existing ~oning classification of the property: A . C2iYYjl f FL1t 1)1 I \.j Ch Jtl
J)l\.) I-\' . f- C1\\)\ \, 7l6ciEnj!G \ }



Page 3Revised 12/04/15

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY

- )h Date Filed: , 2 I )1 {I"} _Fee Paid: ~tJ~J"""'A-------File No.:

Email address:---------------

Phone Number:--------------

I City, State, Zip Code

~pPlicant/~gent~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
(plijise print or type)

m I acknowledge that submission of this application does not imply approval of this request by
the City Planning Department, the City Planning Commission and the City Council, nor does it in
and of itself guarantee issuance of any other required permits and/or licenses.

$- I acknowledge that this application may be tabled until a later meeting if either I or my
designated representative or agent is not present at the meeting for which this application is
scheduled.

iP I have carefully read and completed all questions contained within this application to the
best of my ability.

By My Signature below:

tP I consent to having the City of Elko Staff enter on my property for the sole purpose of
inspection of said property as part of this application process.

D I object to having the City of Elko Staff enter onto my property as a part of their review of
this application. (Your objection will not affect the recommendation made by the staff or the final determination
made by the City Planning Commission or the City Council.)



CC: Jeremy Draper, Development Manager (via email)
Shanell Owen, City Clerk

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission, upon review and consideration of the application and
supporting data, public input and testimony, initiate an amendment to the City of Elko district
boundaries, and direct staff to bring the item back as a public hearing.

Attest:

Initiate an amendment to the City of Elko district boundary, specifically APN 001-200-002,
removing the R (Single-Family Multi-Family Residential) Zoning District and replacing it
with the PQP (Public, Quasi-Public) Zoning District, and matters related thereto.

WHEREAS, the following item was reviewed and considered by the Elko City Planning
Commission on January 4, 2018 per City Code Sections 3-2-21 :

CITY OF ELKO
PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION REPORT

Special Meeting of January 4, 2018

1751 College Avenue . Elko, Nevada 89801 . (775) 777-7160 . Fax (775) 777-7219

Website: www.elkocity.com
Email: planning@e1kocitynv.gov

CITY OF ELKO
Planning Department



Planning Commission Action SheetCreated on 12115/2016

• The proposed rezone is consistent with City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan. The
proposed use of the property and allowed uses under the proposed district do not
present a hazard to City wells.

• The proposed zone district and repurposing the property and structure conforms
to the redevelopment plan.

• The proposed rezone is consistent with the Transportation component of the
Master Plan. The proposed zone district, intensity of use and limitations of
intensity of use will not create any significant cumulative issues on the existing
transportation system.

9. Findings:
• The proposed rezone does not appear to frustrate the Master Plan's goals and

policies of the Land Use Component. Strict conformance with the Master Plan
under section 3-2-21 is not required and the proposed zone district is consistent
with existing land uses in the immediate vicinity. Residential Office is not a
corresponding district of Downtown Mixed Use. The proposed zone district meets
several of the Objectives 2 and 4 of the Land Use Component of the Master Plan.

8. Recommended Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to adopt a
resolution which conditionally approves Rezone No. 2-18

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, Memo from Development Director,
Memo from City Planner

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required

5. Background Information: The applicant is requesting a rezone of the property to
allow for the property to be converted to an office, conditioned upon approval of a
Conditional Use Permit. Variance 1-18 application has also been filed with rezone
application for lot size, front lot width and interior side setback.

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes

3. Agenda Category: PUBLIC HEARINGS

2. Meeting Date: February 6, 2018

1. Review, consideration and possible action of Rezone No 2-18, filed by Jason Land on
behalf of Blaine Branscomb, for a change in zoning from R (Single Family and
Multiple Family Residential) to RO (Residential Office), approximately 0.086 acres
of property located generally on the south side of Court Street, approximately 50
feet east of 9th Street, FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Elko City Planning Commission
Agenda Action Sheet

Agenda Item # I.A.6.



Initial

City Manager: Date: ;lIt/! ~
Initial

Assistant City Manager: Date:

a ~ J)i '(SoflA-/:icl

**If additional space is needed please provide a separate memorandum**

Title: 1je?On e 2 - 1£
Applicant(s): =Sa Sr,n t) LC1h(i
Site Location: Cj Ie CCrt ;(1 ;:J± ~'fC -t - At1--",' CC J _. 2("\ I -C(': 2
Current Zoning: R Date Received: t lie l,e; Date Public Notice: 1120J,P~,
~OMMENT: :rr~Ic.:, 1<: it reron( YJ;( ?npt'fty_ -&C.i'YI K -tc
be -iT aIIN<._' -fu- (\ fl})li'J(l,O \ OCiI,'!.St"I) Q[{1cc-

STAFF COMMENT FLOW SHEET
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA DATE: '/_Iv

**Do not use pencil or red pen, they do not reproduce* *



Page I of5

RECOMMEND APPROVAL, subject to facts, findings, and conditions.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

A rezone from (R) Single Family and Multiple Family Residential to (RO) Residential
Office to allow for a professional office with approved CUP.

January 18,2018
February 6, 2018
REZONE 2-18
l.A.6
Jason Land

MEMO DATE:
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE:
APPLICATION NUMBER:
AGENDA ITEM:
APPLICANT:
PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

City of Elko
1751 College Avenue

Elko, NV 89801
(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7119



Page 2 of5

BACKGROUND:
1. The parcel is identified as APN 001-281-002.
2. The applicant is not the property owner but has entered into an agreement to purchase the

property.
3. The property owner has filed written authorization with the City dated January 10,2018

allowing the applicant to submit the application.
4. The property is located approximately 100 feet east of the Court Street and 9th Street

intersection.
5. The area ofthe parcel is approximately 3,750 square feet.
6. The parcel is approximately 37.50 feet in width. The parcel is smaller than the typical 50

foot wide or larger lot encountered in this area of the community.
7. The property was built in approximately 1910 and as the recent survey shows, the west

wall of the principal structure is constructed on the property line.
8. The property has been vacant since 2009. Any legal non-conforming uses are considered

abandoned.

MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODE SECTIONS:
Applicable Master Plans and City Code Sections are:

• City of Elko Master Plan - Land Use Component
• City of Elko Master Plan - Transportation Component
• City of Wellhead Protection Plan
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-5(F) RO - Residential Office District
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-21 Amendments
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-8 Flood Plain Management

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:
• The property is developed.
• The property fronts Court Street.
• Access to the property for parking is off the alley at the rear of the parcel.

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:
• The property is surrounded by:

o North & Northeast: (R) Single and Multiple Family / Developed
o Southeast: (RO) Residential Office / Developed
o South: (C) Commercial/Developed

Developed with a single family dwellingEXISTING LAND USE:

(MU-DTWN) Mixed Use DowntownMASTER PLAN DESIGNATION:

(R) Single Family and Multiple Family ResidentialEXISTING ZONING:

.086 acres, 3,750 sq. ft.PARCEL SIZE:

001-281-002PARCEL NUMBER:

PROJECT INFORMATION

REZONE 2-18
Jason Land



SECTION 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts:

1. The property is located within the 5 year capture zone for several City wells.
2. Conformance with the Wellhead Protection Plan is required.

The proposed use of the property and allowed uses under the proposed district do not present a
hazard to City wells.

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN:

The proposed zone district and repurposing the property and structure conforms to the
redevelopment plan.

1. The property is located within the redevelopment area. The proposed district supports
several objectives in the redevelopment plan. The more important objective being
repurposing of buildings and/or properties and thereby eliminating blight in the area and
increasing economic activity in the area.

ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN:

The proposed zone district, intensity of use and limitations of intensity of use will not create any
significant cumulative issues on the existing transportation system.

1. The property fronts Court Street.
2. Parking will be established at the rear ofthe property off the alley.

Transportation:

Strict conformance with the Master Plan under section 3-2-21 is not required and the proposed
zone district is consistent with existing land uses in the immediate vicinity.

1. The Master Plan Land Use Atlas shows a portion of the area as Mixed Use Downtown.
2. RO- Residential Office zoning district is not listed as a corresponding zoning district for

Mixed Use Downtown. The proposed RO district is consistent with current RO uses
and/or residential uses in the immediate vicinity.

3. Objective 2: Encourage revitalization and redevelopment of the downtown area to
strengthen its role as the cultural center of the community

4. Objective 4: Consider a mixed-use pattern of development for the downtown area, and
for major centers and corridors, to ensure the area's adaptability, longevity, and overall
sustainability.

5. Downtown Mixed Use: This land use designation includes land uses that are located in or
close to the historic downtown area. The area will capitalize on the existing fabric of the
downtown and its walkable grid system. Mixed-use allows for a variety of land uses, and
configurations. Housing or office use may be located within the same structure, with
retail use primarily on the first floor.

Land use:

MASTER PLAN:

9. The required off street parking for business uses does not exist on the property. The
required off street parking for residential uses does exist on the property. The applicant
intends on demolishing an existing garage structure and developing the required off street
parking with the approval of a CUP for an office use.

Page 3 of5

REZONE 2-18
Jason Land



Page 4 of5

1. The proposed rezone does not appear to frustrate the Master Plan's goals and policies of
the Land Use Component. Strict conformance with the Master Plan under section 3-2-21
is not required and the proposed zone district is consistent with existing land uses in the
immediate vicinity. Residential Office is not a corresponding district of Downtown
Mixed Use. The proposed zone district meets several of the Objectives 2 and 4 of the
Land Use Component of the Master Plan.

FINDINGS

1. This parcel is not located in a designated Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA).

SECTION 3-8

1. The applicant has conformed to this section of code with the filing of the application.

SECTION 3-2-21 Amendments:

The applicant has committed to removal of the existing garage to develop ADA compliant off
street parking to be located at the rear of the property and accessed from the alley way if the
property is issued a CUP and developed as an office use.

1. There is off-street parking located in the rear of the parcel and it meets the 2 off street
parking stalls code requirement for a principal permitted use as a single family residence.
The parking is not ADA compliant. Development of ADA off-street parking is required
to conform with this section of code if the property is developed as a conditionally
permitted use or more intense use than single family residence.

SECTION 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations:

Approval of variance application 2-18 is a required condition of the zone application to address
identified non-conforming issues.

1. As noted in the evaluation under Section 3-2-4 the property does not conform with area,
dimension and setback requirements stipulated for the district.

2. Variance 2-18 application has been submitted for consideration by the Planning
Commission to address the conformance deficiencies.

SECTION 3-2-5 eRO) Residential Office:

As a result of the above referenced non-conformance issues, the applicant has applied for
variances on the lot size, lot width and the interior side yard setback under Variance application
1-18.

1. The minimum lot area required is 5,000 square for areas of the community platted with
50 foot wide lots. The parcel area does not meet either criteria stipulated for the lot area
in Section 3-2-5 of city code.

2. The required lot dimensions for the proposed district in this area of the community would
be 50 feet in width by 100 feet in depth as stipulated in Section 3-2-5 of city code.

3. The property is developed and the structure does not meet the setback requirements
stipulated in Section 3-2-5 of city code.

REZONE 2-18
Jason Land



1. A variance be granted for the lot size, lot width and interior side yard setback for the
principle structure.

1. All conditions for the rezone are satisfied prior to the Mayor signing the resolution to
rezone the property.

DevelopmentDepartment:

Planning Department:

Staff recommends this item be conditionally approved with the following conditions:

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

10.The proposed rezone is consistent with surrounding land uses.

Page 5 of5

9. Development under the proposed rezone will not adversely impact natural systems, or
public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages, floodplains etc. or pose a
danger to human health and safety.

8. The parcel is not located within a designated Special Flood Hazard Area.

7. The property as developed is in conformance with City Code 3-2-17 for the principal
permitted use as a single family residence. The applicant has committed to removal of the
existing garage to develop ADA compliant off-street parking to be located at the rear of
the property and accessed from the alley way if the property is issued a conditional use
permit to be developed as an office use.

6. The proposed rezone is not in conformance with Section 3-2-5(R) Residential Office, a
variance for lot size and interior side setback will be required prior to approval of the
application.

5. The property does no conform to Section 3-2-4 of city code. As a result of the above
referenced non-conformance issues, the applicant has applied for variances on the lot
size, lot width and the interior side yard setback under Variance application 1-18.
Approval of the variance application is required as a condition of the zone application.

4. The proposed rezone is consistent with City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan. The
proposed use of the property and allowed uses under the proposed district do not present
a hazard to City wells.

3. The proposed zone district and repurposing the property and structure conforms to the
redevelopment plan.

2. The proposed rezone is consistent with the Transportation component of the Master Plan.
The proposed zone district, intensity of use and limitations of intensity of use will not
create any significant cumulative issues on the existing transportation system.

REZONE 2-18
Jason Land



C:\Users\sknopp\Downloads\Rez 2-18 Land 910 Court St (l).docx
Created by Jeremy Draper

• The property is located generally 100 ft east of the intersection of 9th Street and
Court Street.

• The property is identified as APN 001-281-002.
• The parcel is currently developed.
• The parcel is currently zoned R-Single Family and Multiple Family Residential.
• The proposed rezone would result in a rezone of proposed parcel 1 being 0.086

acres of RO-Residential Office.
• The property is bound by Single Family and Multiple Family Residential, to the

north and east, General Commercial to the south and RO to the east.

Project Information

The City of Elko Development Department is providing this correspondence to aid the
Planning Commission's review of Rezone Application 2-18.

To: Elko City Planning Commission
From: Jeremy Draper, Development Manager
RE: Rezone 2-18, Jason Land, 910 Court St.
Date: January 12, 2018

CITY OF ELKO
DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

1755 COLLEGE AVENUE
ELKO, NEVADA 89801

(775)777-7210
(775)777-7219 FAX



Findings

• Conformance with this section is required

Section 3-2-21-Amendments

• Conformance with this section is required

Section 3-2-17-Traffic. Access. Parking and Loading Regulations

• Conformance with this section is required

Section 3-2-5-(F)-(RO) Residential Office District

• Conformance with this section is required

Section 3-2-4-Establishment of Zoning Districts

• The property is located within the 5-year capture zone.
• Conformance with the Wellhead Protection Plan is required.

Elko Wellhead Protection Plan

1. The proposed rezone does not appear to frustrate the goals and policies of the
Land Use Component of the Master Plan.

Land Use:
• The Land Use component of the Master Plan identifies this area as Downtown

Mixed Use.
• Objective 2-Encourage revitalization and redevelopment of the downtown area to

strengthen its role as the cultural center of the community.
• Objective 4-Consider a mixed-use pattern of development for the downtown

area, and for major centers and corridors, to ensure the area's adaptability,
longevity, and overall sustainability.

• Objective 6-Encourage multiple scales of commercial development to serve the
needs of the region, the community, and individual neighborhoods.

• Corresponding zoning districts for Downtown Mixed Use are C-General
Commercial.

Master Plan

• The property is not located within a FEMA Floodzone.

Page 2 of 3



1. A variance be granted for the lot size, lot width and side yard setback for the
principle structure.

The City of Elko Development Department recommends that the proposed zone
changes be approved with the following conditions:

Recommendation

2. Residential Office is not a corresponding district of Downtown Mixed Use, but
provides limited commercial opportunities and meets the goals as listed in
Objective 4.

3. The proposed rezone is in conformance with City Code 3-2-4-8 and C
4. The proposed rezone is not in conformance with City Code 3-2-5-F, a variance

for setbacks and lot size will be required.
5. The proposed rezone is in conformance with City Code 3-2-17
6. The proposed rezone is in conformance with City Code 3-2--8
7. The proposed rezone is in conformance with the City of Elko Wellhead Protection

Plan.
8. Development under the proposed rezone will not adversely impact natural

systems, or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages,
floodplains etc. or pose a danger to human health and safety.

Page 3 of 3



LOT 8

GARAGE WAll
TO PROPERTY UNES 41-58'12-W

37.50'

GARAGE WAll
~OPROPERTY UNE---I'_"~-O.4·

I FOUND
I 5/8- REBAR
IKf7H CAP MARKED

PLS 6203

APN 001-281-002
3,750 SQ. FT.

I

EXIS71NG ZONING = R

PROPOSED ZONING = RO

LOT 11

WALL ON
PROPERTY UNE
EAVE

LOT 10

HOUSE

.._
l!j
t:!:
(/) ~~

"~ ~ ..
~<: LOT 12

HOUSE

'FOUND
5/8- REBAR

I
I
I

CONCRETE

FOUND
5/8- REBAR

IKf7H CAP MARKED
I PLS 6203

I
I

FOUND MONUMENT
COURT &: 11TH STREETS

37.50'

I WATERZ~ VALVE

CURB &:
GUTTER"-..

"

COURT STREET
FOUND MONUMENT

COURT &: 9TH STREElS

SITE PLAN
FOR

JASON LAND
LOT 10 & THE SOUTHWESTERLY 1/2

OF LOT 9, BLOCK 7
CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA

r
I{J)

.1&
PIeS
g~..I~

I~
I

760.36'N 41-S8'12-E'------
90.00'

RECICIVED



CC:

Enclosures

S'§~t~vM~-
Planning Technician

S incercl v,

If you have any questions regarding this meeting. the information you received. or if you will not
he able to attend this meeting. please call me at your earliest convenience at (775) 777-7160,

The Planning Commission requests that you. or a duly appointed representative. be in attendance
at this meeting to address the Planning Commission. If you will not he able to attend the meeting
hut wish to h,1\ e a reprcscntati \'C present. please submit a letter to the Planning Commission
authorizing this person to represent you at the meeting.

Enclosed is a copy of the agenda for an upcoming Planning Commission meeting, Highlighted
on the agenda is an item or items that you have requested to he acted on at the meeting. Also
enclosed is pertinent information pertaining to your request. Please review this information
before the meeting.

Dear Applicant Agent:

Re: Rezone ;\0,2-18 and Variance No, 1-18

Jason Land
PO BOX 281329
Lamoille. NV 89828

January 30. 2018

1751 College Avenue . Elko, Nevada 89801 . (775) 777-7160 . Fax (775) 777-7119

H 'ebsitc: \\ \\ \\ clkocitv.com
Email: planningrt ciclk on , .u-,

CITY OF ELKO
Planning Department



~ ~
r

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ a
~~~~~~~~g~~~~~~~SSS~~~g~@~g~~~~~~""'O ~
~~~I..D~~~~C:O~~~~~~I-->'+::-f"f"ln~I-->Nln'+::-~OOlnl-->l-->~9~ ~
WWW~OOWWWO'+::--.....JI-->WWI..DW I-->I-->U,WN.i::.N6N6~WWI--'I--> ......
1..D00000-.....Jl..DlnWOOlnI..D0'\.+::-l..Dlnl..D .+::-.+::--.....JI..D.+::-OOOOOO'\OO.+::-I..DI..DOlnl..D
.+::-NNN.+::-.+::-.+::-NOO'\I-->I-->NI-->I-->O o,\o,\w.+::-lnl-->w.+::-ooOw.+::-.+::--.....Jw.+::-
lnlnlnl..D-.....J'+::-W-.....J-.....JO'\ONOOOO'\W lnlnWlnWI..DOOlnOO-.....JOONNlnON

c_.J
c
~
...)

mmm:;:ommmmnmmmmmmm
Ir-Imlllll>1111111
AAAZAAAACAAAAAAA
OOOOOOOOmOOOOOOO
ZZZZZZZZZZZZZZZZ««««~«««<

Z
<

I..D""'O:~
~ S ~
n E; -<:o 0 ....)
C N
::0
-i
V1
-i

n n
......................o 0
~ Z
m m
V1 <
-i l>
V1 0
-i l>
l> cp
~ l>
V1 Z

.._
o
I
Z
G)
l>
I
I
l>
G)
I
m
::0

00000000000000000000000000
00000000000000000000000000
I--> I--> I--> I--' I--> I--> I--> I--> I--> I--> I--> I--> I--> I--> I--> I--> I--> I--> I--> I--> I--> I--> I--> I--> I--> I-->
NNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNN
00 -.....J -.....J 00 00 .+::- 00 .+::- 00 -.....J -.....J 00 .+::- 00 00 00 -.....J 00 -.....J 00 00 .+::- 00 -.....J 00 W
N W W I--' I--> I--> N I--> .+::- W W'+::-I--> I--> I--' I--> 0'\ .+::- 0'\ I--> N I--> I--> W N 0'\
00000000000000000000000000
0001--'001-->1-->01-->001-->000000000001-->0
I--> .+::- In 0 0'\ In I--> W NOW W 00 I..D 00 -.....JW .+::- 0'\ W N -.....JI--> I--> N I-->



0000 00 00 00 V1V1V100
1.0 1.01.0 1.0 1.0 V1V1V11.O
000000V1V1~~~00
000000000
~~~~~Cf'Cf'Cf'~WW~~ ......~~~W
I.OWCTlCTlCTlI.OI.OI.OI.O
~WNV1V1WWW~
N0V100000N

~~~~~~~~~
AAAZZZZZA
OOOOOZZZO
ZZZZZmmmz««<l>l>l><

'"0 '"0 '"0
000
!:: r r
V1 Vi Vi
~ ~ ~
Z Z Z



ELKO CITY PLANNING COMMISSION

Additional information concerning this item may be obtained by contacting the Elko City
Planning Department at (775) 777-7160.

Variance No. 1-18, tiled by Jason B. Land, on behalf of Blaine Branscomb
for a reduction of the required lot area from 6,000 sq. ft. to 3,750 sq. ft.,
front lot width from 60 feet to 37.50 feet, and interior side yard setback
from 5 112 feet to 0 feet, in conjunction with a zone change from R
(Single-Family and Multi-Family Residential) to RO (Residential Office),
and matters related thereto. The subject property is located generally on
the south side of Court Street, approximately 50 feet east of 9th Street (910
Court Street, APN 001-281-002).

And

Rezone No. 2-18, filed by Jason B. Land, on behalf of Blaine Branscomb
for a change in zoning from R (Single-Family and Multi-Family
Residential) to RO (Residential Office), approximately 0.086 acres of
property, specifically APN 001-281-002, located generally on the south
side of Court Street, approximately 50 feet east of 9th Street, more
particularly described as: Lot 10 & the Southwesterly ~ of Lot 9, Block 7
City of Elko, Nevada
The intent of the zone change is to allow for a professional office.

The specific items to be considered under public hearing format are:

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Elko City Planning Commission will conduct a public
hearing on Tuesday, February 6, 2018 beginning at 5:30 P.M. P.S.T. at Elko City Hall, 1751
College Avenue, Elko, Nevada, and that the public is invited to provide input and testimony on
this matter under consideration in person, by writing, or by representative.

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING



Page 1Revised 12/04/15

Plot Plan: A plot plan provided by a properly licensed surveyor depicting the existing condition
drawn to scale showing property lines, existing and proposed buildings, building setbacks,
distances between buildings, parking and loading areas, driveways and other pertinent
information must be provided.

Legal Description: A complete legal description of the boundary of the proposed zone change
must be provided as well as a map depicting the area to be changed stating the wording: area
to be changed from "x" to "x"; (LI to R, for example).

Note: One .pdf of the entire application must be submitted as well as one set of legible,
reproducible plans 8 %" x 11" in size. If the applicant feels the Commission needs to see 24" x
36" plans, 10 sets of pre-folded plans must be submitted.

Other Information: The applicant is encouraged to submit other information and
documentation to support this Rezone Application.

Area Map: A map of the area proposed for this zone change must be provided.

Fee: A $300.00 non-refundable filing fee.

Complete Application Form: In order to begin processing the application, an application form
must be complete and signed. Complete applications are due at least 21 days prior to the next
scheduled meeting of the Elko City Planning Commission (meetings are the 1st Tuesday of
every month).

FILING REQUIREMENTS:

APPLICANT(s): - ) ~ t;0 W \3.. L. 11 ~ A
MAILING ADDRESS: y () SO')( -2 ~ \ ~ 2 c\ L ,,\lV\ 0 \ \\ e. p-} \j ~ C\ L.j -l J)
PHONE NO (Home) -II '] ".3L\Q. CdC (c ;) (Business) '1"\ s- - ~ I-~ 4> s=< Si ! \
NAME OF PROPERTY OWNER (If different): _

(Property owner's consent in writing must be provided.)
MAILING ADDRESS: _
LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND LOCATION OF PROPERTY INVOLVED (Attach if necessary):
ASSESSOR'S PARCEL NO.: 00\-:2~ \- OO¢ Address c\\o t.ov~+ 0+J.,:f?=fA
Lot(s), Block(s), &Subdivision \0 -r \ () 1't-=t c,0'\)'-\ Y"vJ-t "';-{.1) ~ \ I '1
Or Parcel(s) & File No. of \0 q S\ ok¥-"'J (..(~\:\ uf {\ \LQ MA f ~ .i..

APPLICATION FOR ZONE CHANGE

1751 College Avenue * Elko * Nevada * 89801
(775) 777-7160 phone * (775) 777-7119 fax

RECEIVED

CITY OF ELKO PLANNING DEPARTMENT



Page 2Revised 12/04/15

(Use additional pages if necessary to address questions 3 through 5)

5. Identify any unique physical features or characteristics associated with the property: __
-.) A'l-l MC1 \C, iLe~ -.)\ ~ ±o:2- t"d-d t,-LTb-AcJL

4. Explain how the proposed zoning classification relates with other zoning classifications in the
area: "'LN p'2"''P-L~+~ +0 ~CI\)+n~-e. ~ i ~ A\~~
?k,_)J.d \Z.~_. "1 U~'p' p} =~t=-==o'p.g 12-'+-i'-e{
, ~ C/\)+k ,& La ~ IA\. (

+'4\ C --J' (\ Pf ()\A" \ tV\. o. (\_ ,-\-.~ ,

3. Explain in detail the type and nature of the use anticipated on the property: -:s.. A »»;
A ~, ._) c, ~ LA o \ A CN\ ~0 f- Ii \ \...;....;c. '-' \ (~ \,_,..'\Lt ~(;

2. Identify the zoning Classification being proposed/requested: __ ~~_O=-- _

1. Identify the existing zoning classification of the property: __ ......IjL.__ _



Page 3Revised 12/04/15

File No.: 1- I S Date Filed:

Phone Number: __ "_,,,__:s-_- ~3_L\....l..-O=---_O_O----"'"<G'--IJ__"'-

By My Signature below:

[I] I consent to having the City of Elko Staff enter on my property for the sole purpose of
insyection of td property as part of this application process.

~ ~to having the City of Elko Staff enter onto my property as a part of their review of
this ap~a~n. (Your objection will not affect the recommendation made by the staff or the final determination
made by the City Planning Commission or the City Council.)

r:iJ I acknowledge that submission of this application does not imply approval of this request by
the City Planning Department, the City Planning Commission and the City Council, nor does it in
and of itself guarantee issuance of any other required permits and/or licenses.

1)1 I acknowledge that this application may be tabled until a later meeting if either lor my
desipnated representative or agent is not present at the meeting for which this application is
schfduled.

[:;t] I have carefully read and completed all questions contained within this application to the
best of my ability.

~pPlicant/~gent~~~~~)~~~~~~~~~~. ~~~~~~~~~~~
(Please print or type)

Mailing~ddress~~~~~.~~~~~u~~~\ ~~~~~~\~~~~~~~~~
Street Address or P.O. Box

\... A i'AO\\\L N -J Cl.~ C67 ~
City, State, Zip Code



I am the owner of 910 Court Street, Elko NV 89801. I approve and consent to Jason Land applying for
both a variance and zone change to the aforementioned property. My mailing address is 101 Court
Street, ElkoNV89801. Furthermore, I can be reached at (775) 934-1150.

DearSir or Madam,

J~N 1 0 ?01PCity of ElkoPlanning Department
1751CollegeAvenue
Elko,NV89801

RECEIVED



'_"~"'.-; '

Planning Commission Action SheetCreated tlll'l'I16/20 18

• The propesed varia 'ee is eonsistepfwUh City f)f Elk.":W:ellbead Prot,ecdo» Plan.
The propft'S~d use oflne prop:cr-ty abo allowed uses, nncde:rthepro:posed,'district do
001 present a k$arolto City wells. ...•.. .. .. . ., ..: . ...

• Tbe property, does .8, eo~form, y to Section 3...2...4 of city eodQ•.~PR1I6v:~dof the
variance ,apulie:atiO<b' is r~q,ltired to' IJrblg the p'Ji'operty into .eGnfOrDiaqc,c,

5. ~ackgmtl~~ T~f?~~~~~; l'~~~J.lpli~~nt is req,u.eS!jDg a v.ar:j~~£e. f~j',tJu~re<fUb:~dlut
SlZet lot WI'dt" alld.,g~e'~,:31fd:se:tl)Jae,k fOir au eXlstlllg restdenee,

6. Business Impact StatenieRt:" Nt)t Reqnir-ed. ••,. ," ," '
f, . , ". " " .,a 1): :"...,',,' ",' ' , <"- , ,',' ., "7. Suppiemental Agenda Information: .p\ppUc,'.tjo9~~tm:'Q!iffOltl1)eveh)pitle-iltDireeter,

Mellt& fro.City Plannr
8. Recommended Motion: f:onditionally approve Variaaee No.l-f&, with the following

c'OnditioDS:' (statedin€ity Planner memo)

9, Findings: ..J ..
• The prapMe:d :vaiia~~~400s not appeal' to ftllgtl[at~ ,the 'Mast~r ~"la~~{S,,\~als:and

p()~iei~s,'of tnc ';'L3n:' .iUs,e 'ColDPQil'en't; :Stricti.Cnm(irjuan~e "witb tJftec~l\faste:r'Plan
u~'der s'!~~i~!l~'·2..111ts Q!l req~red,an.d ,the .p,~6Jrl(Jsed z?oe ,~~.~t·ri'C'~;Jso~il's'ist:eltt
with eXl~t1J!g,l~~~ul~'/Is:~s:In the ..Imtne~late vl~ell1!ty.ResuieBtud Qlqec _Is,Hot a
tor.res,p~~I\.dmg'dlstpl$t o,fD.9wnto~n MlX;.ed US~'.Thepreposed zone dl~trlctmeets
sevehtl ~ the O1Jj~tes ,2 and ~ " the ~d Use €DIIl~ne~t of theMuster Plan,

• The· P'fo»ps'ed 'v'arlance, IS,~oltSJstent with the Tran~'6rtatuul,~o:mplJ9!eptof ille
Mast~t. ;PIa.. The ~r6poselJ zg;rt'r ilistrict, inc'ellB,jty of USe ana' ':limttatitms of
intensifY of',use WiU : "ot ~r-eate7;Quy'signilicaBi,tlllmlllati:ve'iss.esc ,o~~tlt'~·¢xbt:ing
traRs;l'o:rta:tifh system.

I
• The pr'lJ'lsed val)"~3Uceand re}JUr{}Dsjng the property and :s.trudu.re. 'coufwms to

the 'r:~®v'ilftpment plan.

4. Time Requited; 15Minu-Jes

3.

2.

" '~tlR:(l':iCJtyP~I«nning'Commission, ',' '.f" " '. ,,: " '. I Age'nd.3 Aetion Sheet

1. Review, ~~ll~ideratio'n and possible' action of Vadau'4:e No"1 ...18, filed by Jasen B.
Land;QIl,be,kalf (),fBJut ;eBr-anscomb, for "areductioll9ftlte reqWrea10t area from
~,O,OO~sq, ~t.,t~'3,1Sftsqtft., frant lot wid~b fr.o~: {j:~f~l!~~3?iSOt,!e~ta~ttthe requtred
mtenor slde·yard s,etba'Fkfrom 5 ~,feet to :zero,\~~eJ~:m,~OllllRt~l~nwlth a zone
change fy,tl~~lI'~(Sin.gl~J~taDti~yaJld'~~if~l~jpLe;'Pa~il~Fi~~t«te~~i~»kto,'RO(Resi.dential
0, fift ')' ,,<a;.,.~~~t"'''''0Jf.''i'-'IL t' '.c""';:"h" 't",,, -mA'R'" nn(:::jlL'm~ ':t(,~/;A:lr!~~~T',nee , aR~~". ~~»;l'~, a ,eU"""1 ere." tJ,J1;fi'o J?,,,,,,~,,~, -:~~r~~~(;i~l~~.

Agenda Item # l.A.?



Initial

City Manager: Date: .2/1 /1~
Initial

Assistant City Manager: Date:_____,I,____--+--_

a 5 i2~'5e~tpoF'

Title: \10 rlCtnc( 1- 1£'
Applicant(s): ·=S=O.:-{'Ji "B ..Lo'r-cl
Site Location: 9 10 CCil)(i (c~h'(f(t - /\111\\) CCl - 2Y·\1- C·O2
Current Zoning: ~ Date Received: \ J If) Date Public Notice: i /2,3 JJ f,
COMMENT: ]I) I <:) IS -U,'( n vedl,'ct-t(lY, 01 'ilL( lei n fea {:'OY)
Iell\{' Ii}1[, 3" 1St l~ / fhnt I(,t 1.\'lLl±h 1ftll 1 let'if' :)7.51' I L olu1
. Y. t, I {,., l( ,0f'U : ,{.;.),y) , '/ I " \ (" '~, 1]neilOn L" ,ih
l-20~lJ.... ·lX.lna£., ,

**If a ditlOn~Jlspace is needed please provide a separate memorandum**

**00 not use pencil or red pen, they do not reproduce**

STAFF COMMENT FLOW SHEET
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA DATE: llll'

•



Page 1 of6

RECOMMEND CONDITIONAL APPROVAL, subject to findings of fact, and conditions.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

PROJECT INFORMATION
001-281-002PARCEL NUMBER:

A Variance request to reduce:
1. Minimum required lot area from 6,000 sq. ft. to 3,750 sq. ft.
2. Minimum required lot width of 60 ft. to 37.5 ft.
3. Interior side yard setback from 5.5' to 0'.

January 18,2018
February 6, 2018
I.A.7
Variance 1-18
Jason Land
910 Court Street, Elko
Rezone 2-18

REPORT DATE:
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE:
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER:
APPLICATION NUMBER:
APPLICANT:
PROJECT DESCRIPTION:
ADDITIONAL APPLICATIONS:

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

City of Elko
1751 College Avenue
Elko, NV 89801
(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7119



1. The Master Plan Land Use Atlas shows the area as Mixed Use Downtown. This land use

MASTER PLAN - Land use:

• City of Elko Master Plan - Land Use Component
• City of Elko Master Plan - Transportation Component
• City of Elko Redevelopment Plan
• City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-5 Residential
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-21 Amendments
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-8 Flood Plain Management
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-22 Variances

APPLICABLE MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODE SECTIONS:

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:
The property is currently developed.
The property is generally flat.
The property will be accessed from Court Street and alley way

Page 2 of6

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:
The property is surrounded by:
North & Northeast: (R) Single and Multiple Family / Developed
Southeast: (RO) Residential Office / Developed
South: (C) Commercial/Developed

BACKGROUND:
1. The applicant is not the property owner but has entered into an agreement to purchase the

property. Final approval of the variance will be contingent upon the sale of the property
to Jason Land.

2. The property was built in approximately 1910 and as the recent survey shows, the west
wall of the principal structure is constructed on the property line.

3. The property has been vacant since 2009 therefore, any legal non-conforming status has
been abandoned.

4. The applicant has indicated that ifhe purchases the property, he intends to tear down the
existing carport structure off the alley or rear of the property. The carport has not been
considered in this application for the variance, only the principal structure.

ResidentialEXISTING LAND USE:

(MU-DTWN) Mixed Use DowntownMASTER PLAN DESIGNATION:

(R) Single Family and Multiple Family Residential.
Application has been submitted for a rezone to RO
- Residential Office

EXISTING ZONING:

3,750 sq. ft.PARCEL SIZE:

VAR 1-18
Jason Land



SECTION 3-2-4 ESTABLISHMENT OF ZONING DISTRICTS

1. The property is located within the 5 year capture zone for several City wells.
2. Conformance with the Wellhead Protection Plan is required.

The proposed use of the property and allowed uses under the proposed district do not present a
hazard to City wells.

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN:

1. The property is located within the Central Business District of the redevelopment area.
The proposed variance supports several objectives in the redevelopment plan. The more
important objective being repurposing of buildings and/or properties and thereby
eliminating blight in the area and increasing economic activity in the area.

The proposed variance and repurposing the property and structure conforms to the
redevelopment plan.

ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN:

The proposed variance is in conformance with the Transportation component of the Master Plan.

2. Court Street is classified as a minor collector.

1. The area will be accessed from Court Street and alley way

MASTER PLAN - Transportation:

The proposed variance is not in strict conformance with the Master Plan, however, it doesn't
frustrate the goals and objectives of the Master Plan.

5. Downtown Mixed Use: This land use designation includes land uses that are located in or
close to the historic downtown area. The area will capitalize on the existing fabric of the
downtown and its walkable grid system. Mixed-use allows for a variety of land uses, and
configurations. Housing or office use may be located within the same structure, with
retail use primarily on the first floor

4. Objective 4: Consider a mixed-use pattern of development for the downtown area, and
for major centers and corridors, to ensure the area's adaptability, longevity and overall
sustainability.

3. Objective 2: Encourage revitalization and redevelopment of the downtown area to
strengthen its role as the cultural center of the community

2. RO- Residential Office zoning district is not listed as a corresponding zoning district for
Mixed Use Downtown, however it does not frustrate the goals and objectives of the
Master Plan.

Page 3 of6

designation includes land uses that are located in or close to the historic downtown area.
The area will capitalize on the existing fabric of the downtown and its walkable grid
system. Mixed-use allows for a variety of land uses, and configurations.

VAR 1-18
Jason Land



1. The variance application is in support of a non-conforming use.
2. The existing use of the property has been in place as a legal nonconforming use.
3. The variance process should not be utilized to provide a development (financial)

advantage for a certain property. The variance process is appropriate to allow a use of
property consistent to similar types of uses.

4. It does appear that granting of the variance will not substantially impair the intent or
purpose of the Zoning Ordinance or effect a change in the land use.

Application Requirements

B. Procedure: Any person requesting a variance by the planning commission shall include:

SECTION 3-2-22

1. The applicant has conformed to this section of code with the filing of the application.

SECTION 3-2-21:

The property is not in conformance and therefore application was submitted for the variance.

The existing accessory structure is not considered in this variance application as the applicant has
provided documentation that the accessory structure will be demolished.

3. Minimum setbacks stipulated for the district are as follows:
Front Yard: A minimum setback of fifteen feet (15')
Rear Yard: A minimum setback of twenty feet (20')
Interior Side: A minimum setback of five and a half feet (5Yz ')

2. Minimum lot width stipulated for the district of sixty feet (60')

1. Minimum area stipulated for the district is six thousand (6,000) square feet. 3-2-5(G)(2)a
states: A single lot or parcel of land of record in the office of the county recorder as of the effective
date of the city subdivision ordinance (December 9, 1975), and which does not meet minimum
requirements for lot area, lot width or lot depth shall be considered a buildable lot for one single
family dwelling, provided all other requirements of this chapter are satisfied

SECTION 3-2-5(G)

As a result of the above referenced requirements, this application addresses the non
conformance with Elko City Code on the lot size, lot width and the interior side yard setback.

1. The minimum lot area required is 5,000 square for areas of the community platted with
50 foot wide lots. The parcel area does not meet either criteria stipulated for the lot area
in Section 3-2-5 of city code.

2. The required lot dimensions for the proposed district in this area of the community would
be 50 feet in width by 100 feet in depth as stipulated in Section 3-2-5 of city code.

3. The property is developed and the structure does not meet the setback requirements
stipulated in Section 3-2-5 of city code.

VAR 1-18
Jason Land

Page 4 of6



STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

11. The proposed variance is consistent with surrounding land uses.

10. Granting of the variance will not impair natural resources.

9. Granting of the variance will not substantially impair the intent or purpose of the zoning
ordinance.

8. It does not appear that granting of the variance will result in material damage or prejudice
to other properties in the vicinity, nor will granting of the variance be detrimental to the
interest, health, safety and general welfare of the public.

7. The parcel is not located within a designated Special Flood Hazard Area.

6. The proposed variance is not in conformance with Section 3-2-5(R) Residential Office,
Approval of the variance application is required to bring the property into conformance.

5. The property does no conform to Section 3-2-4 of city code. Approval of the variance
application is required to bring the property into conformance.

Page 5 of6

4. The proposed variance is consistent with City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan. The
proposed use of the property and allowed uses under the proposed district do not present
a hazard to City wells.

3. The proposed variance and repurposing the property and structure conforms to the
redevelopment plan.

2. The proposed variance is consistent with the Transportation component of the Master
Plan. The proposed zone district, intensity of use and limitations of intensity of use will
not create any significant cumulative issues on the existing transportation system.

I. The proposed variance does not appear to frustrate the Master Plan's goals and policies of
the Land Use Component. Strict conformance with the Master Plan under section 3-2-21
is not required and the proposed zone district is consistent with existing land uses in the
immediate vicinity. Residential Office is not a corresponding district of Downtown
Mixed Use. The proposed zone district meets several of the Objectives 2 and 4 of the
Land Use Component of the Master Plan.

FINDINGS

1. This parcel is not designated in a Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA).

SECTION 3-8

5. The granting of the variance will not result in material damage or prejudice to other
properties in the vicinity, nor be detrimental to the public interest, health, safety and
general welfare.

6. The granting of the variance will not substantially impair affected natural resources.

VAR 1-18
Jason Land



Page 6 of6

1. Applicant must provide required off street parking

Public Works Department:

1. Compliance with all staff recommendations.
2. Approval of Rezone 2-18
3. Existing accessory structure must be demolished.
4. Commencement within one year and completion within eighteen (18) months.

Planning Department:

1. Walls, roof < 5' from property line require 1 hour fire protection per City Building code
table R302.1

2. Projections (overhangs) not allowed <2' of property line 2' to <5' requires 1 hour
underside per R302.1

3. Openings (windows etc.) < 3' from the property line not allowed, 3' to < 5' 25% max of
wall area allowed per R302.1

Building Department:

Development Department:
1. A variance is granted for the side yard setback of the existing principle structure to be

reduced to 0', the lot width is reduced to 37.5' and the lot size is reduced to 3,750 sf.
2. The garage is removed from the property.

CONDITIONS:

Staff recommends this item be conditionally approved with the following conditions:

VAR 1-18
Jason Land



• The property is located generally 100 ft east of the intersection of 9th Street and
Court Street.

• The property is identified as APN 001-281-002.
• The parcel is currently developed.
• The parcel is currently zoned R-Single Family and Multiple Family Residential.
• The proposed rezone 2-18 would result in a rezone of proposed parcel 1 being

0.086 acres of RO-Residential Office.
C:\Users\sknopp\Downloads\Var 1-18 910 Court St (2).docx
Created by Jeremy Draper

Project Information

The City of Elko Development Department is providing this correspondence to aid the
Planning Commission's review of Variance Application 1-18.

To: Elko City Planning Commission
From: Jeremy Draper, Development Manager
RE: Variance 1-18, Jason Lund, 910 Court St
Date: January 19, 2018

CITY OF ELKO
DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

1755 COLLEGE AVENUE
ELKO, NEVADA 89801

(775)777-7210
(775)777-7219 FAX



• There are special circumstances or features, i.e., unusual shape,
configuration, exceptional topographic conditions or other extraordinary
situations or conditions applying to the property under consideration.

Application Requirements

Procedure

• The applicant states the section of code from which the variance has been
requested.

• A legal description of the parcel has been provided.
• A plot plan showing the proposed location of property lines related to the location

of the existing accessory structure is provided but is not by a properly licensed
surveyor

• Filling fees have been deposited with the Planning Department.

Section 3-2-22-Variances

• It appears that the property is in conformance with this section

Section 3-2-17-Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations

• Conformance with this section is required

Section 3-2-5-F-Residential Office

• The property is located within the 5-year capture zone.

Elko Wellhead Protection Plan

Transportation
• The property fronts Court Street, a collector roadway

Land Use:
• The Land Use component of the Master Plan identifies this area as Mixed Use

Downtown.

Master Plan

• The property is bound by Single Family and Multiple Family Residential, to the
north and east, General Commercial to the south and RO to the east.

• The property is not located within a FEMA Floodzone.
• The application is for a variance from ECC 3-2-5-G1 , specifically the sideyard

setback, lot width, and lot size.

Page 2 of 4



The special circumstance(s) cited in the application has an existing primary
structure that was constructed as a residential property and encroached into the
interior sideyard setback. The structure was constructed prior to the existing
codes being adopted and zoning being established.
The lot size is less than the minimum 5,000 sf lot allowed for existing lots of
record.

• The special circumstance or extraordinary situation or condition results in
exceptional practical difficulties or exceptional undue hardships, and
where the strict application of the provision or requirement constitutes an
abridgment of property right and deprives the property owner of
reasonable use of property.
The applicant indicates a variance is required for the existing condition not
meeting the required setbacks, lot width, or lot size of the RO zoning district.

• Such special circumstances or conditions do not apply generally to other
properties in the same zoning district.
There are several properties in the vicinity of the proposed zone change that
were developed and may not meet the required setbacks, lot width, or lot size of
the RO District.

• The granting of the variance will not result in material damage or prejudice
to other properties in the vicinity, nor be detrimental to the public interest,
health, safety and general welfare.
It does appear that granting of the variance will not result in material damage or
prejudice to other properties in the vicinity, nor will granting of the variance be
detrimental to the interest, health, safety and general welfare of the public.

• The granting of the variance will not substantially impair the intent or
purpose of the zoning ordinance or effect a change of land use or zoning
classification.
It does appear that granting of the variance will not substantially impair the intent
or purpose of the Zoning Ordinance or effect a change in the land use.

• The granting of the variance will not substantially impair affected natural
resources.
The Development Department has determined that granting of the variance will
not impair natural resources.

Findings

Page 3 of 4

1. The special circumstances cited in the application are related to the existing
conditions of the residential use and the property as developed does not conform
to the current zone.

2. It does not appear that granting the variance will result in material damage or
prejudice to other properties in the vicinity. Granting of the variance does not
appear to be detrimental to the interest, health, safety and general welfare of the
public.

3. Granting of the variance will not substantially impair the intent or purpose of the
zoning ordinance.



1. A variance is granted for the sideyard setback of the existing principle structure
to be reduced to 0', the lot width is reduced to 37.5' and the lot size is reduced to
3,750 sf.

2. The garage is removed from the property.

The City of Elko Development Department recommends that the variance be
approved with the following conditions:

Recommendation

4. Granting of the variance will not impair natural resources.

Page 4 of 4



'FOUND
5/8- REBAR

I
I
I

CONCRETE
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I LOT 8

I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I

GARAGE WALL
TO PROPERTY UNES 41-S8'12- W

37.50'ALLEY

GARAGE WALL
~O PROPERTY UNE-~ ....... ~ 0.4'

I FOUND
I 5/8- REBAR
IW17H CAP MARKED

PLS 6203

LOT 11

WALL ON
PROPERTY LINE
EA~

LOT 10

HOUSE

.._
~
~
(/) v"~

"~ ~O ...

~<: LOT 12

HOUSE

FOUND
5/8- REBAR

1W17H CAP MARKED
I PLS 6203

I
I

FOUND MONUMENT
COURT '" 11TH STREETS

3Z50'

I WATERZ~ VALliE"

CURB de
GUTTER~

COURT STREET

FOUND MONUMENT
COURT '" 9TH SlREETS

SITE PLAN
FOR

JASON LAND
LOT 10 &' THE SOUTHWESTERLY 1/2

OF LOT 9, BLOCK 7
CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA

<p-
I(/)

~I~
~lcS
C)~
ql~

I~
I

N 41-S8'12- EL.-. ___;_

90.00'
760.36'

RECEIVED



CC:

Enclosures

S'~~t~chW~ -
Planning Technician

Sincerely.

If you have any questions regarding this meeting, the information you received. or if you will not
he able to attend this meeting. please call me at your earliest convenience at (775) 777-7160.

The Planning Commission requests that you, or a duly appointed representative. he in attendance
at this meeting to address the Planning Commission. If you \\'i11 not be able to attend the meeting
but wish to have a representative present. please submit a letter to the Planning Commission
authorizing this person to represent ~lOU at the meeting.

Enclosed is a copy of the agenda for an upcoming Planning Commission meeting. Highlighted
on the agenda is an item or items that you have requested to he acted on at the meeting. Also
enclosed is pertinent information pertaining to your request. Please review this information
before the meeting.

Dear Appl icant Agent:

Re: Rezone I\'o. 2-18 and Variance No. 1-18

Jason Land
PO BOX 281329
Lamoille. xv 89828

January' 30. 201 R

1751 College Avenue . Elko, Nevada 89801 . (775)777-7160 . Fax (775) 777-7119

"'ehsife: \\\\\\,clkIlCl(y ccu n
Email: planning {{ci clkll Tl\ .u-,

CITY OF ELKO
Planning Department



00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 cc lO co 00 00 00 lO 00 W 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 "'0

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOONNN~OOOOWOO~OOOO'lO '"
~ ~ ~ lO ~ ~ ~ ~ 00 ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ N ~ ~ ~ 00 ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~
www~oowww6~~~wwu,w ~~U1WN~N6N6"-Jww~~w
lOooooO"-JlOU1WooU1lOO'I~\..DV1\..D ~~"-J\..D~OooooO'loo~\..DlOOU1lO
~ N N N ~ ~ ~ N a 0'1 ~ ~ N ~ ~ a 0'1 0'1 W ~ V1 ~ W ~ 00 a W ~ ~ -....JW ~
V1V1V1\..D"-J~W"-J-....JO'IONOooO'lW U1V1WU1WlOooU1oo"-JooNNU10N

mmm:;;ommmmnmmmmmmm
I I I m I I I I :l> I I I I I I I
A A A Z A A A A ~ A A A A A A A
OOOOOOOOmOOOOOOO
Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z
< < < < < < < < ~ < < < < < < <

Z<

IIIVlmm"'O:;;Ol1mn
000 "'0 I I :l> m m I :l>
I I I :;;0 A A Z Z :;;0 A I
I ~ ~ zOO 0 0 Z 0 m~ ~ ~ g ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~
nnnm :l> z z
:l> :l> :l> ~ n:l> <

z =i ~< -<:l>n n
:l> I

11
I

co "'0
0'1 S
V1 :l>
n 0° 0C N
:;;0~
VI
-i

n n
........................

° °~ Z
m m
VI <
~ :l>
VI 0
;:; ~
~ :l>
VI Z

.._
o
I
Z
C)
:l>
I
I
:l>
C)
I
m
:;;0

"'0 "'0 "'0
000

I
"'0
"'0
:l>
:;;0
m
I
I

n
............o

I
:l>
Z
o
:l>

6

C) m
:l> ~
I n
I I
:l> m
C) OJ
I m
m :;;0

?O ~
s's
:l> :l>
:;;0 :;;0
-< -<
Io S
c ~
VI :;;0
m
VI
m
~
m
I
I
~

s so n
Z n
~ 0
m Z
VI Z
o m
m I
or
n (5
)> m
o I
:l> :l>
Z ~
Z :;;0
-< m
~ ~
;:; ~
ss
-<
VI

n



00 00 00 00 00 VI VI VI 00
\.D \.D co \.D \.D VI VI VI lD
00 00 00 VI VI +::- ~ +::- 00a a a a a a a a a~ ~ ~ '-P '-P = 'f 'f ~
I W I I
W ~ ~ ~ ....... ~ ~ W
\.D W C"\ 0"1 C"\ lD lD co lD+::- w N VI VI W W W ~
N a VI a a a a a N

m rn m :::0 :::0 S S $: rnr- r r rn rn r
A A A Z Z Z Z Z ;:;0::::
0 0 0 0 0 z z z 0
z z z z Z rn rn rn Z< < < < < l> » l> <"'U "'U "'U

0 0 0
r r: r-
Vi VI VI

S $: $:
z z z

\.D -....J ~ W W N N N lDa a 00 ~ ~ 00 00 00 a~ VI a C"\ C"\ a a a ~
n n a n n a a a n
0 0 Cl l> » rn rn rn 0
C C :::0 ~ r- r r: r C
:::0 :::0 Vi -n -n l> l> » :::0
--i --i s 0 0 ;:;0:::: ;:;0:::: ;:;0:::: --i
VI VI :::0 :::0 rn rn rn V'l
--i --i 0 Z Z VI Vl VI --ir- s l> --i --i --i0

0 » »
:::0 < <rn rn
C # #2
~ ~ ~

N N
~

a a a a a a a a aa a a a a a a a a~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~
N N N N N N N N N+::- +::- 00 00 00 -....J -....J -....J +::-~ ~ ~ a VI w w w ~a a a a a a a a aa ~ a a a a a a I--'
\.D +::- ~ ~ VI -....J 00 \.D a
N ~ ~ < < c c C --im » » Vl Vl Vl Ir- :::0 »n I c C OJ OJ OJ OJ
0 Cl

:::0 Cl Cl » » » »I m I I Z Z Z Cr- ,--i Z Z Z ;:;0:::: ;:;0:::: ;:;0:::: r-r-n s OJ Z Z Z ,--i
Vl :::0 Z Z l> » » :::0m r- 0 0 0 --i --i --i 0~ r- n c c 6 6 6 OJm s ?' Vl Vl mVl $: --i --i Z Z Z :::0,__

:::0 :::0 » l> »N 0 --i
OJ j> j> r- r- r-
,__ 2 r- r- » l> l> ~
:::0 » "'U "'U Vl Vl Vl »
--i » l> Vl Vl Vl 0
:::0 :::0 :::0 0 0 0 m

A /) n n n ~m j> j> l>--i 2
» :j :j :j m
r- 0 0 0z z z



ELKO CITY PLANNING COMl\HSSION

Additional information concerning this item may be obtained by contacting the Elko City
Planning Department at (775) 777-7160.

Variance No, 1-18. tiled by Jason B. Land. on behalf of Blaine Branscomb
for a reduction of the required lot area from 6.000 sq. ft. to 3.750 sq. ft ..
front lot width from 60 feet to 37.50 feet. and interior side yard setback
from 5 1/2 feet to 0 feet. in conjunction with a zone change from R
(Single-rami Iy and Multi-Family Residential) to RO (Residential Office).
and matters related thereto. The subject property is located generally on
the south side of Court Street. approximately 50 feet east of 9th Street (910
Court Street. APN 001-281-(02).

And

Rezone 1\:0. 2-18. tiled by Jason B. Land. on behalf of Blaine Branscomb
for a change in zoning from R (Single-Family and Multi-Family
Residential) to RO (Residential Office), approximately 0.086 acres of
property. speci fically APN 001-281-002, located generally on the south
side of Court Street. approximately 50 feet east of 9th Street. more
particularly described as: Lot 10 & the Southwesterly ~/2 of Lot 9. Block 7
City of Elko. Nevada
The intent of the zone change is to allow for a professional office.

The specific items to be considered under public hearing format are:

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Elko City Planning Commission will conduct a public
hearing on Tuesday, February 6.2018 beginning at 5:30 P.M. P.S.T. at Elko City Hall, 1751
College Avenue. Elko. Nevada. and that the public is invited to provide input and testimony on
this matter under consideration in person, by writing. or by representati ve.

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING



Page 1Revised 12/04/15

Other Information: The applicant is encouraged to submit other information and documentation
to support this Variance application.

Note: One .pdf of the entire application must be submitted as well as one set of legible,
reproducible plans 8 Y2" x 11" in size. If the applicant feels the Commission needs to see 24" x
36" plans, 10 sets of pre-folded plans must be submitted.

Elevation Plan: Elevation profile of all proposed buildings or alterations in sufficient detail to
explain the nature of the request must be provided.

Plot Plan: A plot plan provided by a properly licensed surveyor depicting the existing condition
drawn to scale showing property lines, existing and proposed buildings, building setbacks,
parking and loading areas, driveways and other pertinent information must be provided.

Fee: A $100.00 non-refundable fee must be paid.

Complete ADDlication Form: In order to begin processing the application, an application form
must be complete and signed. Complete applications are due at least 21 days prior to the next
scheduled meeting of the Elko City Planning Commission (meetings are the 1st Tuesday of
every month).

FILING REQUIREMENTS:

APPLICANT(s): -:) i~So~..J 520 LA ..-JJ
MAILING ADDRESS: ~_(J P01 ')_~":2 2 ,\ L.l\ JV\(.) i \\t NV S i.\ '6 '2_ ~

PHONE NO (Home) :)"15"- ~\...\O - 000 d- (Business) "1 '1 5'- 138 - bb \.1
NAME OF PROPERTY OWNER (If different): _

(Property owner's consent in writing must be provided.)
MAILING ADDRESS: _
LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND LOCATION OF PROPERTY INVOLVED (Attach if necessary):
ASSESSOR'SPARCELNO.:00\-2~\-OO2 Address '3\0 Y001.-t 0-ti-(~J
Lot(s), Block(s), &Subdivision \0 \ \Q -t~:f f2f1l.1:1n. y\) .( 0-1 -t '2- \~ ;) ,,1. "':t
Or Parcel(s) & File No. 0* '\0t 0) '3 \ 0 l't 'J LA"'( 01 t\ 'LU r:::. ()..Ie ~\ r

APPLICATION FOR VARIANCE

1751 College Avenue * Elko * Nevada * 89801
(775) 777-7160 * (775) 777-7119 fax

R_ECI~IVED

CITY OF ELKO PLANNING DEPARTMENT



Page 2Revised 12/04/15

-Q:l

d) Identify how such circumstances, features or conditions do not apply generally to other
properties in the same Land Use District.

C eOV 2..1 f,j U € A:- \ 'tj H {\

c) Indicate how the granting of the variance is necessary for the applicant or owner to
make reasonable use of the property,

WUf'.Q.'Z.4-'l tS ~'&16+;:J 32,£MO~I+\'O.J ,'S
r 0 f~~" \ '0 xe.,

b) Identify how such circumstances, features or conditions result in practical difficulty or
undue hardship and deprive the property owner of reasonable use of property.

\)ilop~'1-\i IS ~'f..\c..,.t1'.)5 Pv-\ WI\;\ 'o-¬ __Mue)+t~

\() (A) '¥- ~~~~ Co6 ~c,-

2. The applicant shall present adequate evidence demonstrating the following criteria which are

necessary for the Planning Commission to grant a variance:

a) Identify any special circumstances, features or conditions applying to the property under
consideration. i.e., unusual shape, configuration, exceptional topographic conditions or
other extraordinary situations or conditions

~Q..(J PU +'i \¥h) (\1: ,,,J \ v-"Q QJ(\ ~ ~op~ 'l-~'"i \-J()V~~'l.\,

:F= w,~H\ o.~"to~,.Q._ AfP\~~+t~
-\-V '1-0

1. The existing zoning classification of the property

The APPLICANT requests the following variance from the following section of the zoning

ordinance:

?r 2:~ '5 \ ~i~



Page 3Revised 12/04/15

This area intentionally left blank

(Use additional pages if necessary to address questions 2a through h)

3. Describe your ability (Le. sufficient funds or a loan pre-approval letter on hand) and intent to

construct within one year as all variance approvals must commence construction within one year

and complete construction within 18 months per City Code Section 3-2-22 F.1.: _
'\ ~() 8~Q._-\--y \c, e.,..p \ e.,··k_)::oJ ~ w \\A ~ )2t MD L.{,L~

\ ~ ~ c?+-~ Jo1 f'I\~ .

h) Indicate how granting of the variance will not substantially impair affected natural
resources. f...l

l' \,I'J0 i'\/ -\-.

g) Indicate how the granting of the variance will not result in a change of land use or zoning
classification.
:J.:t vYQr/+ LR.S ,+ ':'

f) Indicate how the variance will not be in conflict with the purpose or intent of the Code.
:Cn.(_ '? SL(;.; ~.Q ~~ t 6 J(_'N \ 6 -\-\~.

e) Indicate how the granting of the variance will not result in material damage or prejudice
to other properties in the vicinity nor be detrimental to the public health, safety and
general welfare.

lAI.N <2A- c..y< ~T 4 M,IY6 M..~I'\.'i ~ \Z..v'P~~'~
'1'-.)\\-\ \~ ~~ ~" '0 L)_cX:? \ -\ \' S



FOR OFFICE USE ONLY

FileNo.:~)I--- ......lo...lII:S__, _ Date Filed: \ iltilt-, Fee Paid: :il1t;U CI;,-f+ ICIII

Page 4Revised 12/04/15

Mailing~ddress~~~~~~' ~,~~~~~~~~~~~\~~~~~~~
Street Address or P.O. Box

\_ A kl\_O ~\;~ rJ \) £'\ C6L~
City, State, Zip Code

Phone Number: :1'1 5 - 3y.0 - CD«):2

Email address: d,&J) 0 )'\. \ (&(\d e ~~_j0r\tt;. WN\

~pPlicant/~gent~~~(~\~~~~~~~~~~. ~~~,~~~~~~~(~~~
(Please print or type)

By My Signature below:01consent to having the City of Elko Staff enter on my property only for the sole purpose of
inspecting said property as part of this application process.

D I object to having the City of Elko Staff enter onto my property as a part of their review of
this application. (Your objection will not affect the recommendation made by the staff or the final determination
made by the City Planning Commission or the City Council.)

Io I acknowledge that submission of this application does not imply approval of this request by
the City Planning Department, the City Planning Commission and the City Council, nor does it in
and of itself guarantee issuance of any other required permits and/or licenses.

GZ] I acknowledge that this application may be tabled until a later meeting if either lor my
designated representative or agent is not present at the meeting for which this application is
SChe?Uled.

[SJ/ I have carefully read and completed all questions contained within this application to the
best of my ability.



I am the owner of 910 Court Street, Elko NV 89801. I approve and consent to Jason Land applying for
both a variance and zone change to the aforementioned property. My mailing address is 101 Court
Street, ElkoNV89801. Furthermore, I can be reached at (775) 934-1150.

DearSir or Madam,

J;.,>! .1. i J 2 0 1 'City of Elko Planning Department

1751 College Avenue
Elko, NV 89801



For important additional information related to this email, visit www.edwardjones.com/dlsclosures/email.html. Edward D. Jones & Co., L.P. d/b/a Edward Jones,
12555 Manchester Road, St. Louis, MO 63131 © Edward Jones. All rights reserved.

If you do not wish to receive any email messages from Edward Jones, excluding administrative communications, please email this request to QQ1:
Out@edwardjones com from the email address you wish to unsubscribe.

If you are not the intended recipient of this message (including attachments) or if you have received this message in error, immediately notify us and delete it and
any attachments.

Jason Land, AAMS®
Financial Advisor
Edward Jones
2213 North 5th Street
Suite A
Elko, NV 89801-2458
(775) 738-8811
www.edwardjones.com

"The worst things you can do for the ones you love are the things they could and should do for themselves."-Abraham Lincoln

Administrative Questions?
diana.chaffin@edwardiones.com
brittany.sarman@edwardjones.com
We are unable to execute trade instructions via email

Jason B. Land, AAMS I Financial Advisor
2213 N. 5th Street, Suite A

Elko, NV 89801
Telephone: 775-738-8811

Fax: 888-789-5186

My Best

Thank you for your help today. My intent is to demolish the garage to make room for parking.

Cathy,

Land,Jason B <Jason.Land@edwardjones.com>
Wednesday, January 10, 2018 2:19 PM
Cathy Laughlin
910 Court Street

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Cathy Laughlin



Planning Commission Action SheetCreated on 09/27/2016

10.Agenda Distribution:

9. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner

8. Recommended Motion: Move to approve the 2017 Annual Report of Planning
Commission Activities as presented, and forward a recommendation to City Council
to approve the report.

7. Supplemental Agenda Information:

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required

5. Background Information: Pursuant to City Code Section 3-4-23, the Planning
Commission is required to prepare and present an annual report of its activities to
the City Council.

4. Time Required: 10 Minutes

3. Agenda Category: MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS, PETITIONS, AND COMMUNICATIONS

2. Meeting Date: February 6, 2018

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible action on the 2017 Annual Report of
Planning Commission activities. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Elko City Planning Commission
Agenda Action Sheet

Agenda Item # LB.1



Initial

2/, / IffCity Manager: Date:

Initial

Assistant City Manager: Date: /'/ ?u;//;

**If additional space is needed please provide a separate memorandum**

Ti

Title: '1.8)1\)1 (\ \l),,'I(lC
,i \ JApplicant(s): 'v 7\ .

I \-1;\Site Location: H,~~~---------------------------------------------------,'.
Current Zoning: /0 I '" Date Received: JJ; A Date Public Notice: Iv'/4

~l

c~ ~MENT: .~_:r--"--L..l1....!...+-;,1 ':-d-'\--->.i_,.b..L.:ll-,-·' -1"..<1-) ----"-Ap~......r:,......l( (""'-.:.\;:....:::'e'---qu~~£---'!.L=)~1!...._3..._··_0..J_~....!lo/C..::..Ll..._tJL.L.o..I..L.Ji}L.:::·,J>4-·"~(""-'.}_.L'-(....!....n...LLn~l~I(~..a..''''!..!...'IC~·'Q"---J'

).:.Y)t] 0\:(t~ ·b<?(XciI

STAFF COMMENT FLOW SHEET
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA DATE: 'Ill£,

**Do not use pencil or red pen, they do not reproduce* *





Am~lication 2017 2016 2015
Annexations 3 1 3
Boundary Line Adjustments (admin.) 1 4 4

Conditional Use Permits 6 4 10
Appeals (City Council) 1 0 0

Curb, Gutter, Sidewalk Waivers 1* (C.C.) 3* (C.C.) 5 (C.C)
Appeals (City Council) 0 0 0

Home Occupation Permits (admin.) 37* 43* 39*
Land Sales/Leases/Acquisitions (C.C.) 2* 2* 2*
Parcel Maps (mostly administrative) 8* 7 10*
Parking Waivers 0 0 1
Reversions to Acreage (City Council) 2 5 1
Revocable Permits (mostly City Council) 4 3 3*
Rezones 12 10 15*

Appeals (City Council) 0 0 1
Subdivisions

Pre-Applications, Stage 1 0 2 2
Preliminary Plats 2 2 2
Final Plats 2 4 6

Temporary Sign Clearances (admin.) 4 3 5
Temporary Use Permits 4 3 4
Vacations 1 3 9
Variances ..............................~............................~............................§.~
* see next page TOTAL 95 101 128

A summary of the tasks and accomplishments of the City
of Elko Planning Commission for the 2017 calendar year:

APPLICATIONS
PROCESSED



1- 2015 application on hold
2 - 2016 applications on hold
1- 2017 application on hold
1- 2017 application paid but never

fmished
1 - 2017 application withdrawn
2 - 2016 applications paid but never

finished
1- 2016 application withdrawn
2 - 2015 applications paid but never

finished
1 - 2017 application in progress
1 - 2015 application refunded
1 - 2015 application on hold
3 - 2017 applications refunded
1 - 2015 application refunded
1 - 2015 application refunded
1 - 2015 application withdrawn and money

applied to a new application
1 - 2015 application refundedVariances

Revocable Permits
Rezones

Parcel Maps

Land Sales/Leases/Acquisitions (C.C.)

Home Occupation Permits (admin.)

Application
Curb, Gutter, & Sidewalk Waivers

APPLICATIONS
PROCESSED Cont.



~ Commissioner Dalling is a member of the
Redevelopment Advisory Council and therefore
keeps the Planning Commission informed of
redevelopment happenings.

INTERACTION WITH and SUPPORT OF
the

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
and the

~DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY COUNCIL

~ Analyzed applications within the Redevelopment
Area for general conformance with the
Redevelopment Plan.



~ Review zoning for the RMH districts, revise map. (In
progress)

~ Zoning revisions or clarification on properties
throughout the City of Elko. (Ongoing)

~ Updated the City ofElko Land Inventory.

~ Final Stages of Amendment to The Land Use
Component, Transportation Component, and several
Atlas Maps of the City of Elko Master Plan. (In
Progress)

~ Completed a new zoning district along the 5th Street
corridor to be consistent with the City of Elko Master
Plan

CITYOFELKO
MASTER PLAN and other

PROJECT PLANS



~ Revisions to Sections 3-3 Subdivisions (In progress)

~ Revisions to the Section 3-9 Sign Ordinance. (In progress)

~ Revisions to the Planning Department applications and
fee schedule. (In Progress)

~ Add Section 3-2-29 Marijuana Establishments and
Medical Marijuana Establishments Prohibited. (In
Progress)

~ Ordinance 818 an update to Section 3-2-18 (G) for Home
Occupations was completed.

~ New Residential Business District for the 5th Street
Corridor was completed.

~ Section 3-2-22 Street Designs - Address rural road
standards for improvement. (In Progress)

CITYOFELKO
ZONING and SUBDIVISION
ORDINANCE and CITY CODE

AMENDMENTS

----------------------------------



2016 - $21,975 (difference of $1,050)

TOTAL FEES COLLECTED FOR 2017
$ 23,025

$ 1,075
$0

$ 1,825
$ 1,500
$ 1,200
$ 3,000
$ 7,125
$ 600

$ 1,800
$ 200

$ 800
$0

$ 1,425
$ 600

$ 1,600
$ 3,000
$ 6,925
$400
$ 600
$ 500

2017
$ 2,250
$ 4,875

$ 50

Annexations
Conditional Use Permits
Curb, Gutter and Sidewalk

Waivers
Home Occupation Permits
Parking Waivers
Parcel Maps
Reversions to Acreage
Revocable Permits
Rezones
Subdivisions
Temporary Use Permits
Vacations
Variances

PLANNING DEPARTMENT
FILING FEES COLLECTED

2016
$ 500

$ 3,000
$150



Planning COlil'Rlission Action Sk~et··Created 'on'111612018

f~;'f~~.~~l~~;p:e::..d(l~ ljl'ltv'i~e.l1\j.'::f~~tlJl~~~l(tl~,';.f~r· c8tJtinued tigllt·~.:lil~t iatJiaria"~li~es~Jo)lg~Rlt,\)f~istk,·~jwe~;F:@;<Mi'norArteri~l.a-nd
Star .. '.: :"~7"" :ft/Jn((i~ttii\l;':'G~lJet~'~ri$Uiil;tg~41)~~;U1~,en!::~ddb'e~t uses, of the
p:fQpes,~8'roadways., - . "

• TheD'evelopmeltt F'eas~bUi:ty'r~t~Btl-lJ~se,Watt}r Infrast.t.u.Q>tu~ef Sailit~ry Sewer
IDfr~'Strlteturet 'fran$p'hr,t~tiQIlInflf.~s~thl~t4\11eaad AllneXa·tioD' 'pot.~n:tiabRepl)ur;t
dateel'NQvelI12iler.2()12, it}e;lttifies the area as. hav-ing potsential for ann~~afiolli

(C~Dtinued OD Back)

",,_

9. Findings: , "'., .
• Tbe'anne§ajw1JA'S;¢o>~s!~f: wi,t~ct-be City's Laud Use Compooent'oflll'e Mas~etPbtu.
_ Th:e"pl"()pg$e4zEmillg.:,n~,·' .,...ltt4~tffat, ~omm~eial wauld ensure c0D.forPilIanee with
tire land use d~s~igniali1fli~S',owniwthe'M3"Ster Plan.· ~::~~IUJ.isc1~1\Yifltt~~it'f' J!Transportllti(JuCIJUlPQfiWffl\the~ster

• A!,ACXra'tioJl Q:f ttie;:',ro:pert~lp,to-vid,es an immedia',f'a'C:U'tnal.:tQ. the tax bacse for tke .
C~, I I .

< 1

. '., I . ,
5. Baekgro\uidHnfovmatkm', 'Iltlis;ubJect,pre,p,erty is located n()tllteas;U)lth~jri~ers~~ction

(),f Staticcc :S!5~'f~1lc<l:n"C"~llvareAv-en<u~.·(APN -8f)'6~~flC$i~106).,The'Pfo()p~;rty,owller
- rec,elffl.y a~'l!!tt;~p(:Jf~:-c ',:Ol>i~rtyfr,om the State 0,1Nev.,a:da~.

:';'~<':;-:"L.;" .;- . . J

6. BuSiDeSS'Im~Xi~tS1atemee~Dt#R~~Ui:.ed... '. . 0" '. '. • •

7. ~n:~::lc1:~!rln~:A~,~atioo, M~_'~bm De~~nwnt»ue~ror,

8. . R.'.;.ec.,~..~p..'.'~.'.:.,~.".e.-.~~.I".;~.:".'.·'.',~,'.'.r.i.~.';:;1,1.:0..'.•.t.'.i~.'.'.'."O"". '.t_..~.f:.,.o..ny..C,.', 0 '.: If. r.'.tl.•.•II..,.,=r.".,.C1._.,. ~,u:.m.:, ~.,_..m.",~B.',.d., ~w. t.i~D t~.,'~ily...•,',[~,&u..·'~:~..~l'to, atl~."p,tan,orMnange~rw:lij:ch1~o~lIJ'~9D.I~apprb'les :ADn~~attonNu~:l..t7 s,.gb:Ject to- tbe
foJ)dwing. ~~l1.diti.ou:s~;{t\Sat,e' '.in City, P'laDtler memo) \

,:",,:,(,

4.

3.

1. Title: Recvi~wana el)llsi(ler~lgu Q(Annexa;tion No, 3-17, filed ~ySureb~eelloldings,
.LUe, coJtBisting. Df ap~6~tJx(~1~11-:<~~:;~'aeres of :l'l~;6,efey..•~~~t-lll~~'D'(JrtJieoast .D£.th,e
int~rs:ectilO'l1:~f 'Statice\ St1fe~t1fn.ftll:eIjt.W~l'I~ceAven.ue~!apd l))~dl~l!sijte1.a'ed~.b6fet8" ,FOR.
PO;SSIBt~i~CTION ' J"" ,-~ , -:

~' :).,

o Oity PlanniiB'g (joll1mission
Agenda Acdo'll'Stieet

Agenda Item # I.B.2.



Initial

City Manager: Date: ;Lit /1 ff

Initial

'7

2t?[C:' /1/})M e'»t.f'Assistant City Manager: Date: //2&/IB
/ .

<t -5 P I~>fs -r t-/( l~(/ 1> '-I S' / (-r,l/,
~ I / li

**If additional space is needed please provide a separate memorandum**

Current Zoning: (jiG\hf,cil,M,\.lY,DateReceived: )\ ID1./LJ Date Public Notice: S2-;\ bQ._!Jj.0
COMM~NT: 11'11:' 1:\ --tb Cmnex Qf}~' (Q 7 c;; O~(~:; I';ID '-!i,i-¬ Ci~

\ \ m,\s \OCo:±u). CD 4\z& J\jcf-li·\.Q(t:~)j CCU1(-'Nr a1 31< til (" ')"Pee'1 a..y~

Title: ,i:&Jntx(T±ioY1 2-I] ~
Applicant(s): S){ehec Btlkiw"'js I LLC
S · L . 0-':'0' I 1- r r-; '" ( /\ \,., '"ite ocation: 'I C - u\- -l._)Li l) - / ~ t CC:rntN

STAFF COMMENT FLOW SHEET
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA DATE: '2/to

* *Do not use pencil or red pen, they do not reproduce* *



Page 1 of 10

RECOMMEND APPROVAL, subject to findings of fact and conditions as stated in this report.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

An annexation of approximately 62.03 acres. The parcel is located in Elko County adjacent
to city property as shown below.

January 26, 2018
February 6, 2018
I. B. 2.
Annexation 2-17
Surebrec Holdings, LLC
62.03 Acres
Rezone 10-17

DATE:
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE:
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER:
APPLICATION NUMBER:
APPLICANT:
PROJECT DESCRIPTION:
ADDITIONAL APPLICATION:

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

City of Elko
1751 College Avenue

Elko, NV 89801
(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7119



Page 2 of 10

1. The petition has been filed by Surebrec Holdings, LLC.
2. The applicant owns the property.
3. The petition includes all of APN 006-10C-006Iying northwesterly of the 1-80 interstate

right-of-way. The area was a portion of a larger property controlled by the State of

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

• City ofElko Master Plan - Land Use Component
• City of Elko Master Plan - Transportation Component
• City of Elko Development Feasibility, Land Use, Water Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer

Infrastructure, Transportation Infrastructure and Annexation Potential Report dated
November 2012

• Nevada Revised Statutes - 268.610 to 268.670, inclusive
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts
• City of Elko Wellhead Protection Program

Applicable Master Plan Sections, NRS Sections and City Code Sections and other coordinating
plans are:

MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODE SECTIONS:

• The property is currently undeveloped.
• The property will be accessed from Ruby Vista Drive and Statice Street

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:

• The property is surrounded by:
o North: Elko County Property / Undeveloped
o West: Elko County Property / Partially developed Residential
o South: Industrial Business Park (IBP) / Developed
o East: 1-80corridor

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:

UndevelopedEXISTING LAND USE:

Industrial Business Park (IND-BS PARK)MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION:

General Agriculture (Elko County) applicant has
requested Industrial Commercial zoning under
rezone application 10-17

EXISTING ZONING:

62.03 AcresPARCEL SIZE:

006-10C-006PARCEL NUMBER:

PROJECT INFORMATION

ANNEXATION 2-17
Surebrec Holdings, LLC
APN: 006-1 OC-006



Page 3 of 10

1. Land Use is shown as Industrial Business Park.
2. The petitioner has filed an application for an Industrial/Commercial (lC) district to be

designated on the property upon annexation of the property. The application will be
processed in conjunction with the annexation application but acted on separately.

3. Supporting zone districts for Industrial Business Park are Industrial Business Park, Light
Industrial and Industrial Commercial.

4. Objective 5: Encourage development that strengthens the core of the City, and new
annexations that are logical and orderly and do not promote sprawl.

5. Objective 7: Promote high quality and visually appealing industrial uses, where
appropriate, to promote economic sustainability and strengthen the community's image.

Land Use:

MASTER PLAN:

Nevada. The City Council took action May 23, 2017 committing two-acre feet of water to
Surebrec Holdings LLC in order to facilitate County approval of the parcel map to
facilitate transfer of ownership.

4. The City Council accepted the petition for the subject annexation on January 23, 2018,
and directed Staff to continue with the annexation process by referring the matter to the
Planning Commission.

5. Annexation of the property is consistent with the Master Plan Landuse Component and
Transportation Component of the plan.

6. The area fronts the 1-80 corridor and Statice Street.
7. The area is identified as having annexation potential in the adopted Development

Feasibility, Land Use, Water Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer Infrastructure, Transportation
Infrastructure and Annexation Potential Report dated November 2012.

8. City water mains are located adjacent to the 1-80 frontage and the Statice Street frontage
9. Sanitary sewer exists in Ruby Vista Drive but is too shallow to be utilized as a point of

connection for gravity service. A lift station and forced main could be considered for this
point of connection. A more practical point of connection would require a bore under 1-
80 to a point of connection near Union Pacific Way.

10. Other non-city utilities are located in the immediate vicinity.
11. Annexation of the property promotes the extension of Ruby Vista Drive as a frontage

roadway adjacent to the 1-80 corridor.
12. The property is encumbered with several utility easements. All the easement are logically

located with the exception of the unknown location of an AT&T utility. There is an
existing easement and utility agreement between the State of Nevada and the City that
will require amendment. The agreement contains provisions governing utility easements
located on the property. The applicant is agreeable to the proposed amendments. City
Council accepted the petition for the subject annexation on January 23, 2018, and
directed Staff to continue with the annexation process by referring the matter to the
Planning Commission.

13. Elko County was notified of the proposed annexation on January 16,2018. They
responded on January 24, 2018 with no concerns.

14. The applicant has requested an Industrial/Commercial zone classification for the area
upon annexation of the property. The application is being processed concurrent with the
annexation application.

ANNEXATION 2-17
Surebrec Holdings, LLC
APN: 006-1 OC-006



The property owner's representative has submitted the required map. The applicant owns the
entire area proposed for annexation. The property boundary is approximately 7,149.86 feet with
3,431 feet contiguous to City of Elko boundary on the south, 1-80frontage and east lot lines. This

NRS 268.636(1) states whenever the majority of property owners of any territory lying
contiguous to a city desire to annex such territory to the city, they may cause an accurate map of
plat of the territory to be made under the supervision of a competent surveyor. The map is to be
filed with the city.

NEVADA REVISED STATUTE:

The proposed annexation is consistent with the goals, objectives and supports long range
planning as outlined in the report.

Page 4 of 10

1. The area is identified as having annexation potential as shown in the adopted
Development Feasibility, Land Use, Water Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer Infrastructure,
Transportation Infrastructure and Annexation Potential Report dated November 2012.

2. The area can be served ofthe existing 5400 water zone. There is a 24-inch water line
along the frontage of Statice Street. There is a 24-inch water line fronting the property on
the 1-80frontage.

3. There is power located on Statice Street frontage as well as at the intersection of Ruby
Vista Dr. and Statice Street.

4. There is natural gas located at the intersection of Ruby Vista Dr. and Statice Street.
5. Developable area is estimated to be approximately 62.03 acres less typical roadway and

utility reductions.
6. The property is currently undeveloped.
7. Sewer is currently not available in this location. Design of sewer may take into

consideration boring under 1-80to Union Pacific Way.
8. Annexation of the area is logical and orderly and supports long range planning in the

City's Master Plan.

DEVELOPMENT FEASIBILITY, LAND USE, WATER INFRASTRUCTURE,
SANITARY SEWER INFRASTRUCTURE, TRANSPORTATION INFRASTRUCTURE
AND ANNEXATION POTENTIAL REPORT - NOVEMBER 2012

The proposed annexation is compatible with the Transportation Component of the Master Plan.
Master Plan.

1. The area will be accessed from Statice Street or Ruby Vista Drive. The area could also be
accessed from Delaware Avenue, which would be considered a secondary access.

2. Statice Street is classified as an Industrial Collector.
3. Ruby Vista Drive is classified as a Minor Arterial.
4. Delaware Avenue is classified as a local roadway.

Transportation:

The proposed annexation is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master Plan.

6. Objective 8: Encourage new development that does not negatively impact countywide
natural systems, or public/federallands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages,
floodplains etc., or pose a danger to human health and safety.

ANNEXATION 2-17
Surebrec Holdings, LLC
APN: 006-IOC-006



Page 5 of 10

Sanitary sewer does not exist in the immediate area. Sewer service will be extended into the area
as property development occurs.

Sewer

The proposed zoning would be complimentary to the land use shown in the Master Plan.

The application identifies the zoning classification that is being requested upon annexation of the
property as Industrial Commercial. The purpose of the (IC) Industrial Commercial zoning
district is to provide and preserve transitional areas characterized by surrounding commercial and
industrial districts appropriate for a mixture of commercial uses and small scale industrial uses
which are not associated with excessive levels of noise, dust, odor, vibration or smoke.

The property is undeveloped. The property is large enough to support parceling or subdivision as
it is currently one large undeveloped parcel.

Land Division and Potential Zoning

Annexation of the property does provide the opportunity to provide continued light industrial and
commercial land uses along Ruby Vista Dr.

General

NRS 268.646 (2) requires the evaluation for the need for organized community services, the
present cost of and adequacy of governmental services and controls in the area, probable future
needs for such services and controls, and the probable effect of the proposed formation and of
alternative courses of action on the cost and adequacy of services and controls in the area and
adjacent area.

There is a high probability of property development based on recent and current property
development in the immediate vicinity. There is a lack of additional acreage for this type of land
use promoting efficient utilization of the existing and proposed roadways located in this area of
the community.

The location and proposed land uses of the area are supported by existing and proposed
roadways.

The topography of the area is well suited for the proposed commercial and light industrial land
uses.

The total area proposed for annexation is approximately 62.03 acres.

NRS 268.646(1) requires the evaluation of factors such as population, population density, land
area and land uses, per capita assessed valuation, topography, proximity to other populated areas
and the likelihood of significant growth within the next 10 years in the area and adjacent areas.

NRS 268.646 requires minimum factors to be considered in the review of a proposed
annexation.

equates to approximately 48% of the property boundary as contiguous to the City's incorporated
boundary.

ANNEXATION 2-17
Surebrec Holdings, LLC
APN: 006-IOC-006



Page 6 of 10

Proper storm water controls would mitigate any potential impacts from storm water runoff.

The Council has taken action, subsequent to the adoption of the report, to approve a realignment
of Errecart Blvd. reducing area required for annexation along the Errecart Blvd alignment. This
decision has resulted in a net reduction of projected water consumption by over 500 acre feet,
nearly offsetting the projected deficit referenced.

The City currently has approximately 18,000-acre feet of water rights available and is utilizing
approximately 50% of that supply. Based on the Development Feasibility, Land Use, Water
Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer Infrastructure, Transportation Infrastructure and Annexation
Potential Report dated November 2012, there was projected deficit of 700 - 800 (3.8% - 4.4%
of the total) acre feet of water to serve annexed areas in addition to areas identified as a having
annexation potential. Upon adoption of the report, the Council determined that through
optimization of the plan and optimization of water usage, the projected shortfall did not present a
significant concern. Areas identified in the report as having annexation potential provide orderly
and logical growth of the City and are generally aligned with future transportation and utility
corridors.

Annexation and development of the property will not adversely influence the local government
structure of the County nor the City.

NRS 268.646(4) requires the evaluation of the proposed annexation and of alternative actions
upon the availability of water and requirement of water and other natural resources throughout
the affected area.

Development of the property will result in a positive economic impact to the community.

Annexation of the property is not expected to have any long-term adverse impacts on adjacent
areas. The area fronts the 1-80 right-of-way and light industrial development. The area is
isolated from County residential development by either developed roadways or access
easements. Code requirements for property development and uses allowed in the proposed
district and/or the designated land use in the Master Plan will ensure that property development
will not have an adverse impact on surrounding areas.

NRS 268.646(3) requires the evaluation of the proposed annexation and of alternative actions on
adjacent areas, on mutual social and economic interests and on local governmental structure of
the county.

The size and location of the property will not place any significant burden on other City services.

Other Services

Primary access will be from Statice Street, an Industrial Collector and/or from Ruby Vista Drive,
a Minor Arterial.

Access

City of Elko water exists in the immediate area. The property can be served off the existing 5400
water zone with the water line that exists on the Statice Street frontage as well as the line existing
on the 1-80frontage.

Water

ANNEXATION 2-17
Surebrec Holdings, LLC
APN: 006-IOC-006



Page 7 of 10

The petitioner has filed an application for an Industrial/Commercial (lC) district to be designated
on the property upon annexation of the property. The application will be processed in

City Code Section 3-2-4

Statice Street as a partially developed roadway located within the City's incorporated boundary.
Statice Street has been developed within an existing 62' wide roadway easement. Staff is
recommending as a condition of the annexation that the applicant to dedicate Statice Street 20'
wide easement as a right-of-way allowing for the development and full build out of Statice Street
to be utilized as primary access to the parcel.

Ruby Vista Drive currently ends at the intersection of Statice Street. Staff is recommending a
condition of the annexation that the applicant to dedicate Ruby Vista Drive frontage as a right
of-way allowing for the development of the roadway for primary access to the parcel and a
continuation of Ruby Vista Drive. The right-of-way will connect to right-of-way of record
acquired under prior annexations.

Delaware Avenue is currently a partially developed County roadway. The westerly portion of the
roadway (developed) is dedicated right-of-way. The easterly portion of the roadway is recorded
as an access easement and is undeveloped. Staff is recommending a condition of the annexation
for the applicant to dedicate the easement portion of the roadway as a right-of-way allowing for
the potential development of the roadway if required. The dedication of right-of-way would
extend past the Delaware Ave. and Aster Street intersection. Delaware Avenue will not be the
primary access to the property but may be developed as a secondary access.

NRS 268.663(3) requires the portions of the county roads, which provide the primary access to
the subdivision, are also annexed and become city streets.

The Land Use component of the Master Plan contains an exhibit showing the area as Industrial
Business Park, which is consistent with the corresponding zoning district of Industrial
Commercial.

The City of Elko Master Plans specifically addresses the annexation of property under Objective
5 as outlined in Best Practice 5.1 and Best Practice 5.3. City Staff has identified areas having
potential for annexation that promote logical and orderly growth of the community. Those areas
are identified in the adopted Development Feasibility, Land Use, Water Infrastructure, Sanitary
Sewer Infrastructure, Transportation Infrastructure and Annexation Potential Report dated
November 2012. The proposed annexation is in an area that is identified as having annexation
potential.

NRS 268.646(6) requires a determination that the annexation is consistent with any applicable
comprehensive regional plan, area plan or master plan and any program of annexation adopted
and certified pursuant to NRS 268.625.

NRS 268.646(5) requires a determination by the Bureau of Land Management that the territory
proposed to be annexed is suitable for residential, commercial, or industrial development, or will
be opened to private acquisition.

The area proposed for annexation does not fall under the jurisdiction of the Bureau of Land
Management.

Annexation of the property will not negatively impact other natural resources in the area.

ANNEXATION 2-17
Surebrec Holdings, LLC
APN: 006-1OC-006



Page 8 of 10

8. Annexation of the area will not have any immediate or negative impact on City resources.
The area is located within the existing 5400 water zone and can be served from existing
infrastructure.

7. The area proposed for annexation promotes development of future transportation and
utility corridors thus promoting future growth opportunities for the City.

6. The area proposed for annexation is not localized or isolated.

5. The Development Feasibility, Land Use, Water Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer
Infrastructure, Transportation Infrastructure and Annexation Potential Report dated
November 2012, identifies the area as having potential for annexation.

4. Annexation of the property does provide the opportunity for continued Light Industrial
and Commercial land uses along Ruby Vista Drive, a Minor Arterial and Statice Street,
an Industrial Collector ensuring the highest and best uses of the proposed roadways.

3. Annexation of the property provides an immediate accrual to the tax base for the City.

2. The annexation is consistent with the City's Transportation Component of the Master
Plan.

1. The annexation is consistent with the City's Land Use Component of the Master Plan.
The proposed zoning of IC- Industrial Commercial would ensure conformance with the
land use designation shown in the Master Plan.

FINDINGS

The property is adjacent to an existing well and therefore a portion of the property is within the
2-year capture zone and the remainder of the parcel is within the 5-year capture zone. Future
development will require conformance to the City of Elko Wellhead Protection Program.

CITY OF ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PROGRAM

The following section of code provides the Planning Commission and City Council the
discretion to designate an appropriate zone district after holding the appropriate public hearing:

Section 3-2-4 D. Classification Of Annexed Areas: All territory which is annexed to the
city after the effective date hereof shall be zoned upon annexation AG general
agriculture, unless the planning commission shall recommend and/or the city council
shall otherwise designate the zoning district after holding duly advertised public hearings
in accordance with section 3-2-21 of this chapter. As part of considering any petition for
annexation of territory to the city, a review of conformance with the city master plan,
including land use designation, shall be performed by the planning commission, with
recommendations forwarded to the city council. If said annexation necessitates
substantial amendment to the master plan, the planning commission may adopt such
amendment only after holding duly advertised public hearings in accordance with Nevada
Revised Statutes section 278.210.

conjunction with the annexation application but acted on separately.

ANNEXATION 2-17
Surebrec Holdings, LLC
APN: 006-10C-006

.----------------~---.-.---------.----------



Page 9 of 10

1. The property owners shall receive approval for a zone designation for the property to be
consistent with the Land Use designation in the City of Elko Master Plan.

2. The property owners present a deed of dedication for right-of-way for Delaware Street,
Statice Street, and Ruby Vista Drive, within 45 days of acceptance of the annexation by
the City. The property owner shall work with City on the alignment of these right-of
ways prior to being offered for dedication.

3. It appears from map 730066 that the property may be encumbered by an existing
easement for ATT fiber, the map does not indicate the location of this easement through
the parcel. The property owner shall contact AT&T, verify the location of the AT&T
easement, and provide documentation of that location to the City. This condition is to be
satisfied prior to concurrent with property development.

Development Department:

1. The applicant enters into an agreement with the City relinquishing or identifying any
residual rights that may exist under the agreement between the State of Nevada and the
City.

2. Right-of-Way for Delaware Avenue shall offered for dedication through the intersection
with Aster Street. The offer of dedication shall be filed with the City with 45 days of
annexation.

3. Right-of Way for Statice Street shall be offered for dedication from the intersection of
Delaware Avenue extending to the intersecting property line of APN 001-860-065. The
remainder of the easement shall remain for the designated use. The offer of dedication
shall be filed with the City with 45 days of annexation.

4. Right-of Way for Ruby Vista shall be offered for dedication connecting existing right-of
way to the west and to the east. The offer of dedication shall be filed with the City with
45 days of annexation.

Planning Department:

Staff recommends conditional approval of Annexation 2-17 to be forwarded to the City Council
based on the conditions outlined below. If approved by the City Council, the conditions will be
included in the annexation ordinance.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

13.The proposed annexation satisfies considerations and/or concerns identified as minimum
factors for consideration under NRS 268.646

12.Annexation and development of the property will not adversely influence the local
government structure of the County nor the City.

11.Development of the property will result in a positive economic impact to the community.

10. The topography of the area is well suited for the proposed commercial and light industrial
land uses.

9. Other, required, utilities such as sewer, power and gas will be installed at developer
expense to facilitate development of the property.

ANNEXATION 2-17
Surebrec Holdings, LLC
APN: 006-IOC-006



Page 10of 10

1. Applicant vacates the existing waterline easements and replaces the easements with a
right-of-way.

Utility Department:

ANNEXATION 2-17
Surebrec Holdings, LLC
APN: 006-IOC-006



C:\Users\sknopp\Downloads\Annex 2-17 Surebrec PC 011818 (2).docx
Created by Jeremy Draper

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

• City of Elko Master Plan - Land Use Component
• City of Elko Master Plan - Streets and Highways Component
• City of Elko Development Feasibility, Land Use, Water Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer

Infrastructure, Transportation Infrastructure and Annexation Potential Report dated
November 2012

• Nevada Revised Statutes - 268.610 to 268.670, inclusive
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-4 Zoning Districts
• City of Elko Wellhead Protection Program

The City of Elko Development Department has reviewed the annexation application offers the
following comments for consideration to aid the Planning Commission's review of the above
referenced application: Applicable Master Plan Sections, NRS Sections and City Code Sections
and other coordinating plans are:

To: Planning Commission
From: Jeremy Draper, Development Department
Date: January 18, 2018
Re: Annexation Petition 2-17, Surebrec Holding, LLC

CITY OF ELKO
DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

1755 COLLEGE AVENUE
ELKO, NEVADA 89801

(775)777-7210
(775)777-7219 FAX



1. The area fronts Statice Street, an Industrial Collector, Ruby Vista Drive, a Minor Arterial,
and Delaware Street, a local roadway.

2. Delaware Street currently exists as a 30' wide roadway within Section 35, and a 30' wide
easement and right-of-way within Section 36 on the property considered for annexation.
As a condition of annexation this 30' easement should be offered for dedication as right
of-way.

3. Statice Street exists as an existing 62' wide future roadway, access, drainage and utility
easement within the City, on the properties south of this property considered for
annexation. There is an existing 20' wide waterline easement along the southern
property line and adjacent to the roadway easement. The developer shall dedicate this
20' easement as right-of-way, expanding the right-of-way at the Delaware Street
intersection to provide a better alignment up to a point where Statice Street changes
directions, the remainder should be dedicated as a utility easement.

1. Land Use is shown as Industrial Business Park.
2. The petitioner has submitted an application, rezone 10-17, for the rezone to an IC

Industrial Commercial District.
3. Section 3-2-4-D of City Code states that a review of conformance with the City master

plan, including land use designation shall be performed by the planning commission.
The applicant has applied for a rezone to an IC-Industrial Commercial District zone.

4. Objective 7: Promote high quality and visually appealing industrial uses, where
appropriate, to ensure economic sustainability as well as strengthen the community's
image.

5. Objective 8: Ensure that new development does not negatively impact County-wide
natural systems, or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages,
floodplains etc., or pose a danger to human health and safety.

Transportation:

MASTER PLAN:
Land Use:

Page 2 of 7

1. The petition includes that portion of APN 006-10C-006 lying just north of the intersection
of Ruby Vista Drive and Statice St and contains approximately 62.03 acres of land.

2. The area is identified as having annexation potential as shown in the adopted
Development Feasibility, Land Use, Water Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer Infrastructure,
Transportation Infrastructure and Annexation Potential Report dated November 2012.

3. The area fronts Statice Street, Ruby Vista Drive and Delaware Avenue.
4. There is City water and City sewer within the vicinity of the property.
5. The City has a non-exclusive waterline easement as was granted by the State and is

record number 604499. It appears that this agreement provided for a specific number of
water taps in part for the easements being granted.

6. Other non-city utilizes are located in the immediate area.
7. The area was included in the land use component of the master plan showing the area

as Industrial Business Park.
8. The applicant has indicated they will request a rezone for an Industrial Commercial

District in conjunction with the annexation application, this is being reviewed as rezone
application 10-17.

9. The proposed annexation is logical and orderly.



The property is currently undeveloped and proposed to be developed as an IC property. There
are existing county residential properties to the west of this property that appear to be fully
developed. The proposed zone does provide for a mix of commercial and industrial properties.
It does not appear that there will be any adverse effects on population or significant growth in
population resulting from this annexation.

The total annexed area consists of approximately 62.03 acres.

NRS 268.646(1) requires the evaluation of factors such as population, population density, land
area and land uses, per capita assessed valuation, topography, proximity to other populated
areas and the likelihood of significant growth within the next 10 years in the area and adjacent
areas.

NRS 268.646 requires minimum factors to be considered in the review of a proposed
annexation.

The property owner's representative has submitted the required map.

NRS 268.636(1) states whenever the majority of property owners of any territory lying
contiguous to a city desire to annex such territory to the city, they may cause an accurate map
of plat of the territory to be made under the supervision of a competent surveyor. The map is to
be filed with the city.

NEVADA REVISED STATUTE:

1. The area is identified as having annexation potential.
2. This area is adjacent to developed property currently located within the incorporated

boundary of the City.
3. The area can be served off of the existing 5400 water zone. A water line is existing in

Statice Street and Ruby Vista Drive.
4. Developable area is estimated to be approximately 62.03 acres, the property is currently

undeveloped. For industrial properties the assumed density is approximately 1 unit per
13.4 acres, or a total of 4.6 units of Industrial property. The assumption for commercial
properties is 1 unit per 2.5 acres, or a total of 24.8 units of Commercial property. It can
be anticipated as this property develops within the IC zoning district a mixture of
Industrial and Commercial uses will be developed.

5. Sewer is currently unavailable in this location. There is a sewer main within the Ruby
Vista Drive right-of-way, approximately 700' southwest of this property within the Ruby
Vista Drive right-of-way. However this sewer main is too shallow to be extended and
provide service to this property. The City utility plan identified this area to be served by
sewer resulting from a bore underneath 1-80.

6. Annexation of the area is logical and orderly.

DEVELOPMENT FEASIBILITY, LAND USE, WATER INFRASTRUCTURE,
SANITARY SEWER INFRASTRUCTURE, TRANSPORTATION INFRASTRUCTURE
AND ANNEXATION POTENTIAL REPORT - NOVEMBER 2012

Page 3 of 7

4. Ruby Vista Drive contains a 20' waterline easement over the existing waterline. The City
has determined the appropriate alignment for Ruby Vista Drive and has completed a
legal description for this right-of-way this right-of-way shall be offered for dedication as
part of the annexation.



The size and location of the property is not expected to place any significant burden on other
City services.

Other Services

A proposed layout of facilities has not been provided for this property but it is expected that
primary access will be from either Ruby Vista Drive, or Statice Street.

Access

City of Elko water service exists in the Ruby Vista Drive and Statice Street areas, this property
can be serviced from the existing 5400 water zone.

Sewer is currently unavailable in this location. There is a sewer main within the Ruby Vista Drive
right-of-way, approximately 700' southwest of this property within the Ruby Vista Drive right-of
way. However this sewer main is too shallow to be extended and provide service to this
property. The City utility plan identified this area to be served by sewer resulting from a bore
underneath 1-80.

The purpose of the IC zoning district is to provide and preserve transitional areas characterized
by surrounding commercial and industrial districts appropriate for a mixture of commercial uses
and small scale industrial uses which are not associated with excessive levels of noise, dust,
odor, vibration or smoke.

Sewer

The application identifies the zoning classification requested upon annexation as IC-Industrial
Commercial.

The property is undeveloped. Developable area is estimated to be approximately 62.03 acres,
the property is currently undeveloped. For industrial properties the assumed density is
approximately 1 unit per 13.4 acres, or a total of 4.6 units of Industrial property. The assumption
for commercial properties is 1 unit per 2.5 acres, or a total of 24.8 units of Commercial property.
It can be anticipated as this property develops within the IC zoning district a mixture of Industrial
and Commercial uses will be developed.

Land Division and Potential Zoning

Annexation of the property does provide the opportunity to provide continued light industrial land
use along Ruby Vista Drive, a Minor Arterial.

General

NRS 268.646 (2) requires the evaluation for the need for organized community services, the
present cost of and adequacy of governmental services and controls in the area, probable future
needs for such services and controls, and the probable effect of the proposed formation and of
alternative courses of action on the cost and adequacy of services and controls in the area and
adjacent area.

Page 4 of 7



City Code Section 3-2-4

Delaware Street exists partially as a dedicated right-of-way and partially as an easement, a
condition of annexation will be dedicate the other half of this right-of-way. It is not anticipated
that this right-of-way will provide primary access to this parcel.

NRS 268.663(3) requires the portions of the county roads which provide the primary access to
the subdivision are also annexed and become city streets.

The Land Use component of the Master Plan contains an exhibit showing the area as industrial
business park.

The City of Elko Master Plans specifically addresses the annexation of property under Objective
5 as outlined in Best Practice 5.1 and Best Practice 5.3. City Staff has identified areas having
potential for annexation that promote logical and orderly growth of the community. The
proposed annexation is in an area that is identified as having annexation potential.

NRS 268.646(6) requires a determination that the annexation is consistent with any applicable
comprehensive regional plan, area plan or master plan and any program of annexation adopted
and certified pursuant to NRS 268.625.

The area proposed for annexation does not fall under the jurisdiction of the Bureau of Land
Management.

NRS 268.646(5) requires a determination by the Bureau of Land Management that the territory
proposed to be annexed is suitable for residential, commercial, or industrial development, or will
be opened to private acquisition.

Annexation of the property will not negatively impact other natural resources in the area.

Proper storm water controls would mitigate any potential impacts from storm water runoff.

The City currently has approximately 18,000 acre feet of water rights available and is utilizing
approximately 50% of that supply. Based on the Development Feasibility, Land Use,Water
Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer Infrastructure, Transportation Infrastructure and Annexation
Potential Report dated November 2012, the City could face a potential shortfall of 700 - 800
acre feet of water to serve annexed areas in addition to areas identified as a having annexation
potential. Areas identified as having annexation potential provide orderly and logical growth of
the City and are generally aligned with future transportation corridors.

NRS 268.646(4) requires the evaluation of the proposed annexation and of alternative actions
upon the availability of water and requirement of water and other natural resources throughout
the affected area.

Annexation of the property is not expected to have any long-term adverse impacts on adjacent
areas.

NRS 268.646(3) requires the evaluation of the proposed annexation and of alternative actions
on adjacent areas, on mutual social and economic interests and on local governmental structure
of the county.

Page 5 of 7



FINDINGS

5. The property is currently developed and the property owners have indicated they wish to
subdivide the property.

4. Maintenance obligations are not a concern with the annexation of the property. City
obligations for infrastructure maintenance will occur as the property develops.

1. The annexation is consistent with the City' Land Use Component of the Master Plan.
Appropriate zoning of the property is required as the property develops to ensure
conformance with the land use designation shown in the Master Plan.

3. The City resources committed in support for development of the property under an IC
land use are minimal.

2. The area is identified in the Master Plan as suitable for industrial business park land use.

1. The area is identified as having annexation potential in the Development Feasibility,
Land Use,Water Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer Infrastructure, Transportation
Infrastructure and Annexation Potential Report dated November 2012. The annexation
of this property appears to promote the logical and orderly growth of the City.

Factors for consideration

SUMMARY

The property is located within the 5 year capture area, with a portion in the southeast corner of
the property within the 2 year capture area of the wellhead protection area. Conformance with
this plan is required.

CITY OF ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PROGRAM

Section 3-2-4 D. Classification Of Annexed Areas: All territory which is annexed to the
city after the effective date hereof shall be zoned upon annexation AG general
agriculture, unless the planning commission shall recommend and/or the city council
shall otherwise designate the zoning district after holding duly advertised public hearings
in accordance with section 3-2-21 of this chapter. As part of considering any petition for
annexation of territory to the city, a review of conformance with the city master plan,
including land use designation, shall be performed by the planning commission, with
recommendations forwarded to the city council. If said annexation necessitates
substantial amendment to the master plan, the planning commission may adopt such
amendment only after holding duly advertised public hearings in accordance with
Nevada Revised Statutes section 278.210.

The following section of code provides the PC and CC the discretion to designate an
appropriate zone district after holding the appropriate public hearing:

A companion rezone application has been filed with the City requesting a zone of IC-Industrial
Commercial.

Page 6 of 7



1. The property owners shall receive a rezone of their property to be consistent with the
Land Use designation in the City of Elko Master Plan.

2. The property owners present a deed of dedication for right-of-way for Delaware Street,
Statice Street, and Ruby Vista Drive, within 45 days of acceptance of the annexation by
the City. The property owner shall work with City on the alignment of these right-of-ways
prior to being offered for dedication.

3. It appears from map 730066 that the property may be encumbered by an existing
easement for ATT fiber, the map does not indicate the location of this easement through
the parcel. The property owner shall contact AT&T and verify the location of the AT&T
easement and provide documentation of that location to the City.

The City of Elko Development Department recommends approval of Annexation 2-17 be
forwarded to the City Council based on the following conditions:

RECOMMENDATION

5. Annexation of the area is not expected to have any immediate or negative impact on City
resources. The area can be served from the existing 5400 water zone. Additional utility
and roadway infrastructure will be installed at developer expense to facilitate
development of the property.

4. The area proposed for annexation is not localized, isolated and does promote future
transportation and utility corridors promoting future growth opportunities within the City.

3. The Development Feasibility, Land Use,Water Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer
Infrastructure, Transportation Infrastructure and Annexation Potential Report dated
November 2012, identifies the area as having potential for annexation.

2. The annexation is consistent with the City' Transportation Component of the Master
Plan.

Page 7 of 7



"~,,~I~' "," ~t eo .. ,OUI";,O
D'.i>",_"r'Vj\ml'l ""'1"'.""'" ,,~, (AX:'6,\ 0

oo~

o

oo~

oo
C()

w
_j

« ....
Uw
U1~

zu-_w
I~
(L~«
0:::
C)

.s17'£90 ~

000'£6 ~ :'ON 80r or-

r38 :A8 03)i83H~ LL
0

ClSCI :A8 NM'v'ClO

8 ~OG AtJ'v'nN'v'r :31'10 f- or-W
W
I
(/')

>-
4::;:
II
LLo·,0:;
'-0:r:(.!) •
-I"--
0:::0::>

~W
(.!)

.-<
ZCLw
~<DWo
~Ol
w~
.0
00
rr)(Il

~

3 ..017,00005

I-,

,8t:'60S

·V'.fO·l/IJ'rsvs 99 38N'v'tJ
HUlON 9£ dlHSNMOl '9£ NOl183S

~O
d'v'l/IJNOll'v'X3NN'v'

AINno:) 0>113VaVI\3N

:Ill S8NIOlOH :l3Cl83t:JnS

9~0 9NIl:l33NI9N3WlrMMM
6619 - 9U (~Lli )(\I;

(II r-9U (~LLI131
10969 VOVII3N 0:'l3

ioz 3_UnS '133~1SHIe; e;••

E1N'~33N'ElN3

8NIA3MJnSJIHd~80d01 •
3JNif~nSS\fA11l1fnO •

1N3~38\fN\f~ NOllJn~lSNO:) •
8NI~33N18N3111\1:) •

0
~ ee:> c::~~
1-4 t:.e"'l

~ F""l

U Z
<-"1:

~

-)



ALL THAT REAL PROPERTY SITUATED IN THE COUNTY OF ELKO, STATE OF NEVADA, BOUNDED AND
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: PARCEL C, AS SHOWN ON A PARCEL MAP, FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE
COUNTY RECORDER OF ELKO COUNTY, STATE OF NEVADA, ON JANUARY 5, 2018 AS FILE NO. 735391

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

JAN n 9 2018
Exhiblt___.""A...__RECEIVED



CC:

Enclosures

Sincerely.

Sl~~t~~

Planning Technician

If you have any questions regarding this meeting. the information you received. or if you will not
be able to attend this meeting. please call me at your earliest convenience at (775) 777-7160.

The Planning Commission requests that you. or a duly appointed representative he in attendance
at this meeting to address the Planning Commission. If you will not he able to attend the meeting
hut wish to have a representative present please submit a letter to the Planning Commission
authorizing this person to represent yew at the meeting.

Enclosed is a copy of the agenda for an upcoming Planning Commission meeting. Highlighted
on the agenda is an item or items that you have requested to be acted on at the meeting. Also
enclosed is pertinent information pertaining to your request. Please review this information
before the meeting.

Dear ApplicantAgent:

Rc: Rezone t\o, 10-17 & Annexation No. 2-1 7

Surebrec Holdings. LLC
207 Brookwood Dri\'e
E Iko. xv 89801

January 30.2018

1751 College Avenue . Elko. Nc\'ada89801 . (775)777-7160 . Fax {775} 777-7119

H ebsite: \\ \\ \\ clkocit , corn
Em a i I.' rid n 11in g a C i.cl k (l 11\ .u-,

CITY OF ELKO
Planning Department



Elko County is an equal opportunity provider and employer.

RECEIVED

John W. Kingwell
Elko County Planning and Zoning

In reference to Annexation No. 2-17, Elko County does not oppose or have any concerns
at this time.

Hello Shelby,

Shelby Archuleta
City of Elko Planning Technician
1751 College Ave.
Elko, NV 89801

January 24,2018

540 Court Street, Suite 104
Elko, Nevada 89801

775-738-6816 Ext. #3 (fax) 775-738-4581
www.elkocountynv.net

Elko County
Planning & Zoning Division

PEGGYPIERCE-FITZGERALD
PLANNINGTECHNICIAN/
GISOPERATOR
775-748-0215
pfitzgerald'aielkocountynv.net

JOHN W. KINGWELL
SUPERVISOR! PLANNER
CODE ENFORCEMENT
775-748-0214
jkingwelllQ)elkocountynv.net



Enclosures

StuJv'o\N e~l@
Shelby ArchuJa
Planning Technician

Sincerely,

Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions concerning this matter.

Please submit written comments to the City of Elko Planning Department as soon as
possible. If we do not receive written comments prior to the scheduled meeting, we will
assume you have no concerns regarding this application.

Review by the Elko City Planning Commission is scheduled for February 6, 2018.

The subject property satisfies minimum State criteria for annexation.

The subject property consists of approximately 62.03 acres and is located generally on
the northeast comer of the intersection of Statice Street and Delaware Avenue.

In accordance with the Communication Policy between the City of Elko and Elko County
and pursuant to Section 268.670 (1) of Nevada Revised Statutes, the City of Elko hereby
notices and advises the Board of County Commissioners of the County of Elko of the
City's intention to consider annexation of contiguous territory as petitioned by Surebrec
Holdings, LLC. Please find enclosed a double-sided copy of the application for
annexation and map of the area for your review and comment.

Re: Annexation No. 2-17

Elko County Planning and Zoning
Attn: John Kingwell
540 Court Street, Suite 104
Elko, NV 89801

January 16,2018

1751 College Avenue' Elko, Nevada 89801 . (775) 777-7160 . Fax (775) 777-7219

Website: www.elkocity.com
Email:planning@elkocitynv.gov

CITY OF ELKO
Planning Department



Page 1Revised 12/04/15

Mailing Address

Telephone NumberSignature(Print Name)

Mailing Address

Telephone NumberSignature(Print Name)

Mailing Address
207 Brookwood Dr, Elko, NV89801

Telephone NumberSignature(Print Name)
775-219-8199

: (Attach additional pages if necessary)
obert Fitzgerald

Surebrec Holdin s LLC

ASSESSORPARCELNUMBER(S):_~~~.~~· _-~jO~~~·_-~~~J~b~~~~~~~~~
(This is not the legal description)

The applicant (100% of all property owners) hereby petitions the Elko City Council to annex to the

City of Elko certain real property by ordinance, to be adopted pursuant to NRS 268.670. Said

property petitioned for annexation is legally described as follows: (Attach if necessary)

APPLICATION FOR ANNEXATION

1751 College Avenue * Elko * Nevada * 89801

(775) 777-7160 * (775) 777 -7119 fax

CITY OF ELKO PLANNING DEPARTMENT



Page 2Revised 12/04/15

Flat, no unique physical features
4. Identify any unique physical features or characteristics associated with the property.

~ mixture of commercial and small scale industrial uses which may include retail and service activities,
office buildings, public and quasi-public land uses, building and material sales, lumber yards, automotive
dealerships, and/or conditional uses permitted to include gas station, RV parks, residential uses.

Using light industrial and/or commercial development standards where appropriate.

3. Explain in detail the type and nature of the use anticipated for the property.

2. Identify the zoning classification being requested upon annexation :I.('
------~~--~--~

(A separate zone change application must be submitted for the requested classification.)

1. Identify the existing zoning classification of the property: Open Space~--~---------------------

Other Information: The applicant is encouraged to submit other information and documentation
to support this Annexation request

Note: One .pdf (email is okay) of the entire application must be submitted, as well as one set of
legible, reproducible plans 8 Ii" x 11" in size. If the applicant feels the Commission needs to see
24" x 36" plans, 10 sets of pre-folded plans must be submitted.

Plot Plan: If the property is improved, a surveyed plot plan showing property lines, existing
buildings, building setbacks, parking and loading areas and any other pertinent information.

Legal Description: A complete legal description of all property proposed for annexation.

Annexation Map: An annexation map or record of survey of the area proposed for annexation
provided by a properly licensed surveyor. Such map shall include the proposed acreage to be
annexed, and the length and percentage of common boundary (at least 15%) with the corporate
limits of the City. If the property abuts a road not already in the City limits, at least one half of the
road must be included in the map and legal description (see N.R.S. 268.663).

Fee: 10 acres or less $500.00, greater than 10 acres through 50 acres $750.00, greater than 50
acres $1,250.00. The filing fee shall be paid in full prior to consideration of the annexation request
by the Planning Commission.

Complete Application Form: In order to begin processing the application, an application form
must be complete and signed. Applications go before the City Council, Planning Commission, and
back to City Council twice, and will take a minimum of 8 weeks.

FILING REQUIREMENTS:



Page 3Revised 12/04/15

(Use additional pages if necessary to address questions 3 through 6)

AF that was dedicated to create the parcel

Street, Sewer, and Water Service

5. Identify the type and extent of City infrastructure anticipated for service to the property such as
streets, sewer, and water service.



FOR OFFICE USE ONLY

1\ I ''2 111 Fee Paid : _ll-oLr-I,-=L......5,u..:C;__1 ----l.,,(~,.LlIIX._:lt---+-ll C.._) 4:.......:2__') "1File No.: ---=' I-::;;;.._-__'__ _.:.__Date Filed:

Email address:rob.fitz@earthIink.net

Phone Number: 775-219-8199~~~~~~~~~~~~~~--

City, State, Zip Code

Page 4Revised 12/04/15

EIko,Nevada89801

Street Address or P.O. Box
207 BrookwoodDriveMailing Address

~pplicant/~gent~~~~~~~_S_u_re_b_re_c_H_ol_d_in~gs_,_LI_.c~~~~~~~
(Please print or type)

I(2J1 I have carefully read and completed all questions contained within this application to the
best of my ability.

11211 I acknowledge that this application may be tabled until a later meeting if either I or my
designated representative or agent is not present at the meeting for which this application is
scheduled.

by the City Planning Department, the City Planning Commission and the City Council, nor does it
in and of itself guarantee issuance of any other required permits andlor licenses.

I acknowledge that submission of this application does not imply approval of this request

101 I object to having the City of Elko Staff enter onto my property as a part of their review of
this application. (Your objection will not affect the recommendation made by the staff or the final determination
made by the City Planning Commission or the City Council.)

11211 I consent to having the City of Elko Staff enter on my property only for the sole purpose of
inspection said property as part of this application process.

By My Signature below:



Planning Commission Action SheetCreated on 1/8/2018

• The area proposed for annexation is not localized or isolated.

• Annexation of the property is consistent with the goals, objectives, supports long range
planning as outlined in the Development Feasibility, Land Use, Water Infrastructure,
Sanitary Sewer Infrastructure, Transportation Infrastructure, and Annexation
Potential Report dated November 2012. The alignment for water service to annexed
property south/east of the 1-80 corridor has been re-evaluated. Extension of water
service utilizing the Sheep Creek Trail underpass is significantly less expensive than
routing utilizing the Exit 298 interchange. This property now factors into fulfilling that
objective.

• Annexation of the property provides an immediate accrual to the tax base for the City.

• Annexation of the property provides an opportunity for expanded Light Industrial
uses.

• The proposed annexation is consistent with the City's Transportation Component of the
Master Plan.

9. Findings:
• The proposed annexation is consistent with the City's Land Use Component of the Master

Plan. The proposed zoning of LI- Light Industrial would ensure conformance with the
land use designation shown in the Master Plan

8. Recommended Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to adopt an ordinance
which conditionally approves Annexation No. 3-17 subject to the following conditions:
(stated in City Planner memo)

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, Memo from Development Director, Memo
from City Planner

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required

5. Background Information: The subject property is located north of West Idaho Street (APN
006-09G-036), approximately 2,500 feet east of 1-80Exit 298.

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS, MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS, PETITIONS, AND
COMMUNICATIONS

2. Meeting Date: February 6, 2018

1. Title: Review and consideration of Annexation No. 3-17, filed by Swire Coca-Cola, USA,
consisting of approximately 3 acres of property located north of West Idaho Street,
identified as APN 006-09G-036, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Elko City Planning Commission
Agenda Action Sheet

Agenda Item # I.B.3



Initial

City Manager: Date: :?/t / / g-'
Initial

Assistant City Manager: Date: (/3 IIIg l:e c (9 ~;V1 '('//toP aj?;?i2;O //~
a <) ;Jtu sf'v,.:Iecl 'h/ 'S'~#=

**If additional space is needed please provide a separate memorandum**

Title: &VW1Q_KI1±!D0 1> -~} }
Applicant(s): 0u)lre Cex-n-Ccb, l/)A
Site Location: ~YDC Lu. IdnYlt! St.
Current Zoning: !G(0j1JY1 M11~~ate Received: )-1) let; 1]- Date Public Notice: _I\<---..>.<..+)j'----'A-~-_
COMMENT: -n'I~) i-S -ic CAnoex- .; ('it: OCH:\ InR ctJjp {"r3J,.q Ilmd,s
(i',('C__\\ey\ Gl 6Y DD lu, Jell), he Sf J

STAFF COMMENT FLOW SHEET
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA DATE: '211o

**00 not use pencil or red pen, they do not reproduce**



Page I of9

RECOMMEND APPROVAL, subject to findings of fact and conditions as stated in this report.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

An annexation of approximately 3 acres. The property is located in Elko County adjacent
to the City's incorporated boundary as shown below.

January 31, 2018
February 6, 2018
I. B. 3.
Annexation 3-17
Swire Coca-Cola, USA
3 Acres
Rezone 12-17

DATE:
PLANNINGCOMMISSION DATE:
AGENDAITEM NUMBER:
APPLICATION NUMBER:
APPLICANT:
PROJECT DESCRIPTION:
ADDITIONAL APPLICATION:

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

City of Elko
1751 College Avenue
Elko, NV 89801
(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7119



Page 2 of9

1. The petition has been filed Swire Coca-Cola, USA.
2. The applicant owns the property.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

• City of Elko Master Plan - Land Use Component
• City of Elko Master Plan - Transportation Component
• City of Elko Development Feasibility, Land Use, Water Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer

Infrastructure, Transportation Infrastructure and Annexation Potential Report dated
November 2012

• Nevada Revised Statutes - 268.610 to 268.670, inclusive
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts
• City of Elko Wellhead Protection Program

Applicable Master Plan Sections, NRS Sections and City Code Sections and other coordinating
plans are:

MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODE SECTIONS:

• The property is currently developed.
• The property is generally flat.
• The property will be accessed from West Idaho Street

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:

• The property is surrounded by:
o North: Elko County Property / Developed as Barrick parking lot
o West: General Agriculture (AG) / Undeveloped
o South: General Agriculture (AG) / Undeveloped
o East: Elko County Property / Developed as trailer court

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:

Light Industrial- Swire Coca-Cola, USAEXISTING LAND USE:

General Industrial (IND-GEN)MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION:

General Agriculture (Elko County) applicant has
requested Light Industrial zoning under rezone
application 12-17

EXISTING ZONING:

3 AcresPARCEL SIZE:

006-09G-039PARCEL NUMBER:

PROJECT INFORMATION

ANNEXATION 3-17
Swire Coca Cola, USA
APN: 006-09G-039



Page 3 of9

1. Land Use is shown as General Industrial.
2. The petitioner has filed an application for a Light Industrial district to be designated on

the property upon annexation of the property. The application will be processed in
conjunction with the annexation application but acted on separately and conditioned upon
final approval of the annexation.

3. Supporting zone districts for General Industrial are General Industrial, Light Industrial
and Industrial Commercial.

4. Objective 5: Encourage development that strengthens the core of the City, and new
annexations that are logical and orderly and do not promote sprawl.

5. Objective 7: Promote high quality and visually appealing industrial uses, where
appropriate, to promote economic sustainability and strengthen the community's image.

6. Objective 8: Encourage new development that does not negatively impact County-wide
natural systems, or public/federallands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages,
floodplains etc., or pose a danger to human health and safety.

Land Use:

MASTER PLAN:

3. The petition includes all of APN 006-09G-039. The property is located adjacent to West
Idaho Street near the 298 interchange on 1-80.

4. City Council accepted the petition for the subject annexation on January 9, 2018, and
directed Staff to continue with the annexation process by referring the matter to the
Planning Commission.

5. Annexation of the property is consistent with Land Use and Transportation components
of the Master Plan.

6. The area fronts West Idaho Street.
7. The area is not identified as having annexation potential in the adopted Development

Feasibility, Land Use, Water Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer Infrastructure, Transportation
Infrastructure and Annexation Potential Report dated November 2012. That plan, for the
most part, identified areas as having annexation based on established of transportation
and utility corridors potential in the plan.

8. City utilities have not been extended to the property. The property owner has entered into
an agreement with Golden Gate Petroleum and the City of Elko for a water line extension
along Sheep Creek Trail from the existing water line located in Section 19 to West Idaho
Street. Construction ofthe water line extension is expected to begin spring 2018.

9. Sewer is not available in close vicinity to the property. The property owner will be
required to install dry sewer along the frontage of the property at the time of use
expansion and connect to the sanitary sewer when the service becomes available. The
existing facility is utilizing septic for sanitary sewer.

10. Other non-city utilities are located in the immediate area.
11. The applicant has requested a Light Industrial zone classification for the area upon

annexation of the property. The application is being processed concurrent with the
annexation application.

12. Elko County was notified of the proposed annexation on January 16, 2018. The County
responded on January 24, 2018 expressing no concerns.

13. The proposed annexation is a logical and orderly addition to the City's incorporated
boundary.

ANNEXATION 3-17
Swire Coca Cola, USA
APN: 006-09G-039



The property owner's representative has submitted the required map. The applicant owns the
entire area proposed for annexation. The property boundary is approximately 1,461.42 feet with
730.71 feet contiguous to City of Elko boundary on the south and westerly lot lines. This equates
to approximately 50% of the property boundary as contiguous to the City's incorporated
boundary.

NRS 268.636(1) states whenever the majority of property owners of any territory lying
contiguous to a city desire to annex such territory to the city, they may cause an accurate map of
plat of the territory to be made under the supervision of a competent surveyor. The map is to be
filed with the city.

NEVADA REVISED STATUTE:

The proposed annexation is consistent with the goals, objectives and supports long range
planning as outlined in the report. The alignment for water service to annexed property
south/east of the 1-80 corridor has been re-evaluated. Extension of water service utilizing the
Sheep Creek Trail underpass is significantly less expensive than routing utilizing the Exit 298
interchange. This property now factors into fulfilling that objective.

1. The area is not identified as having annexation potential in the adopted Development
Feasibility, Land Use, Water Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer Infrastructure, Transportation
Infrastructure and Annexation Potential Report dated November 2012. That plan, for the
most part, identified areas as having annexation based on established of transportation
and utility corridors potential in the plan.

2. The property is adjacent to undeveloped land within the City of Elko.
3. The area can be served from the existing 5400 water zone. A water main was constructed

along Cattle Drive in 2016
4. The property owner along with Golden Gate Petroleum and the City of Elko have an

approved agreement for the water line extension down Sheep Creek Trail to the property
requesting annexation.

5. Developable area is estimated to be approximately 3 acres. The property is partially
developed.

6. Sewer is currently not available in this location. The city has completed preliminary
design work for the establishment of sanitary sewer in the area.

7. Annexation of the area is a logical and orderly expansion of the City's incorporated
boundary.

DEVELOPMENT FEASIBILITY, LAND USE, WATER INFRASTRUCTURE,
SANITARY SEWER INFRASTRUCTURE, TRANSPORTATION INFRASTRUCTURE
AND ANNEXATION POTENTIAL REPORT - NOVEMBER 2012

1. The area will be accessed from West Idaho Street.
2. West Idaho Street is classified as a Minor Collector.

The proposed annexation is compatible with the Transportation Component of the Master Plan.
Master Plan.

Page 4 of9

Transportation:

The proposed annexation is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master Plan.

ANNEXATION 3-17
Swire Coca Cola, USA
APN: 006-09G-039



Page 5 of9

Water

Sanitary sewer does not exist in the immediate area. A dry gravity sewer will be installed along
the frontage of the property until a time that the city can complete the installation of a lift station
and force main to the WRF. The property is currently developed with the use of septic system.

Sewer

The proposed zoning would be complimentary to the land use shown in the Master Plan.

The application identifies the zoning classification that is being requested upon annexation of the
property as Light Industrial. The purpose of the (LI) Light Industrial zoning district is to provide
and preserve areas reserved primarily for less intensive industrial use and activity normally
associated with previously prepared materials and with minimal levels of noise, dust, odor,
vibration or smoke, and to preclude encroachment of land uses such as residential uses that could
be in conflict with the industrial and manufacturing environment.

The property is partially developed. The size area and existing uses does not appear to support
further property division.

Land Division and Potential Zoning

Annexation of the property does provide the opportunity to provide continued light industrial
land use along Idaho Street. Idaho Street is classified as a major arterial and falls under NDOT
jurisdiction. The location provides excellent access to either 1-80or the community.

General

NRS 268.646 (2) requires the evaluation for the need for organized community services, the
present cost of and adequacy of governmental services and controls in the area, probable future
needs for such services and controls, and the probable effect of the proposed formation and of
alternative courses of action on the cost and adequacy of services and controls in the area and
adjacent area.

There is a high probability of property development based on recent and current property
development in the immediate vicinity. This is due to the water line extension to 1-80Exit 298.

The total area proposed for annexation is approximately 3 acres. The Elko County Assessor's
Office indicates initial development of the property occurring in 1988under the current use.

The location and proposed land uses of the area are supported by existing and proposed
roadways.

NRS 268.646(1) requires the evaluation of factors such as population, population density, land
area and land uses, per capita assessed valuation, topography, proximity to other populated areas
and the likelihood of significant growth within the next 10 years in the area and adjacent areas.

NRS 268.646 requires minimum factors to be considered in the review of a proposed
annexation.

ANNEXATION 3-17
Swire Coca Cola, USA
APN: 006-09G-039



Proper storm water controls would mitigate any potential impacts from storm water runoff.

The Council has taken action, subsequent to the adoption of the report, to approve a realignment
of Errecart Blvd. reducing area required for annexation along the Errecart Blvd alignment. This
decision has resulted in a net reduction of projected water consumption by over 500 acre feet,
nearly offsetting the projected deficit referenced.

The City currently has approximately 18,000-acre feet of water rights available and is utilizing
approximately 50% of that supply. Based on the Development Feasibility, Land Use, Water
Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer Infrastructure, Transportation Infrastructure and Annexation
Potential Report dated November 2012, there was projected deficit of700 - 800 (3.8% - 4.4%
of the total) acre feet of water to serve annexed areas in addition to areas identified as a having
annexation potential. Upon adoption of the report, the Council determined that through
optimization of the plan and optimization of water usage, the projected shortfall did not present a
significant concern. Areas identified in the report as having annexation potential provide orderly
and logical growth of the City and are generally aligned with future transportation and utility
corridors.

Annexation and development of the property will not adversely influence the local government
structure of the County nor the City.

NRS 268.646(4) requires the evaluation of the proposed annexation and of alternative actions
upon the availability of water and requirement of water and other natural resources throughout
the affected area.

Annexation of the property will not have any long-term adverse impacts on adjacent areas. The
property is partially developed.

NRS 268.646(3) requires the evaluation of the proposed annexation and of alternative actions on
adjacent areas, on mutual social and economic interests and on local governmental structure of
the county.

The size, location and use of the property will not place any significant burden on other City
services.

Other Services

Primary access is off West Idaho Street, a major arterial, under NDOT jurisdiction.

Access

The proposed annexation is consistent with the goals, objectives and supports long range
planning as outlined in the report. The alignment for water service to annexed property
south/east of the 1-80 corridor has been re-evaluated. Extension of water service utilizing the
Sheep Creek Trail underpass is significantly less expensive than routing utilizing the Exit 298
interchange. This property now factors into fulfilling that objective.

City of Elko water does not exist in the immediate area. The property can be served off the
existing 5400 water zone with the extension of the water line from existing water line in Section
19 extending to West Idaho Street. Plans for the water line extension have been approved by the
City of Elko and the State. There is an agreement between Golden Gate Petroleum, Swire Coca
Cola and the City of Elko that has be approved by the City Council to cost share on the project.

Page 6 of9

ANNEXATION 3-17
Swire Coca Cola, USA
APN: 006-09G-039



Page 7 of9

The following section of code provides the Planning Commission and City Council the
discretion to designate an appropriate zone district after holding the appropriate public hearing:

Section 3-2-4 D. Classification Of Annexed Areas: All territory which is annexed to the city after
the effective date hereof shall be zoned upon annexation AG general agriculture, unless the
planning commission shall recommend and/or the city council shall otherwise designate the
zoning district after holding duly advertised public hearings in accordance with section 3-2-21 of

The petitioner has filed an application for a Light Industrial (U) district to be designated on the
property upon annexation of the property. The application will be processed in conjunction with
the annexation application but acted on separately.

City Code Section 3-2-4

Idaho Street is currently a NDOT right-of-way at this location and appears to currently be
located within the City of Elko. The developer would be required to obtain NDOT approval for
changes to ingress/egress to the property or address NDOT requirements for expanded uses on
the property.

NRS 268.663(3) requires the portions of the county roads which provide the primary access to
the subdivision are also annexed and become city streets.

The Land Use component of the Master Plan contains an exhibit showing the area as General
Industrial. Light Industrial is a corresponding zoning district for the General Industrial identified
in the Master Plan.

The City of Elko Master Plans specifically addresses the annexation of property under Objective
5 as outlined in Best Practice 5.1 and Best Practice 5.3. City Staff has identified areas having
potential for annexation that promote logical and orderly growth of the community. Those areas
are identified in the adopted Development Feasibility, Land Use, Water Infrastructure, Sanitary
Sewer Infrastructure, Transportation Infrastructure and Annexation Potential Report dated
November 2012. This area is not identified as having annexation potential in the report. That
plan, for the most part, identified areas as having annexation based on established of
transportation and utility corridors potential in the plan. The proposed annexation is consistent
with the goals, objectives and supports long range planning as outlined in the report. The
alignment for water service to annexed property south/east of the 1-80corridor has been re
evaluated. Extension of water service utilizing the Sheep Creek Trail underpass is significantly
less expensive than routing utilizing the Exit 298 interchange. This property now factors into
fulfilling that objective.

NRS 268.646(6) requires a determination that the annexation is consistent with any applicable
comprehensive regional plan, area plan or master plan and any program of annexation adopted
and certified pursuant to NRS 268.625.

NRS 268.646(5) requires a determination by the Bureau of Land Management that the territory
proposed to be annexed is suitable for residential, commercial, or industrial development, or will
be opened to private acquisition.

The area proposed for annexation does not fall under the jurisdiction of the Bureau of Land
Management.

Annexation of the property will not negatively impact other natural resources in the area.

ANNEXA nON3-17
Swire Coca Cola, USA
APN: 006-09G-039



10. The topography of the area is well suited for the proposed commercial and light industrial
land uses.

9. Other, required, utilities will be installed at developer expense to facilitate development
of the property.

8. Annexation of the area is not expected to have any immediate or negative impact on City
resources. The area can be served from the existing 5400 water zone. Extension of water
infrastructure is required and has been planned for including certain actions taken by the
City Council identified in this report.

7. The proposed annexation is consistent with the future transportation objectives of the
City.

6. The area proposed for annexation is not localized or isolated.

5. Annexation of the property is consistent with the goals, objectives, supports long range
planning as outlined in the Development Feasibility, Land Use, Water Infrastructure,
Sanitary Sewer Infrastructure, Transportation Infrastructure, and Annexation Potential
Report dated November 2012. The alignment for water service to annexed property
south/east of the 1-80 corridor has been re-evaluated. Extension of water service utilizing
the Sheep Creek Trail underpass is significantly less expensive than routing utilizing the
Exit 298 interchange. This property now factors into fulfilling that objective.

3. Annexation of the property provides an immediate accrual to the tax base for the City.

4. Annexation of the property provides an opportunity for expanded Light Industrial uses.

2. The proposed annexation is consistent with the City's Transportation Component of the
Master Plan.

1. The proposed annexation is consistent with the City'S Land Use Component of the
Master Plan. The proposed zoning of LI- Light Industrial would ensure conformance with
the land use designation shown in the Master Plan

FINDINGS

A proposed well (test hole/monitoring well currently exists) approximately 4,200 feet from the
property is expected to be installed as development occurs in the area. At that time, it could be
expected that this property will be located within the 5-10 year capture zones. The City of Elko
may complete the installation of a sewer main and lift station prior to the installation of the
proposed well to eliminate a number of septic systems and leach fields in the area.

CITY OF ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PROGRAM

this chapter. As part of considering any petition for annexation of territory to the city, a review of
conformance with the city master plan, including land use designation, shall be performed by the
planning commission, with recommendations forwarded to the city council. If said annexation
necessitates substantial amendment to the master plan, the planning commission may adopt such
amendment only after holding duly advertised public hearings in accordance with Nevada
Revised Statutes section 278.210.

ANNEXATION 3-17
Swire Coca Cola, USA
APN: 006-09G-039

Page 8 of9



Page 9 of9

4. No cross connection between the existing well and the City's system during the period of
time required to abandon the onsite ground water well.

3. The onsite ground water well will be abandoned within 90 days of connecting to the City
water system.

2. The property owner will extend the water main on their frontages and connect to the City
water no later than 90 days after service is available to their property line.

1. City Code 9-5-61 states the customer must connect within 90 days once the sewer is
within 300 feet of any building. The applicant is required to install dry sewer on their
property frontages, as typically required when sewer does not yet exist in the location.

Utility Department:

1. The property owners shall receive approval for a zone designation for the property to be
consistent with the Land Use designation in the City of Elko Master Plan.

Development Department:

Staff recommends approval of Annexation 3-17 to be forwarded to the City Council based on the
conditions outlined below. If approved by the City Council, the conditions will be included in the
annexation ordinance.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

13.The proposed annexation satisfies considerations and/or concerns identified as minimum
factors for consideration under NRS 268.646

12.Annexation and development of the property will not adversely influence the local
government structure of the County nor the City.

11. Expanded uses on the property will result In a positive economic impact to the
community.

ANNEXATION 3-17
Swire Coca Cola, USA
APN: 006-09G-039



C:\Users\sknopp\Downloads\Annex 3-17 Swire Coca Cola PC 011618 (2).docx
Created by Jeremy Draper

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

• City of Elko Master Plan - Land Use Component
• City of Elko Master Plan - Streets and Highways Component
• City of Elko Development Feasibility, Land Use, Water Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer

Infrastructure, Transportation Infrastructure and Annexation Potential Report dated
November 2012

• Nevada Revised Statutes - 268.610 to 268.670, inclusive
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-4 Zoning Districts
• City of Elko Wellhead Protection Program

The City of Elko Development Department has reviewed the annexation application offers the
following comments for consideration to aid the Planning Commission's review of the above
referenced application: Applicable Master Plan Sections, NRS Sections and City Code Sections
and other coordinating plans are:

To: Planning Commission
From: Jeremy Draper, Development Department
Date: January 16, 2018
Re: Annexation Petition 3-17, Coca-Cola

CITY OF ELKO
DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

1755 COLLEGE AVENUE
ELKO, NEVADA 89801

(775)777-7210
(775)777-7219 FAX



DEVELOPMENT FEASIBILITY, LAND USE, WATER INFRASTRUCTURE,
SANITARY SEWER INFRASTRUCTURE, TRANSPORTATION INFRASTRUCTURE
AND ANNEXATION POTENTIAL REPORT - NOVEMBER 2012

1. Land Use is shown as Industrial Business Park per amendment 1-17.
2. The petitioner has submitted an application for rezone to an LI-Light Industrial District.
3. Section 3-2-4-0 of City Code states that a review of conformance with the city master

plan, including land use designation, shall be performed by the planning commission.
4. Objective 7: Promote high quality and visually appealing industrial uses, where

appropriate, to ensure economic sustainability as well as strengthen the community's
image.

5. Objective 8: Ensure that new development does not negatively impact County-wide
natural systems" or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages,
floodplains etc., or pose a danger to human health and safety.

Transportation:

1. The area fronts W. Idaho St., a Major Arterial under NDOT jurisdiction.

MASTER PLAN:
Land Use:

1. The area is not identified as having annexation potential.
2. This area is adjacent to vacant property currently located within the incorporated

boundary of the City.
3. The area can be served of the existing 5400 water zone. An water line is being proposed

to be extended from Cattle Drive to serve this property.
4. Developable area is estimated to be approximately 3.00 acres, the property is currently

developed as Swire Coca-Cola and is expected to be expanded upon.

1. The petition includes that portion of APN 006-09G-036 lying approximately 3,100' east of
Idaho Street and Interstate 80 containing more or less 3.00 acres of land.

2. The area is not identified as having annexation potential as shown in the adopted
Development Feasibility, Land Use,Water Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer Infrastructure,
Transportation Infrastructure and Annexation Potential Report dated November 2012.
However, this should not exclude the area for consideration for annexation.

3. The area fronts W. Idaho Street.
4. A project in which developers will extend City water to the edge of the property has been

approved and is expected to be constructed in the spring of 2018. The property lies
within the 5400 water service zone. City sewer does not exist in this area, however
preliminary design has been completed by the City of Elko Engineering Department, the
development would be required to install a dry sewer until such time as a force main is
install to provide sewer services to this area of the City.

5. Other non-city utilities are located in the immediate area.
6. The area is identified as Industrial Business Park Land Use in the City of Elko Master

Plan Land Use Component, amendment 1-17.
7. The applicant has submitted a rezone application for a Light Industrial Zone.
8. The proposed annexation appears logical and orderly.

Page 2 of 6



The purpose of the LI zoning district is to provide and preserve areas reserved primarily for less
intensive industrial use and activity normally associated with previously prepared materials and
with minimal levels of noise, dust, odor, vibration or smoke, and to preclude encroachment of
land uses such as residential uses that could be in conflict with the industrial and manufacturing
environment.

The application identifies the zoning classification requested upon annexation as LI-Light
Industrial.

The property is developed and does not appear to be of sufficient size to accommodate
parceling or subdivision.

Annexation of the property does provide the opportunity to provide continued light industrial land
use along Idaho Street, a Major Arterial under NDOT jurisdiction.

General

NRS 268.646 (2) requires the evaluation for the need for organized community services, the
present cost of and adequacy of governmental services and controls in the area, probable future
needs for such services and controls, and the probable effect of the proposed formation and of
alternative courses of action on the cost and adequacy of services and controls in the area and
adjacent area.

Land Division and Potential Zoning

The property is currently developed.

The total annexed area consists of approximately 3.00 acres.

NRS 268.646(1) requires the evaluation of factors such as population, population density, land
area and land uses, per capita assessed valuation, topography, proximity to other populated
areas and the likelihood of significant growth within the next 10 years in the area and adjacent
areas.

NRS 268.646 requires minimum factors to be considered in the review of a proposed
annexation.

The property owner's representative has submitted the required map.

NRS 268.636(1) states whenever the majority of property owners of any territory lying
contiguous to a city desire to annex such territory to the city, they may cause an accurate map
of plat of the territory to be made under the supervision of a competent surveyor. The map is to
be filed with the city.

NEVADA REVISED STATUTE:

Page 3 of 6

5. Sewer is currently unavailable in this location. The developer will be required to install a
dry sewer and utilize a septic system until such time that a force main is installed to the
Water Reclamation Facility.

6. Annexation of the area does appear to be logical and orderly and continues the
development of land near exit 298 of 1-80.



NRS 268.646(6) requires a determination that the annexation is consistent with any applicable

The area proposed for annexation does not fall under the jurisdiction of the Bureau of Land
Management.

NRS 268.646(5) requires a determination by the Bureau of Land Management that the territory
proposed to be annexed is suitable for residential, commercial, or industrial development, or will
be opened to private acquisition.

Annexation of the property will not negatively impact other natural resources in the area.

The City currently has approximately 18,000 acre feet of water rights available and is utilizing
approximately 50% of that supply. Based on the Development Feasibility, Land Use,Water
Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer Infrastructure, Transportation Infrastructure and Annexation
Potential Report dated November 2012, the City could face a potential shortfall of 700 - 800
acre feet of water to serve annexed areas in addition to areas identified as a having annexation
potential. Areas identified as having annexation potential provide orderly and logical growth of
the City and are generally aligned with future transportation corridors.

NRS 268.646(4) requires the evaluation of the proposed annexation and of alternative actions
upon the availability of water and requirement of water and other natural resources throughout
the affected area.

Annexation of the property is not expected to have any long-term adverse impacts on adjacent
areas.

Proper storm water controls would mitigate any potential impacts from storm water runoff.

NRS 268.646(3) requires the evaluation of the proposed annexation and of alternative actions
on adjacent areas, on mutual social and economic interests and on local governmental structure
of the county.

The size and location of the property is not expected to place any significant burden on other
City services.

Other Services

Primary access is from Idaho Street.

Access

City of Elko water service does not exists in the immediate area. The property can be served off
the existing 5400 water zone with the extension of a waterline from Cattle Drive plans have
been submitted and approved for this extension.

Sanitary sewer does not exist in the immediate area. A dry sewer and septic system will be
required to be installed and utilized until a force main can be installed providing service to the
Water Reclamation Facility.

Sewer

Page 4 of 6



1. The area was not identified as having annexation potential in the Development
Feasibility, Land Use,Water Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer Infrastructure, Transportation
Infrastructure and Annexation Potential Report dated November 2012. The annexation
of this property appears to promote the logical and orderly growth of the City.

Factors for consideration

SUMMARY

The property is not located within the wellhead protection area.

CITY OF ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PROGRAM

Section 3-2-4 D. Classification Of Annexed Areas: All territory which is annexed to the
city after the effective date hereof shall be zoned upon annexation AG general
agriculture, unless the planning commission shall recommend and/or the city council
shall otherwise designate the zoning district after holding duly advertised public hearings
in accordance with section 3-2-21 of this chapter. As part of considering any petition for
annexation of territory to the city, a review of conformance with the city master plan,
including land use designation, shall be performed by the planning commission, with
recommendations forwarded to the city council. If said annexation necessitates
substantial amendment to the master plan, the planning commission may adopt such
amendment only after holding duly advertised public hearings in accordance with
Nevada Revised Statutes section 278.210.

The following section of code provides the PC and CC the discretion to designate an
appropriate zone district after holding the appropriate public hearing:

A companion rezone application has been filed with the City requesting a zone of LI-Light
Industrial.

City Code Section 3-2-4

Idaho Street is currently a NDOT right-of-way easement at this location and appears to be
currently located within the City.

NRS 268.663(3) requires the portions of the county roads which provide the primary access to
the subdivision are also annexed and become city streets.

The Land Use component of the Master Plan contains an exhibit showing the area as industrial
business park.

Page 5 of 6

comprehensive regional plan, area plan or master plan and any program of annexation adopted
and certified pursuant to NRS 268.625.

The City of Elko Master Plans specifically addresses the annexation of property under Objective
5 as outlined in Best Practice 5.1 and Best Practice 5.3. City Staff has identified areas having
potential for annexation that promote logical and orderly growth of the community. The
proposed annexation is not in an area that was identified as having annexation potential;
however, it should not be excluded from consideration for annexation.



1. The property owners shall receive a rezone of their property to be consistent with the
Land Use designation in the City of Elko Master Plan.

The City of Elko Development Department recommends approval of Annexation 3-17 be
forwarded to the City Council based on the following conditions:

RECOMMENDATION

5. Annexation of the area is not expected to have any immediate or negative impact on City
resources. The area can be served from the existing 5400 water zone. Additional utility
and roadway infrastructure will be installed at developer expense to facilitate
development of the property.

4. The area proposed for annexation is not localized, isolated and does promote future
transportation and utility corridors promoting future growth opportunities within the City.

3. The Development Feasibility, Land Use,Water Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer
Infrastructure, Transportation Infrastructure and Annexation Potential Report dated
November 2012, does not identify the area as having potential for annexation, however
the property should not be excluded from consideration for annexation.

2. The annexation is consistent with the City' Transportation Component of the Master
Plan.

1. The annexation is consistent with the City' Land Use Component of the Master Plan.
Appropriate zoning of the property is required as the property develops to ensure
conformance with the land use designation shown in the Master Plan.

FINDINGS

5. The property is currently developed and the property owners have indicated they wish to
subdivide the property.

4. Maintenance obligations are not a concern with the annexation of the property. City
obligations for infrastructure maintenance will occur as the property develops.

3. The City resources committed in support for development of the property under an LI
land use are minimal.

Page 6 of 6

2. The area is identified in the Master Plan as suitable for industrial business park land use.



z
CD
<
OJa.w

rm
G)»
I
cmeno;:c-\J
-I-oz

-1:::r
CD
OJ
::Ja.
<0
CD'..,..,
Cl)
0.
..-+o
:::r
Cl)..,
CD
::J

U>
en;::::;:
c
OJ
..-+
CD
0.
::J

oo
C
::J
..-+
'<
o--...
m
"o
a.
Cl)
en
o
:::!.c:r
Cl)
a.
OJ
U>

0'
o
:E
U>



No me: _ ____;.._.;;;ANc....:;..;.N...;;..:E=--.:X'---'-AT:....:....;IO~N-=--_
Num be r: _ ___;4:...=8...::...05=--_1~2=----_

1"--100'Sea Ie: __ ---'-----'--==-- __

Project Info.
Designer: N. ANDERSON
Date: 12-5-17Reeve

&A~~g~i!!~fL.Inc.
TEl.; (801) 621-3100 FAX:(~1) 621-2666 .... reM-QIIIOC.com

I.JH) FUNHERS • eM.. ENGINEERS • LAHO ~
lIWFlC ENGINEERS • STRUCTUIW. EHGHERS • LN«JSCAPE AROfTECTS

1"=100'

LEGEND
= ROAD CENTERLINE

- - ------- - = ADJOINING PROPERTY

= AREA TO BE ANNEXED

~ = EXISTING ELKO CITY LIMITS

./
/

\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\ /
Y

-:
-:

APN 006-09G-036
PARCEL 1

PARCEL MAP #263740

TOTAL AREA TO BE ANNEXED
130,680 S.F. OR 3.000 ACRES

AREA TO BE ANNEXED TO THE CITY OF ELKO
Exhiblt---"IIIGB _



CC:

Enclosures

Sh~~~cAw~
Planning Technician

Sincerely.

If you have any questions regarding this meeting. the information you received. or if you will not
he able to attend this meeting. please call me at your earliest convenience at (775) 777-7160.

The Planning Corum ission req ucsts that you. or a dul y appointed representati ve. be in attendance
at this meeting to address the Planning Commission. If you will not be able to attend the meeting
but wish to have a representative present. please submit a letter to the Planning Commission
authorizing this person to represent you at the meeting.

Enclosed is a copy of the agenda for an upcoming Planning Commission meeting. Highlighted
on the agenda is an item or items that you have requested to he acted on at the meeting. Also
enclosed is pertinent information pertaining tu your request. Please review this information
before the meeting.

Dear Applicant-Agent:

Re: Rezone No, 12-17 and Annexation No. 3-17

Swire Coca-Cola, USA
Attn: Mr. Dan Reid
12634 South 265 West
Draper. UT 84020

January 30. 2018

1751 College Avenue . Elko, Nevada 89801 . (775) 777-7160 . Fax (775) 777-7119

Website: \\\\\\ clk ocit vcom
Email: planning (/ ci.clko.nx .u-

CITY OF ELKO
Planning Department



Elko County is an equal opportunity provider and employer.

JAN 292018

John W. Kingwell
Elko County Planning and Zoning

In reference to Annexation No. 3-17, Elko County does not oppose or have any concerns
at this time.

RECEIVED

Hello Shelby,

Shelby Archuleta
City of Elko Planning Technician
1751 College Ave.
Elko~NV 89801

January 24, 2018

540 Court Street, Suite 104
Elko, Nevada 89801

775-738-6816 Ext. #3 (fax) 775-738-4581
www.elkocountynv.net

Elko County
Planning & Zoning Division

PEGGY PIERCE-FITZGERALD
PLANNING TECHNICIAN/
GIS OPERATOR
775-748-0215
pfitzgeraldrQJelkocountynv.oet

JOHN W. KINGWELL
SUPERVISOR! PLANNER
CODE ENFORCEMENT
775-748-0214
ikingwell@elkocountynv.net



Enclosures

Sincerely,

~~~~

Shelby Arc~ta
Planning Technician

Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions concerning this matter.

Please submit written comments to the City of Elko Planning Department as soon as
possible. If we do not receive written comments prior to the scheduled meeting, we will
assume you have no concerns regarding this application.

Review by the Elko City Planning Commission is scheduled for February 6, 2018.

The subject property satisfies minimum State criteria for annexation.

The subject property consists of approximately 3.00 acres and is located generally on the
north side of West Idaho Street, approximately 2,500 feet east from 1-80 Exit 298.

In accordance with the Communication Policy between the City of Elko and Elko County
and pursuant to Section 268.670 (1) of Nevada Revised Statutes, the City of Elko hereby
notices and advises the Board of County Commissioners of the County of Elko of the
City's intention to consider annexation of contiguous territory as petitioned by Swire
Coca-Cola, USA. Please find enclosed a double-sided copy of the application for
annexation and map of the area for your review and comment.

Re: Annexation No. 3-17

Elko County Planning and Zoning
Attn: John Kingwell
540 Court Street, Suite 104
Elko, NV 89801

January 16,2018

1751 College Avenue . Elko, Nevada 89801 . (775) 777-7160 . Fax (775) 777-7219

Website: www.elkocity.com
Email:planning@elkocitynv.gov

CITY OF ELKO
Planning Department



13. Agenda Distribution: Swire Coca-Cola, USA
Attn. Mr. Dan Reid
12634 South 265 West
Draper, UT 84020

The motion passed unanimously. (4-0 Councilman Rice was absent.)

12. Council Action:
* * A motion was made by Councilman Keener, seconded by Councilwoman Simons, to
accept the Petition for Annexation No. 3-17, to include assessor's parcel number 006-09G-
036 and refer the matter to the Planning Commission for further consideration and
recommendation to the City Council.

11. Committee/Other Agency Review:

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner

9. Recommended Motion: Pleasure of the Council

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application and Map

Page 1of 1Council Agenda Action SheetCreated on 12119/2017

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required

6. Budget Information:

Appropriation Required: N/A
Budget amount available: N/A
Fund name: N/A

5. Background Information:

4. Time Required: 10 Minutes

3. Agenda Category: PETITION

2. Meeting Date: January 9, 2018

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible action to accept a petition for annexation
of property to the City, filed and processed as Annexation No. 3-17 by Swire Coca
Cola, Inc, consisting of approximately 3 acres of property located on the north side
of West Idaho Street, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Agenda Item VI.A.



Mailing Address

Telephone NumberSignature(Print Name)

Mailing Address

Telephone NumberSignature(Print Name)

Mailing Address

Telephone Number(Print Name) Signature
12634 South 265 West, Draper, UT 84020

PROPERr(QWNERS: (Attach additional pages if necessary)

Swire Coca-Cota, USA 4J.e---_~ 801.816.5760

ASSESSOR PARCEL NUMBER (S): Parcel 1, APN 006-09G-036, Map # 263740
(This is not the legal description)

Page 1Revised 12/04/15

The applicant (100% of all property owners) hereby petitions the Elko City Council to annex to the

City of Elko certain real property by ordinance, to be adopted pursuant to NRS 268.670. Said

property petitioned for annexation is legally described as follows: (Attach if necessary)
(See Attachment)

APPLICATION FOR ANNEXATION

1751 College Avenue * Elko * Nevada * 89801

(775) 777·7160 * (775) 777·7119 fax

CITY OF ELKO PLANNING DEPARTMENT



Binder Pane 7 of 9

Page 2Revised 12/04/15

4. Identify any unique physical features or characteristics associated with the property.

None known.

warehoused in this location, then distributed to local stores, restaurants, etc.

3. Explain in detail the type and nature of the use anticipated for the property.
Beverage distribution center. Product is delivered to this location from regional bottling plants and suppliers,

1. Identify the existing zoning classification of the property: Highway Commecial

2. Identify the zoning classification being requested upon annexation: Light Industrial
(A separate zone change application must be submitted for the requested classification.)

Other Information: The applicant is encouraged to submit other information and documentation
to support this Annexation request

Note: One .pdf (email is okay) of the entire application must be submitted, as well as one set of
legible, reproducible plans 8 ~" x 11" in size. If the applicant feels the Commission needs to see
24" x 36" plans, 10 sets of pre-folded plans must be submitted.

Plot Plan: If the property is improved, a surveyed plot plan showing property lines, existing
buildings, building setbacks, parking and loading areas and any other pertinent information.

Legal Description: A complete legal description of all property proposed for annexation.

Annexation Map: An annexation map or record of survey of the area proposed for annexation
provided by a properly licensed surveyor. Such map shall include the proposed acreage to be
annexed. and the length and percentage of common boundary (at least 15%) with the corporate
limits of the City. If the property abuts a road not already in the City limits, at least one half of the
road must be included in the map and legal description (see N.R.S. 268.663).

Fee: 10 acres or less $500.00, greater than 10 acres through 50 acres $750.00, greater than 50
acres $1,250.00. The filing fee shall be paid in full prior to consideration of the annexation request
by the Planning Commission.

Complete Application Form: In order to begin processing the application, an application form
must be complete and signed. Applications go before the City Council, Planning Commission, and
back to City Council twice, and will take a minimum of 8 weeks.

FILING REQUIREMENTS:



Binder Pacs 8 of 9

Page 3Revised 12/04/15

(Use additional pages if necessary to address questions 3 through 6)

6. Identify any water rights which will support the annexed property: _N_o_n_e _

"Sheep Trail and West Idaho Street Water Main Extension"

5. Identify the type and ext, .1. of City infrastructure anticipated tv. service to the property such as
streets, sewer, and water service.

City waterline extension to serve the property is in progress.



Rinf'll=>r P::ln,:l Q ....,f Q

Page 4Revised 12/04/15

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY

File No.: '6' 13 Date Filed: 1211(\ II1 Fee Paid: $ :-=:(0 cc-tt it SSLl

City, State, Zip Code

Phone Number: 801.816.5760

Email address:dreid@swirecc.com
r>.

SIGNATURE: t},c_",-;:' t------;r~~~~--~.------~----------------------

Applicant I Agent Dan Reid, Swire Sr. Manager For Construction _
(Please print or type)

Mailing Address 12634 South 265 West
Street Address or P.O. Box

Draper, UT, 84070

1./1 I have carefully read and completed all questions contained within this application to the
best of my ability.

1./1 I acknowledge that this application may be tabled until a later meeting if either I or my
designated representative or agent is not present at the meeting for which this application is
scheduled.

1./ I I acknowledge that submission of this application does not imply approval of this request
by the City Planning Department, the City Planning Commission and the City Council, nor does it
in and of itself guarantee issuance of any other required permits and/or licenses.

o I object to having the City of Elko Staff enter onto my property as a part of their review of
this application. (Your objection will not affect the recommendation made by the staff or the final determination
made by the City PlanningCommission or the City Council.)

1./ I I consent to having the City of Elko Staff enter on my property only for the sole purpose of
inspection said property as part of this application process.

By My Signature below:



Planning Comraissiea Actioa SheetCreated on 11115/2:61'(5

9. Findings!' 'i'''c<;~'' ,.;c ;' "

• The-s.bdi~~iton:is in co~fo'rma'n~e~it~"the Land Use and TFlln,SportatibD.
enmMol.t~jl!~1ai~tln~Master P:lan. . .. .

•. MourP:tA!i.-v~F)~},tj)\'~efe.l~pm~utstand~J;ds,:bavebeen approved with the dl;¥elop'Dl'e9t
3gr.e~i.ll~ri'; o~asc;lfj e 666:541op t~co,dpwitbthe Elko C·ountyRe~,rder' s·~Office.

• llti~~c!'Jo~~t~.~,<,'~' ,1" .~p'~~JJt",~~een);~llt~,,~b.t>':'~bdiY~o.bfiSijl\ ebJ1folfmanc:e with '3..2~4..
Est@blisb~e f I ~fl 'stittt&~<,..'. l. .' ..:
I ..'." .,/,:~. ,:-' I]!l._ ..<""'~' .,?i:: "'", ;,: ,.,:. '."." .', .'" , ".' ,

• ,,:Ba~edd,' 'e~Q'~y~U)pijiellti,~g~e~~:~ti"tJte:~ub:4i,~;si(Jniis;~:~onfQnnanee wi-tlt3 ..2-S..
;~B.:Sjj\gr~)¥a,iJifjraiidiM~It;pl~~$~!!it(y,~opipg9j~Jt~i~t'S,:· .' .' '

, .B·~s~~vontb~ 'Dev!loPIll~~)tA~'f,ee~~r(t-~~~e'<~Jlh(J!~~iQil~i~':iYt~~~~r#1;~ilc:cWitk' 3..2..9
CT ..'Comme:rcia:lTransltiomt.l ZonlDg'~U1S.~lct,.. /'." ,,;', ' ... , ,'4:

• :;:=~~n is iR eJtr~c~w~tnr~'~1'~~b\~eSSf~~~and<LoadiDg

• The sDbdj~visiol1is in cCInformaace witb.3 ..3;:;Swith less titan 1 Yea's, siine;el~lst'fillal
pla't:wa~reeorded.

6. Business Impact Statement: Not llequjl~ed

7. SUPP~~~~~J]lIa~~on: A,pliMiim, Memo f.r9Ql D~~~ttfW;

Memo fr~!:~datlnr'. .., .: • ' '.'...;:9~~!t~t_o~~eity~IH~{lit~~Y~'j~1

3. AgendaCate~6rY':tBU1l.L1 'EWBUSINES

4. T~~~q~~:ils
50 ~aCksro~Jllf:~~atioA S~jeet:jI~ ls Jeeated ~n«IIDf' ~~a~lIf the

mterseeuolI>fiMoun'tal>ll CIty Bl,gbw~y an<1lCattle DFlv:e (1\~Nk:~Q1,"(UF...31').
Pr~lifui'Darfl'la'tw,as',r 'e~lllmeJld:ed to CltyC'ouneil to ebJtditiQJtally a,p~J)ve:by
Planning CQJ}unissien, ,UBe S, 1012 and eOIl,ditl&naUy apprQv;ed,by dity Council
June' 2,6.,2.o12t .Phase is ,the final pj}'ase tlhhe subdivision.

Agenda Item if I.BA. '
_/

EHio·City·PlaBfiing Commission ,,'. ... I '~nda Aetion Sheet, ,. .'. . ". ".••.
1. ReVIew, ;coqsJder,atloR .n' p0sstble'al';ptova~ of Irmal Plae No. 2-.0118,fil~ll,by Autumn

Colors, LLC., fur the,d"v~to"lnel\t..t;a suhdw1js:io;1leutitled: Autumn (1dJ)Q\ljs'Estates,
Phase 5 inv.oWilt,g f}l~.:pro,pftseddivisiu;ll of ~ppr~imately S'.85 a"Ul"~S ,0:£ p~dp-e~tyinto
21 lots f&r, ~~Si'il(elJtial.J~~v~lopnteD\t'w.ltbin'ike R (rsingle P~amily.and Mqttiple Family
Resjden-tialt~~ttiQ,~~i~trj~t"all,d'2'();19ts for ~t()Wlllfolln~·ae¥etopmellt wlllri~ tbe CT
~~~:or'ZOning,J)iStl'id,.antl:;ffiatter8.related,thlltIltO; FOR

2. MeetingI)a:1~:li·:'~,'F1eb·rua.r'6,2.Q,18



Initial

Ci 5
~ssistant~i~ ~anager: ~ate:_~!~~~~~/~~/~~ ~

Ie (Ct?MJAA-fvtd ~1/j/?/2oV~

**If additional space is needed please provide a separate memorandum**

Initial

Title: IY,o\-YIGi L -/r' ,.c\L'i\:\,YWl Cr,lcr-) tSiatcs--P} )O(,{> 5
Applicant(s): j-/\ '=hn:}J(J Coley":;, LLC

I

Site Location: 3<2cc \}1}v J C~ J-tUJ - ,AJ ? C fr' '0.,_
Current Zoning: llt C T Dateiece:Jd: \ /1 Lo Date Public Notice: ____,~-<---l- __

COMMENT: Th ISIS {by' Y' !.01S nn .!) ?/) o(\reS In q L
I)Vl~;J J~'~~J~I~~~

STAFF COMMENT FLOW SHEET
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA DATE: 1)Lz

**Do not use pencil or red pen, they do not reproduce**



Page 1 of8

RECOMMEND to APPROVE this item subject to findings of fact and conditions.

STAFFRECOMMENDATION:

A Final Map for the division of approximately 5.85 acres into 21 lots for single family
residential development within an R (Single Family and Multiple Family Residential)
Zoning District and 20 lots for townhome development with the CT (Commercial
Transitional) Zoning District.

January 22, 2018
February 6, 2018
I.B.4
Final Plat 2-18
Autumn Colors, LLC
Generally located on the north side of Mountain
City Highway between Cattle Drive and
Sagecrest Drive
CUP 1-18ADDITIONALAPPLICATIONS:

DATE:
PLANNINGCOMMISSION DATE:
AGENDAITEM NUMBER:
APPLICATION NUMBER:
APPLICANT:
PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

City of Elko
1751 College Avenue
Elko, NV 89801
(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7119



Page 2 of8

• City of Elko Master Plan - Land Use Component
• City of Elko Master Plan - Transportation Component
• City of Elko Redevelopment Plan
• City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-3 General Provisions
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-4 Zoning Districts
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-5(E) Single-Family and Multi-Family Residential

District
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-5(G) Residential Zoning Districts Area, Setback And

Height Schedule For Principal Buildings

Applicable Master Plan Sections, Coordinating Plans, and City Code Sections are:

MASTER PLAN, COORDINATING PLANS, and CITY CODE SECTIONS:

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:
The property is an undeveloped residential and commercial transitional parcel.
This is the final phase of the Autumn Colors Estates Subdivision.
The proposed development will be considered new development.

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:
The property is surrounded by:
North: Property located in Elko County I Undeveloped
East: Residential (R) / Developed
South: Commercial (C) I undeveloped
West: Property located in Elko County I Undeveloped

VacantEXISTING LAND USE:

(RES-MD) Residential Medium Density and
(COMM-GEN) Commercial General

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION:

(R) Single Family and Multiple-Family Residential
and (CT) Commercial Transitional

EXISTING ZONING:

5.85 acres for this Phase 5 of the subdivision; the
entire subdivision is 37.33 acres. In Phase 5, 1.01
acres are offered for dedication for street
development

PARCEL SIZE:

001-0IF-316PARCEL NUMBERS:

PROJECT INFORMATION

-

I
I

I

FINAL PLAT 2-18
Autumn Colors Estates Phase 5
APN: OOI-OIF-316



1. The property lies outside of the 30 year capture zone for the City of Elko.

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN:

1. The property is not located within the Redevelopment Area.

ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN:

The subdivision is in conformance with the Land Use and Transportation components of the
Master Plan.

2. Conformance with the Transportation component of the Master Plan was evaluated with
review and approval of the Preliminary Plat. The Final Plat is in conformance with the
Preliminary Plat.

1. Conformance with the Land Use component of the Master Plan was evaluated with
review and approval of the Preliminary Plat. The Final Plat is in conformance with the
Preliminary Plat.

MASTER PLAN:

Page 3 of8

1. The City Council accepted the Preliminary Plat at its meeting on June 26, 2012.
2. The Development is subject to a Development Agreement shown as File 666547 on

record with the Elko County Recorder's Office. The development agreement allows for
reduction in lot size, reduction in setbacks for principal buildings, maximum building
size, minimum useable floor area, fencing and exterior requirements, and parking
requirements.

3. The Final Plat for Autumn Colors Phase 1was recorded on February 22, 2013.
4. The Final Plat for Autumn Colors Phase 2 was recorded on January 17, 2014.
5. The Final Plat for Autumn Colors Phase 3 was recorded on July 8,2015
6. The Final Plat for Autumn Colors Phase 3 Certificate of Amendment was recorded on

July 30, 2015
7. The Final Plat for Autumn Colors Phase 4 was recorded on June 29, 2017
8. Final Plat for Autumn Colors Phase 5 application has been presented before the

expiration of the subdivision proceedings in accordance with NRS 278.360(1)(a)(2).
9. The application is for a total of 41 lots. Of those 41, 20 are for townhomes and 21 are for

detached single family residences. The proposed density is 8.47 units per acre.
10. The total subdivided area is approximately 5.85 acres in size
11.Approximately 1.01 acres are offered for dedication for street development.
12. The property is located off Mountain City Highway, NDOT jurisdiction.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-9 (CT) Commercial Transitional Zoning District
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-8 Flood Plain Management
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations
• City ofElko Zoning - Chapter 3 Subdivisions

FINAL PLAT 2-18
Autumn Colors Estates Phase 5
APN: 001-01 F-316



Page 4 of8

2. CUP 8-12 was approved for the development of townhomes, 96 units of 6 units per
building. A new CUP application 1-18 has been submitted for approval of the remaining

SECTION 3-2-9CC, CT Commercial Districts
1. Conditional Uses Permitted: Multiple-family residential developments which contain five

(5) or more units located on a single lot or parcel; townhouse, condominium or attached
housing developments.

Project is in conformance with 3-2-5(0) with the reductions for area and setbacks as shown in
the development agreement as shown as File 666547 on record with the Elko County Recorder's
Office.

1. Lot dimensions were approved with the Preliminary Plat. Development, including area
and setback requirement standards have been approved with the development agreement
shown as File 666547 on record with the Elko County Recorder's Office.

SECTION 3-2-5(G)Residential Zoning District

Project is in conformance with 3-2-5(E) with the p

SECTION 3-2-5(E)Residential Zoning Districts
1. 3-2-5(E) Single Family and Multiple Family Residential District. Lots 521-541 must

comply with principal permitted uses as listed in this section.

Project is in conformance with 3-2-4 with the reductions for area and setbacks as shown in the
development agreement as shown as File 666547 on record with the Elko County Recorder's
Office.

SECTION 3-2-4ESTABLISHMENT OF ZONING DISTRICTS
1. Required conformity to district regulations as listed in Section 3-2-5 and 3-2-9 is

required.
2. Lot area requirement standards have been reduced with the approved development

agreement shown as File 666547 on record with the Elko County Recorder's Office.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-2-3.

2. It appears the area proposed for the subdivision is suitable for the development of single
family residential units and townhome units taking into consideration flooding,
concentrated runoff, inadequate drainage, adverse soil or rock formation, extreme
topography, low bearing strength, erosion susceptibility, or any other features likely to be
harmful to the health, safety and general welfare of the community.

1. 3-2-3(C) The proposed development is in conformance with the principal uses provided
for in the Single Family Residential District.

SECTION 3-2-3GENERAL PROVISIONS

FINAL PLAT 2-18
Autumn Colors Estates Phase 5
APN: OOI-OIF-316



1. The property is not located within a designated flood plain.

SECTION 3-8

1. Compliance with this section is required. See Development Department memo dated
January 23, 2018.

SECTION 3-3-8 INFORMATION REQUIRED FOR FINAL PLAT SUBMITTAL

Pre-submission Requirements (A)(3)- The Title Sheet includes an affidavit for public utilities
and no objections were received from public utilities upon notification for the Preliminary Plat.

Pre-submission Requirements (A)(2) - The proposed final plat conforms closely to the
preliminary plat. A slight modification in the number of lots and size of lots has been submitted
but these changes would be considered minor revisions and support the development.

Pre-submission Requirements (A)(1) - The Plat is in conformance with the zone requirements
approved under the Development Agreement. A Conditional Use Permit application 1-18will be
heard in conjunction to this final plat application but acted on separately. The CUP 1-18will
replace CUP 8-12 which was previously approved for a total of24 townhome units in Phase 5.

SECTION 3-3-6FINAL PLAT STAGE (STAGE III)

F. Significance of Preliminary Approval, subject to the provisions of this section and NRS
278.360, the final plat shall be recorded within 2 years of the date of recording of the
previous final plat.

SECTION 3-3-5PRELIMINARY PLAT STAGE (STAGE II)

It appears the proposed development will meet the requirements of3-2-17.

1. As the property develops, conformance with 3-2-17 will be required.

SECTION 3-2-17

Project is in conformance with 3-2-9 with the reductions for area and setbacks as shown in the
development agreement as shown as File 666547 on record with the Elko County Recorder's
Office.

4. CUP 1-18must be approved for conformance with this section of code.

3. Property development standards have been reduced for lot area, lot width, and setbacks
with the development agreement.

24 units to be reduced to 20 units which are designed at 2 per building instead of 6.

FINAL PLAT 2-18
Autumn Colors Estates Phase 5
APN: OOl-OIF-316

Page 5 of8



Page 6 of8

1. The subdivision is in conformance with the Land Use and Transportation components of
the Master Plan.

2. Modifications to development standards have been approved with the development
agreement shown as File 666547 on record with the Elko County Recorder's Office.

3. Based on the Development Agreement, the subdivision is in conformance with 3-2-4-
Establishment of Zoning Districts.

4. Based on the Development Agreement, the subdivision is in conformance with 3-2-5-E
Single-Family and Multiple-Family Zoning Districts.

5. Based on the Development Agreement, the subdivision is in conformance with 3-2-9 CT
Commercial Transitional Zoning District.

6. The subdivision is in conformance with 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading
Regulations.

7. The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-5 with less than 2 years since last final plat
was recorded.

8. The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-6-Final Plat (Stage III).
9. The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-8-Information required for Final Plat

Submission.
10. The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-20-General Provisions for Subdivision

Design.
a. The subdivision does not appear to be unsuitable for use by reason of flooding,

concentrated runoff, inadequate drainage, adverse soil or rock formation, extreme
topography, erosion susceptibility or similar conditions which are likely to prove
harmful to the health and safety and general welfare of the community or the
future property owners.

11. The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-21-Street Location and Arrangement.
12. The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-22-Street Design.
l3. The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-23-Block Design.
14.The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-24-Lot Planning as modified by the

Development Agreement.
15. The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-25-Easement Planning.
16. The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-26-Street Naming.
17.The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-27-Street Lighting Design Standards.
18. The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-40-Responsibility for Improvements.
19. The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-41-Engineering Plans.
20. The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-42-Construction and Inspection.
21. The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-43-Required Improvements.
22. The sub-divider shall enter into a performance agreement to address the conditions found

in 3-3-44-Agreement to Install Improvements.
23. The sub-divider shall provide a performance guarantee as stipulated in the performance

agreement and 3-3-45-Performance Guarantee.
24. A modification of standards is required per 3-3-70-Modification of Standards
25. The subdivision is in conformance with 3-8 Floodplain Management.

FINDINGS

FINAL PLAT 2-18
Autumn Colors Estates Phase 5
APN: OOl-OIF-316



Utilities Department
1. Civil Plans for water and sewer will be reviewed at time of submittal and offer any

Public Works Department
1. All public improvements per City code at time of development.

Page 7 of8

1. The Applicant shall complete all required subdivision improvements within two (2) years
of the date of approval. Approval of the Final plat shall expire if the final plat is not
recorded within two (2) years of the date on which the subdivider recorded the previous
Final Plat, pursuant to NRS 278.360. This plat shall be recorded prior to June 27, 2019.
The applicant may request an extension of time as provided for under provisions of City
Code.

2. The final plat is approved for 20 townhome lots and 21 single family residential lots.
3. The Utility Department will issue a Will Serve Letter.
4. Final approval for civil improvement plans
5. State approval of the subdivision.
6. A Performance Agreement with regard to the dedication of public improvements shall be

presented with the final plat for approval. The developer shall enter into the Performance
Agreement within 30 days of approval of the final plat by City Council.

7. The vicinity map on page 1 of the plat needs to be adjusted to identify the location of the
subdivision.

8. A drainage easement is required to be recorded over Common Area A near Cattle Drive.
9. Lot 531 shall have access restricted to Autumn Colors Drive. Note on map required.
10. Lot 532 and 537 shall have access restricted to Snowy River. Note on map required.
11. The developer shall clarify the depth of lots 513-520, the other townhome lots have a

depth of79.00'.
12. Provide a bearing for lots 504, 505, 512, 513, and 520.
13.The plat shall identify the location of the City boundary.
14. The plat shall identify the staking of all lot comers, per ECC 3-3-43.
15.The council should consider a modification of standards, not requiring the installation of

curb and gutter as required in ECC 3-3-43-B, Curbs for the frontage of Mountain City
Highway (SR 225).

16.NDOT approval is required for improvements on Mountain City Highway (SR 225).
17.A jurat shall be provided for NDOT approval.
18.Update the dates in thejurats to reflect 2018.

Development Department
(see Memorandum from Development Manager Jeremy Draper dated January 23,2018)

Staff recommends approval of the subdivision based on the following conditions:

RECOMMENDATION

26. The Final Plat is in conformance with the Preliminary Plat.
27. All Final Plat revisions are required prior to City Council consideration of the

application.

FINAL PLAT 2-18
Autumn Colors Estates Phase 5
APN: 001-01 F-316



Planning Department
1. All revisions to map must be completed prior to City Council consideration for approval.
2. Common Area A needs to be landscaped and properly cared for and maintained in a

manner that is acceptable to the City of Elko.
3. Existing cluster of post office boxes for County residents needs to be addressed with in

the Final Plat. Location, easement, distance to intersection, and traffic conditions all
should be addressed.

feedback in the form of redline comments.

FINAL PLAT 2-18
Autumn Colors Estates Phase 5
APN: OOI-OIF-316

Page 8 of8



C:\Users\sknopp\Downloads\Autumn Colors Ph 5 Final Plat PC 012418 (1).docx
Created by Jeremy Draper

1. The Final Plat for Autumn Colors Phase 1 was recorded on February 22, 2013.
2. The Final Plat for Autumn Colors Phase 2 was recorded on January 17, 2014.
3. The Final Plat for Autumn Colors Phase 3 was recorded on July 8, 2015.
4. The Final Plat for Autumn Colors Phase 4 was recorded on June 29, 2017.
5. The Final Plat for Autumn Colors Phase 5 has been presented prior to the

expiration of the subdivision proceedings in accordance with NRS 278.360
(1)(a)(2).

Background Information

The City Development Department has reviewed the final subdivision plat for
conformance with the applicable Master Plan section, Coordinating Plans, and City
Code Sections.

To: Elko Planning Commission
From: Jeremy Draper, PE, Development Manager
RE: Final Subdivision Plat Review for Autumn Colors-Phase 5
Date: January 24, 2018

CITY OF ELKO
DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

1755 COLLEGE AVENUE
ELKO, NEVADA 89801

(775)777-7210
(775)777-7219 FAX



• The area is identified as Commercial General along the SR 225 frontage and as
Residential Medium Density for the remainder of the property.

• Corresponding zoning districts are
o Commercial General

• C-General Commercial
• CC-Convenience Commercial
• CT-Commercial Transitional
• PC-Planned Commercial
• IC-Industrial Commercial

o Residential-Medium Density
• R-Single-Family and Multiple-Family Residential
• R1-Single-Family Residential
• R2-Two-Family Residential
• PUD-Planned Unit Development
• RO-Residential Office
• RB-Residential Business
• RMH-2-Mobile Home Subdivision
• RMH-3-Manufactured Home Subdivision

• Applicable objectives of the Land Use Component are
o Objective 1-Promote a diverse mix of housing options to meet the needs

of a variety of lifestyles, incomes, and age groups.
o Objective 8-Encourage new development that does not negatively impact

County-wide natural systems, or public/federal lands such as waterways,

Master Plan
Land Use Component

6. The Subdivision is subject to a Development Agreement shown as File 666547
on record with the Elko County Recorder's Office.

7. The application includes 20-townhome lots and 21 single-family lots.
8. The townhome lots will be subject to the approval and the conditions of CUP 1-

18.
9. The subdivision is located near the intersection of Mountain City Highway (SR

225) and Cattle Drive.
10.Public improvements along SR 225 are subject to NDOT approval. NDOT has

stipulated in its letter dated September 20, 2017 that in its opinion, curb and
gutter are not required on the SR 225 frontage.

11.The townhome development is locating is a CT-Commercial Transitional District
12.The single-family housing is located in a R-Single-Family and Multiple-Family

District.
13.The proposed routing of water and sewer utilities outside of the SR 225 right of

way is consistent with prior approvals of the subdivision. An 18"waterline will be
routed in Cattle Drive for future extension to Exit 298.

Page 2 of 11



• Conformance with this section is required.

3-2-17-Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations

B. CT-Commercial Transitional District
• Conformance with this section is required as modified by the Development

Agreement and in conformance with CUP 1-18.
• The plat complies with the requirements under the Development

Agreement under this zone.

3-2-9-CC, CT Commercial Districts

E. R-Single-Family and Multiple-Family Residential District
• Conformance with this section is require as modified by the Development

Agreement.
• The plat complies with the requirements under the Development

Agreement under this zone.
• Location of single-family residences shall be in conformance with the

setbacks found in the Development Agreement.

3-2-5-Residential Zoning Districts

• Conformance with this section is required.

Section 3-2-4-Establishment of Zoning Districts

The subdivision is in conformance with the Master Plan.

• The subdivision takes access from Cattle Drive, a Residential Collector, and is
connected to Mountain City Highway (SR 225), a Principal Arterial under NDOT
jurisdiction.

• Roadways internal to the subdivision are considered local streets.
• Applicable objectives of the Transportation Component are

o Objective 1-Provide a balanced transportation system that accommodates
vehicles, bicycles, and pedestrians, while being sensitive to, and
supporting the adjacent land uses.

o Objective 2-Provide a backbone of arterial roadways to emphasize
regional vehicle travel and provide adequate capacity to move large traffic
volumes, including truck traffic, safely and efficiently.

Transportation Component

wetlands, drainages, floodplains, etc., or pose a danger to human health
and safety.

Page 3 of 11



A. Form and Content-The final plat conforms to the required size specifications and
provides the appropriate affidavits and certifications.

B. Identification Data
1. The subdivision map identified the subdivision, and provides its location by

section, township, range and county. The vicinity map should be
adjusted to identify the location of the subdivision

2. The subdivision map was prepared by a properly licensed surveyor.
3. The subdivision map provides a scale, north point, and date of

preparation.
C. Survey Data

1. The boundaries of the tract are fully balanced and closed.
2. All exceptions are noted on the plat.

Section 3-3-8-lnformation Required for Final Plat Submission

A. Presubmission Requirements
1. Zoning-The area in which the subdivision is located is zoned CT

Commercial Transitional for the townhomes, and R-Single-Family and
Multiple-Family Residential for the single-family residents. The area being
developed in the CT zone is being done under CUP 1-18. A zoning
amendment is not required.

2. Preparation of Final Plat-The Final Plat conforms closely with the prepared
preliminary plat 5-12 with the exception of the number of townhome lots.
The preliminary plat provided for a total of 96 townhomes, the developer
has requested to reduce the number of townhomes to a total of 92.

3. Easements-The final plat has the required approval from public utilities for
easements. A drainage easement shall be recorded over Common
Area A.

Section 3-3-6-Final Plat Stage (Stage III)

F. Significance of Preliminary Approval, subject to the provisions of this section and
NRS 278.360, the final plat shall be recorded within 2 years of the date of
recording of the previous final plat.

3-3-5-Preliminary Plat Stage (Stage II)

• Conformance with this section is required, the development of the townhomes
shall be in conformance with CUP 1-18.

3-2-18-Conditional Use Permits

• All lots shall be provided with the required number of off street parking spaces.
• Access to lost shall conform with this section.

Page 4 of 11



3. The location and description of cardinal points are tied to a section corner.
4. The location and description of any physical encroachments upon the

boundary of the tract are noted on the plat.
D. Descriptive Data

1. The name, right of way lines, courses, lengths and widths of all streets
and easements are noted on the plat.

2. All drainageways are noted on the plan. A drainage easement should be
recorded over Common Area A.

3. All utility and public service easements are noted on the plat.
4. The location and dimensions of all lots, parcels and exceptions are shown

on the plat.
5. All residential lots are numbered consecutively on the plat.
6. There are no sites dedicated to the public shown on the plat.
7. The location of adjoining subdivisions are noted on the plat with required

information.
8. There are no deed restrictions proposed. Lots 531,532, and 537shall

have access restricted to Autumn Colors Drive and Snowy River
respectfully.

E. Dedication and Acknowledgment
1. The owner's certificate has the required dedication information for all

easements and right of ways.
2. The execution of dedication is acknowledged and certified by a notary

public.
F. Additional Information

1. All centerline monuments for streets are noted as being set on the plat.
2. The centerline and width of each right of way is noted on the plat.
3. The plat indicates the location of monuments that will be set to determine

the boundaries of the subdivision.
4. The length and bearing of each lot line is identified on the plat. The

developer shall clarify the depth of lots 513-520,it appears they may
be labeled incorrectly.

5. The city boundary adjoining the subdivision is not identified on the plat.
The plat shall identify the location of the City boundary.

6. The plat identifies the location of the section lines, and 1116thsection line
adjoining the subdivision boundaries.

G. City Engineer to Check
1. The Engineer shall check the final map for accuracy of dimensions,

placement of monuments, the establishment of survey records, and
conformance with the preliminary map.

a) Closure calculations have been provided.
b) Civil improvement plans have been provided and are under
review.

c) Civil improvement plans for drainage are under review.
d) An engineer's estimate has been provided.

2. It appears the lot closures are within the required tolerances.

Page 5 of 11



3-3-23-Block Design

• The proposed subdivision appears to be in conformance with this section.

3-3-22-Street Design

• The proposed subdivision is in conformance with this section, all streets are
platted in conformance with the City Master Plan. Local Residential Street are
arranged to discourage pass through traffic.

3-3-21-Street Location and Arrangement

A. Conformance with Mater Plan-The proposed subdivision is in conformance with
the requirements and objectives of the Mater Plan, Land Use and Transportation
Components. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with the City zoning
ordinances.

B. There are no public sites offered for dedication with this subdivision.
C. The land for the subdivision appears to be suitable for subdividing. The

subdivision does not appear to be unsuitable for use by reason of flooding,
concentrated runoff, inadequate drainage, adverse soil or rock formation,
extreme topography, erosion susceptibility or similar conditions which are likely to
prove harmful to the health and safety and general welfare of the community or
the future property owners.

3-3-20-General Provisions for Subdivision Design

H. Required certifications
1. The Owner's Certificate is shown on the final plat.
2. The Owner's Certificate offers for dedication all right of ways shown on the

plat.
3. A Clerk Certificate is shown on the final plat, certifying the signature of the

City Council.
4. The Owner's Certificate offers for dedication all easements shown on the

plat.
5. A Surveyor's Certificate is shown on the plat and provides the required

language.
6. The City Engineer's Certificate is listed on the plat.
7. A certificate from the Nevada Division of Environmental Protection is

provided with the required language.
8. A copy of review by the state engineer is not available at this time.
9. A certificate from the Division of Water Resources is provided on the plat

with the required language.
10.The civil improvement plans identify the required water meters for the

subdivision.

Page 6 of 11



3-3-44-Agreement to Install Improvements

• Civil improvement plans have been submitted and are under review for
conformance with this section of code.

• Civil improvements include curb, gutter and sidewalk, paving and utilities within
the Autumn Colors Drive, Snowy River, and Cattle Drive right of ways.

• Civil improvements including sidewalk are shown within the SR 225 right of way.

3-3-43-Reguired Improvements

• The developer has submitted plans for review to receive all required permits.

3-3-42-Construction and Inspection

• Civil improvement plans have been submitted and are under review.

3-3-41-Engineering Plans

• The developer shall be responsible for all required improvements.

3-3-40-Responsibility for Improvements

• The required street lighting is identified on the civil improvement plans.

3-3-27-Street Lighting Design Standards

• All proposed street names are an extension of existing streets from previous
phases and conform to the Preliminary Plat.

3-3-26-Street Naming

• The subdivision has offered for dedication the required utility and drainage
easements as required by this section.

3-3-25-Easement Planning

• The proposed subdivision is subject to a Development Agreement filed as file
666547 modifying the minimum lot dimensions. The subdivision is in
conformance with Development Agreement.

3-3-24-Lot Planning

• The proposed subdivision appears to be in conformance with this section.

Page 7 of 11



• The proposed subdivision is not located within a special flood hazard area.

3-a-Floodplain Management

A. Where in the opinion of the planning commission, there exists extraordinary
conditions of topography, land ownership, or adjacent development, the city
council may modify the provisions of this chapter, or any other provision in this
code, in such a manner and to the minimum extent necessary to carry out the
intent of this chapter.

• The subdivision has frontage along Mountain City Highway (SR 225), an
NDOT right of way. NDOT has indicated they do not want to have curb
and gutter along this frontage.

• The council should consider a modification of standards, not
requiring the installation of curb and gutter as required in ECC3-3-
43-8, Curbs for the frontage of Mountain City Highway (SR225)
based on the findings of the Planning Commission.

• The proposed routing of water and sewer utilities outside of the SR 225
right of way is consistent with prior approvals of the subdivision. An 18"
waterline will be routed in Cattle Drive for future extension to Exit 298.
Sewer for the subdivision is located within the boundary of the subdivision,
properties with annexation potential could connect to the utilities located
within the Cattle Drive right of way.

• The council should consider a modification of standards, not
requiring the installation of water and sewer infrastructure as
required in ECC3-3-43-G& H, Sanitary Sewer and Water Supply,
along the frontage of Mountain City Highway (SR225) based on the
findings of the Planning Commission.

C. Additional Necessary Requirements: In modifying the standards or requirements
of this chapter, as outlined heretofore, the council may make such additional
requirements as are necessary in its judgement to secure substantially the
objectives of the standards or requirements so modified.

3-3-70-Modification of Standards

• The subdivider shall provide a Performance Guarantee as stipulated in the
Performance Agreement.

3-3-45-Performance Guarantee

• The subdivider will be required to enter into a Performance Agreement to
address the conditions of this section.

Page 8 of 11

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------



Findings
• The subdivision is in conformance with the Land Use and Transportation

components of the Master Plan.
• The subdivision is in conformance with 3-2-4-Establishment of Zoning Districts.
• The subdivision is in conformance with 3-2-5-E-Single-Family and Multiple

Family Zoning Districts.
• The subdivision is in conformance with 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parking and

Loading Regulations.
• The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-6-Final Plat (Stage III).
• The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-8-lnformation required for Final Plat

Submission.
• The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-20-General Provisions for Subdivision

Design.
o The subdivision does not appear to be unsuitable for use by reason of

flooding, concentrated runoff, inadequate drainage, adverse sailor rock
formation, extreme topography, erosion susceptibility or similar conditions
which are likely to prove harmful to the health and safety and general
welfare of the community or the future property owners.

• The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-21-Street Location and Arrangement.
• The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-22-Street Design.
• The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-23-Block Design.
• The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-24-Lot Planning as modified by the

Development Agreement.
• The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-25-Easement Planning.
• The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-26-Street Naming.
• The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-27-Street Lighting Design Standards.
• The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-40-Responsibility for Improvements.
• The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-41-Engineering Plans.
• The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-42-Construction and Inspection.
• The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-43-Required Improvements.

• Conformance with this section is required.

9-8-Postconstruction Runoff Control and Water Quality Management

• During construction of the subdivision and the erection of the housing, the
developer shall be in conformance with this section of code.

9-7-Construction Site Runoff Control

8-18-Public Improvement Standards

Page 9 of 11

• Conformance with this section is required.



1. The Applicant shall complete all required subdivision improvements within two (2)
years of the date of approval. Approval of the Final plat shall expire if the final
plat is not recorded within two (2) years of the date on which the subdivider
recorded the previous Final Plat, pursuant to NRS 278.360. This plat shall be
recorded prior to June 27,2019. The applicant may request an extension of time
as provided for under provisions of City Code.

2. The final plat is approved for 20 townhome lots and 21 single family residential
lots.

3. The Utility Department will issue a Will Serve Letter.
4. Final approval for civil improvement plans
5. State approval of the subdivision.
6. A Performance Agreement with regard to the dedication of public improvements

shall be presented with the final plat for approval. The developer shall enter into
the Performance Agreement within 30 days of approval of the final plat by City
Council.

7. The vicinity map on page 1 of the plat needs to be adjusted to identify the
location of the subdivision prior to City Council consideration.

8. A drainage easement over Common Area A near Cattle Drive shall be shown on
the final plat prior to City Council consideration.

9. Lot 531 shall have access restricted to Autumn Colors Drive, a note shall be
added to the final plat prior to City Council consideration.

10.Lot 532 and 537 shall have access restricted to Snowy River, a note shall be
added to the final plat prior to City Council consideration.

11.The developer shall clarify the depth of lots 513-520, the other townhome lots
have a depth of 79.00' prior to City Council consideration.

12.Provide a bearing for lots 504, 505, 512, 513, and 520 on the final plat prior to
City Council consideration.

13.The plat shall identify the location of the City boundary prior to City Council
consideration.

14.The plat shall identify the staking of all lot corners, per ECC 3-3-43 prior to City
Council consideration.

The City of Elko Development Department recommends approval of the subdivision
based on the following conditions:

Recommendation

• The subdivider shall enter into a performance agreement to address the
conditions found in 3-3-44-Agreement to Install Improvements.

• The subdivider shall provide a performance guarantee as stipulated in the
performance agreement and 3-3-45-Performance Guarantee.

• A modification of standards is required per 3-3-70-Modification of Standards for
curb and gutter, sanitary sewer and water supply not being installed in SR 225.

Page 10 of 11



15. The council should consider a modification of standards, not requiring the
installation of curb and gutter as required in ECC 3-3-43-8, Curbs for the
frontage of Mountain City Highway (SR 225) based on the findings of the
Planning Commission.

16. The council should consider a modification of standards, not requiring the
installation of water and sewer infrastructure as required in ECC 3-3-43-G & H,
Sanitary Sewer and Water Supply, along the frontage of Mountain City Highway
(SR 225) based on the findings of the Planning Commission.

17. NDOT approval is required for improvements on Mountain City Highway (SR
225).

18.A jurat shall be provided on the final plat for NDOT approval prior to City Council
consideration.

19. Update the dates in the jurats to reflect 2018 prior to City Council consideration.

Page 11 of 11







CC:

Enclosures

S~~cNW~
Shelby Archuleta
Planning Technician

Sincerely,

If you have any questions regarding this meeting. the information you rccci ved, or if you will not
be able to attend this meeting. please call me at your earliest convenience at (775) 777-7160.

The Planning Commission requests that you. or a duly appointed representative. be in attendance
at this meeting to address the Planning Commission, If you will not he able to attend the meeting
hut wish to have a representative present. please submit a letter to the Planning Commission
authorizing this person to represent you at the meeting.

Enclosed is a copy of the agenda for an upcoming Planning Commission meeting. Highlighted
on the agenda is an item or items that you have requested to be acted on at the meeting, Also
enclosed is pertinent information pertaining to your request. Please review this information
before the meeting,

Dear Applicant Agent:

Re: Conditional Use Permit No. 1-18 and Final Plat 1\0. ~-18

Autumn Colors. LLC
780 W. Silver Street
Elko. xv 8980 I

January 30. ~018

1751 College Avenue . Elko, Nevada 8980 I . (775) 777-7160 . Fax (775) 777-7119

Website: \\\\\\,clkncit::-',L'Ulll
Email: planning (I ci c] kll n , u-,

CITY OF ELKO
Planning Department



Page 1RECEIVEDRevised 12/04/15

Other Information: The applicant is encouraged to submit other information and documentation
to support the request.

Fee: $600.00 + $25.00 per lot including remainder parcels; non-refundable.

FILING REQUIREMENTS:

Complete Application Form: In order to begin processing the application, an application form
must be complete and signed. Complete applications are due at least 21 days prior to the next
scheduled meeting of the Elko City Planning Commission (meetings are the 1st Tuesday of
every month), and must include the following:

1. One .pdf of the entire application, and ten (10) 24" x 36" copies of the final plat folded to
a size not to exceed 9"x12" provided by a properly licensed surveyor, as well as one (1)
set of reproducible plans 8 Yz" x 11" in size and any required supporting data, prepared in
accordance with Section 3-3-8 of Elko City Code (see attached checklist).

2. Pre-Submission Requirements:
a. The final plat shall meet all requirements of the zoning district in which located,

and any necessary zoning amendment shall have been adopted by the Elko City
Council prior to filing of the final plat.

b. The final plat shall conform closely to the approved preliminary plat and be
prepared in accordance with the provisions of the City Subdivision Ordinance.

c. The final plat submittal shall include a letter signifying approval of utility easements
by all public utilities involved, and shall be so indicated by an affidavit on the map.

d. A complete set of construction plans for all public improvements associated with
the final plat shall have been approved or substantially approved by the City
Engineer.

APPLICANT'S REPRESENTATIVE OR ENGINEER: _Jo_n_D_B_ail__;ey_,_p,_E. _

APPLICANT(s):_A_utu_m_n_C_o_lor_s_LL_C _
MAILING ADDRESS: 780W SilverSt--------------------------------------------------PHONE NO (Home)775-777-7773 (Business) _
NAME OF PROPERTY OWNER (If different): _

(Property owner consent in writing must be provided)
MAILING ADDRESS: 780W SilverSt--------------------------------LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND LOCATION OF PROPERTY INVOLVED (Attach if necessary):
ASSESSOR'S PARCEL NO.: 00101f316 Address3800 MtnCityHwy-----~~------------Lot(s), Block(s), ~Subdivision _34_N_5_5_E_Lo_t_8 _
Or Parcel(s) & File No. _
PROJECT DESCRIPTION OR PURPOSE: subdivisiontosinglefamilylots--------~-~------------------

APPLICATION FOR FINAL PLAT APPROVAL

1751 College Avenue * Elko * Nevada * 89801
(775) 777-7160 * (775) 777-7119 fax

CITY OF ELKO PLANNING DEPARTMENT



Page 2Revised 12/04/15

Identification Data
II' Subdivision Name
II' location and Section, Township and Range
v Name, address and phone number of subdivider
v Name, address and phone number of engineer/surveyor
II" Scale, North Point and Date of Preparation
II' location maps

Survey Data (Required)
II' Boundaries of the Tract fully balanced and closed
.--- Any exception within the plat boundariesv
v The subdivision is to be tied to a section corner

II" location and description of all physical encroachments

Descriptive Data
0 Street layout, location, widths, easements

0 All drai nageways, designated as such

0 All utility and public service easements
V location and dimensions of all lots, parcels

0 Residential lots shall be numbered consecutively

0 All sites to be dedicated to the public and proposed use

0 location of all adjoining subdivisions with name date, book and page

0 Any private deed restrictions to be imposed upon the plat

Dedication and Acknowledgment
v Statement of dedication for items to be dedicated

0 Execution of dedication ackowledged by a notary public

Additional Information
v Street Cl, and Monuments identified

0 Street Cl and width shown on map

0 location of mounuments used to determine boudaries
v Each city boundary line crossing or adjoing the subdivision

0 Section lines crossing the subdivision boundaries

City Engineer to Check
0 Closure report for each of the lots

0 Civil Improvement plans
v Estimate of quantities required to complete the improvements

Required Certifications
[2] All parties having record title in the land to be subdivided

0 Offering for dedication
[2J Clerk of each approving governing body
[2] Easements

0 Surveyor's Certificate

0 City Engineer

0 State Health division

0 State Engineer
[2] Division of Water Resources
[v] City Counci I

Final Plat Checklist 3-3-8



Page 3Revised 12/04/15

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY~ \\ LL,",S ~2~
It

Date Filed: \ ) ltd I f;, Fee Paid: 'if c25 IT.1:\: ~ ((t0q2FileNo.: -1- I B

City, State, Zip Code

Phone Number: 7753853659
Email address:jbaileype@gmail.com

Elko, NV 89801

Applicant I Agent Jon 0 Bailey
(Please print or type)

Mailing Address 780 W Silver St
Street Address or P.O. Box

Iv I I acknowledge that submission of this application does not imply approval of this request by
the City Planning Department, the City Planning Commission and the City Council, nor does it in
and of itself guarantee issuance of any other required permits and/or licenses.

Iv I I acknowledge that this application may be tabled until a later meeting if either I or my
designated representative or agent is not present at the meeting for which this application is
scheduled.

Iv I I acknowledge that, if approved, I must provide an AutoCAD file containing the final
subdivision layout on NAD 83 NV East Zone Coordinate System to the City Engineering
Department when requesting final map signatures for recording.

~ I have carefully read and completed all questions contained within this application to the
best of my ability.

By My Signature below:

Iv I I consent to having the City of Elko Staff enter on my property for the sole purpose of
inspection of said property as part of this application process.

Iv I I object to having the City of Elko Staff enter onto my property as a part of their review of
this application. (Your objection will not affect the recommendation made by the staff or the final determination
made by the City Planning Commission or the City Council.)



$192,291.60PAGE 1 SUBTOTAL:

DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE TOTAL
RETAINING WALL 4' - 6' LF $5000 $0.00
RETAINING WALL 6' - 8' LF $75.00 $0.00
SOUND BARRIER 6' - 8' LF $98.50 $0.00
SOUND BARRIER 8' - 10' LF $127.50 $000
ROCKERY RETAINING WALL l' - 3' LF $28.00 $000
ROCKERY RETAINING WALL 3' - 6' LF $5500 $000
ROCKERY RETAINING WALL 6' - 10+' LF $9500 $0.00

$000
$000

-WALLS-

DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE TOTAL
CURB & GUTTER WITH BASE 2,183 LF $18.00 $39,294.00
MEDIAN CURB WITH BASE LF $10.00 $0.00
SIDEWALK 4' WITH BASE 2,183 LF $1200 $26,196.00
SIDEWALK 5' WITH BASE LF $15.00 $0.00
ALLEY SECTION SF $5.00 $0.00
VALLEY GUTTER SF $550 $000
LONGITUDINAL VALLEY GUTTTER LF $1500 $0.00
DRAINAGE SWALE LF $10.00 $0.00

$0.00
$0.00
$000

-CONCRETE-

Page 1 of 3

DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE TOTAL
ROADWAY (WITHIN RIGHT-OF-WAY) 2,446 CY $310 $000
ON-SITE (MASS GRADING) CY $275 $0.00

$0.00
$0.00

-GRADING-

DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE TOTAL
2&1/2" ASPHALT CONCRETE PAVEMENT SF $1.00 $0.00
3" ASPHALT CONCRETE PAVEMENT 52,834 SF $175 $92,459.50
4" ASPHALT CONCRETE PAVEMENT SF $185 $0.00
6" ASPHALT CONCRETE PAVEMENT SF $1.95 $000
2" -4" BASE MATERIAL SF $040 $000
5" BASE MATERIAL SF $035 $0.00
6" BASE MATERIAL SF $045 $000
9" BASE MATERIAL 52,834 SF $065 $34,342.10
12" BASE MATERIAL SF $0.85 $000
FOG SEAL SY $0.05 $0.00

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$000

-STREETS-

5.25 Acres
41

AREA
NUMBER OF LOTS/UNITS

PREPARED BY JOB
DATE 01/16/18

PROJECT AUTUMN COLORS PHASE 5
DEVELOPER AUTUMN COLORS LLC
ENGINEER JON BAILEY, P E

ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE - PHASE THREE AUTUMN COLORS
(FORBONDINGPURPOSESONLYATTHECITYOFELKO)

RECEIVED



$68,455.50PAGE 2 SUBTOTAL:

DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE TOTAL
MANHOLE 48" DIAMETER EA $1,800.00 $000
MANHOLE 60" DIAMETER EA $2,000.00 $0.00
MANHOLE TYPE V EA $5,000.00 $0.00
CATCH BASIN TYPE I EA $750.00 $0.00
CATCH BASIN TYPE II EA $1,500.00 $0.00
CATCH BASIN TYPE III EA $600.00 $0.00
CATCH BASIN TYPE IV 1 EA $1,250.00 $1.250.00
SIDEWALK DRAIN EA $750.00 $0.00
YARD DRAIN EA $500.00 $0.00
LATERAL 10" DIAMETER LF $27.00 $000
STORM DRAIN MAIN 12" DIAMETER LF $3300 $0.00
STORM DRAIN MAIN 15" DIAMETER LF $3600 $0.00
STORM DRAIN MAIN 18" DIAMETER 126 LF $40.00 $5,040.00
STORM DRAIN MAIN 21" DIAMETER LF $4500 $0.00
STORM DRAIN MAIN 24" DIAMETER LF $5000 $0.00
STORM DRAIN MAIN 27" DIAMETER LF $6500 $0.00
STORM DRAIN MAIN 30" DIAMETER LF $7500 $000
STORM DRAIN MAIN 36" DIAMETER LF $90.00 $0.00
STORM DRAIN MAIN 42" DIAMETER LF $11000 $0.00
STORM DRAIN MAIN 48" DIAMETER LF $13000 $0.00
STORM DRAIN MAIN 54" DIAMETER LF $16300 $000
STORM DRAIN MAIN 60" DIAMETER LF $182.00 $0.00
STORM DRAIN MAIN 72" DIAMETER LF $216.00 $0.00
ROCK RIPRAP 6" - 12" DEPTH 523 SF $350 $1,830.50
ROCK RIPRAP 8" - 16" DEPTH SF $4.00 $0.00
ROCK RIPRAP 12" - 24" DEPTH SF $500 $0.00
HEADWALLS 12" - 36" EA $1,500.00 $0.00
HEADWALLS 42" - 72" 1 EA $4,300.00 $4,300.00
TRASH RACK 24" & SMALLER EA $5,000.00 $000
TRASH RACK 27" EA $6,000.00 $000
TRASH RACK 30" EA $7,000.00 $0.00
TRASH RACK 36" EA $8,000.00 $0.00
TRASH RACK 42" EA $9,000.00 $000
TRASH RACK 48" EA $10,000.00 $000
TRASH RACK 54" EA $12,000.00 $000
5x10 double box culvert LF $525.00 $000
5x10 double box culvert LF $526.00 $0.00

-STORM DRAIN-

DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE TOTAL
MANHOLE 48" DIAMETER 8 EA $1,800.00 $14,400.00
MANHOLE 60" DIAMETER EA $2.00000 $0.00
DROP MANHOLE 48" DIAMETER EA $2,000.00 $0.00
DROP MANHOLE 60" DIAMETER EA $2.250.00 $0.00
SERVICE LATERALS 4" DIAMETER 41 EA $275.00 $11,27500
MANHOLE TYPE V EA $5,000.00 $000
SEWER MAIN 8" DIAMETER 1,518 LF $2000 $30,360.00
SEWER MAIN 10" DIAMETER LF $24.00 $0.00
SEWER MAIN 12" DIAMETER LF $2800 $0.00
SEWER MAIN 15" DIAMETER LF $38.00 $0.00
SEWER MAIN 18" DIAMETER LF $48.00 $0.00

$0.00
$000

-SANITARY SEWER-

ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE (Cont.)



Page 3 of 3
STAMP, SIGNATURE AND DATE

$470,920.00AMOUNT OF SECURITY:

$192.291.60
$68,455.50

$167,362.50
$428.10960
$42.810.96

$470,92056

PAGE 1 SUBTOTAL:
PAGE 2 SUBTOTAL:
PAGE 3 SUBTOTAL:

PAGE 1-3 SUBTOTAL:
10%CONTINGENCY:

TOTAL:

DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE TOTAL
LANDSCAPING LS $5,000.00 $0.00
EROSION CONTROL LS $500.00 $0.00
STREET SIGNS EA $260.00 $000
TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNS EA $215.00 $0.00
SURVEY MONUMENTS 3 EA $50000 $1,500.00
STREET BARRICADES EA $1,11000 $0.00
DITCH FENCING 54" LF $1500 $0.00
EMERGENCY ACCESS CONTROL GATE EA $3,000.00 $000
LOT MONUMENTS 164 EA $30.00 $4,920.00
PAVEMENT MARKINGS (STRIPING, ETC) LS $550.00 $0.00

-MISCELLANEOUS-

DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE TOTAL
STREET LIGHTS 2 EA $1,100.00 $2,200.00
ELECTRIC SERVICE 2,183 LF $12.00 $26,196.00
TELEPHONE 2,183 LF $250 $5,457.50
10" C900WM 722 LF $40.00 $28,880.00
12" C900 WM LF $4000 $000
18" C900 WM 563 LF $45.00 $25,335.00
GAS 2,183 LF $20.00 $43.660.00
CABLE TELEVISION 2.183 LF $8.00 $17,464.00
WATER METERS 41 EA $250.00 $10,250.00
FHA ASSEMBLY 1 EA $1,500.00 $1,50000

-PUBLIC UTILITIES-

ENGINEER'SESTIMATE (Cont.)
Page 2 of 3



Page 1 of 3

$0.00PAGE 1 SUBTOTAL:

DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE TOTAL
RETAINING WALL 4' - 6' LF $50.00 $0.00
RETAINING WALL 6' - 8' LF $75.00 $0.00
SOUND BARRIER 6' - 8' LF $9850 $0.00
SOUND BARRIER 8' - 10' LF $127.50 $0.00
ROCKERY RETAINING WALL l' - 3' LF $28.00 $0.00
ROCKERY RETAINING WALL 3' - 6' LF $5500 $0.00
ROCKERY RETAINING WALL 6' - 10+' LF $95.00 $0.00

$0.00
$0.00

-WALLS-

DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE TOTAL
CURB & GUTTER WITH BASE LF $18.00 $000
MEDIAN CURB WITH BASE LF $10.00 $0.00
SIDEWALK 4' WITH BASE LF $1200 $0.00
SIDEWALK 5' WITH BASE LF $1500 $0.00
ALLEY SECTION SF $500 $000
VALLEY GUTTER SF $5.50 $0.00
LONGITUDINAL VALLEY GUTTTER LF $15.00 $000
DRAINAGE SWALE LF $10 00 $0.00

$000
$0.00
$000

-CONCRETE-

DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE TOTAL
ROADWAY (WITHIN RIGHT-OF-WAY) UNDER SEP. PERMIT CY $310 $000
ON-SITE (MASS GRADING) UNDER SEP. PERMIT CY $275 $0.00

$0.00
$0.00

-GRADING-

DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE TOTAL
2&1/2" ASPHALT CONCRETE PAVEMENT SF $1.00 $0.00
3" ASPHALT CONCRETE PAVEMENT SF $1.75 $0.00
4" ASPHALT CONCRETE PAVEMENT SF $1.85 $0.00
6" ASPHALT CONCRETE PAVEMENT SF $1.95 $000
2" -4" BASE MATERIAL SF $040 $0.00
5" BASE MATERIAL SF $0.35 $000
6" BASE MATERIAL SF $045 $0.00
9" BASE MATERIAL SF $0.65 $0.00
12" BASE MATERIAL SF $0.85 $0.00
FOG SEAL SY $0.05 $0.00

$000
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

-STREETS-

Acres

JOB
01/16/18

41

PREPARE[
DATE
AREA

NUMBER OF LOTS/UNITS

PROJECT AUTUMN COLORS PHASE 5
DEVELOPER AUTUMN COLORS LLC
ENGINEER JON BAILEY, P E

ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE - PHASE TWO - REDUCTION
(FOR BONDING PURPOSES ONLY AT THE CITY OF ELKO)



$0.00PAGE 2 SUBTOTAL:

DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE TOTAL
MANHOLE 48" DIAMETER EA $1,800.00 $000
MANHOLE 60" DIAMETER EA $2,00000 $000
MANHOLE TYPE V EA $5,000.00 $0.00
CATCH BASIN TYPE I EA $750.00 $0.00
CATCH BASIN TYPE II EA $1,50000 $0.00
CATCH BASIN TYPE III EA $60000 $000
CATCH BASIN TYPE IV EA $1,25000 $000
SIDEWALK DRAIN EA $750.00 $000
YARD DRAIN EA $50000 $000
LATERAL 10" DIAMETER LF $27.00 $000
STORM DRAIN MAIN 12" DIAMETER LF $3300 $000
STORM DRAIN MAIN 15" DIAMETER LF $36.00 $0.00
STORM DRAIN MAIN 18" DIAMETER LF $40.00 $0.00
STORM DRAIN MAIN 21" DIAMETER LF $45.00 $0.00
STORM DRAIN MAIN 24" DIAMETER LF $50.00 $000
STORM DRAIN MAIN 27" DIAMETER LF $6500 $000
STORM DRAIN MAIN 30" DIAMETER LF $7500 $000
STORM DRAIN MAIN 36" DIAMETER LF $9000 $000
STORM DRAIN MAIN 42" DIAMETER LF $11000 $000
STORM DRAIN MAIN 48" DIAMETER LF $13000 $000
STORM DRAIN MAIN 54" DIAMETER LF $163.00 $0.00
STORM DRAIN MAIN 60" DIAMETER LF $18200 $000
STORM DRAIN MAIN 72" DIAMETER LF $21600 $0.00
ROCK RIPRAP 6" - 12" DEPTH SF $350 $000
ROCK RIPRAP 8" - 16" DEPTH SF $4.00 $0.00
ROCK RIPRAP 12" - 24" DEPTH SF $500 $0.00
HEADWALLS 12" - 36" EA $1,500.00 $0.00
HEADWALLS 42" - 72" EA $4,300.00 $000
TRASH RACK 24" & SMALLER EA $5,000.00 $0.00
TRASH RACK 27" EA $6,000.00 $0.00
TRASH RACK 30" EA $7,000.00 $0.00
TRASH RACK 36" EA $8,000.00 $0.00
TRASH RACK 42" EA $9,000.00 $0.00
TRASH RACK 48" EA $10,000.00 $000
TRASH RACK 54" EA $12,000.00 $000
5x10 double box culvert LF $525.00 $000

$0.00

-STORM DRAIN-

DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE TOTAL
MANHOLE 48" DIAMETER EA $1,80000 $000
MANHOLE 60" DIAMETER EA $2,000.00 $000
DROP MANHOLE 48" DIAMETER EA $2,000.00 $000
DROP MANHOLE 60" DIAMETER EA $2,250.00 $000
SERVICE LATERALS 4" DIAMETER EA $27500 $000
MANHOLE TYPE V EA $5,000.00 $000
SEWER MAIN 8" DIAMETER LF $2000 $000
SEWER MAIN 10" DIAMETER LF $24.00 $000
SEWER MAIN 12" DIAMETER LF $2800 $000
SEWER MAIN 15" DIAMETER LF $3800 $0.00
SEWER MAIN 18" DIAMETER LF $48.00 $0.00

$0.00
$000

-SANITARY SEWER-

ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE (Cont.)



Page30f3
STAMP, SIGNATURE AND DATE

PAGE 1 SUBTOTAL: $000
PAGE 2 SUBTOTAL: $000
PAGE 3 SUBTOTAL: $000

PAGE 1-3 SUBTOTAL: $000
10% CONTINGENCY: $0.00

TOTAL: $000

AMOUNT OF SECURITY: $0,00

DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE TOTAL
LANDSCAPING LS $5,000.00 $0.00
EROSION CONTROL LS $500.00 $0.00
STREET SIGNS EA $260.00 $000
TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNS EA $215.00 $0.00
SURVEY MONUMENTS EA $500.00 $0.00
STREET BARRICADES EA $1,11000 $0.00
DITCH FENCING 54" LF $1500 $0.00
EMERGENCY ACCESS CONTROL GATE EA $3,000.00 $0.00
LOT MONUMENTS EA $3000 $0.00
PAVEMENT MARKINGS (STRIPING, ETC.) LS $550.00 $0.00

-MISCELLANEOUS-

DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE TOTAL
STREET LIGHTS EA $1,100.00 $0.00
ELECTRIC SERVICE LF $1200 $0.00
TELEPHONE LF $2.50 $0.00
10" C900 WM LF $4000 $000
12" C900 WM LF $4000 $0.00
18" C900 WM LF $4500 $0.00
GAS LF $20.00 $000
CABLE TELEVISION LF $8.00 $0.00
WATER METERS EA $250.00 $0.00
FHA ASSEMBLY EA $1,50000 $0.00

-PUBLIC UTILITIES-

ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE (Cont.)
Page 2 of 3



Planning Commission Action SheetCreated on 09/27/2016

10.Agenda Distribution:

9. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner

8. Recommended Motion: Move to initiate an amendment to the City of Elko Master
Plan Future Land Use Atlas Map 8 and direct staff to bring the item back as a
resolution and public hearing.

7. Supplemental Agenda Information:

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required

5. Background Information:

4. Time Required: 10Minutes

3. Agenda Category: MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS, PETITIONS, AND COMMUNICATIONS

2. Meeting Date: February 6, 2018

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible action to initiate an amendment to the
City of Elko Master Plan, specifically the Atlas Map 8, and matters related thereto.
FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Elko City Planning Commission
Agenda Action Sheet

Agenda Item # I.B.5.



Initial

Initial

**If additional space is needed please provide a separate memorandum**

/J14 Date Public Notice: I\) LAI ~~,~---

Title: -1\]11Iaie i'MYJerdm,),,''1t <-ti)
APplicant:s): Ck crl flbl'
SIte Location: --+-,/i"d-l)+-/A____:__, _

Current Zoning: NI Pc Date Received:
COMMENT: ___

STAFF COMMENT FLOW SHEET I
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA DATE: ~2I"

**Do not use pencil or red pen, they do not reproduce** ;



Cathy Laughlin
City Planner

In the process of initiating a zone change from Residential to Public-Quasi-Public for the City of
Elko parcel located at 1401 College Ave. it was determined that the rezone would not be in strict
conformance with the Master Plan as the Master Plan references the area as Residential Medium
Density. The area surrounding that parcel is Medical and Civic in nature and therefore justifies
an amendment to the Atlas Map 8 for future land use to identify the parcels as Public.
Corresponding zoning districts for Public are PQP-Public, Quasi-Public. This initiation would
amend the Atlas Map 8 for the highlighted parcels from Res-Md to Public.

Additional Information:

Agenda Item:

1. Review, consideration, and possible action to initiate an amendment to the City of
Elko Master Plan, specifically the Atlas Map 8, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

To: Planning Commission
From: Cathy Laughlin -City Planner
Date: January 29, 2018
Meeting Date: February 6, 2018

Memorandum

1751College Avenue· Elko, Nevada 89801 . (775) 777-7160 . Fax (775) 777-7119

Website: www.elkocity.com
Email: planning@ci.elko.nv.us

CITY OF ELKO
Planning Department



Mat #41945635i~~~i)~!.:THOMSON REUTERS~

Standing-Association of neighborhoods challenges county approval of
planned use development 2
Rezoning/EminentDomain/DueProcess-City rejects landowner's request
to rezoneproperty 4
Validity of Zoning Ordinance-City ordinance imposes overlay district that
prohibits "mobile home parks or courts" 7
Conditional Use-City grants conditional use permit for professional office
use in residential zoning district 9
Zoning Newsfrom Around the Nation 11

in this issue:

Zoning Bulletin

December 25, 2017 I Volume 11 I Issue 24'QUINLAN'" .



610 Opperman Drive
P.O.Box 64526

St. Paul, MN 55164-0526
1-800-229-2084

email: west.customerservice@thomsonreuters.com
ISSN 0514-7905

1:2017Thomson Reuters
All Rights Reserved

Quinlan ™ is a Thomson Reuters brand

f 2017 Thomson Reuters2

------- Contributors -------
Corey E. Burnham-Howard

For authorization to photocopy, please contact the West's Copyright Clear
ance Center at 222 Rosewood Drive, Danvers, MA 01923, USA (978) 750-
8400; fax (978) 646-8600 or West's Copyright Services at 610 Opperman
Drive, Eagan, MN 55123, fax (651) 687-7551. Please outline the specific ma
terial involved, the number of copies you wish to distribute and the purpose or
format of the use.

This publication was created to provide you with accurate and authoritative in
formation concerning the subject matter covered; however, this publication
was not necessarily prepared by persons licensed to practice law in a particu
lar jurisdiction. The publisher is not engaged in rendering legal or other profes
sional advice and this publication is not a substitute for the advice of an
attorney. If you require legal or other expert advice, you should seek the ser
vices of a competent attorney or other professional.
Zoning Bulletin is published and copyrighted by Thomson Reuters, 610 Op
perman Drive, P.O. Box 64526, St. Paul, MN 55164-0526. For subscription
information: call (800) 229-2084, or write to West, Credit Order Processing,
620 Opperman Drive, PO Box 64833, St. Paul, MN 55164-9753.
POSTMASTER: Send address changes to Zoning Bulletin, 610 Opperman
Drive, P.O. Box 64526, St. Paul, MN 55164-0526.

Citation: Greater TOH'SOIl Council of Community Associations v. DMS
Development, LLC, 2017 WL 4990670 (Md. Ct. Spec. App. 2017)

Developer argues that association lacks standing to bring
such a judicial challenge

Standing-Association of
neighborhoods challenges county
approval of planned use
development

Zoning BulletinDecember 25, 2017 I Volume 11 I Issue 24



3g 2017 Thomson Reuters

MARYLAND (II /0 I117 )-This case addressed the issue of whether a
community-associations group had standing (i.e., the legal right to seek
judicial review) to challenge a zoning hoard's decision to grant a developer a
waiver of local "open space" requirements and to approve a planned unit
development.

The Background/Facts: OMS Development, LLC ('"DMS") proposed a
planned unit development ("PUD") in Towson, an unincorporated community
in Baltimore County (the "County"). DMS proposed that the PUD would
contain a "mixed residential dormitory and commercial project."

Baltimore County Code ("BCC") required new developments to provide a
certain amount of recreational "open space" depending on the number of resi
dential units. The County granted to DMS a waiver of the local open space
requirement, and the County set the fee to be paid in lieu of meeting the open
space requirements at "zero" dollars. Ultimately. the County Council approved
the PUD.

Thereafter, the Greater Towson Council of Community Associations
("'GTC"), among others, challenged the PUD approval and the open space
wai ver. GTC was an "umbrella group" that represented more than 30 neighhor
hoods in Towson. Eventually, the County Board of Appeals (the "Board") af
firmed the decision to approve the PUD. The Board also approved the open
space waiver at the zero-dollar waiver fee.

GTC then filed two separate petitions for judicial review. One challenged
the PUD approval and the other challenged the open space requirement waiver.
Those cases were consolidated before the circuit court.

DMS asked the circuit court to dismiss the actions. OMS argued that GTC
lacked standing (i.e., the right to assert the claims in the judicial forum). The
circuit court denied DMS's motions to dismiss. The circuit court found that
GTC had standing because GTC had participated as a party before the Board
in both cases, and because one of G'TC's memher neighhorhood association
members owned a community park and garden near the PUD. With regard to
the open space waiver case specifically, the circuit court found that GTC had a
strong interest in DMS's payment of a higher waiver fee because of the
henefits it could bring to G'TC's member neighborhoods in the County.

The circuit court later affirmed hoth of the Board's decisions.
GTC appealed. DMS again argued that GTC lacked standing to maintain an

appeal.
DECISION: Judgment of Circuit Court vacated and matter remanded

with instructions to dismiss.
The Court of Special Appeals of Maryland held that GTC lacked standing

to petition for judicial review both the Board's decision to grant DMS a waiver
of the local open space requirements and to approve the PUD.

In so holding, the court explained that. under Maryland law, in order to
have standing to petition for judicial review. a party must meet "two condi
tions precedent." First. the party "must have been a party to the proceeding
before the Board.' Second. the party must be "aggrieved" in that the party's
"personal or property rights are adversely affected by the decision of the Board
. . . in a way different from that suffered by the public generally." Here, the

December 25, 2017 I Volume 11 I Issue 24Zoning Bulletin



. Citation: Diversified Holdings, LLP \'. City of Suwanee, 2017 WL 4985523
(Ga. 2017)

GEORGIA (11/02/17 )-This case addressed the issue of whether inverse
condemnation was an available remedy on review of a particular zoning
classification. It also addressed the issue of whether a city's refusal to rezone
property violated a property owner's due process rights.

Landowner alleges that rezone denial constitutes
unconstitutional taking of property

Rezoning/Eminent Domain/Due
Process-City rejects landowner's
request to rezone property

g 2017 Thomson Reuters4

appellate court found that "GTC did not put forth any evidence of its own
property ownership, nor that it was specially aggrieved in some other way"
different from the general public.

The court emphasized that while a party may have standing before the
Board, it can lack standing to petition for judicial review in the circuit court
(because there is a lower threshold for standing before a Board than a
judiciary). The court also emphasized that "Maryland's policy relating to 'as
sociation standing' in land use actions" requires a neighborhood or community
association itself to "be 'aggrieved' by the decision of the Board regardless of
its members' property ownership." In other words, the court said that an as
sociation lacks standing to sue where it has no property interest of its own
separate and apart from that of its members.

Here, since GTC lacked any property ownership of its own, it was "required
to overcome the difficult burden[ofJ alleging and proving how the Board's de
cision in the open space waiver case harmed GTC differently than others in
the community," said the court. The court found there was "no evidence in the
record. . . that GTC was 'specially aggrieved' by the decision to permit the
zero dollar waiver fee any more than the general public-including all resi
dent property owners in Baltimore County." The court also found that GTC
was not an "aggrieved" party based on the property interests of any of the in
dividual resident members of the neighborhoods, which were, in turn,
members of GTC-since, to have standing, the association had to, itself, be
"aggrieved" by the Board's decision and could not rely on its members' prop
erty ownership or interests.

Thus, finding that GTC lacked standing, the appellate court concluded that
the circuit court erred in denying OMS' motions to dismiss GTC's petitions
for judicial review in both cases.

See also: Bryniarski l'. Montgomery County Bd. of Appeals, 247 Md. 137,
230 A.2d 289 (1967).

See also: Ray v. Mayor and City Council of Baltimore, 430 Md. 74, 90, 59
A.3d 545 (2013).

Zoning Bu"etinDecember 25, 2017 I Volume 11 I Issue 24



5c 2017 Thomson Reuters

The Background/Facts: Diversified Holdings, LLP ("Diversified") owned
30 acres of undeveloped land (the "Property") in the City of Suwanee (the
"City"). The Property was zoned for commercial use in accordance with the
City's 2030 Comprehensive Plan. Claiming that it has been unable to sell the
Property as zoned for more than two decades, Diversified applied to the City
for rezoning of the Property to allow for multifamily use. The City denied
Diversified's request to rezone.

Diversified then filed suit in superior court. Diversified alleged that the
City's decision to deny Diversified's rezoning request constituted an unconsti
tutional taking of the Property.

The superior court concluded that the City's current zoning of the Property
caused Diversified a "significant detriment." Evidence showed that the fair
market value of the Property would increase "tremendously" if it were
rezoned-from between $600.000 and $1.5 mil1ion to approximately $5.9
million. However, the superior court also concluded that the City's decision
did not constitute an abuse of discretion and did not work an unconstitutional
taking because the existing commercial zoning of Diversified's Property was
"compatible with the surrounding commercial uses and [was I consistent with
the City's comprehensive plan and economic development" and was therefore
"substantially related to the public health, safety, morality, and welfare."

Diversified appealed. The City also cross-appealed the finding that Diversi
fied showed a significant detriment.

DECISION: Judgment of Superior Court affirmed.
The Supreme Court of Georgia first held that inverse condemnation was not

an available remedy for Diversified, here. The court explained that inverse
condemnation claims draw their remedies from the eminent domain provi
sions in the Fifth Amendment of the United States Constitution (as well as
Article 1, Section 3, Paragraph I of the Georgia Constitution), which protects
against uncompensated "takings." The court explained that such takings are
seen when the "government encroaches upon or occupies private land for its
owner proposed use," or when a "regulation of property ... violates
constitutional due process guarantees." The court noted that, with regard to
regulatory action, when a regulation results in a permanent physical infringe
ment of property or deprives the property owner of "all economically benefi
cial uses," such action will be deemed a "per se taking" (i.e.. on its face taking).
Wi th regard to cases that fall outside of those two categories. the court
explained that courts look at certain factors to determine whether the regula
tion has "interfered with distinct investment-hacked expectations:' Those fac
tors include: the "economic impact of the regulation on the claimant and,
particularly, the extent to which the regulation has interfered with distinct
investment-backed expectations": and "the character of the government ac
tion" (i.e., physical invasion versus "public program adjusting the benefits and
burdens of economic life to promote the common good"). In summary, said
the court, a party challenging a government regulation as an uncompensated
exercise of the government's eminent domain power must show that the
regulation is "so onerous that its effect is tantamount to a direct appropriation
or ouster,"

The court further explained that zoning "does not ordinarily present the

December 25, 2017 I Volume 11 I Issue 24Zoning Bulletin



9 2017 Thomson Reuters6

III its decision. the court emphasized that its decision clarified that the "substantially
advances" standard that derives from constitutional due process guarantees "has 110

place in an eminent domain or inverse condemnation proceeding." "Consequently.

Case Note:

kind of affirmative public use at the expense of the property owner that effects
a taking." Zoning claims are typically "rooted in due process guarantees
against arbitrary exertion of the police power rather than in the government's
authority to take private property through eminent domain," said the court.
"When the property owner's right to the unfettered use of his property
confronts the police power under which zoning is effected, due process
guarantees act as a check against the arbitrary and capricious use of that police
power," said the court. Therefore, in order to strike a balance (between police
power and property rights), "a zoning classification that substantially burdens
a property owner may be justified if it bears a substantial relation to the public
health, safety, morality, or general welfare," said the court. Lacking such a
justification, the zoning may be set aside as "arbitrary or capricious," and can
not stand.

Here, Diversified had alleged both an inverse condemnation and a due pro
cess violation. The court concluded that because Diversified requested relief
in the form of rezoning without seeking damages for a taking, their claim was
properly understood as sounding in due process. Again, under the due process
analysis, the court said that Diversified's challenge of the validity of the zon
ing "must show, by clear and convincing evidence, that the zoning at issue
presents a significant detriment to the landowner and is insubstantially related
to--i n other words, does not 'substantially advance '-the public health, safety,
morality, and welfare."

In looking at the validity of the City's decision to deny the rezoning request,
the court explained that the following factors had to be considered:

(I) existing uses and zoning of nearby property: (2) the extent to which property
values are diminished by the particular zoning restrictions: (3) the extent to which
the destruction of property values of the plainti ffs promotes the health, safety,
morals or general welfare of the public: (4) the relative gain to the public. as
compared to the hardship imposed upon the indi vidual property owner; (5) the
suitability of the subject property for the zoned purposes: and (6) the length of
time the property has been vacant as zoned considered in the context of land
development in the area in the vicinity of the property.

Balancing those factors here, the court concluded that the City's denial of
Diversified's petition to rezone the Property for multi-family housing should
be affirmed. The court said this was because the zoning decision was not
"arbitrary or capricious," but rather was "substantially related to the public's
healthy, safety, morality, and welfare" as: the area around the Property was
zoned for commercial use; the City's Comprehensive Plan provide for the Pro
perty's commercial zoning; such zoning was adopted after "extensive study
and public debate"; the Property had no sidewalks and therefore was hazard
ous for pedestrians; and businesses abutted the Property.

See also: Guhl \'. Holcomb Bridge Road Corp., 238 Ga. 322. 232 S.E.2d
830 (1977).

Zoning BulletinDecember 25, 2017 I Volume 11 I Issue 24



Citation: Edwards v. City of Warner Robins, 2017 WL 4870994 (Ga. 2(17)
GEORGIA ( IO/301l7)-This case addressed the issue of whether the term

"mobile home court or park" as used in a city's zoning ordinance was
"unconstitutionally vague" as applied. The case also addressed whether a
city's denial of a property owner's request to replace an existing mobile home
or construct new mobile homes violated the property owner's vested rights.

The BackgroundIFacts: Since 1973, Charles Edwards C'Edwards") and
his wife. Carol Edwards. (collectively. the "Edwardses") had rented out a
mobile home on each of three lots (the .•1973 lots") that Edwards owned in the
City of Warner Robins (the "City"). In June 1997. the Edwardses purchased
properties (the'" 1997 lots") adjoining the three 1973 lots, with all Jots then
owned comprising seven acres with 36 lots. Each lot either had a mobile home
on it or was being held out for use by a mobile home.

At the time of the Edwardses' 1997 lots purchase, however, mobile homes
were prohibited on the 1973 lots and the 1997 lots under the City's 1994 Base
Environs Overlay District ("'BEOD") Ordinance. The BEOD was an overlay
district that prohibited "manufactured housing" or "mobile homes" in the zon
ing district where the Edwardses' owned property. The BEOD Ordinance did
provide exemptions for nonconforming uses. Thus. the Edwardses' original
three mobile homes (on the 1973 lots) had been permitted since 1994 as
nonconforming uses.

In 1997, the Edwardses requested, and the City granted, a rezoning of the

Property owner seeking to construct mobile homes
argues that the term "mobile home parks or courts" was
unconstitutionally vague

Validity of Zoning Ordinance-City
ordinance imposes overlay district
that prohibits "mobile home parks
or courts"

Case Note:

The City had also cross-appealed the superior court 'sfinding that Diversified showed
a significant detriment. Because the appellate court affirmed the trial court's decision
that the denial of Diversified's application \-VQS not arbitrary or capricious, the appel
late court did not reach the City's contention 011 cross appeal.

where a landowner claims harm from a particular zoning classification, inverse
condemnation is not an available remedy unless the landowner call meet the separate
and distinct requirements for such a claim...

December 25, 2017 I Volume 11 I Issue 24Zoning Bulletin

7~ 2017 Thomson Reuters



g 2017 Thomson Reuters8

Edwardses' properties to an R-MH zoning designation, which allowed mobile
home uses.

In 2008, the City amended the BEOD Ordinance by replacing a table, and
in doing so, stated that "mobile home parks or courts" and "related structures"
were prohibited in the BEOD Ordinance.

In February 2009. the City notified the Edwardses that even though the
underlying R-MH zoning of their properties allowed mobile homes, the BEOD
took precedence and did not allow them.

In August 2011, the Edwardses asked the City to allow them to: (1) upgrade
a mobile home on one of the 1973 lots; and (2) to put additional mobile homes
on the 1997 lots. The City denied those requests.

The Edwardses then appealed the City's denial of their requests. Among
other things, the Edwardses argued that the City's denial of their requests were
improper because the BEOD Ordinance was "unconstitutionally vague and
overbroad" as applied to them. They also argued that the denial unconstitution
ally violated their vested rights to use the properties for mobile homes.

Finding no material issues of fact in dispute, and deciding the matter based
on the law alone, the superior court granted summary judgment on the
Edwardses claims in favor of the City.

The Edwardscs appealed. On appeal. they again argued that the term
"mobile home court or park" in the 2008 BEOD Ordinance amendment was
"unconstitutionally vague" and that it was unclear if the BEOD Ordinance
precluded them from placing additional mobile homes on their properties. In
the alternati ve, they argued that even if it was clear that a large group of re
lated mobile homes would qualify as a "mobile home park or court" the
BEOD Ordinance was unconstitutionally vague because it was "not clear
whether this language prohibits the placement of a single mobile home in the
BEOD area." Further, the Edwardses argued that the BEOD Ordinance
unconstitutionally hampered the use of their properties by violating their
vested rights to use the properties for mobile homes.

DECISION: Judgment of district court superior court affirmed.
The Supreme Court of Georgia concluded that the BEOD Ordinance term

"mobile home park or court" was not. as the Edwardses had argued, unconsti
tutionally vague as applied. The court explained that the BEOD Ordinance
would be void if it was "so vague that persons of 'common intelligence must
necessarily guess at its meaning and differ as to its application.' " Here, the
court found that persons of common intelligence would understand that the
term "mobile home park or court" encompassed the kind of aggregation of
commonly owned mobile homes that the Edwardses had or had sought. Indeed.
the court noted that the Edwardses had explained that they wanted to develop
a "manufactured home park" or a "mobile home park" on their properties. Ac
cordingly, the court concluded that the BEOD Ordinance was not vague as ap
plied to Appellants' situation.

As to the Edwardses' argument that the BEOD Ordinance was vague as to
the placement of a single mobile home in the BEOD area. the court would not
address that issue since the Edwardses were "not in that situation" and thus
lacked standing (i.e .. the legal right) to raise that argument.

Zoning BulletinDecember 25, 2017 I Volume 11 I Issue 24



9~2017 Thomson Reuters

Citation: Harrington l'. City of Davis, 16 Cal. App. 5th 420, 224 Cal. Rptr.
3d 351 (3d Dist. 2017)

CALIFORNIA ( 10/20/17 )-This case addressed the issue of whether a city
improperly issued a conditional use permit for a professional office space use
that failed to provide accessible parking.

The BackgroundIFacts: Catherine LeBlanc ("LeBlanc") and Christopher
Sanborn ("Sanborn") owned real property (the "Property") in the City of Da
vis (the "City"). The Property was improved by a single family home, and was
located in the City's "residential garden apartment" (R-3 or R-3-M) zoning
district. In that zoning district, a variety of conditional uses could be permit
ted, includi~g professional offices.

The previous owner of the Property had obtained a building permit and
conditional use permit ("CUP") authorizing use of the Property for profes-

Neighboring resident challenges the conditional use
permit, arguing that accessible parking requirements were
not met and use did not conform to character of the
neighborhood as required

Conditional Use-City grants
conditional use permit for
professional office use in
residential zoning district

Finally, the court also held that the BEaD Ordinance did not, as the
Edwardses had argued, violate the Edwardses' vested rights to use the proper
ties for mobile homes. The court noted that since the City's zoning ordinance
prohibited the expansion of nonconforming uses, the City's denial of the
Edwardses' request to replace a mobile home on one of the 1973 lots was "not
unconstitutional." As for the additional mobile homes that the Edwardses
sought to place on the 1997 lots, the court concluded that the Edwardses had
not acquired a vested right to put those mobile homes on those properties, as
they did not own the property until after the BEaD Ordinance prohibition on
mobile homes was adopted. The court explained that "vested rights to develop
property in accordance with prior zoning are personal" and did not transfer to
the Edwardses when they purchased the 1997 lots.

Further, the court concluded that the City's grant of the 1997 rezone of the
properties to R-MH designation did "not change th[at] result." The court said
that the Edwardses could not have reasonably relied on that rezoning to erect
mobile homes on the properties because the rezoning changed only the
underlying zoning classification, and it did not change the BEOD Ordinance,
which had always prohibited mobile home parks.

See also: Gouge \'. City of Snellville, 249 Ga. 91,287 S.E.2d 539 (1982).

December 25, 2017 I Volume 11 I Issue 24Zoning Bulletin



g 2017 Thomson Reuters10

sional office space. However, that owner stopped using the Property for com
mercial purposes in 20 II,and the original CUP had then expired.

In October 2013, LeBlanc applied to the City for a CUP authorizing use of
the Property as a professional office space. The City's Planning Commission
approved the CUP. Notably, in approving the CUP, the Planning Commission
determined that, based on the square footage of the professional office space, a
minimum of three parking spaces for the use were required. It was determined
that those three spaces would be provided in a tandem configuration, with one
parking space provided in a garage and two spaces in the driveway.

Michael Harrington ("Harrington") lived next door to the Property. Har
rington appealed the City's grant of the CUP to LeBlanc. Harrington argued
that the City erred in approving the CUP because the professional office use
was "not of the same general character as the other conditional and general
permitted uses within R-3-M:' Harrington also argued that the parking plan
for the Property and the professional office use did "not conform to law."

Ultimately, the City Council upheld the Planning Commission's approval
of the CUP.

Several months later, upon LeBlanc's inquiry, the City notified LeBlanc
that an accessible parking space was not required at the Property. Harrington
again appealed, arguing that an accessible parking space was required. The
City Council denied Harrington's appeal. concluding that an accessible park
ing space was not required on the Property.

Harrington then filed a legal action in court. The superior court denied Har
rington's petition, and he again appealed.

On appeal. Harrington argued that the City erred in granting the CUP to
LeBlanc because the CUP violated the City's Municipal Code. Harrington
contended that: (1) the CUP required LeBlanc to provide accessible parking
spaces; (2) the issuance of the CUP effectuated a change in occupancy that
triggered the accessible parking requirements for new construction under the
City's Building Code: (3) the CUP contemplated alterations to the Property
that triggered the Building Code's accessible parking requirements: (4) the
City Council failed to make sufficient findings to support the conclusion that
compliance with accessible parking requirements would be technically
infeasible; and (5) the CUP conflicted with the City's Municipal Code because
the Municipal Code required protection of the "residential character" of an
R-3 district.

DECISION: Judgment of superior court affirmed.
The Court of Appeal, Third District, California, rejected all of Harrington's

claims. The court first concluded that, contrary to Harrington's claims. the
CUP did not require LeBlanc to provide an accessible parking space since
provision of an accessible parking space was not a condition of approval for
the CUP.

Second, the court concluded that the expiration of the previous CUP on the
Property changed the permitted use of the Property under the zoning code. but
did not as Harrington had argued. change the occupancy classification under
the Building Code. Under the Building Code, there was no change in oc
cupancy classification of a building unless the building official issued a certif-

Zoning BulletinDecember 25, 2017 I Volume 11 I Issue 24



State legislatures passed a property rights bill-the "Homeowners Bill of
Rights"-which was headed to Governor Scott Walker's desk for signature.
The bill reportedly is a response to the United States Supreme Court decision

WISCONSIN

11~2017 Thomson Reuters

The Cleveland Council recently adopted zoning legislation "that allows
state-licensed medical marijuana cultivators, processors, retail dispensaries
and testing laboratories to operate in certain zones in the city." Reportedly, the
city legislation includes state restrictions such as limiting operations' proximi
ties to within 500 feet of schools, parks, churches, and libraries .
. Source: News 5 Cleveland; wH'Hulews5cle~'el([J1d.com

OHIO

The Prince George's County Council has approved zoning to allow a
marijuana dispensary to operate in the county, "permitting it to open 300 feet
or farther from residential properties and at least 500 feet from schools, day
care centers and parks."

Source: The Washington Informer; http://H'ashil1gtonin(onllel:com

MARYLAND

Zoning News from Around the
Nation

icate of occupancy-which did not occur here when the previous CUP expired.
Substantial evidence showed that, upon expiration of the previous CUP, the
occupancy was not converted from B occupancy (commercial) back to R3
(residential); the occupancy was and remained "B."

Third, the court rejected Harrington's claims that the CUP contemplated
alterations to the Property that triggered the Building Code's accessible park
ing requirements, finding that Harrington had waived that argument by failing
to raise it at the administrative level and exhaust his administrative remedies.

Fourth, addressing Harrington's claims that the City Council failed to make
sufficient findings to support the conclusion that compliance with accessible
parking requirements would be technically infeasible, the court found that the
City Council properly made no technical infeasibility findings with regard to
parking at the Property because "there was no attempt to rely on the technical
infeasibility exemption," in light of the determination that accessible parking
was not required.

Finally, the court concluded that, contrary to Harrington's claims, the CUP
did not conflict with the City Municipal Code's required protection of the
"residential character" of an R-3 district because the City Council had found
that LeBlanc's proposed professional office use was "of the same general
character as the other conditional and general permitted uses within the [R-
3-M zoning district]."

December 25, 2017 I Volume 11 I Issue 24Zoning Bulletin



~2017 Thomson Reuters12

in Murr v. St. Croix County, In that decision, two lots owned by the same fam
ily were deemed "substandard" after zoning regulations changed. The court
had ruled that local regulators could effectively treat the two neighboring lots
owned by the same family as if they were a single parcel of property. The
Homeowners Bill of Rights would "let property owners build on and sell
substandard lots if they were legal when they were created." It would also pro
hibit merging adjacent lots that share the same owner without the owner's
permission.. . . Other parts of the bi1l would make it easier to get conditional
use permits and variances, maintain non-conforming structures, dredge private
ponds, appeal assessments when a homeowner refuses to let the assessor inside
the house, and hang the American tlag when condominium or homeowner as
sociation rules might prohibit that.

Source: Milwaukee Journal-Sentinel; H'H'H'.jsonline.com

Zoning BulletinDecember 25, 2017 I Volume 11 I Issue 24



Preemption-County ordinance requires shooting facilities to
obtain permit 2
Repeal of Regulations-Board of County Commissioners gives
express approval for town's rezoning of annexed property,
and then rescinds that approval 5
Authority/Public and low-income housing-Property owner asks
zoning board of appeals to waive deed restrictions to allow
for residential use 8
Zoning News from Around the Nation 12

in this issue:

Zoning Bulletin
January 10, 2018 I Volume 12 I Issue 1QUINLAN~

Mat #42078479i~1~~lf1.:THOMSON REUTERS®



g 2018 Thomson Reuters2

610 Opperman Drive
P.O. Box 64526

St. Paul, MN 55164-0526
1-800-229-2084

email: west.customerservice@thomsonreuters.com
ISSN 0514-7905

G 2018 Thomson Reuters
All Rights Reserved

Quinlan™ is a Thomson Reuters brand

------- Contributors -------
Corey E. Burnham-Howard

For authorization to photocopy, please contact the West's Copyright Clear
ance Center at 222 Rosewood Drive, Danvers, MA 01923, USA (978) 750-
8400; fax (978) 646-8600 or West's Copyright Services at 610 Opperman
Drive, Eagan, MN 55123, fax (651) 687-7551. Please outline the specific ma
terial involved, the number of copies you wish to distribute and the purpose or
format of the use.

This publication was created to provide you with accurate and authoritative in
formation concerning the subject matter covered; however, this publication
was not necessarily prepared by persons licensed to practice law in a particu
lar jurisdiction. The publisher is not engaged in rendering legal or other profes
sional advice and this publication is not a substitute for the advice of an
attorney. If you require legal or other expert advice, you should seek the ser
vices of a competent attorney or other professional.
Zoning Bulletin is published and copyrighted by Thomson Reuters, 610 Op
perman Drive, P.O. Box 64526, St. Paul, MN 55164-0526. For subscription
information: call (800) 229-2084, or write to West, Credit Order Processing,
620 Opperman Drive, PO Box 64833, St. Paul, MN 55164-9753.
POSTMASTER: Send address changes to Zoning Bulletin, 610 Opperman
Drive, P.O. Box 64526, St. Paul, MN 55164-0526.

Citation: Kitsap County v. Kitsap Rifie and Revolver Club, 405 P3d
1026 (Wash. Ct. App. Div. 2 2017)

Shooting range owner argues ordinance is
preempted by state law governing firearms
regulation

Preemption-County ordinance
requires shooting facilities to
obtain permit

Zoning BulletinJanuary 10, 2018 I Volume 12 I Issue 1



3g 2018 Thomson Reuters

WASHINGTON (11l211l7)-This case addressed the issue of
whether a county ordinance requiring shooting facilities to obtain an
operating permit was preempted by state law, which explicitly pre
empted the entire field of "firearms regulation." It also addressed
whether that county ordinance violated the Second Amendment to the
United States Constitution.
The BackgroundlFacts: In September 2014, Kitsap County adopted

Ordinance No. 515-2014, which established a new chapter to the Kitsap
County Code ("KCC") entitled "Firearms Discharge." That chapter,
KCC 10.25 required all existing and proposed shooting facilities to
obtain an operating permit within 90 days of the ordinance's effective
date, and provided that the failure to obtain a permit would result in
closure of the facility. It also required shooting facilities to meet
detailed standards.

The Kitsap Rifle and Revolver Club (the "Club"), which operated a
shooting range in the County, failed to submit an application for an
operating permit by the deadline and informed the County that it did
not intend to apply for a permit. The County then filed a legal action
against the Club. The County asked the court to declare that the Club
was in violation of KCC ]0.25, and asked the court to enjoin the Club
from operating its shooting facility until it received a permit. In that
legal action, the Club argued that KCC 10.25 was invalid or unenforce
able on various grounds, including that: (1) KCC 10.25 was preempted
by state statutory law, RCW 9.41.290, which expressly provides that
state law "fully occupies and preempts the entire field of firearms
regulation ... including [the discharge of firearms]"; and (2) KCC
10.25 violated the Second Amendment to the United States Constitu
tion (and its similar state constitutional counterpart-Article 1, section
24 of the Washington Constitution), which guarantees the right to bear
arms.

Finding no material issues of fact in dispute and deciding the matter
on the law alone, the trial court ultimately granted summary judgment
in favor of the County. The court ruled that RCW 9.41.290 did not
preempt KCC 10.25 because KCC 10.25 was not a firearms regulation.
The court also summarily rejected the Club's argument that KCC 10.25
violated the constitutional right to bear arms. The court thus concluded
that KCC 10.25 was enforceable against the Club's shooting facility
and that operation of the facility without an operating permit was a
violation of KCC 10.25.

The Club appealed.
DECISION: Judgment of Superior Court affirmed.
The Court of Appeals of Washington, Division, 2, concluded that

KCC 10.25 was not preempted by RCW 9.41.290, and was valid and
enforceable against the Club.

January 10, 2018 I Volume 12 I Issue 1Zoning Bulletin



(; 2018 Thomson Reuters4

In so concluding, the court first held that RCW 9.41.290 did not ap
ply here because KCC 10.25 was not a firearms regulation. The court
reached this finding based on several supporting factors. First, the court
noted that RCW 9.41.290 did not make any reference to the regulation
of shooting facilities, and thus, the court concluded that there was no
indication that the legislature intended to preempt local ordinances
requiring shooting facilities to obtain operating permits. Second, the
court noted that KCC 10.25 did not expressly regulate the discharge of
firearms (or a person's ability to discharge a firearm), but only regulated
"shooting facilities." Third, the court noted that RCW 9.41.290
expressly acknowledged that local governments may enact laws and
ordinances relating to firearms as long as they are "authorized by state
law ... and consistent with this chapter." The court found that KCC
10.25's requirement that a shooting facility obtain an operating permit
was "an exercise of the County's police power that [was] authorized
under state law." Fourth, the court noted that state supreme court cases
addressing RCW 9.41.290 had "limited the scope of preemption" and
what was viewed as a "firearms regulation."

Moreover, the court held that even if RCW 9.41.290 did apply, KCC
10.25 fell within the exception to preemption in RCW 9.41.300(2)(a),
which allowed for local regulation of the discharge of firearms "where
there is a likelihood that humans, domestic animals, or property will be
jeopardized." Looking at the stated purposes for adoption of KCC
10.25, the court found that it was "enacted to address the reasonable
likelihood that the operation of shooting ranges would jeopardize
humans and property," and thus fell within the exception to preemption
in RCW 9.41.200(2)(a).

Final1y, the court also concluded that KCC 10.25 did not violate the
Second Amendment of the United States Constitution, or Article 1, sec
tion 24 of the Washington Constitution. The court explained that for
Second Amendment challenges, courts must: (1) determine whether
the challenged law burdens conduct protected by the Second Amend
ment; and if so, (2) then apply the appropriate level of scrutiny. Here,
finding that the County presented no significant argument on whether
KCC 10.25 implicated the Second Amendment, the court assumed,
without deciding, that it did. Next, finding the Ninth Circuit and "a ma
jority of other circuit courts" applied "intermediate scrutiny" to fire
arms regulation, the court here did so as well. The court explained that
a law survives intermediate scrutiny "if it is substantially related to an
important government purpose." Here, the court found that the County
had an important government interest in public safety-e-t'ensuring that
shooting facilities do not endanger people or property." And, the court
found that KCC 10.25 substantially related to that interest, as the permit
required facilities to meet certain standards involving safety issues. Ac
cordingly, the court concluded that KCC 10.25 did not violate the
Second Amendment.

Zoning BulletinJanuary 10, 2018 I Volume 12 I Issue 1



59 2018 Thomson Reuters

Citation: Waterman Family Limited Partnership \'.Boomer; 2017 WL
5559857 (Md. 2017)

MARYLAND (l1l201l7)-As a question of first impression (i.e.,
the first time addressed by the courts), this case addressed the issue of
whether a Maryland county may rescind its approval of a municipality's
rezoning of annexed land.

The BackgroundlFacts: Waterman Family Limited Partnership
("Waterman") owned approximately 148 acres of land in Queen Anne's
County (the "County"). Waterman's land was zoned "Countryside"
("CS"). In June 2014, Waterman asked the Town of Queenstown (the
'Town") to annex the property to the Town and to rezone the property
to "Planned Regional Commercial" ("PRC"). (Under Maryland law, a
municipality can annex unincorporated land contiguous to the munici
pality's boundaries if certain procedures are followed.) (See Maryland
Code, Local Government Article CLG") §§ 4-403, 4-404.)

Property owner contends board lacked authority
to rescind the approval

Repeal of Regulations-Board of
County Commissioners gives
express approval for town's
rezoning of annexed property, and
then rescinds that approval

Case Note:
Although the right to bear arms is protected b)' both the United States and
Washington Constitutions, those rights are not identical, and, the court noted
that the state right had to be interpreted separately from its federal
counterpart. In doing that, the appellate court here found that KCC J 0.25 H'as
also a ..reasonable regulation" that did not violate Article 1, Section 24 of the
Washington Constitution.

See also: Watson v. City of Seattle, 189 Wash. 2d 149, 401 P.3d I
(2017).

See also: District of Columbia v. Heller, 554 U.S. 570, 128 S. Ct.
2783, 171 L. Ed. 2d 637 (2008).

January 10, 2018 I Volume 12 I Issue 1Zoning Bulletin



g 2018 Thomson Reuters6

In September 2014, the Town Commissioners voted to annex
Waterman's property, and in October 2014 they voted to approve
Waterman's requested rezoning. The Town's new PRC zoning clas
sification was "substantially different" from the County's prior CS
classification, allowing for a "substantially higher density" than the CS
classification. Under Maryland law, LG § 4-416(b), although a munici
pality that has planning and zoning authority has exclusive jurisdiction
over the planning and zoning in any area that the municipality annexes,
that authority is subject to the proviso that, for a period of five years af
ter annexation, the municipality may not allow development of the an
nexed land for uses "substantially different" from that authorized under
the county zoning applicable to the property prior to the annexation.
That proviso is subject to the exception that the county may give
"express approval" for the new municipal zoning before the five-year
period expires. Accordingly, Waterman's property could not be
developed with that higher density within five years after annexation,
unless the County gave its express approval to the new PRC zoning
classification. The Town Commissioners thus made the effectiveness of
the rezoning ordinance for Waterman's property contingent in part on
the County's approval of the rezoning.

On November 25, 2014, the Board of County Commissioners (the
"County Commissioners") gave express approval for the Town's rezon
ing of the annexed Waterman property. However, at that time, the
County government happened to be in a period of transition as a result
of November 2014 elections. On December 2, 2014, the newly elected
County Commissioners took office. On December 9, 2014, the newly
elected County Commissioners rescinded the resolution that their
predecessors had passed to approve the rezoning of Waterman's
property.

Waterman then filed legal actions appealing the rescission and ask
ing the Circuit Court to declare the resolution rescinding rezoning ap
proval to be void. The Town joined those actions, and the actions were
consolidated.

The Circuit Court held that the County Commissioners had "no statu
tory right of reconsideration" once the County had granted express ap
proval waiving the five-year delay under LG § 4-416. The Circuit Court
declared that the County resolution rescinding approval had "no legal
force and effect."

The County then asked the Circuit Court to reconsider its decision,
which the Circuit Court denied. The County then appealed.

The Court of Special Appeals reversed the Circuit Court's judgment.
The Court of Special Appeals held that although LG § 4-416 itself did
not explicitly provide that a county may rescind approval of a new zon
ing classification of land recently annexed by a municipality, the Mary-

Zoning BulletinJanuary 10, 2018 I Volume 12 I Issue 1



land Constitution generally authorized the county commissioners of a
home rule county to repeal public local law by resolution, as occurred
here.

Waterman and the Town filed a petition for a writ of certiorari, which
the Court of Appeals of Maryland granted.

DECISION: Judgment of Court of Special Appeals affirmed.
The Court of Appeals of Maryland agreed that neither the text nor

the legislative history of LG § 4-416 explicitly provided that a county
could rescind approval of a new zoning classification of land recently
annexed by a municipality. However, the court found that, under the
common law, county commissioners had the authority to rescind such
approval, and that nothing in the text or legislative history of LG § 4-
416 indicated an intent to preclude a county from exercising whatever
authority the county may have under existing law to rescind an action
taken by its governing body.

The court found that, under the common law, as a general rule, "the
governing body of a local government 'has the right to reconsider its
actions and ordinances, and adopt a measure or ordinance that has
previously been defeated or rescind one that has been previously
adopted before the rights of third parties have vested.' " The court said
that general principle was "related to the idea that a legislative body
ordinarily lacks authority to restrict the legislative activities of its
successors." Were it otherwise, explained the court, "legislative action
would be frozen in time with local officials unable to react to changed
circumstances or to pursue policies presently preferred over those
previously adopted."

Consistent with that common law authority, the court noted that the
Maryland Constitution explicitly confers authority on a code home rule
county-like the County here-to repeal a public local law (as the
Court of Special Appeals had found). (See Maryland Constitution,
Article XI-F.) The parties here had debated whether the County resolu
tion rescinding Waterman's rezoning approval was a "public local law"
under Maryland. The Court of Appeals found it unnecessary to decide
that question to resolve the case, since it had determined that the County
Commissioners had common law authority to rescind the resolution.
However, the court did say that it would "be inclined to agree" with the
Court of Special Appeals that the County resolution at play here was a
public local law of the County.

For those reasons. the Court of Appeals concluded that the County
had the authority to rescind its assent to the Town's rezoning of
Waterman's property in conjunction with the Town's annexation of the
property. Accordingly, under LG § 4-406, the new PRC zoning clas
sification for the property would not become effective until five years
after annexation, unless the County should approve the rezoning in the
interim.

January 10, 2018 I Volume 12 I Issue 1Zoning Bulletin

7f 2018 Thomson Reuters



Citation: 135 WellsAvenlle, LLC v.Housing Appeals Committee, 478
Mass. 346, 84 ».e.s: 1257 (2017)

Property owner and zoning board of appeals
dispute whether board has authority under
affordable housing law to waive deed restrictions

~ 2018 Thomson Reuters8

Authority/Public and low-income
housing-Property owner asks
zoning board of appeals to waive
deed restrictions to allow for
residential use

Case Note:

In its decision, the court noted that the general power of a governing body to
rescind a prior law or policy on a matter subject to its jurisdiction "may be
constrained in particular circumstances, as wizen a party has acquired a
rested right in the governing body's prior policy decision. " However, said the
court, "[ajbsent such circumstances, the governing body retains the option of
changing its mind. "

Case Note:
Notably, here there lVasno contention that Waterrnan or the Town had taken
any action reliant on the County resolution approving the rezoning during the
two-week interval before the new Board of County Commissioners rescinded
it.

Case Note:
Another party-Queen Anne's Conservation Association-also joined the
County's appeals.

See also: Dal Maso v. Board of County Com'rs of Prince George's
County, 182 Md. 200, 34 A.2d 464 (1943).

See also: State v. Fisher, 204 Md. 307, 104 A.2d 403 (1954).

Zoning BulletinJanuary 10, 2018 I Volume 12 I Issue 1



9~2018 Thomson Reuters

MASSACHUSETTS (11/13/ 17)-This case addressed the issue of
whether a local zoning board of appeals had the power to alter a land's
deed restrictions.
The BackgroundlFacts: 135 Wells Avenue, LLC ('"Wells") owned

a 6.3-acre parcel of land (the "Parcel") in the City of Newton (the
"City"). The Parcel was located in an area known as Wells Avenue Of
fice Park (the "Office Park"), which was in a limited manufacturing
zoning district and was subject to a restrictive covenant owned by the
City. Among other things, the City's deed restrictions on the Parcel
precluded any residential use.

Wells sought to construct a 334-unit residential rental unit complex
on the Parcel, with 84 of the units (25Ck) reserved as affordable hous
ing pursuant to Massachusetts statutory law, G.L. c. 40B §§ 20-23.

Under G.L. c. 40B, a developer who seeks to build a housing
development that contains at least 25lk affordable housing (intended
for those earning less than 80% of the medium income in the area) may
apply directly to the zoning board of appeals of a local municipality for
a "comprehensi ve permit," rather than applying to each indi vidual
agency that typically would have control over some subset of the nec
essary permits. (See G.L. c. 40B § 21.) Under G.L. c. 40B, the
municipality's zoning board of appeals "has authority to review the ap
plication in its entirety, to override local requirements or regulations,
and to issue 'permits or approvals' to the same extent, and with the
same authority, as any of those local agencies."

In furtherance of its proposed development, in May 2014, Wel1s
sought from the City's aldermen a "modification, waiver, or release of
the deed restriction" to permit a residential use and to allow develop
ment in a "nonbuild zone." At the same time, Wells applied to the City's
zoning board of appeals ("ZBA") for a comprehensive permit under
G.L. c. 40B to build the proposed residential rental complex. In its G.L.
c. 40B application, Wells requested that the ZBA "waive" the deed
restrictions and permit the proposed residential use.

In November 2014, the aldermen declined to modify the deed
restrictions. In January 2015, the ZBA ruled that it lacked authority
under G.L. c. 40B to waive or modify the deed restriction.

Thereafter, Wells appealed to the Massachusetts Department of
Housing and Community Development ('"HAC"). HAC affirmed the
ZBA's decision that the ZBA lacked authority to amend the deed
restriction.

Wells then sought judicial review of the HAC decision in land court.
The land court judge also concluded that neither the ZBA nor the HAC
had the authority under G.L. c. 40B to require the City to amend the
deed restriction so as to allow the requested residential use.

Wells then appealed to the Appeals Court and also sought direct ap-

January 10, 2018 I Volume 12 I Issue 1Zoning Bulletin



~2018 Thomson Reuters10

pellate review. The Supreme Judicial Court of Massachusetts allowed
the application for direct appellate review.

On appeal, Wells argued that G.L. c. 40B provides zoning boards of
appeals with the authority to amend restrictive covenants. Wells pointed
to G.L. c. 40B, § 21, which provides in relevant part:

The board of appeals ... shall have the same power to issue permits or
approvals as any local board or official who would otherwise act with re
spect to such application, including but not limited to the power to attach
to said permit or approval conditions and requirements with respect to
height, site plan, size or shape, or building materials.

Wells maintained that the amendment to the restrictive covenant that
it was seeking the "functional equivalent of a 'permit] ] or approval [ ]"
with the meaning of G.L. c. 40B. Wells contended that the meaning of
the phrase "permits or approvals" encompassed modification to a re
strictive covenant. Wells argued that the phrase "permits or approvals,"
in this context, included "amendments to a restrictive covenant where,
as here, the provisions in the restrictive covenant are similar to those
applicable to a zoning decision .... " Wells further contended that
"there are distinct differences in kind between a property interest that is
an affirmative easement and a property interest that is a negative ease
ment," and thus that the City had less of an ownership right to them.
Finally, Wells suggested that the deed restrictions were not, in fact, a
legitimate property interest, but, rather, merely zoning restrictions.
DECISION: Judgment of land court affirmed.
The Supreme Judicial Court of Massachusetts held that the ZBA did

not have the power to alter the deed restrictions.
In so holding, the court concluded that, contrary to Wells' conten

tions, modification to a restrictive covenant was "a fundamentally dif
ferent action" from the types of "permits or approvals" that G.L. c. 40B
authorized a local zoning board to undertake.

Wells had pointed to dictionary definitions of "permits" and "ap
provals," but the court found that the language of G.L. c. 40B, § 21,
itself "defined the term 'permits or approvals' " in that the statute:
"delineateld] the types of local agencies that [could grant permits or
approvals (i.e., 'local board[s] or official[s]'), and then enumerate[d]
the types of authorizations that fall within the statutory meaning of
permits or approvals (e.g., 'conditions and requirements with respect to
height, site plan, size or shape, or building materials')."
.Wells had contended that the amendments to the restrictive covenant

would be the functional equivalent of "permits or approvals" "because
they [were] functionally the same as authorizations that have been
deemed permits or approvals in other contexts." Wells pointed to past
amendments made to the restrictive covenant by the City aldermen.
Wells argued that the process of applying for an amendment involved

Zoning BulletinJanuary 10, 2018 I Volume 12 I Issue 1



I Iq 2018 Thomson Reuters

Wells had also presented an alternative argument that the restrictive covenant
~ms invalid because the nature of the property had changed such that the CO\'

enant no longer provided the benefit intended when it was purchased. The
court rejected that argumentfinding that. although the Park was not support
ing any manufacturing uses and It'as thus not being usedfor the price purpose
for which the restrictive covenant was created. the restrictions still provided a
vautable benefit to the City in that it restricted all residential use ofland.
"while maintaining an active economic district. protecting certain areas as
open space. and maintaining buffer zones which protect! ed] the Ia local river}
from encroaching development. ,.

Case Note:

an application to the aldermen, who serve essentially as a "local board,"
"a review procedure, and the issuance of an authorization that affects
the way that land may be used, similar to the process for seeking G.L.
c. 40B approval." The court, however, found it "clear" that "the alder
man's allowance of prior amendments to the restrictive covenants were
not the functional equivalent of permits or approvals" because: "the al
dermen were not sitting as a local permitting authority when allowing
the amendments pursuant to G.L. c. 40, § 3, and the amendments,
which affected a real property interest held by the [Cjity, were not the
same types of permissions as regulations concerning 'building con
struction and design, siting, zoning, health, safety, [or] environment.' "

Moreover, rejecting Wells' argument that a negative easement was
"somehow qualitatively different from a positive easement in terms of
ownership rights," the court stated that "both affirmative and negative
easements are to be treated, equally, as easements."

Further, rejecting Wells' suggestion that the deed restrictions were
not, in fact, a legitimate property interest, but, rather, merely zoning
restrictions, the court stated that "[djespite their similarity to zoning
provision, the deed restrictions are a property interest, a restrictive cov
enant on land, that [could] not be abrogated any any act by a zoning
board."

See also: Zoning Bd. of Appeals of Groton v. Housing Appeals Com
mittee. 451 Mass. 35, 883 N.E.2d 899 (2008).

January 10, 2018 I Volume 12 I Issue 1Zoning Bulletin



An inclusionary zoning bill is being considered by the Philadelphia
City Council. The bill "aims to promote affordable housing by mandat
ing developers to set aside about 10 percent of units for affordable
housing in properties featuring nine or more units. In lieu of affordable
housing, developers could pay between $11,000 and $30,000 per unit
into the Philadelphia Housing Trust Fund, depending on specifications
of the project." Reportedly, proponents of the bill believe it will help
alleviate the city's affordable housing crises, while opponents worry
the bill will "leav] e] developers more vulnerable to additional costs,
possibly pushing them out of the market entirely."

Source: Billy Penn; https://biflvvenn.com

PENNSYLVANIA

f 2018 Thomson Reuters12

The City of Springfield is considering a bill aimed at regulating
short-term rentals. Among other things, the bill would require owners
to obtain annual business licenses and certificates of occupancy. The
bill would also institute distance requirements between different short
term rentals in certain areas of the city. The bill will undergo public
comment in January and is expected to be presented by the city's Plan
ning and Zoning Commission to the City Council in February.

Source: Springfield News-Leader; wWH'.neu:s-leader.com

MISSOURI

Frederick County officials are reportedly working to draft a compro
mise ethics reform bill for the upcoming General Assembly session.
Currently, "the law prohibits members of the County Council and
county executive from accepting campaign donations from people who
have pending zoning applications." Current law also "requires the of
ficials to disclose any ex parte communications about applications
while they are pending." Under the proposals being considered, reform
would include a prohibition on campaign donations from people who
work for applicants seeking zoning changes, which would include at
torneys, architects, engineers and traffic consultants. Another proposal
being considered would add candidates from the Planning Commission
to the prohibition.

Source: The Frederick News-Post; H'wHJrederickllewspost.com

MARYLAND

Zoning News from Around the
Nation

Zoning BulletinJanuary 10, 2018 I Volume 12 I Issue 1



ROBERT K. STOKES
Elko County Manager

Attached with this Notice is the Agenda for said meeting of the Board.
This Notice is posted pursuant to NRS 241 as amended by the 201 7 Legislature and is to be posted at
the following places no later than three full working days before the meeting:

ELKO COUNTY MANAGER'S OFFICE
ELKO COUNTY COURTHOUSE
ELKO COUNTY LffiRARY
ELKO CITY HALL
ELKO COUNTY WEBSI1E: vvwvv.elkocOlmtynv.net

PUBLIC MEETING NOTICE
The Elko County Planning Commission, County ofElko, State of
Nevada, will meet on Thursday, January 18, 2018, in the Nannini
Administration Building, Suite 102, 540 Court Street, Elko, Nevada
89801 at 5:15 PM. Pacific Time Zone

PLANNING SUPERVISOR
John Kingwell

GIS/CADD OPERA TOR
Peggy Pierce-Fitzgerald

Elko County Planning Commission
COMMISSIONERS

David Galyen
Dena M. Hartley

David Hough
M ike Judd

Jack Larason
Richard Genseal
Mark Wetmore

540 Court Street, Suite 104, EIko, Nevada 89801
Phone (775) 738-6816 Fax (775) 738-4581
www.eIkocountynv.net



Elko County Planning Commission
Meet ing Agenda
January 18,2018

12

CONSENT AGENDA
Items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine in nature and are normally approved
by one motion without extensive discussion. Ifa Board/Commission member wishes to comment or
discuss a particular item, that item can be removed from the consent agenda and considered as a
separate action during the meeting.

Another avenue for making comments on agenda items, especially if you can't make a meeting, is called
e-Comment. If you open the agenda under the process described above, you will find a link by the
agenda called e-Comment. Click on the link and follow the directions to register to comment and you are
set to comment on specific agenda items. Please note that the e-comment period for a specific agenda
closes 24 hours before the start of the meeting to allow those comments to be transmitted to our
Board/Commission members and recording stan: Those reports are also uploaded to our agenda on the
we bsite.

Ifsubmitting comments or information on an agenda item, please submit to the County Manager's Office
as soon as possible in order to provide opportunity for Board/Commission members to review and to
avoid possible delays in a decision ifnot all information is presented previous to the start ofa meeting. If
information is presented at the meeting, you need to provide at least 10 copies, making sure to submit a
copy to the recording secretary for the official public record. All information submitted becomes part of
the public record and is added to the backup information for that agenda item on our website with 24
hours of the adjournment of the meeting.

If you are planning to speak during the meeting, please sign the sign-in-sheet at the back of the meeting
room. This helps our recording clerk get the correct spelling of your name. When comments are called
for, please approach the podium and state your name and who you represent.

PUBLIC COMMENT
The public's participation in our meetings is valued and appreciated. The Board/Commission can only
take action on items that are listed on an agenda properly posted prior to the meeting. During
Comments by the General Public, speakers may address matters not listed on the agenda. The Open
Meeting Law does not expressly prohibit responses to public comment by the Commissioners, but no
deliberation on a matter can be considered without notice to the public. Public comment will be called for
on all agenda items marked For Possible Action.

AGENDAS
The agenda is available on the Elko County website at www.elkocountynv.net. Hard copies are made
available at the meeting, upon request at the County Manager's Office or posted as per NRS 241.
Meetings are broadcast live from our website, under the Meetings tab on the home page of the website
and then under Agendas, Videos, etc. You can also click the Watch Our Meetings tab on the right side of
the home page. Videos ofthe meeting are available within 24 hours of the end ofthe meeting. Minutes,
when finalized and approved by the Board/Commission, are also posted to that page.

WELCOME TO AN ELKO COUNTY BOARD OR COMMISSION MEETING!
We are pleased you are interested in a meeting of one of Elko County's Boards or Commissions.
Below is some basic information about our meetings and procedures for you to participate in your
government.



Elko County Planning Commission
Meeting Agenda
January 18,2018
I' 13

NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES
Members of the public who are disabled and require special accommodations or assistance at the meeting are
requested to notify the Elko County Planning Commission in writing at 540 Court Street, Suite 104, Elko,
Nevada 89801, email pfitzgerald@elkocountynv.net or jkingwell@elkocountynv.net or by calling (775)
738-6816.

NOTICE OF THE APPEAL PROCESS
Anyone aggrieved by an action of this Planning Commission may appeal such decision to the Elko County
Board of County Commissioners within 10 calendar days of said action. An appeal form may be obtained from
the Division of Planning and Zoning located at 540 Court Street, Suite 104, in Elko. When completed, return the
appeal form with the required $250.00 filing fee to the Division of Planning and Zoning within the 10 calendar
day period.

REQUEST FOR AGENDA INFORMATION
The public may acquire this agenda and supporting materials, pursuant to NRS 241 by contacting John Kingwell
at (775) 748-0214 or via email to jkingwell@elkocountynv.net or, Peggy Pierce Fitzgerald at (775) 748-0215 or
via email topfrtzgerald@elkocountynv.net. Materials are available from the Elko County Planning and Zoning
Office, Nannini Administration Building, located at 540 Court Street, Suite 104, Elko, Nevada 89801 or on the
Elko County website at www.elkocountynv.net.

POSTING
This agenda is posted pursuant to NRS 241 as amended by the 2017 Legislature and was posted at the
following locations no later than 9:00 a.m. (Pacific Time Zone), on January 12,2018: ELKO COUNTY
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT, ELKO COUNTY MANAGER'S OFFICE, ELKO COUNTY
COURTHOUSE, ELKO COUNTY LIBRARY, ELKO CITY HALL, ELKO COUNTY WEBSITE
(www.elkocountynv.net). STATE OF NEVADA's PUBLIC NOTICE WEBSITE (https://notice.nv.gov).

IN ACCORDANCE WITH NRS 241, THE COMMISSION MAY: (I)CHANGE THE ORDER OF THE AGINDA, (II)COMBINE
lWO OR MOREAGINDA ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION, (ID) REMOVE AN ITEMFROM THE AGINDA OR DELAY
DISCUSSION RELATING TO AN ITEMON THE AGENDA AT ANYTIME, (IV)AND IF THE AGINDA IS NOT
COMPLEfFD, RECESS THE MFETINGAND CONTINUE ON ANOTmR SPECIFIID DATEAND TIME THE PUBLIC CAN
COMMENT ON ANYAGENDA ITEMBY BFJNGACKNOWLIDGID BYTHE CHAIR WHILE THE COMMISSION
CONSIDERS THAT AGENDA ITFM

Thursday, January 18, 2018

5:15 PM Pacific Time Zone

ELKO COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION
COUNTY OF ELKO, STATE OF NEVADA MEETING
THE NANNINI ADMINISTRATION BUILDING, SUITE 102,
540 COURT STREET, ELKO, NEVADA 89801.



Elko County Planning Commission
Meeting Agenda
January 18,2018
l ' ; ., 14

F.l. Application No. 18-2000-0001, A Preliminary Hearing.
Koinonia Construction Inc.

F. PRELIMINARYHEARINGS

E. COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC
Pursuant to NRS 241 this time is devoted to comments by the general public, if any, and discussion of those
comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this item on the agenda until the matter itself
has been specifically included on a successive agenda and identified to be an action item.
NON-ACTION

0.1. Elko County Planning Commission Minutes
FOR POSSIBLE ACTION
Minutes of December 21, 2017

D. APPROVALOFMINUTES

Election of Vice Chairman
FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

C.l. 2018 Election of New Officers
Election of Chairman
FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

C. ORGANIZATION OF BOARD

B. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

A. CALL TO ORDER AT 5:15 P.M.

"FOR POSSIBLE ACTION" identifies an action item subject to a vote of the Commission.

Breaks and recess actions shaUbe called for at the pleasure of the Commission rather than by agenda schedule.
Please place your ceUphones on manner mode.

PROCEDURES
The public will be given the opportunity to comment on any agenda item by being acknowledged by the chair
prior to action being taken by the Planning Commission.



Elko County Planning Commission
Meeting Agenda
January 18, 2018

15

POSTING CERTIFICATE

e-Comment Report for 01-18-18

e-Comments for 01-18-18.lPG

E-COMMENT

K. ADJOURNMENT

J. COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC
Pursuant to NRS 241 this time is devoted to comments by the general public, if any, and discussion of those
comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this item on the agenda until the matter itself
has been specifically included on a successive agenda and identified to be an action item.
NON-ACTION

I. STAFF UPDATE AND COMMISSIONERS COMMENTS
This time is devoted to comments by Elko County Planning Commissioners and/or County Staff for general
information or update purposes. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this item of the agenda
until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive agenda and identified to be an action item.
NON-ACTION

H. OTHER BUSINESS
NON-ACTION

G. PUBLIC HEARINGS

Location:
APN 049-018-002, A .60 acre parcel of land within Spring Creek Tract 403, Block 18, Lot 2. Physical
address is 710 Bronco Drive in Spring Creek, NV.Owner: Koinonia Construction Inc.

Location:
APN 049-025-008, A .620 acre parcel of land within Spring Creek Tract 403, Block 25, Lot 8. Physical
address is 723 Bronco Drive in Spring Creek, NV. Owner: Koinonia Construction Inc.

FOR POSSIBLE ACTION
An application filed by Koinonia Construction Inc. requesting a change of zoning on two (2) parcels of land
from Commercial-2, (C-2), to Residential-I, (R-l), for the construction of residential dwellings.



Elko County Planning Commission
Meeting Agenda
January 18,2018
!' 16

ELKO COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY PROVIDER AND EMPLOYER.

Posting Certificate
Jan 18,2018 Regular Meeting
1-18-2018, Certificate of Posting. pdf


	02-06-18 Agenda.pdf
	01-04-18 Draft Minutes.pdf
	Item I.A.1. Rez 10-17 Surebrec Holdings LLC.pdf
	Item I.A.2. Rez 11-17 MRP LLC.pdf
	Item I.A.3. Rez 12-17 Swire Coca-Cola USA.pdf
	Item I.A.4. CUP 1-18 Autumn Colors LLC.pdf
	Item I.A.5. Rez 1-18 City of Elko.pdf
	Item I.A.6. Rez 2-18 Jason Land.pdf
	Item I.A.7. Var 1-18 Jason Land.pdf
	Item I.B.1. 2017 Annual Report.pdf
	Item I.B.2. Ann 2-17 Surebrec Holdings LLC.pdf
	Item I.B.3. Ann 3-17 Swire Coca-Cola USA.pdf
	Item I.B.4. FP 2-18 Autumn Colors Estates PH 5.pdf
	Item I.B.5. Initiate Master Plan Amendment.pdf
	Zoning Bulletin - 12-25-17.pdf
	Zoning Bulletin - 1-10-18.pdf
	County PC Agenda - 01-18-18.pdf

